
 
 

 HOUSING  AUTHORITY 
OF  THE 

CITY  OF  AUSTIN 

 
 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 

 
Michael G. Gerber, President & CEO 

 

 

BOARD OF COMMISSIONERS 
Regular Meeting 

 

Thursday, May 19, 2016 
at 9:00 a.m. 

 
HACA Central 

1124 S. IH 35, Austin, TX  78704 
(512.477.4488) 

 

BOARD OF COMMISSIONERS 
Chairperson - Carl S. Richie, Jr. 

    Charles Bailey                        Tyra Duncan-Hall 
    Isaac Robinson                    Edwina Carrington 



*The Housing Authority of the City of Austin (HACA) Board of Commissioners reserves the right to discuss and consider items out of order on the agenda on an as needed basis. 
 

The Housing Authority of the City of Austin is committed to compliance with the Americans with Disability Act.  Reasonable modifications and equal access to the communications will be provided upon request.   
Meeting locations are planned with wheelchair access.  If requiring Sign Language Interpreters or alternative formats, please give notice at least 2 days (48 hours) before the meeting date.  Please call Judy 
Paciocco or Nidia Hiroms at HACA at 512.477.4488, for additional information; TTY users route through Relay Texas at 711.  For more information on HACA, please contact Nidia Hiroms at 512.477.4488 x 2104. 

Page 1 of 2 
 

PUBLIC NOTICE OF A MEETING 
TAKE NOTICE OF A BOARD OF COMMISSIONERS 

 REGULAR BOARD MEETING 
OF THE HOUSING AUTHORITY OF THE CITY OF AUSTIN 

 
TO BE HELD AT  
HACA Central 

1124 S. IH 35, Austin, TX  78704 
(512.477.4488) 

 

COMMENCING AT 9:00 A.M. ON THURSDAY, MAY 19, 2016, TO CONDUCT BUSINESS AS FOLLOWS: 
 
CALL TO ORDER, ROLL CALL             Carl S. Richie, Jr., Chairperson 
CERTIFICATION OF QUORUM 
 
Pledge of Allegiance 
 
Citizens Communication (Note: There will be a three-minute time limitation) 
 
Citywide Advisory Board Update 
 
CONSENT AGENDA 
Items on the Consent Agenda may be removed at the request of any Commissioner and considered at another appropriate time on this agenda.  
Placement on the Consent Agenda does not limit the possibility of any presentation, discussion, or action at this meeting.  Under no circumstances 
does the Consent Agenda alter any requirements under Chapter 551 of the Texas Government Code, Texas Open Meetings Act.  
 
CONSENT AGENDA  
APPROVAL OF THE FOLLOWING ITEMS PRESENTED IN THE BOARD MATERIALS:  
ITEM 1:   Presentation, Discussion, and Possible Action regarding the Approval of a Board Minutes 

Summary for the Board Meeting held on April 21, 2016 
Michael Gerber 

President & CEO 

 
APPROVAL OF THE FOLLOWING ITEMS PRESENTED IN THE BOARD MATERIALS:  
ITEM 2:   Presentation, Discussion and Possible Action regarding Resolution No. 2448:  Approval of the 

Project Based Rental Assistance House Rules and Adjacent Policies (Pet Policy, Assistance 
Animals Policy, VAWA Policy, Privacy Policy, Reasonable Accommodations Policy, Bed Bug 
Policy, Parking & Towing Policy, Grievance and Appeals Policy) 

Michael Roth 
Dir. of Housing Operations & 

Policy 

 
ITEM 3:   Presentation and Discussion of the proposed Choice Mobility Policy which will go out for public 

comment beginning on May 23, 2016 
Michael Roth 

Dir. of Housing Operations & 
Policy 

 
ITEM 4:   Presentation and Discussion of the proposed Changes to the revised Housing Choice Voucher 

Administrative Plan which will go out for public comment beginning on May 23, 2016 
Lisa Garcia 

VP of Assisted Housing 

 
ITEM 5:   Presentation and Discussion of the proposed Changes to the Admissions and Continued 

Occupancy Policy which will go out for public comment beginning on May 23, 2016 
Michael Roth 

Dir. of Housing Operations & 
Policy 

 
ITEM 6:   Presentation and Discussion of the proposed Tenant Selection Plans for PBRA Family properties, 

PBRA & LIHTC Family properties and PBRA & LIHTC Elderly / Disabled properties which will 
go out for public comment beginning on May 23, 2016 

Michael Roth 
Dir. of Housing Operations & 

Policy 

 
ITEM 7:   Presentation and Discussion of the proposed Changes to the 2016 PHA Annual Plan which will go 

out for public comment beginning on May 23, 2016 
Judy Paciocco 

Senior Operations Director 

 
ITEM 8:   Presentation, Discussion and Possible Action regarding Resolution No. 2449: Approving the 

authorization of the Housing Authority of the City of Austin (HACA) to submit to the U.S. 
Department of Housing and Urban Development (HUD) applications for the potential conversion 
of Phase II of public housing to the Rental Assistance Demonstration (RAD) Program 

Ann Gass 
Dir. of Strategic Housing 

Initiatives 

 
 



Page 2 of 2 

 

ITEM 9:   Presentation, Discussion, and Possible Action regarding Resolution No. 2450: Approving the 
submittal of the Section 8 Management Assessment Program (SEMAP) Certification to the 
Department of Housing and Urban Development (HUD) for the period from April 1, 2015 to 
March 31, 2016 

Lisa Garcia 
VP of Assisted Housing 

 
EXECUTIVE SESSION                                                                                                                                                    Carl S. Richie, Jr., Chairperson 
The Board may go into Executive Session (close its meeting to the public) Pursuant to:  

 a. § 551.071, Texas Gov’t Code, consultations with Attorney regarding legal advice, pending or contemplated litigation; or a 
settlement offer; 

 

 b. §551.072, Texas Gov’t Code, discussion about the purchase, exchange, lease or value of real property; 
 

 c. §551.074, Texas Gov’t Code, discuss the appointment, employment, evaluation, reassignment, duties, discipline, or dismissal of a 
public officer or employee; or to hear a complaint or charge against an officer or employee. 

 

 d. §551.087, Texas Gov’t Code, discuss certain economic development negotiations. 
 
OPEN SESSION 
If there is an Executive Session, the Board will return to Open Session for discussion, consideration and possible action of matters 
discussed in Executive Session.   
 
REPORTS 
The Board accepts the following reports:  
• Status Update on the Rental Assistance Demonstration  
• Finance Report   
• President’s Report   
• Other Staff Reports    
• Commissioners’ Reports/Questions to the Department Staff  

 
ADJOURNMENT 

 
“Pursuant to § 30.06, Penal Code, (trespass by holder of license with a concealed handgun), a person licensed under Subchapter H, Chapter 411, Government 
Code (handgun licensing law), may not attend this meeting with a concealed handgun.” 
 
“Pursuant to § 30.07, Penal Code (trespass by holder of license with an openly carried handgun), a person licensed under Subchapter H, Chapter 411, 
Government Code (handgun licensing law), may not attend this meeting with a handgun that is carried openly.” 
 
"En virtud del § 30.06, Código Penal, (traspaso titular de licencia con una pistola), una persona bajo el subcapítulo H, capítulo 411, código de gobierno (Ley de 
licencia de arma or pistola), no se permiten en este reunión con una arma o pistola. 
 
"En virtud del § 30.07, Código Penal (prevaricación por titular de la licencia con un arma o pistola abiertamente llevado), una persona bajo el subcapítulo H, 
capítulo 411, código de gobierno (Ley de licencia de arma o pistola), no se permiten en esta reunión con un arma o pistola que lleva abiertamente. 
 



HOUSING AUTHORITY OF THE CITY OF AUSTIN 
BOARD OF COMMISSIONERS 
REGULAR BOARD MEETING 

 

May 19, 2016 
Regular Meeting 

 
 
 
 
 

CALL TO ORDER 
AND 

ROLL CALL 
 
 

 Carl S. Richie, Jr., Chairperson                  _____ 

 Charles Bailey, Vice-Chairperson      _____ 

                     Tyra Duncan-Hall, 2nd Vice-Chairperson       _____ 

 Edwina Carrington, Commissioner      _____ 

                     Isaac Robinson, Commissioner      _____ 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 



HOUSING AUTHORITY OF THE CITY OF AUSTIN 
BOARD OF COMMISSIONERS 
REGULAR BOARD MEETING 

 

May 19, 2016 
Regular Meeting 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 

United States Pledge of Allegiance 
 



HOUSING AUTHORITY OF THE CITY OF AUSTIN 
BOARD OF COMMISSIONERS 
REGULAR BOARD MEETING 

 

May 19, 2016 
Regular Meeting 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Citizens Communication 



HOUSING AUTHORITY OF THE CITY OF AUSTIN 
BOARD OF COMMISSIONERS 
REGULAR BOARD MEETING 

 

May 19, 2016 
Regular Meeting 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Citywide Advisory  



HOUSING AUTHORITY OF THE CITY OF AUSTIN 
BOARD OF COMMISSIONERS 
REGULAR BOARD MEETING 

 

May 19, 2016 
Regular Meeting 

 

 
 
 

 

 
CONSENT AGENDA 

AGENDA ITEM NO. 1 
 

Presentation, Discussion, and Possible Action regarding the 
Approval of a Board Minutes Summary for the Board 
Meeting held on April 21, 2016 



APRIL 21, 2016 
Page 1 of 3 

 

HOUSING AUTHORITY OF THE CITY OF AUSTIN (HACA)  
BOARD OF COMMISSIONERS 
REGULAR BOARD MEETING 

 
APRIL 21, 2016 

 
SUMMARY OF MINUTES 

 
 

The HOUSING AUTHORITY OF THE CITY OF AUSTIN (HACA) Board of Commissioners Public Meeting Notice 
was posted for 12:00 noon on Thursday, APRIL 21, 2016, MEADOWBROOK  APARTMENTS, 1201 West Live Oak, 
Austin, TX  78704 
 
CALL TO ORDER, ROLL CALL, CERTIFICATION OF QUORUM 
The Board of Commissioners meeting of the HOUSING AUTHORITY OF THE CITY OF AUSTIN (HACA) of APRIL 21, 2016, was 
called to order by Carl S. Richie, Jr., Chairperson, at 12:12 p.m. The meeting was held at the MEADOWBROOK  
APARTMENTS, 1201 West Live Oak, Austin, TX  78704 
 
Roll call certified a quorum was present. 
MEMBERS PRESENT: MEMBER(S) ABSENT: 
Carl S. Richie, Jr., Chairperson  
Charles Bailey, Vice Chairperson  
Tyra Duncan-Hall, 2nd Vice Chairperson  
Edwina Carrington, Commissioner  
Isaac Robinson, Commissioner    
 
STAFF PRESENT:  
Andrea Galloway, Ann Gass, Ann Hittner, Barbara Jackson, Beth Phillips, Isa Juarez, Kelly Crawford, Lisa Garcia, Mark 
Meyer, Michael Gerber, Michael Roth, Monica Garcia, Nidia Hiroms, Pilar Sanchez, Ron Kowal, Suzanne Cowper, Suzanne 
Schwertner, Sylvia Blanco, Thomas Cherian and Vivianna Reyes. 
 
ALSO IN ATTENDANCE: 
Shelly Masters, Cokinos, Bosien & Young 
 
CITIZENS COMMUNICATION – there was a three minute limitation. – Mary Aleshire, Gaston Place resident, spoke on 
the Volunteer Legal Services of Austin, which provides services to public housing communities with regard to Wills, Estates, 
etc. Ms. Aleshire was able to speak with Michael Gerber, HACA CEO and Pilar Sanchez, HACA Vice President of Housing 
& Community Development, prior to the Board Meeting and the issues she had with scheduling and ensuring equal access to 
Volunteer Legal Services were resolved. 
 
CITYWIDE ADVISORY BOARD REPORT – Bill Alexander reported on behalf of the Citywide Advisory Board (CWAB).  The 
CWAB met on Tuesday, April 12th, at Meadowbrook Apartments.  Eileen Schrandt, Community Development Manager 
,reported that the theme for Mayfest will be country and western.  Partners for the event include Goodwill and the Austin Area 
Urban League. Ms. Schrandt spoke about various available grants. Barbara Jackson, HACA ROSS/FSS Manager, 
discussed scholarship grants and reported on the Grand Opening of the Head Start program and music room at Meadowbrook. 
Ms. Jackson reported that there is a new ROSS Grant. Pilar Sanchez, HACA Vice President of Housing & Community 
Development, reported that she and Eileen Schrandt had just returned from spending time with the Washington DC Housing 
Authority.  Dolly Garber, Coronado Hills resident, spoke about the elderly club. Property Reports were received from 12 
properties. 
 
PRESENTATION OF THE PROPERTY -  Isa Juarez, Manager of Meadowbrook introduced the Meadowbrook team:  Vivianna 
Reyes, Assistant Manager, Nancy Gomez, FETC Assistant Manager,  Ruben Lopez, Lead Maintenance, Gabriel Valadez, 
Lead Maintenance and Fernando Madero, Mechanic B.  Ms. Juarez also recognized two Meadowbrook residents for their 
contributions at Meadowbrook.   Mr. Victor Diaz has been a Meadowbrook resident for 47 years and volunteers by picking up 
grounds on a daily basis. Mr. Ernesto Resto is the new Meadowbrook Resident Council President and he is very active in all 
programs offered at the property.   
 
Meadowbrook is a 160 unit property and recent improvements include the installation of Google Fiber, energy efficient 
windows and central air conditioning.   The Meadowbrook team also maintains Mainsprings Daycare which provides child care 
services to infants and toddlers and the prior Meadowbrook office building is now a daycare that will provide child care 
services to 18 infants.  The Henry Flores Education and Training Center (FETC) is also located on the Meadowbrook property 



APRIL 21, 2016 
Page 2 of 3 

 

and is used for a variety of programs.  The FETCs houses three classrooms, a library, a computer lab, and a new music/media 
studio, which are all open to the residents and partners. The programs offered at the FETC include: Early Sign Language 
classes, parent child education programs with Travis High School parent groups, Communities in Schools, Community Care, 
and the Boys and Girl’s Club, computer classes, Austin FreeNet Techstarters, Boys and Girls Club STEM program and lab 
apprenticeships program and Latinitas family digital literacy.   
 
Ernest Resto – Meadowbrook resident and Resident Council President, reported that there are high school students working 
on a start up garden at Meadowbrook.  The students will work in the garden as part of their program.  It is the hope that 
Meadowbrook residents will also assist with this project.  
 
Sylvia Blanco, HACA Executive Vice President, announced that the State Chapter of TXNAHRO, a housing industry 
organization that HACA is a member of, sought nominations for various housing awards.  HACA staff was given the  
opportunity to nominate Residents and Maintenance staff and other personnel for an award in Recognition of their Outstanding 
Achievement and Contributions to the Housing Authority.   This year HACA staff nominated Mr. Ernesto Resto as Resident 
of the Year.  Mr. Resto has been phenomenal in forwarding our efforts with Digital Inclusion.  He has, in fact gone through a 
number of  training  classes through Austin Freenet and is now actually a digital ambassador.  Mr. Resto really helps his peers 
and neighbors get connected and have full utilization of the internet and other digital resources.  We are very proud of him and 
also very glad to hear that he is also the Leader of the Resident Council here at Meadowbrook.   
 
Sylvia Blanco reported that as a result of the recent flooding in Houston, staff of SHCC contacted property owners in the 
Houston area to determine what property damages have been incurred. One property in particular that has been impacted, 
Arbor Court, is within the portfolio and oversight of SHCC.  The first floor or this property was impacted by about 3 to 4 feet 
of water, displacing 116 of its families.  Families were assisted by the Red Cross and are being housed in a shelter.  
HACA/SHCC staff has been in contact with the HUD Multifamily Office to start the process of getting some pass-through 
funding to assist those residents to get back into alternate housing through the owners.  Staff is compiling a comprehensive list 
of all available vacant units throughout the Houston area and the owner of Arbor Court is welcoming assistance.  SHCC staff 
has been deployed to assess the damage to the units and they are being proactive in inspecting available units.  As soon as 
HUD approves the funding, residents will be able to move into available units that have passed inspection. 
 
EMPLOYEE OF THE QUARTER -  The Employee of the Quarter is Mark Meyer.  Mr. Meyer is a Voucher Support Processor in 
SHCC.  Mark is amazingly reliable.  He supports and coordinates with nine voucher processors and two Managers, and can 
always be counted on to quickly complete his work in an accurate manner, despite being faced with tight deadlines and a 
fluctuating workload due to staffing changes. Mark does this while navigating differing personalities with ease.  He has 
developed a great rapport with his coworkers; regardless of the circumstances, Mark continually has a smile on his face and is 
willing to help or go the extra mile.  Mark leads by example and inspires others to be their best.   
 
CONSENT AGENDA 
APPROVAL OF THE FOLLOWING ITEMS PRESENTED IN THE BOARD MATERIALS: 
Chairperson Richie pulled the Board Meeting Minutes Summary for the Board Meeting held on March 24, 2016 off of the 
Consent Agenda.  Chairperson Richie brought Item #4 from the March 24, 2016 Board Meeting Summary back up for 
discussion.  Resolution No. 2442: Approving the Write-off of the uncollectible accounts of vacated tenants for the seven-
month period ending March 2, 2016.  Inadvertently, there was no motion or second on this action item, however, a vote was 
taken and the action item was passed unanimously.  Chairperson Richie recognized Commissioner Robinson to make a 
motion to reconsider the motion by which this was taken.  Commissioner Carrington was recognized for the second.   The 
motion to reconsider the motion by which this was taken passed. (5-Ayes and 0-Nays).  Commissioner Robinson moved to 
Approving the Write-off of the uncollectible accounts of vacated tenants for the seven-month period ending March 2, 2016.  
Commissioner Carrington seconded the motion.  The motion passed. (5-Ayes and 0-Nays). 
 
ACTION ITEMS 
APPROVAL OF THE FOLLOWING ITEMS PRESENTED IN THE BOARD MATERIALS: 
ITEM 1: Presentation, Discussion, and Possible Action regarding the Approval of a Board Minutes Summary for 

the Board Meeting held on March 24, 2016 
Commissioner Bailey moved to approve the Board Minutes Summary for the Board Meeting held on March 24, 2016 as 
presented.   Commissioner Robinson seconded the motion.  The motion passed. (5-Ayes and 0-Nays).   
 
ITEM 2:   Presentation, Discussion, and Possible Action regarding Resolution No. 2446: Approving the Write-off of 

the uncollectible accounts of vacated tenants as of March 31, 2016 
The regulations of the U.S. Department of Housing and Urban Development require the Commissioners of the Housing 
Authority of the City of Austin to approve the write-off of the uncollectible accounts of vacated tenants.  As of March 31, 
2016, the total considered to be uncollectible from the books of the Housing Authority of the City of Austin is $29,077.19.  
Commissioner Robinson moved to approve Resolution No. 2446: Approving the Write-off of the uncollectible accounts of 
vacated tenants as of March 31, 2016 in the amount of $29,077.19.  Commissioner Duncan-Hall seconded the motion.  The 
motion passed. (5-Ayes and 0-Nays).   



APRIL 21, 2016 
Page 3 of 3 

 

ITEM 3:   Presentation, Discussion And Possible Action Regarding a Resolution No. 2447: To Take The Following 
Actions With Regard To The Oslo Apartments (the “Development”) in Austin, Texas: (A) Acquire the Site 
of the Development; (B) Lease The Development Site to the Owner of the Development; and (C) Such 
other actions necessary or convenient to carry out this Resolution 

An opportunity was presented to AAHC to purchase an apartment complex totaling 176 units, at William Cannon and IH 35. 
In March of 2016, the Board of Commissioners of HACA authorized AAHC to enter into a contract to purchase this 
development and complete the necessary due diligence required to proceed to closing. This property sits in a high opportunity 
and high growth area providing residents with access to a large base of employers in the area and residents have easy access to 
Austin/San Marcos via IH 35 and very close proximity to downtown. With the addition of these units AAHC can expand the 
housing choices to voucher holders in an area where they currently do not exist. This property has as its neighbor, Urban Oaks, 
an AAHC new construction property providing an excellent opportunity for both properties to participate in social and 
financial services that will be provided to the sites. By approving resolution 2447, the Board of the Housing Authority of the 
City of Austin would allow AAHC to acquire the site, lease the development to the owner of the development and any such 
actions necessary or convenient to carry out this resolution. 
Commissioner Duncan-Hall moved to approve Resolution No.  2447: To Take The Following Actions With Regard To The 
Oslo Apartments (the “Development”) in Austin, Texas: (A) Acquire the Site of the Development; (B) Lease The 
Development Site to the Owner of the Development; and (C) Such other actions necessary or convenient to carry out this 
Resolution.   Commissioner Carrington seconded the motion.  The motion passed. (5-Ayes and 0-Nays).   
 
THE BOARD RECESSED INTO EXECUTIVE SESSION AT 1:20 P.M. 
THE BOARD RETURNED FROM EXECUTIVE SESSION AT 2:20 P.M.   No action was taken during Executive Session. 
 
REPORTS 
The Board accepts the following reports: 
• President’s Report 

o No additional reporting. 

ADJOURNMENT 
Commissioner Bailey moved to adjourn the Board Meeting.   Commissioner Robinson seconded the motion.  The motion 
passed. (5-Ayes and 0-Nays).   
 
The meeting adjourned at 2:21 p.m. 
 
 
 
 _________________________________ 
 Carl S. Richie, Jr., Chairperson 
____________________________________ 
 Michael G. Gerber, Secretary 



HOUSING AUTHORITY OF THE CITY OF AUSTIN 
BOARD OF COMMISSIONERS 
REGULAR BOARD MEETING 

 

May 19, 2016 
Regular Meeting 

 
 
 
 
 

ACTION ITEMS 

AGENDA ITEM NO. 2 
 

Presentation, Discussion, and Possible Action regarding 
Resolution No. 2448:  Approval of the Project Based Rental 
Assistance House Rules and Adjacent Policies (Pet Policy, 
Assistance Animals Policy, VAWA Policy, Privacy Policy, 
Reasonable Accommodations Policy, Bed Bug Policy, 
Parking & Towing Policy, Grievance and Appeals Policy)



1  

HOUSING AUTHORITY OF THE CITY OF AUSTIN  
BOARD OF COMMISSIONERS 

 
Resolution No. 2448 

 
 
MEETING DATE: May 19, 2016 
 
STAFF CONTACT: Pilar Sanchez, Vice President of Housing and Community 

Development 
 

 Discussion of Adoption of Resolution No. 2448: Approval 
of the House Rules and Accompanying Policies for the 
Project Based Rental Assistance (PBRA) program 

 
ACTION: Motion to approve Resolution No. 2448 to approve and  adopt the 

proposed House Rules and Accompanying Policies for the PBRA 
program 

 
SUMMARY:  
The Housing Authority of the City of Austin (HACA) continues to prepare for the possible 
transition of some or all of our Public Housing properties to the Project Based Rental 
Assistance (PBRA) program through the Rental Assistance Demonstration (RAD).  The 
PBRA program requires owners to use the HUD model lease and develop their own House 
Rules and policies to accompany the model lease. 
 
Using resources developed for the PBRA program and designed to be compliant with all HUD 
multifamily regulations, the RAD policy team drafted House Rules and accompanying 
policies to be used when any HACA Public Housing property transitions to PBRA.  Even 
though there is no HUD requirement to do so, HACA put these House Rules and policies out 
for public comment for 30 days from April 1 to April 30, 2016.   
 
HACA received comments from Texas Rio Grande Legal Aid regarding the House Rules, 
Parking and Towing Policy, VAWA Policy and Bed Bug Policy.  
 
HACA reviewed the comments submitted and has responded to Legal Aid.  HACA 
considered all comments received and incorporated some of the changes suggested in the 
comments.  HACA appreciates the thoughtful comments provided by Legal Aid and their 
concern for our residents.  The comments from Legal Aid, together with HACA’s responses 
to each are attached to this summary.   
 
Below is a summary of each document, including suggested changes that were incorporated.   
 
House Rules 
Due to the requirement to use the HUD Model Lease, which is significantly different from 
HACA’s current Public Housing lease, HACA has significantly expanded the House Rules.  
The model lease incorporates the House Rules into the lease as an attachment.  HACA 
incorporated several suggested changes from Legal Aid regarding rent payments, parking 
and towing rules, identification of an abandoned unit, terms related to failure to fulfill the 



2  

first year of the lease, lease violations, and the minimum rent hardship exemption. 
 
Pet Rules 
The pet rules provide clear and detailed guidance to all residents regarding the 
responsibilities and requirements related to having a pet at one of our properties.  HACA will 
maintain its current pet policies allowing 2 pets per household with the same limits on what 
kinds of animals are considered pets, the maximum adult weight of 30 pounds and 
restrictions on certain breeds of dogs.  The only major change from current policy is the 
increase of the pet deposit from $50 per pet to $100 per pet.  Families will also be allowed to 
pay the deposit in monthly installments of at least $10 / month after the initial $50 down 
payment.   
 
Assistance Animal Policy 
This policy provides a clear explanation of the difference between pets and assistance 
animals.  Animals approved as a reasonable accommodation to be an assistance animal are 
not subject to pet deposits, nor the limitations of breed, size or type of animal.  However, the 
Assistance Animal Policy does provide clear guidance on the responsibilities and 
requirements that residents must meet to have an assistance animal. 
 
VAWA Policy 
The Violence Against Women Act (VAWA) was re-authorized in 2013.  This policy 
provides a detailed explanation of VAWA, the protections it offers to residents and families, 
how to request and access the protections as well as the requirements related to VAWA.  
These protections are available to any victim of domestic violence, dating violence, sexual 
assault or stalking regardless of gender, age, sexual orientation, gender identity or any other 
protected class.  HACA incorporated suggested comments from Legal Aid to ensure clear 
communication to residents about the timelines for submitting certification of a VAWA 
claim. 
 
Reasonable Accommodations Policy 
This policy provides explanation of eligibility to request an accommodation, the process to 
request an accommodation and how HACA will respond to the request.  The policy is 
intended to help any disabled resident be able to fully access the PBRA program. 
 
Privacy Policy 
HACA complies with all the privacy requirements that HUD places on the use of personal 
information received from residents and applicants.  This policy document will be given to 
residents and applicants to inform them about how we use their personal information. 
 
Bed Bug Policy 
This policy outlines steps that residents can take to prevent problems with bed bugs as well 
as how HACA will work together with residents and a pest control company to resolve any 
bed bug issues.  The policy gives clear guidance regarding the responsibilities of residents 
and HACA.  HACA will also incorporate the suggestion from Legal Aid to work with social 
service agencies to find a way to simplify this policy so all residents can easily understand it.  
Once completed, HACA will bring the updated version back to the Board for approval. 
 
Parking & Towing Policy 
The parking and towing policy provides the current guidelines regarding where residents can 
and cannot park on HACA properties.  The policy also clearly outlines if and when HACA 



3  

will take steps to have a vehicle towed.  HACA incorporated comments from Legal Aid to 
make it easier for long term caretakers and health care providers to receive a longer term 
parking pass.  HACA also incorporated other changes to minimize towing of resident 
vehicles for expired license or registration, while still keeping HACA’s ability to tow 
vehicles not belonging to residents that get dumped on our properties. 
 
Grievance & Appeals Policy 
HUD requires any property that transitions from Public Housing to PBRA through RAD to 
carry over the existing grievance and appeals policies.  This is an important resident 
protection that must be incorporated in the new policies.  This document provides all the 
current existing grievance and appeals policies applicable to residents and applicants to the 
program.   
 
ATTACHMENTS: 

• Comparison of LIPH and PBRA Lease and Policies 
• HUD Model Lease 
• House Rules 
• Pet Rules 
• Assistance Animals Policy 
• VAWA Policy 
• Reasonable Accommodations Policy 
• Privacy Policy 
• Bed Bug Policy 
• Parking & Towing Policy 
• Grievance & Appeals Policy 
• Legal Aid Comments and HACA Response 

 
RECOMMENDATION:  
It is HACA’s recommendation to approve and adopt HUD model lease, the House Rules and 
all accompanying policies for properties that transition to the PBRA program. 
 
FINANCE REVIEW: 
X Proposed action does not require Finance Department review. 
 

 Fiscal Impact was approved by   _____________________________  
 

  

    Thomas Cherian, Vice-President of Finance 
 



 

 
Resolution No. 2448 

 
 

RESOLUTION APPROVING THE PROJECT BASED RENTAL 
ASSISTANCE HOUSE RULES AND ACCOMPANYING POLICIES 
(PET RULES, ASSISTANCE ANIMALS POLICY, VAWA POLICY, 

REASONABLE ACCOMMODATIONS POLICY, PRIVACY 
POLICY, BED BUG POLICY, PARKING & TOWING POLICY, 

GRIEVANCE AND APPEALS POLICY) 
 
 
WHEREAS, the Housing Authority of the City of Austin (HACA) is preparing for the  
possible transition of Public Housing properties to the Project Based Rental Assistance 
(PBRA) program through the Rental Assistance Demonstration (RAD), and 

 
WHEREAS, the Housing Authority of the City of Austin would be required to use the 
HUD model lease in the PBRA program; and 

 
WHEREAS, the Housing Authority of the City of Austin, as required by federal 
regulations, has developed House Rules and other policies to accompany the HUD model 
lease; and 
 
WHEREAS, the Housing Authority of the City of Austin provided 30 days for public 
comment on the HUD model lease, PBRA House Rules and the accompanying policies, 
beginning April 1, 2016 and ending at 5:00 pm on April 30, 2016; and  

 
WHEREAS, the Housing Authority of the City of Austin seeks to formally adopt the 
proposed HUD model lease, House Rules and accompanying policies in order to be 
appropriately prepared for any transition to the Project Based Rental Assistance program; 

 
NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED that the Housing Authority of the City of 
Austin Board of Commissioners approves and adopts the HUD model lease, the House 
Rules and all accompanying policies for any and all Public Housing properties that transition 
to the Project Based Rental Assistance program. 

 
PASSED, APPROVED AND ADOPTED this 19th day of May, 2016. 

 
 
 

 

Carl S. Richie, Chairperson 
 
 
 

 

Michael Gerber, Secretary 



Public Housing Vs. Project Based Rental Assistance 
Comparison of Leases, Addendums & House Rules
Policy Issues

Public Housing Lease

HACA Lease, Addendum 
or House Rules Section

Subject
Location in                             
PBRA Docs 

Policy Same                                                            
or Different

1.  Parties, Dwelling 
Address and Execution 
Date

Family name, HACA as parties, 
dwelling address and date of 
execution of the lease.

PBRA Lease Section 1 Same

2.  Term 
Lease start and end date with 
renewal periods

PBRA Lease Section 2
Different.  Initial Term must be 
one full year in PBRA, not 
necessarily in PH

3.  Members of the 
Household

List of authorized family 
members, age and relationship 
to HOH.

Attachment 1 to Lease Same

4.  Rent

Prorated rent due, full monthly 
rent, location of payment, late 
fees, returned checks,  when 
due and when late, no cash 
accepted.

PBRA Lease Section 3, 4 
and 5                                             
House Rules Page 4

Different.  Late fees are not the 
same.

5.  Other Charges

Maintenance costs, Excess 
Utility Charges, Repayment 
Agreements, Retroactive Rent, 
Installation Charges and Cable 
Charges

PBRA Lease Section 11 
Damages (maintenance 
charges)                                              
House Rules Page 4

Different policy on maintenance 
cost with regard to paying 
market rent for uninhabitable 
unit while being repaired.

6.  Utilities and 
Appliances

Identifies who pays for each 
utility type; need for utilities to 
be in the name of the resident; 
identifies what appliances 
provided by HACA; required 
notices for changes to utility 
allowances; commitment by 
resident to conserve water and 
not waste utilities.

PBRA Lease Section 7 
Charges for Utilities and 
Services.                                               
House Rules Page 9-10 
includes info about 
applicances and resident 
owned appliances

Policy is the same

7.  Security Deposit

Security deposit amount of 
$150 for families, $75 elderly 
or disabled.  Outlines tenant 
responsibility to pay and HACA 
responsibility to return 
depsoit, what can be deducted

PBRA Lease                            
Pet Policy for Pet Deposit                                          
House Rules Page 17

Different.  PBRA sets Security 
Deposit based on income (TTP)

Item No. 2, Attachment 1, page 1



HACA Lease, Addendum 
or House Rules Section

Subject
Location in                             
PBRA Docs 

Policy Same                                                            
or Different

8.  Reexamination of 
Rent, Dwelling Size 
and Eligibility

Annual reexam process, 
interim reexam process and 
effective dates, changes in 
family composition; transfer 
policy

PBRA Lease Section 4, 
Section 15, Section 16 
and Section 19.             
Tenant Selection Plan has 
transfer policy.                           
House Rules pages 4 - 5 

Different.  Family has option to 
remain in incorrect sized unit and 
pay market rent.

9.  Resident's Right to 
Use and Occupy 
Dwelling Unit

Only the approved family 
members are allowed to 
occupy the unit.

PBRA Lease Section 13 Same

10.  Guests, Foster 
Children and Live-In 
Aide

Rules regarding authorized 
guests and Live- In Aides. 

PBRA Live-In Aide 
Addendum, House Rules 
Page 19

Live-In Aide rules the same.  
Change Guest / Visitor policy to 7 
consecutive and 30 cumulative 
days.

11. Obligations of 
HACA

HACA must keep spaces safe 
and maintained and residents 
informed. 

PBRA Lease Section 10                          
Reasonable 
Accommodation Policy, 
VAWA Policy                                         
House Rules

Same. Includes post VAWA info; 
comply w/Fair Housing

12. Obligations of 
Resident

Rules residents must follow 
while in Public Housing

PBRA Lease Section 10                           
House Rules (throughout, 
but especially pages 15 
and following)

Similar; minor diffrerences

13. Prohibited or 
Criminal Activity

Weapons, criminal activities, 
and Zero-Tolerance Policy

PBRA Lease Section 23           
House Rules Page 19

Same.

14. Defects Hazardous 
to Life, Health, or 
Safety

Obligations of HACA and 
resident to maintain safe Units

PBRA Lease Section 10   
House Rules Pages 6 and 
following

Same. 

15. Liability
HACA is only responsible for its 
staff and property 

House Rules Page 8 Same.

16. Pre-Occupancy 
and Pre-Termination 
Inspections

Move In and Move Out 
inspections

PBRA Lease section 6  
House Rules Page 13

Same. 

17. Entry of Premises 
During Residency 

HACA staff entry rules and 
enry rules regarding work 
orders and emergencies

PBRA Lease Section 20 Same.

18. Notice Procedures
Notice format and timeliness 
for HACA and residents 

 House Rules Page  24 Same policies.

Item No. 2, Attachment 1, page 2



HACA Lease, Addendum 
or House Rules Section

Subject
Location in                             
PBRA Docs 

Policy Same                                                            
or Different

19. Termnation of 
Lease

Grounds for termination and 
process of termination by 
HACA & Resident

PBRA Lease Section  17    
PBRA Lease Section 23 
House Rules Page 22 and 
following

Different.  Owner can terminate 
assistance (move to market rent) 
or terminate tenancy (Evict).  
Notice times are also different.

20. Smoke-Free Policy
Scope, policy, and 
enforcement of smoke free 
and designated areas

House Rules Page 6              
Tenant Selection Plan

Same.

21. Non-Waiver Rights 
and Claims

HACA may accept monies at 
anytime without waving rights 
to pursue a move out

House Rules Page 4 Same

22. Changes and New 
Leases

 Any changes to the lease (with 
exceptions) must be 
ammended with Resident and 
HACA signature.

PBRA Lease Section 22

Different.  All changes must be 
approved by HUD (new 
agreement/amendment). Notice 
to tenant 60 prior to effective 
date.  

23. Abandonment and 
Abandoned Property

Constituing and abandoned 
unit and rightS to abandoned 
property

House Rules Page 21 Same.

24. Grievance 
Procedures

HACA/Resident will follow 
Grievance Procedures posted 
in Property Office

House Rules Page 25   
Grievance & Apeals 
Policy

Same.

25. Postings of Notices 
and Schedules

Timeliness, format, and 
location of notices and 
schedules

House Rules Page 33 Same

26. Repairs and 
Malfunctions

Timeliness of reporting 
emergency and non-
emergency repairs and how to 
report

PBRA Section 10                  
House Rules Pages 14-15

Same.

27. Accomodation of 
Persons with 
Disabilities

Disabled persons will be 
provided reasonable 
accomodation in all acpects 

PBRA Lease Section 12  
Reasonable 
Accommodation Policy

Same. 

28. Execution
Residents agree to all above 
sections

PBRA Lease Section 31 Same. 

PH Addendums

HACA Lease, Addendum 
or House Rules Section

Subject
Location in                             
PBRA Docs 

Policy Same                                                            
or Different

House Rules See House Rules Tab See House Rules Tab

Bed Bud 
Requirement of resident to 
abide by policy and treatment 
colution

House Rules Page 12      
Bed Bug Policy

Same

Item No. 2, Attachment 1, page 3



HACA Lease, Addendum 
or House Rules Section

Subject
Location in                             
PBRA Docs 

Policy Same                                                            
or Different

Minimum Rent 
Hardship Exemption

Minimum rent details and 
exemptions

House Rules Page 5 Same

Mold Addendum
Resident's responsibility to 
prevent mold and notify 
management when needed

House Rules Page 13 Same

Parking and Towing 
Policy

Rules of parking on all HACA 
properties

House Rules Page 16      
Parking & Towing Policy

Same

Smoke Free 
Addendum

Scope, policy and enforcement 
of smoke free

House Rules Page 6 Same

Pet Addendum
Rules and guidelines for having 
pets on property

Pet addendum for Elderly 
property;                      Pet 
Rules Policy                               
House Rules Page 17                
Assistance Animal Policy

Change to 1 pet per household; 
Pet deposit to $100 

Zero Tolerance
Screening upon application 
and eviction for some criminal 
activities

PBRA Lease Section 23    
House Rules Page 21 and 
following

Same, although use different 
language

VAWA
Grants protections listed in 
federal VAWA act

VAWA Addendum;       
VAWA Policy                            
House Rules Page 34

Same.

Asbestos Addendum House Rules Page 12 Same

PH House Rules

HACA Lease, Addendum 
or House Rules Section

Subject
Location in                             
PBRA Docs 

Policy Same                                                            
or Different

1 Intro - phone numbers
House Rules Page 3 and 
header for every page

Same

1 Smoking Policy House Rules Page 6 Same

1
Community Environment 
(trash, bulk items, do not feed 
birds, do not speed)

House Rules Pages 8 and 
following

Same

2 Porches and Patios House Rules Page 11 Same
2 Trash Receptacles House Rules Page 15 Same

3
Alterations to exterior / 
interior

PBRA Lease Section 12  
House Rules Page 11

Same

3 Rent and late payments
PBRA Lease Sections 4 
and 5                                       
House Rules Pages 4-5

Same

3 Early Bird House Rules Page 4 Same

Item No. 2, Attachment 1, page 4



HACA Lease, Addendum 
or House Rules Section

Subject
Location in                             
PBRA Docs 

Policy Same                                                            
or Different

3 Exterminations House Rules Page 12 Same

4
Maintenance (phone number, 
non-emergency, unit access)

PBRA Lease Section 10     
House Rules Page 14

Same

4 Maintenance Emergencies House Rules Page 14 Same
4 Toilets House Rules Page 15 Same
5 Inspections House Rules Page 13 Same

5 Doors/ lock changes, Lock outs
PBRA Lease Section 9             
House Rules Page 9

Same

5 Smoke Detectors House Rules Page 8 Same

5 to 6 Resident-owned applicances House Rules Page 9 Same

6 Fire House Rules Page 6 Same
6 Renters Insurance House Rules Page 8 Same
6 Freezing Weather House Rules Page 7 Same

7 Suspicious Activity and Noise
PBRA Lease Section 13 
House Rules Page 7      
House Rules Page 15

Same

7 Lighting

7 Pets

House Rules Page 17 and 
following, Pet 
Addendum,                  Pet 
Rules Policy                                   
Assistance Animals Policy

Same plus additional info on 
Assistance Animals

7 Guests House Rules Page 17
Change to 7 consecutive days 
and 30 cumulative

7 Soliciting House Rules Page 16 Same
7 Complaints House Rules Page  3 Same

7
Vehicles / Parking (reference 
to separate policy

House Rules Page 16 and 
Parking / Towing Policy

Same

7 Landscaping for scattered sites NA

8 Vacating apt House Rules Page 24 Same, modified

8 to 9 Move-out cleaning instructions House Rules Page 24 Reduced

Item No. 2, Attachment 1, page 5



OMB Approval No. 2502-0204 
(Exp. 06/30/2017) 

 

Page 1 of 15                                       form HUD-90105a (12/2007) 

                                                                   ref. HB 4350.3 Rev. 1

MODEL LEASE FOR SUBSIDIZED PROGRAMS 
  
1.  Parties and        The parties to this Agreement are ____

(A)
____ 

    Dwelling           ____________________, referred to as the 
 Unit:              Landlord, and 
______________________________

(B)
____________________________, 

                       referred to as the Tenant.  The Landlord leases 
                       to the Tenant(S) unit number __(C) ____, located   
    at 
    
__________________________

(D)
_______________________________________ 

    in the project known as______(E) _______________________________. 
  
2.  Length of Time     The initial term of this Agreement shall begin 
      (Term):          on ____(F) _____ and end on ____(G) _____.  After 
                       the initial term ends, the Agreement will  
    continue for successive terms of one _______(H) ____ each unless  
    automatically terminated as permitted by paragraph 23 of this 
    Agreement. 
  
3.  Rent:              The Tenant agrees to pay $____

(I)
__ for the  

                       partial month ending on _____(J) ______.  After  
                       that, Tenant agrees to pay a rent of $_(K) _ per  
    month.  This amount is due on the ____(L) ____ day of the month at  
    ____________________(M) ___________________________________________ 
    __________________________________________________________________. 
    The Tenant understands that this monthly rent is less than the 
    market (unsubsidized) rent due on this unit.  This lower rent is 
    available either because the mortgage on this project is subsidized 
    by the Department of Housing and Urban Development (HUD) and/or 
    because HUD makes monthly payments to the Landlord on behalf of the 
    Tenant.  The amount, if any, that HUD makes available monthly on 
    behalf of the Tenant is called the tenant assistance payment and is 
    shown on the "Assistance Payment" line of the Owner’s     
    Certification of Compliance with HUD’s Tenant Eligibility and Rent  
    Procedures form which is Attachment No. 1 to this Agreement. 
  
4.  Changes in the     The Tenant agrees that the amount of rent the 
    Tenant's Share     Tenant pays and/or the amount of assistance that 
    of the Rent:       HUD pays on behalf of the Tenant may be changed 
                       during the term of this Agreement if: 
  
    a.  HUD or the Contract Administrator (such as a Public Housing 
        Agency) determines, in accordance with HUD procedures, that an 
        increase in rents is needed; 
  
    b.  HUD or the Contract Administrator changes any allowance for 
        utilities or services considered in computing the Tenant's 
        share of the rent; 
  
    c.  the income, the number of persons in the Tenant's household or 
        other factors considered in calculating the Tenant's rent 
        change and HUD procedures provide that the Tenant's rent or 
        assistance payment be adjusted to reflect the change; 



OMB Approval No. 2502-0204 
(Exp. 06/30/2017) 

 

Page 2 of 15                                       form HUD-90105a (12/2007) 

                                                                     ref. HB 4350.3 Rev. 1

d. changes in the Tenant's rent or assistance payment are 
required by HUD's recertification or subsidy termination 
procedures 

 
e. HUD's procedures for computing the Tenant's assistance payment 

or rent change; or 
  
f. the Tenant fails to provide information on his/her income, 
   family composition or other factors as required by the 
   Landlord. 

  
    The Landlord agrees to implement changes in the Tenant's rent or 
    tenant assistance payment only in accordance with the time frames 
    and administrative procedures set forth in HUD's handbooks, 
    instructions and regulations related to administration of  
    multifamily subsidy programs.  The Landlord agrees to give the 
    Tenant at least 30 days advance written notice of any increase in 
    the Tenant's rent except as noted in paragraphs 11, 15 or 17.  The 
    Notice will state the new amount the Tenant is required to pay, the 
    date the new amount is effective, and the reasons for the change in 
    rent.  The Notice will also advise the Tenant that he/she may meet 
    with the Landlord to discuss the rent change. 
  
5.  Charges for Late   If the Tenant does not pay the full amount of 
    Payments and       the rent shown in paragraph 3 by the end of 

Returned Checks:    the 5th day of the month, the Landlord may  
                 Collect a fee of $5 on the 6th day of the 
                 month. Thereafter, the Landlord may collect $1 
                 for each additional day the rent remains 

                    unpaid during the month it is due.   
  The Landlord  may not terminate this Agreement 

for failure to pay late charges, but may 
terminate this Agreement for non-payment of rent, 
as explained in paragraph 23.  The Landlord may 
collect a fee of $__(N) ___ on the second or any 
additional time a check is not honored for 
payment (bounces).  The charges discussed in this 
paragraph are in addition to the regular monthly 
rent payable by the Tenant. 

  
6.  Condition of       By signing this Agreement, the Tenant 
    Dwelling           acknowledges that the unit is safe, clean and  
    Unit               in good condition.  The Tenant agrees that all  
                       Appliances and equipment in the unit are in 
                       good working order, except as described on the 
                       Unit Inspection Report which is Attachment 
                       No. 2 to this Agreement.  The Tenant also  

agrees that the Landlord has made no promises to 
decorate, alter, repair or improve the unit, 
except as listed on the Unit Inspection Report. 

  
7.  Charges for        The following charts describe how the cost of 
    Utilities and      utilities and services related to occupancy 
    Services:          of the unit will be paid.  The Tenant agrees 



OMB Approval No. 2502-0204 
(Exp. 06/30/2017) 

 

Page 3 of 15                                       form HUD-90105a (12/2007) 

                                                                     ref. HB 4350.3 Rev. 1

that these charts accurately describe the 
utilities and services paid by the Landlord and 
those paid by the Tenant. 

 
    a.  The Tenant must pay for the utilities in column (1).  Payments 
        should be made directly to the appropriate utility company.  
        The items in column (2) are included in the Tenant's rent. 
  
            (1)                                           (2) 
  
        Put  "x" by any      Type of                  Put "x" by any 
        Utility Tenant       Utility                  Utility Included 
        pays directly                                 in Tenant Rent 
  
           ___(O) ___          Heat                       ___(O) ____  
           _________          Lights, Electric           __________ 
           _________          Cooking                    __________ 
           _________          Water                      __________ 
                              Other (Specify. 
           _________          ____________               __________ 
           _________          ____________               __________ 
  

b. The Tenant agrees to pay the Landlord the amount shown in  
column (3) on the date the rent is due.  The Landlord certifies 
that HUD had authorized him/her to collect the type of charges 
shown in column (3) and that the amounts shown in column (3) do 
not exceed the amounts authorized by HUD. 

  
                                            (3) 
 
                                      Show $ Amount Tenant 
                                      Pays to Landlord in 
                                      Addition to Rent 
  
               Parking                   $___

(O)
____ 

               Other (Specify.) 
               _______________           $__________ 
               _______________           $__________ 
  
8.  Security Deposits:   The Tenant has deposited $__

(P)
__ with the 

                         Landlord.  The Landlord will hold this  
                         security deposit for the period the Tenant  
                         occupies the unit.  After the Tenant has moved  
                         from the unit, the Landlord will determine  

 whether the Tenant is eligible for a refund of 
any or all of the security deposit.  The amount 
of the refund will be determined in accordance 
with the following conditions and procedures. 

  
a. The Tenant will be eligible for a refund of the security  

Deposit only if the Tenant provided the Landlord with the 30-
day written notice of intent to move required by paragraph 23, 
unless the Tenant was unable to give the notice for reasons 
beyond his/her control. 



OMB Approval No. 2502-0204 
(Exp. 06/30/2017) 

 

Page 4 of 15                                       form HUD-90105a (12/2007) 

                                                                     ref. HB 4350.3 Rev. 1

b. After the Tenant has moved from the unit, the Landlord will 
   inspect the unit and complete another Unit Inspection Report. 
   The Landlord will permit the Tenant to participate in the 
   inspection, if the Tenant so requests. 
 
b. The Landlord will refund to the Tenant the amount of the 

security deposit plus interest computed at _(Q) _%, beginning 
___(R) ___ ,less any amount needed to pay the cost of: 

  
        (1)  unpaid rent; 
  
        (2)  damages that are not due to normal wear and tear and are 
             not listed on the Unit Inspection Report; 
  
        (3)  charges for late payment of rent and returned checks, as 
             described in paragraph 5; and 
  
        (4)  charges for unreturned keys, as described in paragraph 9. 
  
    d.   The Landlord agrees to refund the amount computed in paragraph 
         8c within _(S) _ days after the Tenant has permanently moved  
         out of the unit, returned possession of the unit to the 
         Landlord, and given his/her new address to the Landlord.  The  
         Landlord will also give the Tenant a written list of charges  
         that were subtracted from the deposit.  If the Tenant  
         disagrees with the Landlord concerning the amounts deducted  
         and asks to meet with the Landlord, the Landlord agrees to  
         meet with the Tenant and informally discuss the disputed  
         charges. 
  

e.  If the unit is rented by more than one person, the Tenants  
         agree that they will work out the details of dividing any  
         refund among themselves.  The Landlord may pay the refund to 
         any Tenant identified in Paragraph 1 of this Agreement. 
  
     f.  The Tenant understands that the Landlord will not count the 
         Security Deposit towards the last month's rent or towards  
         repair charges owed by the Tenant in accordance with  
         paragraph 11. 
  
 9.  Keys and Locks:      The Tenant agrees not to install additional  
                          or different locks or gates on any doors or 
                          windows of the unit without the written  
                          permission of the Landlord.  If the Landlord 

  approves the Tenant's request to install such 
locks, the Tenant agrees to provide the 
Landlord with a key for each lock.  When this 
Agreement ends, the Tenant agrees to return 
all keys to the dwelling unit to the 
Landlord.  The Landlord may charge the Tenant      
$ ___(T) _ for each key not returned. 

  
Maintenance: 



OMB Approval No. 2502-0204 
(Exp. 06/30/2017) 

 

Page 5 of 15                                       form HUD-90105a  (12/2007)

                                                                      ref. HB 4350.3 Rev. 1

a.  The Landlord agrees to: 
  
         (1)  regularly clean all common areas of the project; 
  
         (2)  maintain the common areas and facilities in a safe 
              condition; 
  
         (3)  arrange for collection and removal of trash and garbage; 
  
         (4)  maintain all equipment and appliances in safe and working 
              order; 
  
         (5)  make necessary repairs with reasonable promptness; 
  
         (6)  maintain exterior lighting in good working order: 
  
         (7)  provide extermination services, as necessary; and 
 
         (8)  maintain grounds and shrubs. 
  
     b.   The Tenant agrees to: 
  
         (1)  keep the unit clean; 
  

(2) use all appliances, fixtures and equipment in a safe  
manner and only for the purposes for which they are 
intended; 

  
         (3)  not litter the grounds or common areas of the project; 
  
         (4)  not destroy, deface, damage or remove any part of the 
              unit, common areas, or project grounds; 
  
         (5)  give the Landlord prompt notice of any defects in the 
              plumbing, fixtures, appliances, heating and cooling 
              equipment or any other part of the unit or related 
              facilities; and 
  

(6)  remove garbage and other waste from the unit in a clean  
and safe manner. 

  
 11.  Damages:            Whenever damage is caused by carelessness, 
                          misuse, or neglect on the part of the Tenant, 

  his/her family or visitors, the Tenant              
agrees to pay: 

  
      a.   the cost of all repairs and do so within 30 days after 
           receipt of the Landlord's demand for the repair charges; and 
  
      b.   rent for the period the unit is damaged whether or not the 
           unit is habitable.  The Tenant understands that HUD will not 
           make assistance payments for any period in which the unit is  
           not habitable.  For any such period, the Tenant agrees to 
           pay the HUD-approved market rent rather than the Tenant rent 



OMB Approval No. 2502-0204 
(Exp. 06/30/2017) 

 

Page 6 of 15                                       form HUD-90105a (12/2007) 

                                                                     ref. HB 4350.3 Rev. 1

shown in paragraph 3 of this agreement. 
  
 12.  Restrictions on    No alteration, addition, or improvements shall 
      Alterations:       be made in or to the premises without the  

             prior consent of the Landlord in writing.  The 
 Landlord agrees to provide reasonable 
accommodation to an otherwise eligible tenant’s 
disability, including making changes to rules, 
policies, or procedures, and making and paying 
for structural alterations to a unit or common 
areas.  The Landlord is not required to provide 
accommodations that constitute a fundamental 
alteration to the Landlord’s program or which 
would pose a substantial financial and 
administrative hardship.  See the regulations 
at 24 CFR Part 8.  In addition, if a requested 
structural modification does pose a substantial 
financial and administrative hardship, the 
Landlord must then allow the tenant to make and 
pay for the modification in accordance with the 
Fair Housing Act. 

  
 
 13.  General            The Tenant must live in the unit and the  
      Restrictions:      unit must be the Tenant's only place of  
                         residence.  The Tenant shall use the  
                         premises only as a private dwelling for  

  himself/herself and the individuals listed on 
the Owner’s Certification of Compliance with 
HUD’s Tenant Eligibility and Rent Procedures, 
Attachment 1.  The Tenant agrees to permit 
other individuals to reside in the unit only 
after obtaining the prior written approval of 
the    Landlord.  The Tenant agrees not to: 

  
      a.  sublet or assign the unit, or any part of the unit; 
  
      b.  use the unit for unlawful purposes; 
  
      c.  engage in or permit unlawful activities in the unit, in the 
          common areas or on the project grounds; 
   
      d.  have pets or animals of any kind in the unit without the 

prior 
  written permission of the Landlord, but the landlord will 

allow the tenant to keep an animal needed as a reasonable 
accommodation to the tenant’s disability, and will allow 
animals to accompany visitors with disabilities who need such 
animals as an accommodation to their disabilities; or 

  
      e.  make or permit noises or acts that will disturb the rights or 
          comfort of neighbors.  The Tenant agrees to keep the volume  
          of any radio, phonograph, television or musical instrument at  
          a level which will not disturb the neighbors. 
  
 14.  Rules:    The Tenant agrees to obey the House Rules which are 



OMB Approval No. 2502-0204 
(Exp. 06/30/2017) 

 

Page 7 of 15                                       form HUD-90105a  (12/2007)

                                                                     ref. HB 4350.3 Rev. 1

Attachment No. 3 to this Agreement.  The tenant agrees  
               to obey additional rules established after the effective  
         date of this Agreement if: 
       
      a.  the rules are reasonably related to the safety, care and 
          cleanliness of the building and the safety, comfort and 
          convenience of the Tenants; and 
 
      b.  the Tenant receives written notice of the proposed rule at   

    least 30 days before the rule is enforced. 
  

 15.  Regularly Scheduled  Every year around the __
(U)

___ day of _
(V)

_,   
      Recertifications:    the Landlord will request the 
                           Tenant to report the income and composition  
                           of the Tenant's household and to supply any  
                           other information required by HUD for the 

   purposes of determining the Tenant's rent 
 and assistance payment, if any.  The Tenant 
 agrees to provide accurate statements of 

this 
 information and to do so by the date       
 specified in the Landlord's request.  The  
 landlord will verify the information 

supplied  
 by the Tenant and use the verified  
 information to recompute the amount of the  
 Tenant's rent and assistance payment, if 

any. 
  
      a.  If the Tenant does not submit the required recertification 
          information by the date specified in the Landlord's request,  
          the Landlord may impose the following penalties.  The  
          Landlord may implement these penalties only in accordance  
          with the administrative procedures and time frames specified  
          in HUD's regulations, handbooks and instructions related to  
          the administration of multifamily subsidy programs. 
  

(1) Require the Tenant to pay the higher, HUD-approved  
 market rent for the unit. 

  
          (2)  Implement any increase in rent resulting from the 
               recertification processing without providing the 30-day 
               notice otherwise required by paragraph 4 of this 
               Agreement. 
  

  b.  The Tenant may request to meet with the Landlord to discuss 
any change in rent or assistance payment resulting from the 

          recertification processing.  If the Tenant requests such a 
          meeting, the Landlord agrees to meet with the Tenant and 
          discuss how the Tenant's rent and assistance payment, if any, 
          were computed. 
  
 16.  Reporting Changes Between Regularly Scheduled 
      Recertifications: 
  
      a.   If any of the following changes occur, the Tenant agrees 
           to advise the Landlord immediately. 
 
            (1)  Any household member moves out of the unit. 



OMB Approval No. 2502-0204 
(Exp. 06/30/2017) 

 

Page 8 of 15                                       form HUD-90105a (12/2007) 

                                                                     ref. HB 4350.3 Rev. 1

(2)  An adult member of the household who was reported 
                as unemployed on the most recent certification or 
                recertification obtains employment. 
  
           (3)  The household's income cumulatively increases by 
                $200 or more a month. 
                                        
      b.   The Tenant may report any decrease in income or any 
           change in other factors considered in calculating the 
           Tenant's rent.  Unless the Landlord has confirmation 
           that the decrease in income or change in other factors 
           will last less than one month, the Landlord will verify 
           the information and make the appropriate rent reduction. 
           However, if the Tenant's income will be partially or 
           fully restored within two months, the Landlord may delay 
           the certification process until the new income is known, 
           but the rent reduction will be retroactive and the 
           Landlord may not evict the Tenant for nonpayment of rent 
           due during the period of the reported decrease and the 
           completion of the certification process.  The Tenant has 
           thirty days after receiving written notice of any rent 
           due for the above described time period to pay or the 
           Landlord can evict for nonpayment of rent.  (Revised 
           3/22/89) 
 
      c.   If the Tenant does not advise the Landlord of these 
           interim changes, the Landlord may increase the Tenant's 
           rent to the HUD-approved market rent.  The Landlord may 
           do so only in accordance with the time frames and 
           administrative procedures set forth in HUD's 
           regulations, handbooks and instructions on the 
           administration of multifamily subsidy programs. 
  
      d.   The Tenant may request to meet with the Landlord to 
           discuss how any change in income or other factors 
           affected his/her rent or assistance payment, if any. 
           If the Tenant requests such a meeting, the Landlord 
           agrees to meet with the Tenant and explain how the 
           Tenant's rent or assistance payment, if any, was 
           computed. 
  
 17.  Removal of Subsidy: 
  
      a.   The Tenant understands that assistance made available 
           on his/her behalf may be terminated if events in either 
           items 1 or 2 below occur.  Termination of assistance 
           means that the Landlord may make the assistance 
           available to another Tenant and the Tenant's rent will 
           be recomputed. In addition, if the Tenant's assistance 
           is terminated because of criterion (1) below, the 
           Tenant will be required to pay the HUD-approved market 
           rent for the unit. 
                                                                          
            (1)The Tenant does not provide the Landlord with 
               the information or reports required by 
               paragraph 15 or 16 within 10 calendar days 



OMB Approval No. 2502-0204 
(Exp. 06/30/2017) 

 

Page 9 of 15                                       form HUD-90105a (12/2007) 

                                                                     ref. HB 4350.3 Rev. 1

after receipt of the Landlord's notice of 
               intent to terminate the Tenant's assistance 
               payment. 
  
            (2)The amount the Tenant would be required to pay 
               towards rent and utilities under HUD rules and 
               regulations equals the Family Gross Rent shown on 
               Attachment 1. 
  
      b.   The Landlord agrees to give the Tenant written notice 
           of the proposed termination.  The notice will advise 
           the Tenant that, during the ten calendar days following 
           the date of the notice, he/she may request to meet with 
           the Landlord to discuss the proposed termination of 
           assistance.  If the Tenant requests a discussion of the 
           proposed termination, the Landlord agrees to meet with 
           the Tenant. 
  
      c.   Termination of assistance shall not affect the Tenant's 
           other rights under this Agreement, including the right 
           to occupy the unit.  Assistance may subsequently be 
           reinstated if the Tenant submits the income or other 
           data required by HUD procedures, the Landlord 
           determines the Tenant is eligible for assistance, and 
           assistance is available. 
  
 18.  Tenant        If the tenant submits false information on 
      Obligation    any application, certification or request 
      To Repay:     for interim adjustment or does not report 
                    interim changes in family income or other 
                    factors as required by paragraph 16 of this 

        Agreement, and as a result, is charged a rent less         
than the amount required by HUD's rent formulas, 
the Tenant agrees to reimburse the Landlord for the 
difference between the rent he/she should have paid 
and the rent he/she was charged.  The Tenant is  

  not required to reimburse the Landlord for  
undercharges caused solely by the Landlord's 
failure to follow HUD's procedures for computing 
rent or assistance payments. 

  
 19.  Size of       The Tenant understands that HUD requires the 
      Dwelling      Landlord to assign units in accordance with the 

  Landlord’s written occupancy standards.  These   
  standards include consideration of unit size,  
  relationship of family members, age and sex of  

     family members and family preference.  If the 
Tenant is or becomes eligible for a different size 
unit, and the required size unit becomes available, 
the Tenant agrees to:  

 
a. move within 30 days after the Landlord notifies him/her 

that unit of the required size is available within the 
project; or 

 
b. remain in the same unit and pay the HUD-approved market 

rent. 
 

 



OMB Approval No. 2502-0204 
(Exp. 06/30/2017) 

 

Page 10 of 15                                       form HUD-90105a (12/2007) 

                                                                       ref. HB 4350.3 Rev. 1

20. Access by Landlord:     
 

a. The Landlord agrees to enter the unit only during reasonable  
hours, to provide reasonable advance notice of his/her 
intent to enter the unit, and to enter the unit only after 
receiving the Tenant's consent to do so, except when urgency 
situations make such notices impossible or except under 
paragraph (c) below. 

  
b. The Tenant consents in advance to the following entries into 

the unit: 
 

(i)  The tenant agrees to permit the Landlord, his/her 
agents or other persons, when authorized by the 
Landlord, to enter the unit for the purpose of making 
reasonable repairs and periodic inspections. 

  
           (ii)  After the Tenant has given a notice of intent to move,  

the Tenant agrees to permit the Landlord to show the 
unit to prospective tenants during reasonable hours. 

  
       c. If the Tenant moves before this Agreement ends, the Landlord 
           may enter the unit to decorate, remodel, alter or otherwise 
           prepare the unit for re-occupancy. 
 
  21.  Discrimination      The Landlord agrees not to discriminate 
       Prohibited:         based upon race, color, religion, creed,  

   National origin, sex, age, familial status,  
                    and disability.  
  
  22.  Change in Rental    The Landlord may, with the prior approval of 
       Agreement:          HUD, change the terms and conditions of this 
                           Agreement.  Any changes will become  

                     effective only at the end of the initial  
       term or a successive term.  The Landlord must 

notify the Tenant of any change and must 
offer the Tenant a new Agreement or an 
amendment to the existing Agreement.  
TheTenant must receive the notice at least 
60 days before the proposed effective date 

     of the change.  The Tenant may accept the 
changed terms and conditions by signing the 
new Agreement or the amendment to the  
existing Agreement and returning it to the 
Landlord.  The Tenant may reject the changed 
terms and conditions by giving the  

     Landlord written notice that he/she intends 
to terminate the tenancy.  The Tenant must 
give such notice at least 30 days before the 
proposed change will go into effect.  If the  

 
    Tenant does not accept the amended 

agreement, the Landlord may require the 
Tenant to move from the project, as provided 
in paragraph 23. 



OMB Approval No. 2502-0204 
(Exp. 06/30/2017) 

 

Page 11 of 15                                       form HUD-90105a (12/2007) 

                                                                       ref. HB 4350.3 Rev. 1

23.  Termination of 
       Tenancy: 
  
       a.  To terminate this Agreement, the Tenant must give the  
   Landlord 30-days written notice before moving from the unit.   
  
       b.  Any termination of this Agreement by the Landlord must be 
           carried out in accordance with HUD regulations, State and 
           local law, and the terms of this Agreement. 
 

c. The Landlord may terminate this Agreement for the following      
  reasons: 

 
1.  the Tenant’s material noncompliance with the 

terms of 
    this Agreement;  

 
2. the Tenant’s material failure to carry out obligations 

under any State Landlord  
    and Tenant Act;  

 
3. drug related criminal activity engaged in on or near 

the premises, by any tenant, household member, or  
guest, and any such activity engaged in on the 

    premises by any  other person under the tenant’s  
    control; 

 
4. determination made by the Landlord that a household 

member is illegally using a drug;  
 

5. determination made by the Landlord that a pattern of 
illegal use of a drug interferes with the health, 
safety, or right to peaceful enjoyment of the  

    premises by other residents;  
 

6. criminal activity by a tenant, any member of the 
tenant’s household, a guest or another person under the 
tenant’s control: 
 
(a) that threatens the health, safety, or right to  
    peaceful enjoyment of the premises by other  
    residents (including property management staff 
    residing on the premises); or 

 
(b) that threatens the health, safety, or right to 
    peaceful enjoyment of their residences by persons 
    residing in the immediate vicinity of the  
    premises; 

  

7. if the tenant is fleeing to avoid prosecution, or 
custody or confinement after conviction, for a crime, 
or attempt to commit a crime, that is a felony under 

    the laws of the place from which the individual flees,  
    or that in the case of the State of New Jersey, is a  
    high misdemeanor; 



OMB Approval No. 2502-0204 
(Exp. 06/30/2017) 

 

Page 12 of 15                                       form HUD-90105a (12/2007) 

                                                                       ref. HB 4350.3 Rev. 1

8. if the tenant is violating a condition of probation or 
parole under Federal or State law;  

 
9.  determination made by the Landlord that a household 

member’s abuse or pattern of abuse of alcohol threatens 
the health, safety, or right to peaceful enjoyment of 
the premises by other residents;  

 
10. if the Landlord determines that the tenant, any member 

of the tenant’s household, a guest or another person 
under the tenant’s control has engaged in the criminal 
activity, regardless of whether the tenant, any member 
of the tenant’s household, a guest or another person 
under the tenant’s control has been arrested or 
convicted for such activity.    

 
      d. The Landlord may terminate this Agreement for other good 

cause, which includes, but is not limited to, the tenant’s 
refusal to accept change to this agreement. Terminations for 
“other good cause” may only be effective as of the end of any 
initial or successive term. 

 
      The term material noncompliance with the lease includes:   (1) 

one or more substantial violations of the lease;  (2) repeated 
minor violations of the lease that (a) disrupt the livability of 
the project; (b) adversely affect the health or safety of any 
person or the right of any tenant to the quiet enjoyment to the 
leased premises and related project facilities, (c) interfere 
with the management of the project, or (d) have an adverse 
financial effect on the project (3) failure of the tenant to 
timely supply all required information on the income and 
composition, or eligibility factors, of  the tenant household 
(including, but not limited to, failure to meet the disclosure 
and verification requirements for Social Security Numbers, or 
failure to sign and submit consent forms for the obtaining of 
wage and claim information from State Wage Information Collection 
Agencies), and  (4) Non-payment of rent or any other financial 
obligation due under the lease beyond any grace period permitted 
under State law.  The payment of rent or any other financial 
obligation due under the lease after the due date but within the 
grace period permitted under State law constitutes a minor 
violation.  

 
d. If the Landlord proposes to terminate this  
   Agreement, the 
    Landlord agrees to give the Tenant written notice and the 

grounds for the proposed termination.  If the Landlord is 
terminating this agreement for “other good cause,” the 
termination notice must be mailed to the Tenant and hand- 

 
   delivered to the dwelling unit in the manner required by HUD 

at least 30 days before the date the Tenant will be required 
to move from the unit and in accordance with State law 
requirements.  Notices of proposed termination for other 
reasons must be given in accordance with any time frames set 
forth in State and local law.  Any HUD-required notice period 
may run concurrently with any notice period required by State 
or local law.  All termination notices must: 



OMB Approval No. 2502-0204 
(Exp. 06/30/2017) 

 

Page 13 of 15                                       form HUD-90105a (12/2007) 

                                                                       ref. HB 4350.3 Rev. 1

• specify the date this Agreement will be terminated; 
 

• state the grounds for termination with enough detail for 
the Tenant to prepare a defense; 

 
• advise the Tenant that he/she has 10 days within which to 

discuss the proposed termination of tenancy with the 
Landlord.  The 10-day period will begin on the earlier of 
the date the notice was hand-delivered to the unit or the 
day after the date the notice is mailed.  If the Tenant 
requests the meeting, the Landlord agrees to discuss the 
proposed termination with the Tenant; and 

 
• advise the Tenant of his/her right to defend the action in 

court. 
 

f.    If an eviction is initiated, the Landlord agrees to rely    
       only upon those grounds cited in the termination notice   
       required by paragraph e.  

 
  24.  Hazards:   The Tenant shall not undertake, or permit his/her 
                  family or guests to undertake, any hazardous acts 

 or do anything that will increase the project's 
 insurance premiums.  Such action constitutes a  
 material non-compliance.  If the unit is damaged by  
 fire, wind, or rain to the extent that the unit  
 cannot be lived in and the damage is not caused or  
 made worse by the Tenant, the Tenant will be  
 responsible for rent only up to the date of the  
 destruction.  Additional rent will not accrue until  
 the unit has been repaired to a livable condition. 

 
  25.  Penalties for       Knowingly giving the Landlord false 
       Submitting False    information regarding income or other  
       Information:        factors considered in determining 
                           Tenant's eligibility and rent is a 
           material noncompliance with the lease 

subject to termination of tenancy.  In 
addition, the Tenant could become subject to          

           penalties available under Federal law.  
Those penalties include fines up to $10,000 
and imprisonment for up to five years. 

        
  26.  Contents of this    This Agreement and its Attachments make 
       Agreement:          up the entire agreement between the 

                    
    Landlord and the Tenant regarding the unit.  
    If any Court declares a particular provision 

of this Agreement to be invalid or illegal, 
all other terms of this Agreement will 
remain in effect and both the Landlord and 
the Tenant will continue to be bound by 
them. 

  
  27.  Attachments to    The Tenant certifies that he/she has 
       the Agreement:    received a copy of this Agreement and the 
 
 



OMB Approval No. 2502-0204 
(Exp. 06/30/2017) 

 

Page 14 of 15                                       form HUD-90105a (12/2007) 

                                                                       ref. HB 4350.3 Rev. 1

following Attachments to this Agreement 
           and understands that these Attachments are 

part of this Agreement. 
  

a. Attachment No. 1 – Owner’s Certification of Compliance with 
HUD’s Tenant Eligibility and Rent Procedures, form HUD-50059 

   
       b. Attachment No. 2 - Unit Inspection Report. 
       c. Attachment No. 3 - House Rules (if any). 
  
28.  Tenants’ rights to organize:  Landlord agrees to allow tenant 
     and tenant organizers to conduct on the property the activities  
     related to the establishment or operation of a tenant 
     organization set out in accordance with HUD requirements. 

 
29.  Tenant Income Verification: The Tenant must promptly provide the 
     Landlord with any letter or other notice by HUD to a member of  
     the family that provides information concerning the amount or  
     verification of family income in accordance with HUD  
     requirements. 
 
30. The lease agreement will terminate automatically, if the Section 
    8 Housing Assistance contract terminates for any reason. 

 
  31. Signatures: 
  
       TENANT 
       BY: 
  

1.  ________________(W)
________________________     _____/____/____ 

                                                          Date Signed 
  
     2. __________________________________________       ____/____/____ 
                                                          Date Signed 
  
     3. __________________________________________       ____/____/____ 
                                                          Date Signed 
       LANDLORD 
       BY: 
  

1. _________________
(W)

_____________________         ____/____/____ 
                                                     Date Signed 

 
 
 
 
Public reporting burden – HUD is not requesting approval of any burden 
hours for the model leases since use of leases are a standard business 
practice in the housing rental industry.  This information is required 
to obtain benefits.  The request and required supporting documentation 
are sent to HUD or the Contract Administrator (CA) for approval.  The 
lease is a contract between the owner of the project and the tenant(s) 
that explains the terms for residing in the unit.  Leases are a 
standard business practice in the housing rental industry.  Owners are 
required to use the HUD model lease which includes terms normally 
covered by leases used in the housing rental industry plus terms 
required by HUD for the program under which the project was built 
and/or the program providing rental assistance to the tenants.   
 



OMB Approval No. 2502-0204 
(Exp. 06/30/2017) 

 

Page 15 of 15                                       form HUD-90105a (12/2007) 

                                                                       ref. HB 4350.3 Rev. 1

 

 
This information is authorized by 24 CFR 5.360, 236.750, 880.606, 883.701, 
884.215, 886.127, 891.425, 891.625 and 891.765 cover lease requirements and 
provisions.  This information is considered non-sensitive and does not require 
any special protection.  
 



HOUSING AUTHORITY OF THE CITY OF AUSTIN 
BOARD OF COMMISSIONERS 
REGULAR BOARD MEETING 

 

May 19, 2016 
Regular Meeting 

 
 
 
 

AGENDA ITEM NO. 3 
 

Presentation and Discussion of the proposed Choice Mobility 
Policy which will go out for public comment beginning on 
May 23, 2016  
 



1  

HOUSING AUTHORITY OF THE CITY OF AUSTIN  
BOARD OF COMMISSIONERS 

 
Presentation & Discussion 

 
MEETING DATE: May 19, 2016 
 
STAFF CONTACT: Pilar Sanchez, Vice President of Housing and Community 

Development 
 
 Lisa Garcia, Vice President of Assisted Housing 
 

 ACTION: Presentation and Discussion of Proposed Choice Mobility 
Policy 

 
 Place out for Public Comment for 30 days beginning May 23, 2016 

through 5:00 pm on June 21, 2016. 
 
SUMMARY:  
As part of the Rental Assistance Demonstration (RAD), HUD requires Housing Authorities to 
give residents the choice to request a Housing Choice Voucher after living in a Project Based 
Rental Assistance (PBRA) property for 24 months.  HUD calls this “Choice Mobility”.  As 
HACA continues to prepare for the transition of some or all of its Public Housing properties 
to PBRA, this Choice Mobility policy was drafted. 
 
The Choice Mobility team consisted of representatives from the Housing and Community 
Development, Assisted Housing and Admissions Departments.  Together they reviewed the 
RAD requirements regarding Choice Mobility and developed a policy to guide HACA’s 
implementation of this requirement. 
 
Key Points: 
HUD allows PHAs to implement two separate “caps” on the number of families that would be 
eligible to receive these vouchers.  First, the property could place a cap of not less than 15% 
of the residents at that property being able to receive a voucher within 1 year.  Second, the 
agency could place a cap of not less than 1/3 of the total number of Housing Choice Vouchers 
being turned over in a given year to be used for Choice Mobility. 
 
The Choice Mobility team recommends the agency turnover cap be 1/3 of the turnover 
vouchers each year.  Setting this cap allows HACA to keep a balance between families on the 
HCV waiting list and families eligible for Choice Mobility. 
 
However, the Choice Mobility team recommends against implementing the project turnover 
cap.  Implementing both caps would create significant administrative burden to create 
multiple waiting lists.  In addition, it would be difficult and confusing to explain to residents.   
 
Instead, the team recommends implementing the agency turnover cap by using the established 
best practice of random lottery sorting.  This will prevent an individual property from losing 
multiple residents to Choice Mobility all at once.  In addition, it provides equal opportunity 
for all eligible residents to receive a Choice Mobility voucher.  



2  

 
When an eligible family requests the Choice Mobility option, they will be placed on the 
agency turnover cap waiting list.  On a regular basis (usually monthly) families are invited off 
the regular HCV waiting list and the Choice Mobility list to go through eligibility 
determinations to receive a voucher.  Before families are drawn off each list, the 
determination is made as to the total number of families to be selected.  Two-thirds of that 
total will be drawn from the regular HCV waiting list.  The other one-third will be drawn from 
the Choice Mobility list.   
 
In order to maintain equal opportunity for all families on the Choice Mobility list, the list will 
be randomly sorted each time before the draw.  Eventually, every family that gets onto the list 
will be selected to receive a voucher, as long as they remain eligible to receive a voucher. 
 
The policy also gives clear guidance regarding eligibility to receive a Choice Mobility 
voucher, the process for the family to request a voucher, the process for managing the Choice 
Mobility waiting list and the process for families to transition from PBRA to the HCV 
program.   
 
Finally, it is the desire and intent of the team that the Choice Mobility option would become a 
tool to assist families in moving toward self-sufficiency.  The recommended policy indicates 
that HACA will strategize how to provide services that help families become prepared for 
transition to the voucher program including financial literacy training, credit counseling and 
improvement, addressing rental history, increasing income through employment and more.  
Also, HACA will explore how to help families identify areas of higher opportunity when 
searching for locations to use their voucher. 
 
Public Comment: 
The RAD Choice Mobility Policy will be posted for public comment on May 23rd through 
June 21st and will be brought back to the Board for approval at the J u l y  2 2 ,  2 0 1 6  
Board meeting.   
 
 
ATTACHMENTS: 

• Choice Mobility Policy 
 
RECOMMENDATION:  
It is HACA’s recommendation to request public comment on the proposed RAD Choice 
Mobility Policy. 
 
FINANCE REVIEW: 
X Proposed action does not require Finance Department review. 
 

 Fiscal Impact was approved by  _____________________________  
 

 
 

  Thomas Cherian, Vice-President of Finance 



Choice Mobility Policy 
 

Created 5/19/2016 
 

 
 

 
 
 
 



Page 1 of 10 
 

HACA Choice Mobility Policy 
 
I.  Definitions: 
 

1. Covered Project:  Any Public Housing property that has converted to the Project Based Rental 
Assistance (PBRA) program through RAD. 
 

2. Choice Mobility:  The opportunity for families to request a Housing Choice Voucher (HCV) and 
move into the private rental market with voucher assistance. 
 

3. Turnover Caps:  The maximum number of families that can receive a voucher in a calendar year.  
PHAs can establish caps for the maximum number of families that can receive a voucher from 
each property in the calendar year.  PHAs can also establish caps for the maximum number of 
vouchers from all properties combined that can receive a voucher in a calendar year. 

 
II.  Eligibility and Voucher Caps 
 
HUD seeks to provide all residents of Covered Projects with viable Choice Mobility options.  The Housing 
Choice Voucher (HCV) program provides the most options for families to choose where they want to live 
within that housing authority’s jurisdiction.   
 
PHAs that are applying to convert the assistance of a project to PBRA are required to provide a Choice-
Mobility option to residents of Covered Projects in accordance with the following: 
 

A. Resident Eligibility. Residents have a right to move with tenant-based rental 
assistance (e.g., Housing Choice Voucher (HCV)) the later of: (a) 24 months from the 
date of execution of the HAP or (b) 24 months after the move-in date. 

 
B. Voucher Inventory Turnover Cap. Recognizing the limitation on the availability of 

turnover vouchers from year to year, a voucher agency would not be required, in any 
year, to provide more than one-third of its turnover vouchers to the residents of 
Covered Projects. While a voucher agency is not required to establish a voucher 
inventory turnover cap, if such a cap is implemented the voucher agency must create 
and maintain a waiting list in the order in which the requests from eligible households 
were received. 
 

 HACA Policy 
  
 HACA will provide all residents the opportunity to request a Housing Choice Voucher after the  
 later of a) 24 months from the date of the execution of the HAP contract, or b) 24 months  
 from the date of move in.   
 

• If a family moves from one covered project to another covered project, their 24 
month clock resets.  These families will have to wait for 24 months from the date of 
move in to the new property, before they can exercise Choice Mobility.   

• If a family transfers within the same covered project, their 24 month clock does not 
reset.  They will be eligible to request a Choice Mobility voucher at the later of: (a) 
24 months from the date of execution of the HAP or (b) 24 months after the move-



Page 2 of 10 
 

in date. 
• A family may request the choice mobility voucher at any time after completing the 24 

month requirement.  They remain eligible as long as they continue living at the same 
covered project. 

• A family that receives a Choice Mobility voucher, but allows it to expire without using 
it, can request another Choice Mobility voucher.  However, they must wait 1 year from 
the date of the issuance of the expired voucher before requesting another Choice 
Mobility voucher.  When they do request again, they will start the process from the 
beginning and are subject to any waiting lists in place at that time. 

  
 HACA will implement the voucher inventory cap.  Each calendar year, the HCV program will  
 only make 1/3 of its turnover vouchers available to families exercising Choice Mobility from  
 any of its 18 covered projects transitioning into PBRA through the Rental Assistance  
 Demonstration (RAD).  HACA will establish an agency-wide Choice Mobility waiting list for  
 times when there are more requests for vouchers than vouchers available due to the cap. 
 
 HACA will not implement the project turnover cap.   
 
The HCV program also provides the opportunity to move to other parts of the country by exercising the 
portability options.  Families will be required to follow the housing authority’s guidelines regarding 
when they can exercise the portability option. 
 

HACA Policy 
 

In order to be eligible for the Choice Mobility option, families have to live in Austin, in a 
HACA owned PBRA property for at least 2 years.  These families meet HACA’s HCV program 
requirements and are eligible to exercise portability when they first receive a voucher. 

 
III.  Notification of Eligibility 
 
In keeping with HUD’s goal to provide viable Choice Mobility options to residents of all covered 
projects, PHAs should provide clear notification and explanation of the Choice Mobility options 
available to them. 
 
 HACA Policy 
 
 At the time of the initial lease signing, HACA will provide a copy of the Choice Mobility policy  
 to the family and explain the Choice Mobility option.  HACA will provide clear direction and  
 guidance regarding how to request a Choice Mobility voucher.  Residents will be asked to sign  
 a certification indicating that they received the Choice Mobility policy. 
 
 In addition, HACA will provide a written notification to the residents as part of the 90 Day  
 letter that each families receives before their annual recertification appointment.  (See  
 Appendix 1) 
 
 If anything changes in the method for requesting the Choice Mobility voucher, HACA will  
 provide written notification to the residents at least 30 days in advance of the change  
 becoming effective. 



Page 3 of 10 
 

IV.  Waiting Lists 
 
PHA’s that establish a voucher turnover cap are required to create a waiting list for families that request 
the Choice Mobility voucher. 
 
 HACA Policy 
 
 HACA will establish a Choice Mobility waiting list for all eligible families that request a voucher.   
 The waiting list will be managed by HACA’s centralized Admissions Department. 
 
 Since HACA is not implementing a project turnover cap, there will be no project specific  
 waiting lists.  Eligible families that request the voucher will be placed directly onto the Choice  
 Mobility waiting list. 
 
 HACA will remove families from the Choice Mobility waiting list who move out of the covered  
 project before receiving a voucher.   

• If a family moves out of the covered project into the private rental market after being 
placed on the Choice Mobility waiting list, they are no longer eligible for the voucher 
and their name will be removed from the Choice Mobility waiting list. 

• If a family moves from one covered project to another covered project after being 
placed on the Choice Mobility waiting list, their 2 year clock resets.  They will be 
removed from the Choice Mobility waiting list.  They can re-apply once they have lived 
at the new covered project for 2 years. 

 
 Families that are already on the regular HCV waiting list will be allowed to request a Choice  
 Mobility voucher if they are eligible.  Families will be allowed to keep their place on both lists  
 until one of the following happens: 

• The family moves out of the covered project and is no longer eligible to be on the 
Choice Mobility list.  The family will be removed from the Choice Mobility waiting list, 
but maintain their position on the regular HCV waiting list. 

• The family voluntarily withdraws their name from one or both lists. 
• The family receives a voucher and exercises the voucher by leasing up in the voucher 

program.  The family will then be removed from the other list. 
o If a family receives a voucher through the regular HCV waiting list, but does 

not exercise the voucher (i.e. lease up in the voucher program), they will 
remain on the Choice Mobility waiting list. 

 
V.  Exercising the Choice Mobility Option 
 
In order to ensure that all residents at all covered projects have an equal and fair opportunity to 
request and receive a Choice Mobility voucher, PHAs should provide clear guidance and instructions 
regarding how to apply for the voucher. 
 
 HACA Policy 
 
 In order to maintain a safe, orderly and fair process for families to request a Choice Mobility  
 voucher, HACA will implement the following: 
 



Page 4 of 10 
 

• Voucher Request:   
o When a family is eligible to request a voucher, they must do so in writing using 

the voucher request form provided at the property (See Appendix 2).  
o The written request must be submitted to the management office at the 

covered property or at HACA’s Central Administration building.   
o Once received, the property management staff or central office staff will 

forward the request to the Admissions Department to be placed on the Choice 
Mobility waiting list. 
 

• Acknowledgement of Request:   
o Once the request is received and processed onto the Choice Mobility waiting 

list, the Admissions Department will send the family a notice acknowledging 
receipt of the voucher request (See Appendix 3).   

o This is the family’s confirmation that they are on the Choice Mobility waiting 
list.   

o The acknowledgement of request will be sent to the family within 5 business 
days of receipt of the request. 
 

• Random Sorting:   
o Once there are families on the Choice Mobility waiting list, HACA will select 

1/3 of its monthly draw from the Choice Mobility waiting list.   
o Before each draw, HACA will conduct a random sort of the Choice Mobility 

waiting list.   
o The random sort protects each individual property from high volume resident 

turnover, while providing each family an equal opportunity to receive a 
voucher. 

 
 When a family is drawn from the Choice Mobility waiting list, they will be invited to attend the  
 Housing Choice Voucher (HCV) program eligibility interview.   
 
VI.  Screening Process for the Choice Mobility HCV Voucher 
 
In order to receive a Housing Choice voucher, families will be required to meet all the eligibility 
requirements for the HCV program in effect at the time of their eligibility processing.  These 
requirements can be found in the HCV Administrative Plan. 
 
 HACA Policy 
 HACA will screen all Choice Mobility families using the same criteria as for all other families.   
 However, HACA will streamline the eligibility determination process in the following ways: 
 

• HACA will use the certifications of identification, age, social security number and 
citizenship that it already has on file for the family. 

• HACA will review the most recent certification and 50059 for basic information about 
the family composition and annual household income. 

• HACA will only require new verification of income if the verifications for the most 
recent certification are too old to meet the criteria for the HCV program. 

 
 If eligible to receive a voucher, families will follow the HCV program rules and guidelines for  



Page 5 of 10 
 

 using the voucher.  Families are reminded of the following: 
 

• The voucher has an expiration date.  If extensions are available, families must follow 
the HCV program guidelines in effect at that time to request an extension.  Failure to 
use the voucher before it expires will result in loss of the voucher. 

• Receipt of a voucher is not a guarantee that the family will be able to find a place to 
use the voucher.  Landlords have their own screening criteria which families will have 
to meet to be able to live at that property. 

• The family’s lease at their current property requires at least 30 days notice to vacate.  
The family must provide this notice to their current property management staff. 

 
VII.  Transitioning from Project Based Rental Assistance to the Housing Choice Voucher Program 
 
When transitioning from PBRA to the HCV program with a Choice Mobility voucher, program 
participants are required to fulfill their obligations to the terms of the PBRA lease as well as all HCV 
requirements.  Families are not allowed to receive assistance from both programs at the same time.    
To assist with the transition process and prevent duplicate assistance, PHA’s should develop policies 
and guidelines to ensure that both program requirements are met. 
 
 HACA Policy 
 Residents at a HACA PBRA property will be required to complete the following when  
 transitioning to HACA’s HCV program with a choice mobility voucher: 
 

• Remain current on all rent, fees or other balances owed to the PBRA property.   
o Families with outstanding debts who are in a repayment agreement and who 

are current on their payments within the agreement are considered eligible. 
o Families with active repayment agreements must continue to make all 

payments until the balance is paid in full or risk losing their voucher 
assistance. 

• Provide at least 30 days notice of their intent to vacate the unit to the property 
management. 

• Participate in the move out inspection. 
• Turn in their keys to the property management. 
• Pay all move out expenses that may be charged after moving to their new home with  

voucher assistance.   
o If necessary, repayment agreements can be established to pay any 

outstanding move out balances. 
o Failure to pay the move out balance or to remain current in any repayment 

agreements that are established is grounds for termination of the family’s 
voucher assistance. 

• Pay all moving expenses related to the move from the PBRA property to their voucher 
assisted unit. 

 
 HACA and PBRA property staff will work to facilitate this process by doing the following: 
 

• Communicate between departments information related to the issuance of the 
voucher, move out notices, voucher extensions and specific dates of move out / move 
in. 



Page 6 of 10 
 

o Note:  Coordination of communication between departments does not 
remove any of the family’s obligations. 

• Communicate the move out date from the PBRA program to the HCV Intake Team to 
prevent the overlapping of assistance. 

o The move out from PBRA will not be effective until the property manager 
receives the keys from the resident family. 

o The family will be required to pay the full rental cost for any days that they 
have moved in to their new unit before returning the keys to the PBRA 
property management.   

o The voucher assistance will not start until the day after the family provides the 
keys to the PBRA property management. 

 
 For a detailed flow chart of the transition process, please see Appendix 4. 
 
VIII.  Promoting Self-Sufficiency Through Choice Mobility 
 
The decision about where to live can have a significant impact on a family’s journey toward self-
sufficiency.  Through the Choice Mobility voucher option, families living in the PBRA property are given 
the opportunity to make that decision.  Therefore PHA’s should strategize how to maximize the use of 
the Choice Mobility voucher as a self-sufficiency tool. 
 
 HACA Policy 

Within available resources, HACA will intentionally strategize and leverage the utilization of 
specific supportive services to provide a solid foundation for the use of the Choice Mobility 
voucher as a self-sufficiency and resource building tool. 

 
• HACA will explore how to efficiently and effectively use the 2 + years that families are 

living in PBRA to offer community development services that focus on preparing 
families for transition to use of a voucher in the private rental market.  Such services 
may include, but are not limited to, financial literacy training, credit counseling and 
credit improvement, addressing rental history, increasing income through 
employment, financial coaching, and home maintenance and upkeep among others. 

• HACA will explore how to use the resources available (i.e. opportunity mapping) to 
help direct families toward areas of higher opportunity when they are searching for 
neighborhoods and housing that meets their needs and where they can use the 
voucher.  This will include helping families to understand how to use these tools to 
gain information on items such as schools, supportive services and transportation. 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 



Appendix 1:  90 Day Recertification Notice 

Housing Authority of the City of Austin 
Established in 1937 

 
  Annual Recertification Notice -  90 DAY  REMINDER 
 Name                                                      Date 
 Address                                                                                                                      Account No: 
 Austin, TX                                                                                                                                                                                    Client No:                                                                                                             
   
Dear :  
 
It will soon be time to renew your housing lease.  In order to complete your lease renewal in a timely manner, you will 
need to provide us with updated documentation regarding your household’s income, assets and expenses.  If you have 
lived at [name of property] for at least 2 years, you will also have opportunity to request a Housing Choice Voucher 
through Choice Mobility. 
 
You will be receiving a letter in the next few weeks scheduling you for your lease renewal appointment.  It is very 
important that you attend this appointment and bring all documentation listed below that applies to your household. 

 
 ALL BENEFIT LETTERS MUST NOT BE MORE THAN 120 DAYS OLD.  
 
INCOME: 

• Proof of all income received by all household members.  Income sources and proper documentation include but 
are not limited to: letter from employer on company letterhead; consecutive pay stubs for at least the last 2 
months; TANF letter;  Social Security/SSI/SSDI award letters; child support payment history printouts; 
unemployment benefits statements; pension statements; annuity payments; military pay; Workman's 
compensation; severance pay; etc. 

 

ASSETS: 
• Most recent three months' bank statements for checking/savings accounts owned by all household members. 
• Most recent quarterly statements for any certificates of deposit, money market, IRA/Keogh, stocks, bonds, 

treasury bills, trust funds, universal life policies, etc. 
• Most recent property appraisal/tax statement for any real estate owned. 

 

EXPENSES: 
• Proof of ongoing childcare expenses for children under 13 years of age (example: CCMS contract, receipts or 

payment history printout from childcare provider). 
• Disabled or elderly household only:  Proof of ongoing unreimbursed medical expenses not covered by insurance 

(examples: Pharmacy printouts, medical/dental receipts, payments of medical insurance premiums, payments for 
live-in aides, etc.) 

• Proof of full-time enrollment in college/higher education for family members age 18 years and older (must NOT be 
the head of household/co-head/spouse). 

 

OTHER: 
• Birth certificates and Social Security cards for any new family members residing with you. 

 

NOTE:  Failure to attend your scheduled appointment and/or submit all necessary documents to complete your lease 
renewal will jeopardize your family’s housing.  If you are unable to keep your appointment, you must contact us within 
three (3) days from the date of this letter to reschedule. 
 
Sincerely, 
Management    

michaelr
Typewritten Text
     Page 7 of 10

michaelr
Typewritten Text

michaelr
Typewritten Text

michaelr
Typewritten Text

michaelr
Typewritten Text



Appendix 2:  Choice Mobility Voucher Request Form 

 
 

 

 Housing Authority of the City of Austin 
Bringing Opportunity Home 

 
 

Choice Mobility Voucher Request 
 
Date: __________________________ Client No._ ________________________________ 
 

Acct. No.  _             ________________  Property:  _________________________________ 
 

Head of Household:_             ______________________________________________________        
 

Present Address: _                                                              __________________________________ 
 
 
 

Family Composition: 
Co-Head of Household: _______________________________    Age: ________ Sex: _______  
 

Household Member: __________________________________  Age: ________ Sex: _______ 
 

Household Member: __________________________________  Age: ________ Sex: _______ 
 

Household Member: __________________________________  Age: ________ Sex: _______ 
 

Household Member: __________________________________  Age: ________ Sex: _______ 
 

Household Member: __________________________________  Age: ________ Sex: _______ 
 

Household Member: __________________________________  Age: ________ Sex: _______ 
 

Household Member: __________________________________  Age: ________ Sex: _______ 
 

Household Member: __________________________________  Age: ________ Sex: _______ 
 
 

Has Resident lived in PBRA at this property for at least two (2) years? (  )Yes   (  ) No 
Does the Resident owe any balance to HACA?     (  )Yes   (  ) No 
Is there an Eviction and/or Lease Termination pending?   (  )Yes   (  ) No 
 
 
Resident Signature: _____________________________ Date of Request:__________________ 
 
 

 
Manager Signature: _____________________________ Date: ___________________________ 
 
 
 

 

 
 

DO NOT WRITE IN THIS BOX – FOR ADMISSIONS OFFICE ONLY 
 

Date Received: ________________________________________ 
 

Date Acknowledgment Letter Sent: ________________________ 
 

Admissions Director: ________________________________ Date: ____________________ 

michaelr
Typewritten Text
Page 8 of 10



Appendix 3:  Acknowledgment of Voucher Request 

1124 S IH 35, Austin, TX  78704  -  Phone: (512) 477-488  -  Fax: (512) 472-2958 

 

Housing Authority of the City of Austin 
Bringing Opportunity Home 

 

 
ACKNOWLEDGMENT OF VOUCHER REQUEST 

  
NAME                    DATE 
ADDRESS                              CLIENT NO.: 
CITY, ST  ZIP                     
 
 
Dear “CLIENT NAME”, 
 
This letter is to inform you that we have received your request to receive a Choice Mobility voucher.  
Your name has been placed on the Choice Mobility waiting list.   
 
There are several things to remember about the Choice Mobility vouchers: 

• The Housing Authority of the City of Austin (HACA) has capped the number of available Choice 
Mobility vouchers at 1/3 of the voucher program turnover rate.  That means that each time 
HACA issues vouchers, only 1/3 will come from the Choice Mobility waiting list.   

• HACA will conduct a random sort (lottery) each time it draws names off the Choice Mobility 
Waiting List.  As a result, it is difficult to tell you when you will be invited in for eligibility 
screening. 

• When your name is drawn from the list, you will be contacted by mail and invited to the 
eligibility interview.  At that time we will review all information related to the voucher program 
eligibility criteria including (but not limited to) criminal background, rental history, and 
household income. 
 

While you are on the waiting list, you can do the following: 
• Prepare a plan for how you will pay for the costs of moving (Security Deposits, Pet Deposits, 

Application Fees, Moving Expenses, etc) 
• Review your credit history and rental history and if necessary seek assistance to repair that 

history.  Many landlords review this information before approving rentals. 
• Consider what areas of town would provide the best opportunities for you and your family. 

 
If you have additional questions about the Choice Mobility Voucher, please contact the Admissions 
Department at (512) 477-4488. 
 
Sincerely, 
Admissions Department 

michaelr
Typewritten Text

michaelr
Typewritten Text
Page 9 of 10



Pa
ge

 1
0 

of
 1

0 
 

Ap
pe

nd
ix

 4
:  

Tr
an

sf
er

 P
ro

ce
ss

 fr
om

 P
BR

A 
to

 H
CV

 
 



HOUSING AUTHORITY OF THE CITY OF AUSTIN 
BOARD OF COMMISSIONERS 
REGULAR BOARD MEETING 

 

May 19, 2016 
Regular Meeting 

 
 
 

 
 

AGENDA ITEM NO. 4 
 

Presentation and Discussion of the proposed Changes to the 
revised Housing Choice Voucher Administrative Plan which 
will go out for public comment beginning on May 23, 2016 
 



1  

HOUSING AUTHORITY OF THE CITY OF AUSTIN  
BOARD OF COMMISSIONERS 

 
Presentation & Discussion 

 
Item No. 4 

 
 
MEETING DATE: May 19, 2016 
 
STAFF CONTACT: Lisa Garcia, Vice President of Assisted Housing 
 

 Presentation and Discussion of Proposed Changes to Housing 
Choice Voucher Program Administrative Plan 

 
ACTION: Place out for Public Comment for 30 days beginning May 23, 2016 

through 5:00 pm on June 21, 2016. 
 
SUMMARY:  
HACA’s Housing Choice Voucher Program Administrative Plan was last revised and 
formally adopted on D e c e m b e r  1 7 , 2015. Since that time, HUD has issued a new 
Streamlining Rule and 2 PIH Notices with clarifying language regarding a number of 
policy items, which are further explained below.  
 
In addition, Nan McKay provided revisions to the portability policy set forth in the 
streamlining portability final rule, issued August 20, 2015. Nan McKay also provided 
updated revisions to the VAWA policy, removed outdated guidance regarding protecting 
Tenants at Foreclosure Act and also made minor revisions to bring the HCV Admin Plan 
current with HUD regulation and guidance.  
 
The proposed revisions to the Housing Choice Voucher Program Administrative Plan 
will be posted for public comment on May 23rd through June 21st and will be brought back 
to the Board for approval at the J u l y 2 2 ,  2 0 1 6  Board meeting.   
 
The proposed revisions to the Housing Choice Voucher Administrative Plan are described in 
Attachment 1, Summary of Revisions to HCV Administrative Plan. 
 
Summary of Changes as a result of the New Streamlining Rule 
 
Income Eligibility and Targeting 
HUD establishes an “Extremely Low- Income” limit.  This limit is used for targeting the 
lowest income families for Housing Choice Voucher and Public Housing programs.  HUD 
requires 40% of new admissions to the Public Housing program and 75% of new admissions 
to the HCV program to be extremely low-income families. 
 
The streamlining rule formally changes the definition of extremely low-income families.  
Previously, the definition was a family whose income was below 30% of the median family 
income.  The new definition is “a very low-income family whose income is below either the 
Federal poverty level or 30% of the median family income, whichever is higher.”  This 
change will make it easier for families to meet HUD’s income targeting requirements. 



2  

 
Disclosure and Verification of Social Security Numbers 
Currently, if a resident family adds a family member under the age of 6, the family was given 
90 days to provide proof of the Social Security number for that child.  This change is adding 
the same disclosure opportunities to families on the waiting list. 
 
The change allows a family that adds a child under age six (6) within the six (6) months 
before admission to the Housing Choice Voucher Program to have 90 days to provide proof 
of the Social Security number.   
 
Earned Income Disallowance (EID) 
In the Streamlining Rule, HUD is changing the maximum length of time for the earned 
income disallowance (EID) from 48 months to 24 months.  The initial period of 100% 
disallowance will be for 12 months from the start of employment, regardless of whether the 
individual works all 12 months.  The second period of 50% disallowance will be for 12 
months, starting after the 100% disallowance period ends.  The second period will end after 
12 months, regardless of how many months the resident was employed.  This change will 
significantly reduce the administrative burden of tracking the employment of the individual 
residents. 
 
Asset Verification 
In 2013, HUD granted temporary administrative relief in the verification of assets.  At that 
time, HUD allowed residents and applicants whose net value of assets was $5000 or less to 
self-certify the value of the assets and the income received from the assets.  The Streamlining 
Rule makes self-certification of assets worth less than $5000 permanent for most annual re-
certifications, but requires full third party verification of all assets at new admission and 
every third year after that.   
 
Income Determination for Fixed Income Sources 
HUD’s Streamlining Rule now allows PHAs to calculate the income from fixed income 
sources (Social Security, Pensions, Annuities, etc) by applying the documented cost of living 
adjustment (COLA) or percentage increase to the previous year’s income calculation.  PHAs 
are still required to third party verify the fixed income sources at new admission and every 
third year after that. 
 
Biennial Inspections and the use of alternative inspection methods 
This provision offers PHAs the discretion to conduct unit inspections biennially rather than 
annually, for both HCV and PBV programs.  It also authorizes the use of alternative 
inspection methods for periodic inspections, such as inspections performed by HUD or 
conducted pursuant to the HOME Investment Partnerships or housing financed using Low-
Income Housing Tax Credits.  The intentions of these provisions is to reduce administrative 
burden. 

Exception Payment Standards for providing reasonable accommodations 
This provision authorizes a PHA to approve payment standards of not more than 120% of the 
published FMR without HUD approval if requested as a reasonable accommodation by a 
family that includes a person with a disability. 
 
 
 



3  

SUMMARY OF RECOMMENDED LOCAL POLICY CHANGES 
 
Revisions to homeless preference  
For the homeless preference “move up” policy added a sentence stating that referrals could 
include individuals and families participating in a Continuum of Care homeless rental 
assistance program, which is not renewed. 
 
Interim policy changes 
Updated interim policy to require families to report all new earned and unearned income 
sources and slight changes in interim reporting and processing requirements to reduce 
administrative burden and clarify interim reporting and processing requirements.  
 
Choice Mobility Policy 
Added new RAD Choice Mobility policy and deleted previous RAD Choice Mobility policy. 
 
 
 
ATTACHMENTS: 

• Attachment 1:  Summary of Revisions to HCV Administrative Plan 
• Attachment 2:  Affected Sections of the HACA Housing Choice Voucher Program 

Administrative Plan 
 
RECOMMENDATION:  
It is HACA’s recommendation to request public comment on the proposed changes to the 
Housing Choice Voucher Administrative Plan. 
 
FINANCE REVIEW: 
X Proposed action does not require Finance Department review. 
 

 Fiscal Impact was approved by  _____________________________  
 

 
 

  Thomas Cherian, Vice-President of Finance 



SUMMARY of REVISIONS to HCV ADMINISTRATIVE PLAN May 2016             ATTACHMENT 1 
 

1  
 

Section Page 
Number Summary of Changes Made in Admin Plan 

Chapter 1:  Overview of the Program 
and Plan Introduction 

33 Change:  Removed text regarding suspensions 
Rationale: Required change provided by Nan McKay HCV 
Admin Plan revision service.  

Chapter 3: Eligibility 
57 Change:  Updated “extremely low-income family” 

definition 
Rationale: Required change as part of the Final 
Streamlining rule. 

Chapter 3:  Eligibility 
61 
 
186-187 

Change:  When a child under age 6 is added to the 
household up to six months before Admission of the 
household, this change allows the family 90 days to 
provide a SSN for the child.  The family will be offered 
housing and the child considered a family member during 
this time.                                                                                                                  
Rationale:  This is a required change as part of the 
streamlining rule.  The intent is to provide the family a 
sufficient amount of time to provide the SSN for a new 
addition to the family. 

Chapter 4:  Applications, Waiting List 
and Tenant Selection 

 

101 Change:  For the homeless preference “move up” policy 
added a sentence stating that referrals could include 
individuals and families participating in a Continuum of 
Care homeless rental assistance program, which is not 
renewed. 
Rationale: Allows for a continued affordable housing 
option for individuals and families in HUD Continuum of 
Care programs that are not renewed. 

Chapter 4:  Applications, Waiting List 
and Tenant Selection 

 
102 
 
 
 

Change:  Deleted current policy regarding the preference 
for Rental Assistance Demonstration (RAD) Choice 
Mobility and added new RAD Choice Mobility policy as 
described in Chapter 18. 
 

Chapter 5:   Briefings and Voucher 
Issuance 

114-116 
 
 
 
 
 
124 

Change:  Changes to information required at the Oral 
Briefing and in the Briefing packets 
Rationale: Required change provided by Nan McKay HCV 
Admin Plan revision service 
Change:  Added text regarding suspensions of voucher 
term 
Rationale: Required change provided by Nan McKay HCV 
Admin Plan revision service. 

 
 
 

 
 
 

 
 
 



SUMMARY of REVISIONS to HCV ADMINISTRATIVE PLAN May 2016             ATTACHMENT 1 
 

2  
 

Section Page 
Number Summary of Changes Made in Admin Plan 

Chapter 6:  Income and Subsidy 
Determinations 

135-136 
173-174 

Change:  The exclusion of earned income for the EID is for 
two years (24 months) maximum instead of four years 
(48 months).  There will be 12 months at 100% exclusion 
and 12 months at 50% exclusion.                                                                                                                                   
Rationale:  The tracking of the starts and stops of 
employment during the 48 months of EID was an 
administrative burden.  HUD is granting this relief, 
streamlining the administrative work while still allowing 
the family a two year break on fully counting their earned 
income.    

Chapter 7: Verification 195-196 Change:  HACA will conduct third-party verification of 
assets at Admission.  After that, HACA will only third-
party verify assets with a net value of $5000 or less every 
three years.  During the other two years, HACA will 
accept self-certification of the value of the asset and the 
anticipated income from the asset.  HACA will conduct 
third-party verification of all assets valued over $5000 
every year.                                                                               
Rationale: This is part of HUD's streamlining rule.  This is 
intended to provide administrative relief, while still 
maintaining accountability with regard to income from 
assets. 

Chapter 7: Verification 197-198 Change:  HUD is allowing a streamlined income 
determination for any fixed income sources.  The PHA can 
apply the verified COLA or % increase to the previous 
year's verified or adjusted amount.   The income is 
subject to third-party verification at Admissions and every 
three years.                                                                                                           
Rationale:  This is part of HUD's streamlining rule.  This is 
intended to reduce the administrative burden of 
conducting annual reexaminations while still maintaining 
program integrity with protections against fraud. 

Chapter 8: Housing Quality Standards 

 

 

 
218 
 
 
 
 

Change: Updated policy to allow for biennial inspections 
per the regulations.  The proposed revised policy states 
that “each unit under HAP contract must be inspected at 
least biennially within 24 months of the last full HQS 
inspection. Also, added language to allow for accepting 
inspection results performed by HUD or for HOME or 
Low-Income Tax Credit properties.  
Rationale:  This is part of HUD's streamlining rule.  This is 
intended to reduce administrative burden.  HACA will 
continue to complete inspections annually.  However, 
changing the policy will provide HACA the flexibility to 
implement a biennial inspection policy in the future. 



SUMMARY of REVISIONS to HCV ADMINISTRATIVE PLAN May 2016             ATTACHMENT 1 
 

3  
 

Section Page 
Number Summary of Changes Made in Admin Plan 

Chapter 10:  Moving with Continued 
Assistance and Portability Policies 

239-250 
359 

Change:  Updated Portability policy  
Rationale: Required changes set forth in the streamlining 
portability final rule and provided by Nan McKay HCV 
Admin Plan revision service. 

Chapter 11:  Re-examinations 

 

 

265-267 
 
 
 
 

Change:  Updated interim policy to require families to 
report all new earned and unearned income sources.  
Slight changes in interim reporting and processing 
requirements.  
Rationale: Reduce administrative burden and clarify 
interim reporting and processing requirements. 

Chapter 12:  Termination of Assistance 
and Tenancy 

286 Change:  Added text regarding evidence of criminal 
activity as it relates to domestic violence. 
Rationale: Required change provided by Nan McKay HCV 
Admin Plan revision service. 

Chapter 12:  Termination of Assistance 
and Tenancy 

 
287 
306-308 

Change:  Removal of outdated/expired guidance, 
including references to the Protecting Tenants at 
Foreclosure Act. 
Rationale: Required change provided by Nan McKay HCV 
Admin Plan revision service. 

Chapter 16:  Program Administration 
329-330 Change:  HACA may establish an exception payment 

standard of not more than 120 percent of the published 
FMR if required as a reasonable accommodation for a 
family that includes a person with a disability.  Previously, 
PHAs would need to seek HUD approval for exception 
payment standards above 110% of the published FMRs. 
Rationale:  This is an optional change as part of the 
streamlining rule to reduce administrative burden. This 
provides HACA the flexibility to approve payment 
standards up to 120% of the published FMR as a 
reasonable accommodation for persons with disabilities 
without the administrative burden of seeking HUD 
approval.  

Chapter 16:  Program Administration 
362 
369 
372 

Change:  Changes to Violence Against Women Policy 
Rationale: Required change provided by Nan McKay HCV 
Admin Plan revision service and based on counsel from 
the National Housing Law Project. 

Chapter 17:  Project Based Vouchers 
 
379-380 

Change:  Changes to policy regarding PHA-Owned units 
per Notice PIH 2015-05. 
Rationale: Required change provided by Nan McKay HCV 
Admin Plan revision service. 



SUMMARY of REVISIONS to HCV ADMINISTRATIVE PLAN May 2016             ATTACHMENT 1 
 

4  
 

Section Page 
Number Summary of Changes Made in Admin Plan 

Chapter 18: Choice Mobility Policy 
423-429 Change:  Added Choice Mobility Policy 

Rationale: As required by HUD and in accordance with 
HUD RAD guidelines, if HACA participates in RAD, HACA 
must provide a Choice Mobility option to residents of 
covered RAD properties. 

 

















































































































HOUSING AUTHORITY OF THE CITY OF AUSTIN 
BOARD OF COMMISSIONERS 
REGULAR BOARD MEETING 

 

May 19, 2016 
Regular Meeting 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

AGENDA ITEM NO. 5 
 

Presentation and Discussion of the proposed Changes to the 
Admissions and Continued Occupancy Policy which will go 
out for public comment beginning on May 23, 2016 



1  

HOUSING AUTHORITY OF THE CITY OF AUSTIN  
BOARD OF COMMISSIONERS 

 
Presentation & Discussion 

 
MEETING DATE: May 19, 2016 
 
STAFF CONTACT: Pilar Sanchez, Vice President of Housing and Community 

Development 
 

 Presentation and Discussion of Proposed Changes to the 
Admissions and Continued Occupancy Policy 

 
ACTION: Place out for Public Comment for 30 days beginning May 23, 

2016 through 5:00 pm on June 21, 2016 
 
SUMMARY:  
HACA’s Admissions and Continued Occupancy Policy was last revised and formally 
adopted on D e c e m b e r  1 7 , 2015. Since that time, HUD has issued a new 
Streamlining Rule and 2 PIH Notices with clarifying language regarding a number of 
policy items which are further explained below. 
 
The proposed revisions to the Admissions and Continued Occupancy Policy (ACOP) 
will be posted for public comment on May 23rd through June 21st and will be brought back 
to the Board for approval at the J u l y 2 2 ,  2 01 6  Board meeting.  Revisions to the ACOP 
are proposed for the following areas: 
 
Income Eligibility and Targeting 
The income limit for the Public Housing program is the Low income limit which is 80% of 
the median family income for our metropolitan statistical area.  HUD also has a Very Low-
income limit (50% of the median family income) which is used for the Housing Choice 
Voucher (HCV) program.  Finally, HUD also establishes an “Extremely Low- Income” limit.  
This limit is used for targeting the lowest income families for our programs.  HUD requires 
40% of new admissions to the Public Housing program and 75% of new admissions to the 
HCV program to be extremely low-income families. 
 
The streamlining rule formally changes the definition of extremely low-income families.  
Previously, the definition was a family whose income was below 30% of the median family 
income.  The new definition is “a very low-income family whose income is below either the 
Federal poverty level or 30% of the median family income, whichever is higher.”  This 
change will make it easier for families to meet HUD’s income targeting requirements. 
 
Disclosure and Verification of Social Security Numbers 
Currently, if a resident family adds a family member under the age of 6, the family was given 
90 days to provide proof of the Social Security number for that child.  This change is adding 
the same disclosure opportunities to families on the waiting list. 
 
The change allows a family that adds a child under age six (6) within the six (6) months 
before admission to Public Housing to have 90 days to provide proof of the Social Security 
number.   



2  

 
Online Application Process 
This change will allow HACA to begin accepting applications for Public Housing using an 
online application process similar to what was used for the Section 8 waiting list opening. 
 
Site-Based Waiting List 
This will change HACA’s Public Housing waiting lists from community-wide to site-based.  
Current and future applicants will be given the opportunity to choose where they want to 
live.  Families can be on waiting lists for multiple properties if they choose. 
 
Applicant Portal 
This change will allow applicants on the Public Housing waiting list to update their 
information via an online Applicant Portal.  This will reduce the need for applicants to travel 
to our office, allow them to update their information at any hour of the day, allow applicants 
to view their status in “real time”, and reduce staff time spent on data entry. 
 
Earned Income Disallowance (EID) 
In the Streamlining Rule, HUD is changing the maximum length of time for the earned 
income disallowance (EID) from 48 months to 24 months.  The initial period of 100% 
disallowance will be for 12 months from the start of employment, regardless of whether the 
individual works all 12 months.  The second period of 50% disallowance will be for 12 
months, starting after the 100% disallowance period ends.  The second period will end after 
12 months, regardless of how many months the resident was employed.  This change will 
significantly reduce the administrative burden of tracking the employment of the individual 
residents. 
 
Asset Verification 
In 2013, HUD granted temporary administrative relief in the verification of assets.  At that 
time, HUD allowed residents and applicants whose net value of assets was $5000 or less to 
self-certify the value of the assets and the income received from the assets.  The Streamlining 
Rule makes self-certification of assets worth less than $5000 permanent for most annual re-
certifications, but requires full third party verification of all assets at new admission and 
every third year after that.   
 
Prorated Rent for Mixed Eligibility Families 
HUD requires that assistance only be provided to US citizens or eligible immigrants.  Families 
that include citizens and / or eligible immigrants as well as individuals without legal presence, 
HUD requires that the assistance be prorated.  In the past, Public Housing used the maximum 
rents (95th percentile of subsidy for each bedroom size), as the means for determining how to pro-
rate the assistance.  With the Streamlining Rule, HUD now requires Public Housing to use the 
flat rent for the unit the family lives in to determine the pro-rated assistance.  In cases where 30% 
of the family’s income is greater than the flat rent, the family is required to pay 30% of their 
income. 
 
Income Determination for Fixed Income Sources 
HUD’s Streamlining Rule now allows PHAs to calculate the income from fixed income 
sources (Social Security, Pensions, Annuities, etc) by applying the documented cost of living 
adjustment (COLA) or percentage increase to the previous year’s income calculation.  PHAs 
are still required to third party verify the fixed income sources at new admission and every 
third year after that. 
 



3  

Documentation and Verification of the Community Service & Self-sufficiency 
Requirement (CSSR) 
HUD’s Streamlining Rule allows PHAs to accept self-certification of the completion of the 
CSSR by any non-exempt resident.  The PHA must select a random sample of self-
certifications and complete full third party verification to protect against fraud. 
 
 
ATTACHMENTS: 

• Summary of Changes to the ACOP 
• Affected Sections of the HACA Admissions and Continued Occupancy Policy (ACOP) 

 
RECOMMENDATION:  
It is HACA’s recommendation to request public comment on the proposed changes to the 
Admissions and Continued Occupancy Policy. 
 
FINANCE REVIEW: 
X Proposed action does not require Finance Department review. 
 

 iscal Impact was approved by  _____________________________  
 

 
 

  Thomas Cherian, Vice-President of Finance 



Section Page(s) Summary of Proposed Change

Chapter 3 - Section 3-II.A. 
INCOME ELIGIBILITY AND 
TARGETING

Pages       
31-32

Change: Updates the definition of "Extremely low-income family" to 
include very low-income families (income between 30-50% of the 
median family income) who are also below the federal poverty level.                                                                                              
Rationale:   This is a required change as part of the streamlining rule.  
The expansion of the definition makes it easier for PHAs to meet the 
income targeting requirements while also ensuring that no family 
below the federal poverty level would be denied housing due to the 
income targeting rules.

Chapter 3 - Section 3-II.C. 
SOCIAL SECURITY 
NUMBERS                             
&                                         
Chapter 7 - Section 7-II.B. 
SOCIAL SECURITY 
NUMBERS

Pages     
34-35 & 
Pages 
138-139

Change:  When a child under age 6 is added to the household up to six 
months before Admission of the household, this change allows the 
family 90 days to provide a SSN for the child.  The family will be 
offered housing and the child considered a family member during this 
time.                                                                                                                  
Rationale:  This is a required change as part of the streamlining rule.  
The intent is to provide the family a sufficient amount of time to 
provide the SSN for a new addition to the family.

Chapter 4 - Section 4-I.B.  
APPLYING FOR 
ASSISTANCE

Pages    
54-55

Change:  Changes the process for application to online web-based 
application.  Paper applications still accepted for those in need of 
reasonable accommodation.                                                                                                       
Rationale:  This change will streamline the application process for 
Public Housing and PBRA, reducing staff time for manual data entry.  
This will also make the application process more easily accessible 
from any location with internet access.

Chapter 4 - Section 4-II.B. 
ORGANIZATION OF THE 
WAITING LISTS

Pages                        
57-58

Change:  Creates a site-based waiting list for each property instead of 
the existing community-wide waiting list.                                                                                               
Rationale:   The change allows applicants to have a choice in where 
they live.  This change also facilitates the transition from Public 
Housing to Project Based Rental Assistance through RAD.

Chapter 4 - Section 4-II.E.  
REPORTING CHANGES IN 
FAMILY CIRCUMSTANCES

Page                  
60

Change:  Updates the language to reflect the option to electronically 
report changes through the Applicant Portal.                           
Rationale:  This change streamlines the update process, reducing 
staff time for manual entry.  This also makes the reporting process 
easier for applicants, as they can do it without coming to our office 
from any location with internet access.

Summary of Proposed Changes to the Admissions & Continued Occupancy Policy (ACOP)



Section Page(s) Summary of Proposed Change

Chapter 6 - Section 6-I.E. 
EARNED INCOME 
DISALLOWANCE                            
&                                                           
Chapter 6 - Section 6-
III.E.  FLAT RENTS AND 
FAMILY CHOICE IN RENTS

Pages                               
88-90,  
Pages 
119-120  
&  Pages 
127-128

Change:  The exclusion of earned income for the EID is for two years 
(24 months) maximum instead of four years (48 months).  There will 
be 12 months at 100% exclusion and 12 months at 50% exclusion.                                                                                                                                   
Rationale:   The tracking of the starts and stops of employment 
during the 48 months of EID was an administrative burden.  HUD is 
granting this relief, streamlining the administrative work while still 
allowing the family a two year break on fully counting their earned 
income.   

Chapter 6 - Section 6-I.G. 
ASSETS

Pages 91-
92

Change:  HACA will conduct third-party verification of assets at 
Admission.  After that, HACA will only third-party verify assets with a 
net value of $5000 or less every three years.  During the other two 
years, HACA will accept self-certification of the value of the asset and 
the anticipated income from the asset.  HACA will conduct third-party 
verification of all assets valued over $5000 every year.                                                                               
Rationale:  This is part of HUD's streamlining rule.  This is intended to 
provide administrative relief, while still maintaining accountability 
with regard to income from assets.

Chapter 6 - Section 6-
III.D. PRORATED RENT 
FOR MIXED FAMILIES        
&                                                
Chapter 17 - Section 17-
II.C PUBLIC HOUSING 
MAXIMUM RENTS

Page 
117 & 
Pages 
267-270

Change:  The calculation for pro-rating rent for mixed families 
(families with some members with legal status and others without 
legal status) will now use the flat rent for the applicable unit instead 
of the maximum rent.  In effect, this ends the need for maximum 
rents.                                                                                                 
Rationale:  This is a required change as part of the streamlining rule.  
This is also more in line with the HCV program and PBRA which use 
contract rent to calculate the pro-rated rent.

Chapter 7 - Section 7-
III.C.  PERIODIC 
PAYMENTS AND 
PAYMENTS IN LIEU OF 
EARNINGS

Pages        
145-146

Change:  HUD is allowing a streamlined income determination for any 
fixed income sources.  The PHA can apply the verified COLA or % 
increase to the previous year's verified or adjusted amount.   The 
income is subject to third-party verification at Admissions and every 
three years.                                                                                                           
Rationale:  This is part of HUD's streamlining rule.  This is intended to 
reduce the administrative burden of conducting annual 
reexaminations while still maintaining program integrity with 
protections against fraud.

Chapter 11 - Section 11-
I.D. DOCUMENTATION 
AND VERIFICATION

Pages 
201-204

Change:  Resident self-certification of completion of the CSSR is now 
allowed.  If self-certification is accepted, the PHA must validate a 
sample of self-certifications to prevent fraud.                                                                                                        
Rationale:   This change is part of the streamlining rule intended to 
reduce the administrative burden for the implementation of the CSSR.



Housing	Authority	of	the	City	of	Austin		 Admissions	and	Continued	Occupancy	Policy	

 

Revised	12/17/2015		 Page	31	

 

certification from the family and live-in aide stating that the live-in aide is (1) not 
obligated for the support of the person(s) needing the care, and (2) would not be living in 
the unit except to provide the necessary supportive services. 

HACA has the discretion not to approve a particular person as a live-in aide, and may 
withdraw such approval, if [24 CFR 966.4(d)(3)(i)]: 

 The person commits or has committed fraud, bribery or any other corrupt or criminal 
act in connection with any federal housing program. 

 The person has a history of drug-related criminal activity or violent criminal activity. 

 The person currently owes rent or other amounts to HACA or to another PHA in 
connection with the housing choice voucher program or public housing assistance 
under the 1937 Act. 

Within 20 business days of receiving a request for a live-in aide, including all required 
documentation related to the request, HACA will notify the family of its decision in 
writing.  If HACA denies the request for a live-in aide or denies approval of a particular 
live-in aide, the family may request a grievance hearing within the required timeframe 
specified in the decision letter. 

PART II: BASIC ELIGIBILITY CRITERIA 

3-II.A. INCOME ELIGIBILITY AND TARGETING 

Income Limits 

HUD is required by law to set income limits that determine the eligibility of applicants for 
HUD’s assisted housing programs, including the public housing program. The income limits are 
published annually and are based on HUD estimates of median family income in a particular area 
or county, with adjustments for family size.  

Types of Low-Income Families [24 CFR 5.603(b)] 

Low-income family. A family whose annual income does not exceed 80 percent of the median 
income for the area, adjusted for family size.  

Very low-income family. A family whose annual income does not exceed 50 percent of the 
median income for the area, adjusted for family size.  

Extremely low-income family. A very low-income family whose annual income does not exceed 
the higher of: 

(1) The poverty guidelines established by the Department of Health and Human Services 
applicable to the family of the size involved (except in the case of families living in 
Puerto Rico or any other territory or possession of the United States); or 

(2) Thirty (30) percent of the median income for the area, as determined by HUD, with 
adjustments for smaller and larger families, except that HUD may establish income 
ceilings higher or lower than 30 percent of the area median income for the area if HUD 
finds that such variations are necessary because of unusually high or low family 
incomes. 

Formatted: Font: (Default) Times New Roman

Formatted: Indent: First line:  0"

Formatted: Font: (Default) Times New Roman,
12 pt

Formatted: Font: (Default) Times New Roman,
Font color: Auto

Formatted: Font: (Default) Times New Roman,
12 pt



Housing	Authority	of	the	City	of	Austin		 Admissions	and	Continued	Occupancy	Policy	

 

Revised	12/17/2015		 Page	32	

 

A family whose annual income does not exceed 30 percent of the median income for the area, 
adjusted for family size. 

HUD may establish income ceilings higher or lower than 30, 50 or 80 percent of the median 
income for an area if HUD finds that such variations are necessary because of unusually high or 
low family incomes. 

Using Income Limits for Eligibility [24 CFR 960.201] 

Income limits are used for eligibility only at admission. Eligibility is established by comparing a 
family's annual income with HUD’s published income limits. To be income-eligible, a family 
must be a low-income family. 

Using Income Limits for Targeting [24 CFR 960.202(b)] 

At least 40 percent of the families admitted to the PHA's public housing program during a PHA 
fiscal year from the PHA waiting list must be extremely low-income families. This is called the 
“basic targeting requirement.” 

If admissions of extremely low-income families to the PHA’s housing choice voucher program 
during a PHA fiscal year exceed the 75 percent minimum-targeting requirement for that 
program, such excess shall be credited against the PHA’s public housing basic targeting 
requirement for the same fiscal year. 

The fiscal year credit for housing choice voucher program admissions that exceed the minimum 
voucher program targeting requirement must not exceed the lower of: 

 Ten percent of public housing waiting list admissions during the PHA fiscal year. 

 Ten percent of waiting list admission to the PHA’s housing choice voucher program during 
the PHA fiscal year. 

 The number of qualifying low-income families who commence occupancy during the fiscal 
year of public housing units located in census tracts with a poverty rate of 30 percent or 
more. For this purpose, qualifying low-income family means a low-income family other than 
an extremely low-income family. 

For discussion of how income targeting is used in tenant selection, see Chapter 4. 

3-II.B. CITIZENSHIP OR ELIGIBLE IMMIGRATION STATUS [24 CFR 5, Subpart E] 

Housing assistance is available only to individuals who are U.S. citizens, U.S. nationals (herein 
referred to as citizens and nationals) or noncitizens that have eligible immigration status. At least 
one family member must be a citizen, national or noncitizen with eligible immigration status in 
order for the family to qualify for any level of assistance. 

All applicant families must be notified of the requirement to submit evidence of their citizenship 
status when they apply. Where feasible, and in accordance with the PHA’s Limited English 
Proficiency Plan, the notice must be in a language that is understood by the individual if the 
individual is not proficient in English. 

Declaration [24 CFR 5.508] 

HUD requires each family member to declare whether the individual is a citizen, a national or an 
eligible noncitizen, except those members who elect not to contend that they have eligible 
immigration status. Those who elect not to contend their status are considered to be ineligible 



Housing	Authority	of	the	City	of	Austin		 Admissions	and	Continued	Occupancy	Policy	

 

Revised	12/17/2015		 Page	34	

 

may request a hearing if they contest this determination. See Chapter 6 for a discussion of how 
rents are prorated, and Chapter 14 for a discussion of informal hearing procedures.  

Ineligible Families [24 CFR 5.514(d), (e), and (f)] 

A PHA may elect to provide assistance to a family before the verification of the eligibility of the 
individual or one family member [24 CFR 5.512(b)]. Otherwise, no individual or family may be 
assisted prior to the affirmative establishment by the PHA that the individual or at least one 
family member is eligible [24 CFR 5.512(a)]. 

HACA Policy 

HACA will not provide assistance to a family before the verification of at least one 
family member as a citizen, national or eligible noncitizen is made. 

When HACA determines that an applicant family does not include any citizens, nationals 
or eligible noncitizens, following the verification process, the family will be sent a 
written notice within 20 calendar days of the determination. The notice will explain the 
reasons for the denial of assistance and will advise the family of its right to request an 
appeal to the United States Citizenship and Immigration Services (USCIS), or to request 
an informal hearing with HACA. The informal hearing with HACA may be requested in 
lieu of the USCIS appeal, or at the conclusion of the USCIS appeal process. The notice 
must also inform the applicant family that assistance may not be delayed until the 
conclusion of the USCIS appeal process, but that it may be delayed pending the 
completion of the informal hearing process. 

Informal hearing procedures are contained in Chapter 14. 

Time Frame for Determination of Citizenship Status [24 CFR 5.508(g)] 

For new occupants joining the resident family the PHA must verify status at the first interim or 
regular reexamination following the person’s occupancy, whichever comes first. 

If an individual qualifies for a time extension for the submission of required documents, the PHA 
must grant such an extension for no more than 30 days [24 CFR 5.508(h)]. 

Each family member is required to submit evidence of eligible status only one time during 
continuous occupancy. 

HACA Policy 

HACA will verify the status of applicants at the time other eligibility factors are 
determined. 

3-II.C. SOCIAL SECURITY NUMBERS [24 CFR 5.216 and 5.218, Notice PIH 2012-10, 
HUD Streamlining Rule 3/8/2016] 
The applicant and all members of the applicant’s household must disclose the complete and 
accurate social security number (SSN) assigned to each household member, and the 
documentation necessary to verify each SSN. A detailed discussion of acceptable documentation 
is provided in Chapter 7. 
 
Note: These requirements do not apply to noncitizens who do not contend eligible immigration 
status, and they do not apply to existing program participants as of January 31, 2010, who have 
previously disclosed their SSN and HUD has determined the SSN to be valid. 



Housing	Authority	of	the	City	of	Austin		 Admissions	and	Continued	Occupancy	Policy	

 

Revised	12/17/2015		 Page	35	

 

 

In addition, each participant who has not previously disclosed an SSN, has previously disclosed 
an SSN that HUD or the SSA determined was invalid, or has been issued a new SSN must 
submit their complete and accurate SSN and the documentation required to verify the SSN at the 
time of the next interim or annual recertification. Participants age 62 or older as of January 31, 
2010, whose determination of eligibility was begun before January 31, 2010, are exempt from 
this requirement and remain exempt even if they move to a new assisted unit. The PHA must 
deny assistance to an applicant family if they do not meet the SSN disclosure and documentation 
requirements contained in 24 CFR 5.216. 

HACA Policy 

If the provided documentation is not acceptable evidence of the social security number, 
HACA will explain to the applicant the reasons the document is not acceptable and 
request that the individual obtain and submit acceptable documentation of the SSN to 
HACA within 90 calendar days.  The explanation and request will be documented in the 
applicant file.  If the applicant family is otherwise eligible to participate in the program, 
the family will maintain its position on the waiting list for this 90 calendar day period.  

 If all household members have not disclosed their SSN at the time a unit becomes 
available, the available unit will be offered to the next eligible applicant family on the 
waiting list.  At the conclusion of the 90 calendar day period and if the applicant family 
has still not submitted acceptable evidence of the SSN, HACA will grant the family an 
additional 90 calendar day period to comply with the SSN disclosure and documentation 
requirement if the family was unable to comply with the requirements due to 
circumstances that could not have reasonably been foreseen and were outside the control 
of the family.   

 

If a child under the age of 6 years was added to the assistance applicant household within the 6-
month period prior to the household's date of admission, the assistance applicant may become a 
participant, so long as the documentation required in this section is provided to the processing 
entity within 90 calendar days from the date of admission into the program. The processing 
entity must grant an extension of one additional 90-day period if the processing entity determines 
that, in its discretion, the assistance applicant's failure to comply was due to circumstances that 
could not reasonably have been foreseen and were outside the control of the assistance applicant. 
If the applicant family fails to produce the documentation required in this section within the 
required time period, the housing authority may terminate assistance or tenancy of the individual 
participant or the entire family. 

HACA Policy 

HACA will grant one additional 90-day extension if needed for reasons beyond the 
resident’s control such as delayed processing of the SSN application by the SSA, natural 
disaster, fire, death in the family or other emergency. 

 



 

Revised	12/17/2015		 Page	138	

 

 

Verification of Legal Identity for Adults Verification of Legal Identity for 
Children 

Certificate of birth, naturalization papers 

Church issued baptismal certificate 

Current, valid driver's license or 
Department of Motor Vehicle 
identification card 

U.S. military discharge (DD 214) 

U.S. passport 

 

Certificate of birth 

Adoption papers 

Custody agreement 

Health and Human Services ID 

School records 

School or government-issued photo ID for 
age 16 and over 

If a document submitted by a family is illegible or otherwise questionable, more than one 
of these documents may be required. 

If none of these documents can be provided and at the HACA’s discretion, a third party 
who knows the person may attest to the person’s identity. The certification must be 
provided in a format acceptable to the HACA and be signed in the presence of a PHA 
representative or HACA notary public. Legal identity will be verified on an as needed 
basis. 

7-II.B. SOCIAL SECURITY NUMBERS [24 CFR 5.216, and Notice PIH 2012-10 and the 
Streamlining Rule] 
The family must provide documentation of a valid social security number (SSN) for each 
member of the household, with the exception of individuals who do not contend eligible 
immigration status. Exemptions also include, existing residents who were at least 62 years of age 
as of January 31, 2010, and had not previously disclosed an SSN. 
 
The PHA must accept the following documentation as acceptable evidence of the social security 
number: 
 

 An original SSN card issued by the Social Security Administration (SSA) 
 An original SSA-issued document, which contains the name and SSN of the individual 
 An original document issued by a federal, state or local government agency, which 

contains the name and SSN of the individual 
 
The PHA may only reject documentation of an SSN provided by an applicant or resident if the 
document is not an original document, if the original document has been altered, mutilated, or is 
not legible, or if the document appears to be forged. 
 

HACA Policy 

If the provided documentation is not acceptable evidence of the social security number, 
HACA will explain to the applicant or resident the reasons the document is not 
acceptable and request that the individual obtain and submit acceptable documentation of 
the SSN to HACA within 90 calendar days. The explanation and request will be 
documented in the tenant file. 



 

Revised	12/17/2015		 Page	139	

 

 
When the resident requests to add a new household member who is at least 6 years of age or who 
is under the age of 6 and has an SSN, the resident must provide the complete and accurate SSN 
assigned to each new member at the time of reexamination or recertification, in addition to the 
documentation required to verify it. The PHA may not add the new household member until such 
documentation is provided. 
 
When a resident requests to add a new household member who is under the age of 6 and has not 
been assigned an SSN, the resident must provide the SSN assigned to each new child and the 
required documentation within 90 calendar days of the child being added to the household. A 90-
day extension will be granted if the PHA determines that the resident’s failure to comply was due 
to unforeseen circumstances and was outside of the resident’s control. During the period the 
PHA is awaiting documentation of the SSN, the child will be counted as part of the assisted 
household. 

HACA Policy 

HACA will grant one additional 90-day extension if needed for reasons beyond the 
resident’s control such as delayed processing of the SSN application by the SSA, natural 
disaster, fire, death in the family or other emergency. 
 

If a child under the age of 6 years was added to the assistance applicant household within the 6-
month period prior to the household's date of admission, the assistance applicant may become a 
participant, so long as the documentation required in this section is provided to the processing 
entity within 90 calendar days from the date of admission into the program. The processing 
entity must grant an extension of one additional 90-day period if the processing entity determines 
that, in its discretion, the assistance applicant's failure to comply was due to circumstances that 
could not reasonably have been foreseen and were outside the control of the assistance applicant. 
If the applicant family fails to produce the documentation required in this section within the 
required time period, the housing authority may terminate assistance or tenancy of the individual 
participant or the entire family. 

HACA Policy 

HACA will grant one additional 90-day extension if needed for reasons beyond the 
resident’s control such as delayed processing of the SSN application by the SSA, natural 
disaster, fire, death in the family or other emergency. 

 
Social security numbers must be verified only once during continuously-assisted occupancy. 

HACA Policy 

HACA will verify each disclosed SSN by: 
 

o Obtaining documentation from applicants and residents that is acceptable as 
evidence of social security numbers. 

o Making a copy of the original documentation submitted, returning it to the 
individual and retaining a copy in the file folder. 

 
Once an individual’s status is classified as “verified” in HUD’s EIV system, HACA will 
retain and secure all SSN documents in the tenant file throughout the family’s tenancy in 
Public Housing. Thereafter, it will be retained in accordance with HACA’s record 
retention policies,  

Formatted: Font: (Default) Times New Roman,
12 pt

Formatted: Font: (Default) Times New Roman,
12 pt

Formatted: Font: (Default) Times New Roman,
12 pt

Formatted: Font: 16 pt



Housing Authority of the City of Austin  Admissions and Continued Occupancy Policy 

 

Revised 12/17/2015  Page 54 

 

PART I: THE APPLICATION PROCESS 

4-I.A. OVERVIEW 
This part describes the policies that guide HACA’s efforts to distribute and accept applications, 
and to make preliminary determinations of applicant family eligibility that affect placement of 
the family on the waiting list. This part also describes HACA’s obligation to ensure the 
accessibility of the application process. 

4-I.B. APPLYING FOR ASSISTANCE 
Any family that wishes to reside in public housing must apply for admission to the program [24 
CFR 1.4(b)(2)(ii), 24 CFR 960.202(a)(2)(iv), and PH Occ GB, p. 68]. HUD permits the PHA to 
determine the format and content of its applications, as well as how such applications will be 
made available to interested families and how applications will be accepted by the PHA. 
However, the PHA must include Form HUD-92006, Supplement to Application for Federally 
Assisted Housing, as part of the PHA’s application [Notice PIH 2009-36]. 

HACA Policy 

Due to the high volume of applicants seeking public housing, HACA utilizes a two-step 
application process. Under the two-step application process, HACA initially will require 
families to provide only the information needed to make an initial assessment of the 
family’s preliminary eligibility, and to determine the family’s placement on the waiting 
list. The family will be required to provide all of the information necessary to establish 
family eligibility and the amount of rent the family will pay when selected from the 
waiting list. 

The first step in the application process is the submission of the pre-application.  Pre-
applications are accepted through the application web portal at 
www.austin.apply4housing.com.  HACA will also maintain paper applications, as a 
reasonable accommodation, if there is the presence of a disability.  Under no 
circumstances will anyone be denied the right to submit an application. 

HACA offers several methods of applying for assistance.  

1. Families may obtain application forms from HACA’s Central office during normal 
business hours, Monday through Friday from 8 a.m. to 5 p.m., with the exception of 
holidays. Except as specified below, no applications will be taken by phone.  

2. If the head of household resides outside of the Austin metropolitan area, is elderly or 
has a verifiable disability which prevents the applicant, or person on the applicant’s 
behalf, to obtain an application from the HACA Central Offices (1124 S. IH 35, 
Austin, Texas 78704), HACA will mail the application to the applicant via first class 
mail.   

3. Application forms may also be accessed via HACA’s website at www.hacanet.org in 
the How to Obtain Housing section.  Downloadable application forms may be printed, 
filled out and completed.  Applications are available in English and in Spanish.  

4. Families may complete the application online through HACA’s web application. The 
web application can be accessed through HACA’s website at www.hacanet.org  . 

Completed paper applications must be returned to HACA by mail, by fax to the 
Admissions Department or submitted in person during normal business hours to the 
HACA Central Office at 1124 S. IH35, Austin, Texas 78704. Normal business hours are 

http://www.austin.apply4housing.com/


Housing Authority of the City of Austin  Admissions and Continued Occupancy Policy 

 

Revised 12/17/2015  Page 55 

 

Monday through Friday, 8:00 AM to 5:00 PM, with the exception of holidays. 
Applications must be complete in order to be accepted by HACA for processing. The 
application must be signed by the applicant or a person with power of attorney on behalf 
of the applicant.. No applications will be taken over the telephone. Incomplete 
applications will not be accepted and will not be file stamped with the date and time, and 
will be returned to the applicant. If the application was mailed, an Admissions 
representative will highlight the incomplete portions of the application and mail the 
application back to the applicant for completion.  

Under no circumstances will anyone be denied the right to request or submit an 
application. Applicants may complete the application at HACA’s Central Offices during 
normal business hours or may take the application to complete it elsewhere and bring it 
back during normal business hours. Upon receipt, the application will be file stamped 
with the date and time it was received.  

Unless unable due to a disability, the applicant shall complete all required fields of the 
application through the application web portal. fill out all entries on the application form 
in ink or by a typewriter or complete the online electronic application. If the applicant is 
unable to complete the application form, by verifying the need to make a reasonable 
accommodation through documentation or visual observation, as applicable, and the 
applicant has represented that he or she has no one to assist him or her, a HACA 
employee shall assist the applicant in completing the application form based upon the 
information provided by the applicant. 

The entire pre-application must be completed and submitted before the applicant will be 
placed on the waiting list.  The system will confirm submission if all application 
requirements have been fulfilled.  The web portal will apply an electronic date and time 
received stamp to each application in accordance with the confirmation of successful 
submission.  

Corrections to the application are to be made by lining through the original entry and 
substituting the correct data. Such changes are to be dated and signed by the person 
making the change with a notation specifying the reasons for the change. 

The application must be completely filled out and signed by the applicant before 
acceptance. Upon completion and signature of the application, the application will be file 
stamped by date and time as specified above and referred to the Admissions Department. 
Electronic applications will also be marked with the date and time of the application. 

Complete signatures are to be used by HACA employees in signing all applications, 
leases and entries to historical sheets and verification documentation. 

4-I.C. ACCESSIBILITY OF THE APPLICATION PROCESS 
The PHA must take a variety of steps to ensure that the application process is accessible to those 
people who might have difficulty complying with the normal, standard PHA application process. 

Disabled Populations [24 CFR 8; PH Occ GB, p. 68] 

The PHA must provide reasonable accommodation to the needs of individuals with disabilities. 
The application-taking facility and theentire application process must be fully accessible, or the 



Housing Authority of the City of Austin  Admissions and Continued Occupancy Policy 

 

Revised 12/17/2015  Page 56 

 

PHA must provide an alternate approach that provides equal access to the application process. 
Chapter 2 provides a full discussion of HACA’s policies related to providing reasonable 
accommodations for people with disabilities. 

Limited English Proficiency 

PHAs are required to take reasonable steps to ensure meaningful access to their programs and 
activities by persons with limited English proficiency [24 CFR 1]. Chapter 2 provides a full 
discussion on HACA’s policies related to ensuring access to people with limited English 
proficiency (LEP). 

4-I.D. PLACEMENT ON THE WAITING LIST 
The PHA must review each completed pre-application received and make a preliminary 
assessment of the family’s eligibility. The PHA shall place on the waiting list families for whom 
the list is open unless the PHA determines the family to be ineligible. Where the family is 
determined to be ineligible, the PHA must notify the family in writing [24 CFR 960.208(a); PH 
Occ GB, p. 41]. Where the family is not determined to be ineligible, the family will be placed on 
a waiting list of applicants. 

No applicant has a right or entitlement to be listed on the waiting list, or to any particular 
position on the waiting list. 

Ineligible for Placement on the Waiting List 

HACA Policy 

If HACA can determine from the information provided that a family is preliminarily 
ineligible, the family will not be placed on the waiting list (see Chapter 3 for specific 
information on preliminary ineligibility). Where a family is determined to be 
preliminarily ineligible, HACA will send written notification of the preliminary 
ineligibility determination within 30 days of receiving a completed application. The 
notice will specify the reasons for ineligibility, and will inform the family of its right to 
request an informal hearing and explain the process for doing so (see Chapter 14).  If, 
upon conclusion of the informal hearing process, the family’s preliminary eligibility is 
restored, the family’s original date and time of the pre-application will be restored on the 
waiting list.  

Eligible for Placement on the Waiting List 

HACA Policy 

HACA will send written notification of the preliminary eligibility determination within 
30 days of receiving a completed application. If applicable, the notice will also indicate 
the waiting list preference(s) for which the family appears to qualify.  

Placement on the waiting list does not indicate that the family is, in fact, eligible for 
admission. A final determination of eligibility and qualification for preferences will be 
made when the family is selected from the waiting list.  

Applicants will be placed on the waiting list according to HACA preference(s) and the 
date and time their complete pre-application is received by HACA. Any complete 
application received by mail or by fax will be file stamped with the date which shall be 
the same business day of receipt and the time shall be specified as 5:00 p.m. Applications 



Housing Authority of the City of Austin  Admissions and Continued Occupancy Policy 

 

Revised 12/17/2015  Page 57 

 

faxed to HACA after business hours will be file stamped as received the following 
business day and the time shall be specified as 5:00 p.m. 

HACA will assign families on the waiting list according to the bedroom size for which a 
family qualifies as established according to HACA’s occupancy standards (see Chapter 
5). Families may request to be placed on the waiting list for a unit size smaller than 
designated by the occupancy guidelines (as long as the unit is not overcrowded according 
to HACA standards and local codes). However, in these cases, the family must agree not 
to request a transfer for two years after admission, unless they have a change in family 
size or composition. 

PART II: MANAGING THE WAITING LIST 

4-II.A. OVERVIEW 
The PHA must have policies regarding the type of waiting list it will utilize as well as the various 
aspects of organizing and managing the waiting list of applicant families. This includes opening 
the list to new applicants, closing the list to new applicants, notifying the public of waiting list 
openings and closings, updating waiting list information, purging the list of families that are no 
longer interested in or eligible for public housing and conducting outreach to ensure a sufficient 
number of applicants. 

In addition, HUD imposes requirements on how the PHA may structure its waiting list and how 
families must be treated if they apply for public housing at a PHA that administers more than one 
assisted housing program. 

4-II.B. ORGANIZATION OF THE WAITING LIST 
The PHA’s public housing waiting list shall be organized in such a manner to allow the PHA to 
accurately identify and select families in the proper order, according to the admissions policies 
described in this ACOP. 

HACA Policy 

The waiting list will contain the following information for each applicant listed: 

• Name and address 
• Social Security number (on the electronic copy) 
• Unit size required  
• Amount and source of annual income 
• Date and time of application or application number 
• Admission preference, if any 
• Rank 

The PHA may adopt one community-wide waiting list or site-based waiting lists. The PHA must 
obtain approval from HUD through submission of its Annual Plan before it may offer site-based 
waiting lists. Site-based waiting lists allow families to select the development where they wish to 
reside and must be consistent with all applicable civil rights and fair housing laws and 
regulations [24 CFR 903.7(b)(2)]. 

HACA Policy 

HACA will maintain one single community-widea site-based waiting lists for each of its 
developments. Within the list, HACA will designate subparts to easily identify who 



Housing Authority of the City of Austin  Admissions and Continued Occupancy Policy 

 

Revised 12/17/2015  Page 58 

 

should be offered the next available unit (i.e. mixed populations, general occupancy, unit 
size, and accessible units). 

HACA will not adopt site-based waiting lists.  

HUD directs that a family that applies to reside in public housing must be offered the opportunity 
to be placed on the waiting list for any tenant-based or project-based voucher or moderate 
rehabilitation program that the PHA operates if 1) the other programs’ waiting lists are open, and 
2) the family is qualified for the other programs [24 CFR 982.205(a)(2)(i)].  

HUD permits, but does not require, that PHAs maintain a single merged waiting list for their 
public housing, housing choice voucher and other subsidized housing programs [24 CFR 
982.205(a)(1)].  

HACA Policy 

HACA will not merge the public housing waiting list with the waiting list for any other 
program HACA operates.  

4-II.C. OPENING AND CLOSING THE WAITING LIST  

Closing the Waiting List 

The PHA is permitted to close the waiting list, in whole or in part, if it has an adequate pool of 
families to fill its developments. The PHA may close the waiting list completely, or restrict 
intake by preference, type of project, or by size and type of dwelling unit. [PH Occ GB, p. 31]. 

HACA Policy 

HACA may close the waiting list when the estimated waiting period for housing 
applicants on the list reaches 24 months for the most current applicants. Where HACA 
has particular preferences or other criteria that require a specific category of family, 
HACA may elect to continue to accept applications from these applicants while closing 
the waiting list to others. 

HACA will announce by public notice the closing of the waiting list. If the list remains 
open to certain categories of families, this information will be contained in the notice.  
The notice will be published at least 30 days prior to HACA closing the list. 

Reopening the Waiting List 

If the waiting list has been closed, it may be reopened at any time. The PHA should publish a 
notice in local newspapers of general circulation, minority media and other suitable media outlets 
that the PHA is reopening the waiting list. Such notice must comply with HUD fair housing 
requirements. The PHA should specify who may apply, and where and when applications will be 
received.  

HACA Policy 

HACA will announce the reopening of the waiting list at least 30 days prior to the date 
applications will first be accepted. If the list is only being reopened for certain categories 
of families, this information will be contained in the notice. The notice will specify 
where, when, and how applications are to be received. 

HACA will give public notice by publishing the relevant information in suitable media 
outlets including, but not limited to: 



Housing Authority of the City of Austin  Admissions and Continued Occupancy Policy 

 

Revised 12/17/2015  Page 59 

 

• Austin American-Statesman 
• El Mundo 
• The Villager 
• Nokoa 
• Ahora Si 
• The Austin Chronicle 
Notices may also be sent to organizations that typically assist low income families, 
including but not limited to: 

•  Salvation Army 
•  Caritas 
•  Any Baby Can 
•  Front Steps 

4-II.D. FAMILY OUTREACH [24 CFR 903.2(d); 24 CFR 903.7(a) and (b)] 
The PHA should conduct outreach as necessary to ensure that the PHA has a sufficient number 
of applicants on the waiting list to fill anticipated vacancies and to assure that the PHA is 
affirmatively furthering fair housing and complying with the Fair Housing Act. 

Because HUD requires the PHA to serve a specified percentage of extremely low income 
families, the PHA may need to conduct special outreach to ensure that an adequate number of 
such families apply for public housing. 

PHA outreach efforts must comply with fair housing requirements. This includes: 

• Analyzing the housing market area and the populations currently being served to identify 
underserved populations. 

• Ensuring that outreach efforts are targeted to media outlets that reach eligible populations 
that are underrepresented in the program. 

• Avoiding outreach efforts that prefer or exclude people who are members of a protected 
class. 

PHA outreach efforts must be designed to inform qualified families about the availability of units 
under the program. These efforts may include, as needed, any of the following activities: 

• Submitting press releases to local newspapers, including minority newspapers. 

• Developing informational materials and flyers to distribute to other agencies. 

• Providing application forms to other public and private agencies that serve the low income 
population. 

• Developing partnerships with other organizations that serve similar populations, including 
agencies that provide services for persons with disabilities. 

HACA Policy 

HACA will monitor the characteristics of the population being served and the 
characteristics of the population as a whole in HACA’s jurisdiction. Targeted outreach 
efforts will be undertaken if a comparison suggests that certain populations are being 
underserved. 



Housing Authority of the City of Austin  Admissions and Continued Occupancy Policy 

 

Revised 12/17/2015  Page 60 

 

4-II.E. REPORTING CHANGES IN FAMILY CIRCUMSTANCES 
HACA Policy 

While the family is on the waiting list, the family must inform HACA of changes in 
family size or composition, preference status or contact information, including current 
residence, mailing address and phone number. The changes must be be requested through 
the applicant portal or submitted in writing to the Admissions department.  Update forms 
are available at HACA’s Central Office in English and in Spanish.  Update forms may 
also be accessed via HACA’s website at www.hacanet.org in the How to Obtain Housing 
section. Forms may be downloaded, printed and completed. Completed update forms may 
be mailed, faxed or submitted in person to HACA’s Admissions department. To avoid 
unauthorized changes, a photo ID must be presented in person or via fax, to confirm the 
applicant’s identity before any requested changes to the application are made by the 
Admissions department. 

When submitting changes through the applicant portalApplicants will also have the 
option to report changes in family circumstances electronically via the Applicant Portal. 
When first logging into the portal, applicants will be required to provide identity 
information (name, date of birth, social security number) to access their account. Once 
verified, they will receive a username and password for future logins to the Applicant 
Portal. The portal will be accessible through HACA’s website at www.hacanet.org.  

Changes in an applicant's circumstances while on the waiting list may affect the family's 
qualification for a particular bedroom size or entitlement to a preference. When an 
applicant reports a change that affects their placement on the waiting list, the waiting list 
will be updated accordingly.  

4-II.F. UPDATING THE WAITING LIST  
HUD requires the PHA to establish policies to use when removing applicant names from the 
waiting list [24 CFR 960.202(a)(2)(iv)]. 

Purging the Waiting List 

The decision to withdraw an applicant family that includes a person with disabilities from the 
waiting list is subject to reasonable accommodation. If the applicant did not respond to the 
PHA’s request for information or updates because of the family member’s disability, the PHA 
must, upon the family’s request, reinstate the applicant family to their former position on the 
waiting list as a reasonable accommodation [24 CFR 8.4(a), 24 CFR 100.204(a), and PH Occ 
GB, p. 39 and 40]. See Chapter 2 for further information regarding reasonable accommodations. 

HACA Policy 

The waiting list will be updated as needed to ensure that all applicants and applicant 
information is current and timely. 

To update the waiting list, HACA will send an update request via first class mail to each 
family on the waiting list to determine whether the family continues to be interested in, 
and to qualify for, the program. This update request will be sent to the last address that 
HACA has on record for the family. The update request will provide a deadline by which 
the family must respond and will state that failure to respond will result in the applicant’s 
name being removed from the waiting list. 



Housing	Authority	of	the	City	of	Austin		 Admissions	and	Continued	Occupancy	Policy	

 

Revised	12/17/2015		 Page	88	

 

In calculating the incremental difference, HACA will use as the pre-enrollment income 
the total annualized amount of the family member’s welfare assistance and earnings 
reported on the families most recently completed HUD-50058. 

End of participation in a training program must be reported in accordance with HACA's 
interim reporting requirements (see chapter on reexaminations). 

HUD-Funded Training Programs 

Amounts received under training programs funded in whole or in part by HUD [24 CFR 
5.609(c)(8)(i)] are excluded from annual income. Eligible sources of funding for the training 
include operating subsidy, Section 8 administrative fees, and modernization, Community 
Development Block Grant (CDBG), HOME program and other grant funds received from HUD. 

HACA Policy 

To qualify as a training program, the program must meet the definition of a training 
program provided above for state and local employment training programs. 

Earned Income Tax Credit. Earned income tax credit (EITC) refund payments received on or 
after January 1, 1991 (26 U.S.C. 32(j)), are excluded from annual income [24 CFR 5.609(c)(17)]. 
Although many families receive the EITC annually when they file taxes, an EITC can also be 
received throughout the year. The prorated share of the annual EITC is included in the 
employee’s payroll check. 

Earned Income Disallowance. The earned income disallowance is discussed in section 6-I.E 
below. 

6-I.E. EARNED INCOME DISALLOWANCE [24 CFR 960.255] 

The earned income disallowance (EID) encourages people to enter the work force by not 
including the full value of increases in earned income for a period of time. The full text of 24 
CFR 960.255 is included as Exhibit 6-4 at the end of this chapter. Eligibility criteria and 
limitations on the disallowance are summarized below. 

Eligibility 

This disallowance applies only to adult individuals in families already participating in the public 
housing program (not at initial examination). The disallowance is not available to adults who do 
not have eligible immigration status. Income increases that are disallowed pertain strictly to 
earned income only. To qualify, the family must experience an increase in annual income that is 
the result of one of the following events: 

 Employment of a family member who was previously unemployed for one or more years 
prior to employment. Previously unemployed includes a person who annually has earned not 
more than the minimum wage applicable to the community multiplied by 500 hours. The 
applicable minimum wage is the federal minimum wage unless there is a higher state or local 
minimum wage. 

 Increased earnings by a family member whose earnings increase during participation in an 
economic self-sufficiency or job-training program. A self-sufficiency program includes a 
program designed to encourage, assist, train or facilitate the economic independence of 
HUD-assisted families or to provide work to such families [24 CFR 5.603(b)]. 



Housing	Authority	of	the	City	of	Austin		 Admissions	and	Continued	Occupancy	Policy	

 

Revised	12/17/2015		 Page	89	

 

 New employment or increased earnings by a family member who has received benefits or 
services under Temporary Assistance for Needy Families (TANF) or any other state program 
funded under Part A of Title IV of the Social Security Act within the past six months. If the 
benefits are received in the form of monthly maintenance, there is no minimum amount. If 
the benefits or services are received in a form other than monthly maintenance, such as one-
time payments, wage subsidies or transportation assistance, the total amount received over 
the six-month period must be at least $500. 

Calculation of the Disallowance 

Calculation of the earned income disallowance for an eligible member of a qualified family 
begins with a comparison of the member’s current income with his or her “prior income.”  

HACA Policy 

HACA defines prior income, or prequalifying income, as the family member’s last 
certified income prior to qualifying for the EID. This income amount will be recorded on 
the family’s last Form 50058. 

The family member’s prior, or prequalifying, income remains constant throughout the 
period that he or she is receiving the EID. 

Initial 12-Month Exclusion 

During the initial 12-month exclusion period, the full amount (100 percent) of any increase in 
income attributable to new employment or increased earnings is excluded. The 12 months are 
cumulative and need not be consecutive. 

HACA Policy 

The initial EID exclusion period will begin on the first of the month following the date an 
eligible member of a qualified family is first employed or first experiences an increase in 
earnings. This applies regardless of whether the eligible member reported the 
employment or increase in earnings in a timely manner (within 10 days of occurrence) or 
not.  Example: an eligible family member reports a new job to the Housing Manager on 
June 12, 2008.  HACA’s third party verification confirms that the family member 
actually started employment on January 5, 2008.  The initial EID exclusion period for this 
family member will begin on February 1, 2008. 

Second 12-Month Exclusion and Phase-In 

During the second 12-month exclusion period, the exclusion is reduced to half (50 percent) of 
any increase in income attributable to employment or increased earnings. The 12 months are 
cumulative and need not be consecutive. 

Lifetime Limitation 

The EID has a fourtwo-year (4824-month) lifetime maximum. The fourtwo-year eligibility 
period begins at the same time that the initial exclusion period begins and ends 4824 months 
later. The one-time eligibility for the EID applies even if the eligible individual begins to receive 
assistance from another housing agency, if the individual moves between public housing and 
Section 8 assistance, or if there are breaks in assistance. 

HACA Policy 



Housing	Authority	of	the	City	of	Austin		 Admissions	and	Continued	Occupancy	Policy	

 

Revised	12/17/2015		 Page	90	

 

During the 4824-month eligibility period, HACA will conduct an interim reexamination 
each time there is a change in the family member’s annual income that affects or is 
affected by the EID (e.g., when the family member’s income falls to a level at or below 
his/her prequalifying income, when one of the exclusion periods ends and at the end of 
the lifetime maximum eligibility period). 

Individual Savings Accounts [24 CFR 960.255(d)] 

HACA Policy 

HACA chooses not to establish a system of individual savings accounts (ISAs) for 
Families who qualify for the EID. 

6-I.F. BUSINESS INCOME [24 CFR 5.609(b)(2)] 

Annual income includes “the net income from the operation of a business or profession. 
Expenditures for business expansion or amortization of capital indebtedness shall not be used as 
deductions in determining net income. An allowance for depreciation of assets used in a business 
or profession may be deducted, based on straight-line depreciation, as provided in Internal 
Revenue Service regulations. Any withdrawal of cash or assets from the operation of a business 
or profession will be included in income, except to the extent the withdrawal is reimbursement of 
cash or assets invested in the operation by the family” [24 CFR 5.609(b)(2)].  

Business Expenses 

Net income is “gross income less business expense” [HCV GB, p. 5-19]. 

HACA Policy 

To determine business expenses that may be deducted from gross income, HACA will 
use current applicable Internal Revenue Service (IRS) rules for determining allowable 
business expenses [see IRS Publication 535], unless a topic is addressed by HUD 
regulations or guidance as described below. 

Business Expansion 

HUD regulations do not permit the PHA to deduct from gross income expenses for business 
expansion. 

HACA Policy 

Business expansion is defined as any capital expenditures made to add new business 
activities, to expand current facilities or to operate the business in additional locations. 
For example, purchase of a street sweeper by a construction business for the purpose of 
adding street cleaning to the services offered by the business would be considered a 
business expansion. Similarly, the purchase of a property by a hair care business to open 
at a second location would be considered a business expansion. 

Capital Indebtedness 

HUD regulations do not permit the PHA to deduct from gross income the amortization of capital 
indebtedness. 

HACA Policy 



Housing	Authority	of	the	City	of	Austin		 Admissions	and	Continued	Occupancy	Policy	

 

Revised	12/17/2015		 Page	119	

 

Flat Rent Impact Analysis Calculation 

In order to conduct a flat rent impact analysis, the PHA must multiply the family’s current rent 
amount by 1.35 and compare the result to the flat rent under the PHA’s policies. 

Example: A family was paying a flat rent of $500 per month. At their annual recertification, the 
PHA has increased the flat rent for their unit size to $700. The PHA would conduct a flat rent 
impact analysis as follows: 

$500 x 1.35 = $675 

Since the PHA’s increased flat rent of $700 would result in a rent increase of more than 
35 percent, the PHA would offer the family the choice to pay either $675 per month or an 
income-based rent. The flat rent increase would need to be phased in. 

HACA Policy 

HACA will review flat rents on an annual basis, and adjust them as necessary to ensure 
that flat rents continue to mirror market rent values.  As required by Section 210 of the 
2014 Appropriations Act, effective June 1, 2014 a PHA must also ensure that established 
flat rents are no less than 80 percent of the current applicable Fair Market Rents and that 
they will not cause a family’s existing rental payment to increase more than 35 percent.  
The PHA will conduct a flat rent impact analysis to determine the percentage increase in 
the family's rent amount. If the increase is greater than 35 percent, the PHA will phase in 
the rent increase at the maximum amount annually over a three-year period so that it does 
not exceed 35 percent in any year until the flat rent is fully phased in. If the increase is 
35 percent or less, there will be no phase-in. [Notice PIH 2014-12]. 

 

 

 

Flat Rents and Earned Income Disallowance [A&O FAQs] 

Because the EID is a function of income-based rents, a family paying flat rent cannot qualify for 
the EID even if a family member experiences an event that would qualify the family for the EID. 
If the family later chooses to pay income-based rent, they would only qualify for the EID if a 
new qualifying event occurred. 

A family currently paying flat rent that previously qualified for the EID while paying income-
based rent and is currently within their 4824 month period would have the 12 cumulative months 
of full (100 percent) and phase-in (50 percent) exclusion continue while paying flat rent as long 
as the employment that is the subject of the exclusion continues, and the 4824-month lifetime 
limit would continue uninterrupted. A family paying flat rent could therefore see a family 
member’s 4824-month lifetime limit expire while the family is paying flat rent. 

Flat Rents and Mixed Families [A&O FAQs] 

Mixed families electing to pay flat rent must first have a flat rent worksheet completed to see if 
the flat rent must be prorated. The worksheet is located in Appendix III of the Form HUD-50058 
Instruction Booklet.  



Housing	Authority	of	the	City	of	Austin		 Admissions	and	Continued	Occupancy	Policy	

 

Revised	12/17/2015		 Page	120	

 

If the flat rent is greater than or equal to the public housing maximum rent, there is no proration 
of flat rent and the family pays the flat rent for the unit.  

If the flat rent is less than the maximum rent, the worksheet will calculate a prorated flat rent. 
The mixed family will pay the prorated flat rent. 

  



 

Revised	12/17/2015		 Page	127	

 

EXHIBIT 6-4: EARNED INCOME DISALLOWANCE  
24 CFR 960.255 Self-sufficiency incentive–Disallowance of increase in annual income. 
(a) Definitions. The following definitions apply for 
purposes of this section. 
Disallowance. Exclusion from annual income. 
Previously unemployed includes a person who has 
earned, in the twelve months previous to 
employment, no more than would be received for 
10 hours of work per week for 50 weeks at the 
established minimum wage. 
Qualified family. A family residing in public 
housing: 
(i) Whose annual income increases as a result of 
employment of a family member who was 
unemployed for one or more years previous to 
employment; 
(ii) Whose annual income increases as a result of 
increased earnings by a family member during 
participation in any economic self-sufficiency or 
other job training program; or 
(iii) Whose annual income increases, as a result of 
new employment or increased earnings of a family 
member, during or within six months after 
receiving assistance, benefits or services under any 
state program for temporary assistance for needy 
families funded under Part A of Title IV of the 
Social Security Act, as determined by the PHA in 
consultation with the local agencies administering 
temporary assistance for needy families (TANF) 
and Welfare-to-Work (WTW) programs. The 
TANF program is not limited to monthly income 
maintenance, but also includes such benefits and 
services as one-time payments, wage subsidies and 
transportation assistance—provided that the total 
amount over a six-month period is at least $500. 
(b) Disallowance of increase in annual income. 

(1) Initial 12-month exclusion. During the 12-
month period beginning on the date on which a 
member of a qualified family is first employed 
or the family first experiences an increase in 
annual income attributable to employment, the 
PHA must exclude from the annual income (as 
defined in §5.609 of this title) of a qualified 
family any increase in the income of the 
family member as a result of employment over 
the baseline income of that family member. ) 
Initial twelve month exclusion. During the 
cumulative twelve month period beginning on the 
date a member of a qualified family is first 
employed or the family first experiences an 
increase in annual income attributable to 
employment, the PHA must exclude from annual 
income (as defined in 5.609 of this title) of a 
qualified family any increase in income of the 
family member as a result of employment over 
prior income of that family member. 

(2) Phase-in of rent increase. Upon the 
expiration of the 12-month period defined in 
paragraph (b)(1) of this section and for the 
subsequent 12-month period, the PHA must 
exclude from the annual income of a qualified 
family at least 50 percent of any increase in 
income of such family member as a result of 
employment over the family member's 
baseline income. 

(3) Maximum 2-year disallowance. The 
disallowance of increased income of an 
individual family member as provided in 
paragraph (b)(1) or (b)(2) of this section is 
limited to a lifetime 24-month period. It 
applies for a maximum of 12 months for 
disallowance under paragraph (b)(1) of this 
section and a maximum of 12 months for 
disallowance under paragraph (b)(2) of this 
section, during the 24-month period starting 
from the initial exclusion under paragraph 
(b)(1) of this section. 

Formatted: Font: (Default) Times New Roman,
12 pt

Formatted: Font: (Default) Times New Roman,
12 pt

Formatted: Indent: First line:  0"



 

Revised	12/17/2015		 Page	128	

 

(4) Effect of changes on currently participating 
families. Families eligible for and participating 
in the disallowance of earned income under 
this section prior to May 9, 2016 will continue 
to be governed by this section in effect as it 
existed immediately prior to that date. 

(2) Second twelve month exclusion and phase-in. 
During the second cumulative twelve month period 
after the date a member of a qualified family is 
first employed or the family first experiences an 
increase in annual income attributable to 
employment, the PHA must exclude from annual 
income of a qualified family fifty percent of any 
increase in income of such family member as a 
result of employment over income of that family 
member prior to the beginning of such 
employment. 
(3) Maximum four year disallowance. The 
disallowance of increased income of an individual 
family member as provided in paragraph (b)(1) or 
(b)(2) of this section is limited to a lifetime 48 
month period. It only applies for a maximum of 
twelve months for disallowance under paragraph 
(b)(1) and a maximum of twelve months for 
disallowance under paragraph (b)(2), during the 
48 month period starting from the initial exclusion 
under paragraph (b)(1) of this section. 
(c) Inapplicability to admission. The disallowance 
of increases in income as a result of employment 
under this section does not apply for purposes of 
admission to the program (including the 
determination of income eligibility and income 
targeting). 

(d) Individual Savings Accounts. As an alternative 
to the disallowance of increases in income as a 
result of employment described in paragraph (b) of 
this section, a PHA may choose to provide for 
individual savings accounts for public housing 
residents who pay an income-based rent, in 
accordance with a written policy, which must 
include the following provisions: 
(1) The PHA must advise the family that the 
savings account option is available; 
(2) At the option of the family, the PHA must 
deposit in the savings account the total amount that 
would have been included in tenant rent payable to 
the PHA as a result of increased income that is 
disallowed in accordance with paragraph (b) of this 
section; 
(3) Amounts deposited in a savings account may 
be withdrawn only for the purpose of: 
(i) Purchasing a home; 
(ii) Paying education costs of family members; 
(iii) Moving out of public or assisted housing; or 
(iv) Paying any other expense authorized by the 
PHA for the purpose of promoting the economic 
self-sufficiency of residents of public housing; 
(4) The PHA must maintain the account in an 
interest bearing investment and must credit the 
family with the net interest income, and the PHA 
may not charge a fee for maintaining the account; 
(5) At least annually the PHA must provide the 
family with a report on the status of the account; 
and 
(6) If the family moves out of public housing, the 
PHA shall pay the tenant any balance in the 
account, minus any amounts owed to the PHA

 



Housing	Authority	of	the	City	of	Austin		 Admissions	and	Continued	Occupancy	Policy	

 

Revised	12/17/2015		 Page	91	

 

Capital indebtedness is defined as the principal portion of the payment on a capital asset 
such as land, buildings and machinery. This means HACA will allow as a business 
expense interest, but not principal, paid on capital indebtedness. 

Negative Business Income 

If the net income from a business is negative, no business income will be included in annual 
income; a negative amount will not be used to offset other family income.  

Withdrawal of Cash or Assets from a Business  

HUD regulations require the PHA to include in annual income the withdrawal of cash or assets 
from the operation of a business or profession unless the withdrawal reimburses a family 
member for cash or assets invested in the business by the family.  

HACA Policy 

Acceptable investments in a business include cash loans and contributions of assets or 
equipment. For example, if a member of a tenant family provided an up-front loan of 
$2,000 to help a business get started, HACA will not count as income any withdrawals 
from the business up to the amount of this loan until the loan has been repaid. 
Investments do not include the value of labor contributed to the business without 
compensation.  

Co-owned Businesses 

HACA Policy 

If a business is co-owned with someone outside the family, the family must document the 
share of the business it owns. If the family’s share of the income is lower than its share of 
ownership, the family must document the reasons for the difference. 

6-I.G. ASSETS [24 CFR 5.609(b)(3), and 24 CFR 5.603(b) and 24 CFR 960.259] 

Overview 

There is no asset limitation for participation in the public housing program. However, HUD 
requires that the PHA include in annual income the “interest, dividends and other net income of 
any kind from real or personal property” [24 CFR 5.609(b)(3)]. This section discusses how the 
income from various types of assets is determined. For most types of assets, the PHA must 
determine the value of the asset in order to compute income from the asset. Therefore, for each 
asset type, this section discusses: 

 How the value of the asset will be determined 

 How income from the asset will be calculated 

Exhibit 6-1 provides the regulatory requirements for calculating income from assets [24 CFR 
5.609(b)(3)], and Exhibit 6-3 provides the regulatory definition of net family assets. This section 
begins with a discussion of general policies related to assets and then provides HUD rules and 
PHA policies related to each type of asset. 

 

 

 



Housing	Authority	of	the	City	of	Austin		 Admissions	and	Continued	Occupancy	Policy	

 

Revised	12/17/2015		 Page	92	

 

General Policies 

On January 22, 2013 HUD issued Notice PIH 2013-03 effective until March 31, 2014. The 
notice acknowledges and addresses the budget and staff constraints that PHAs have had to face 
in recent years. On November 5, 2013, HUD issued Notice PIH 2013-26 to extend for an 
additional year the temporary compliance provisions described in Notice PIH 2013-03. 
Originally set to expire on March 31, 2014, the notice will now remain effective until March 31, 
2015. 

To address these burdens, the notice gives a series of four optional methods to reduce 
administrative burden.  On January 22, 2013 HUD issued Notice PIH 2013-03 which granted 
administrative relief to PHAs by allowing applicant and resident self-certification of assets and 
the income from assets with a net value of less than $5000.  This administrative relief was 
temporary and renewed through 2015.   

On March 8, 2016, HUD published the Streamling Rule in the Federal Register.  This rule made 
permanent changes to the way assets were verified, although with modifications to the process 
outlined in Notice PIH 2013-03. 

OneThe approved method to reduce administrative burden and streamline income recertification 
efforts states the following: 

 Applicants must provide full third party verification (i.e. bank statements) at the time of 
determination of income eligibility. 

 For a resident family with net assets equal to or less than $5,000, a PHA may accept, for 
purposes of recertification of income, a family's declaration that it has net assets equal to 
or less than $5,000, without taking additional steps to verify the accuracy of the 
declaration. The declaration must state the amount of income the family expects to 
receive from such assets; this amount must be included in the family's income. 

 However, the PHA must obtain full third-party verification of assets every three years., 
allows HACA to accept a family’s written self-declaration of the amount of assets equal 
to or less than $5,000, and the amount of income expected to be received from those 
assets.  This Asset verification method is approved through March 31, 2014 and any 
approved HUD extensions of this provision.  If HUD doesn’t approve an extension of this 
Asset verification method beyond March 31, 2014, HACA will verify all Assets 
following the verification hierarchy requirements. 

The following HACA forms, which are signed by all adult family members, will serve as 
documentation of the family’s self-declaration of asset income: HACA housing application, 
HACA’s Continued Occupancy Form and the Public Housing Update Form. If the family has net 
family assets equal to or less than $5,000, HACA will not request supporting documentation (e.g. 
bank statements) from the family to confirm the assets or the amount of income expected to be 
received from those assets. If the family has net assets in excess of $5,000, HACA will request 
supporting documentation (e.g. bank statements) from the family to confirm the assets. 

Any assets reported by the family will be reported on the HUD Form 50058. 

 

Income from Assets 

The PHA generally will use current circumstances to determine both the value of an asset and the 
anticipated income from the asset. As is true for all sources of income, HUD authorizes the PHA 

Formatted: List Paragraph, Bulleted + Level: 1
+ Aligned at:  0.25" + Indent at:  0.5"

Formatted: Font: (Default) Times New Roman,
12 pt

Formatted: Font: (Default) Times New Roman,
12 pt

Formatted: Font: (Default) Times New Roman,
12 pt

Formatted: Pattern: Clear



Housing	Authority	of	the	City	of	Austin		 Admissions	and	Continued	Occupancy	Policy	

 

Revised	12/17/2015		 Page	117	

 

The tenant rent calculations must reflect any changes in the PHA’s utility allowance schedule [24 
CFR 960.253(c)(3)].  

 

HACA Policy 

Unless HACA is required to revise utility allowances retroactively, revised utility 
allowances will be applied to a family’s rent calculations at the first interim or annual 
reexamination after the allowance is adopted. 

6-III.D. PRORATED RENT FOR MIXED FAMILIES [24 CFR 5.520] 

HUD regulations prohibit assistance to ineligible family members. A mixed family is one that 
includes at least one U.S. citizen or eligible immigrant and any number of ineligible family 
members. The PHA must prorate the assistance provided to a mixed family. The PHA will first 
determine TTP as if all family members were eligible and then prorate the rent based upon the 
number of family members that actually are eligible. To do this, the PHA must: 

(1) Subtract the TTP from a maximum the PHA-established flat rent applicable to the unit. The 
result is the maximum subsidy for which the family could qualify if all members were 
eligible (family maximum subsidy). 

(2) Divide the family maximum subsidy by the number of persons in the family to determine the 
maximum subsidy per each family member who is eligible (member maximum subsidy). 

(3) Multiply the member maximum subsidy by the number of eligible family members. 

(4) Subtract the subsidy calculated in the last step from the maximum PHA-established flat rent 
applicable to the unit.  This is the prorated TTP. 

(5) Subtract the utility allowance for the unit from the prorated TTP.  This is the prorated rent for 
the mixed family. 

HACA Policy 

Revised public housing maximum flat rents will be applied to a family’s rent calculation 
at the first interim or annual reexamination after the revision is adopted. In instances 
where a mixed family’s TTP is higher than the current maximumflat rent amount for the 
family’s bedroom size, HACA will apply the higher TTP for purposes of determining 
family rent. 

For policies related to the establishment of the public housing maximumflat rent see Chapter 16. 

6-III.E. FLAT RENTS AND FAMILY CHOICE IN RENTS [24 CFR 960.253] 

Flat Rents [24 CFR 960.253(b)] 

The flat rent is designed to encourage self-sufficiency and to avoid creating disincentives for 
continued residency by families who are attempting to become economically self-sufficient. 

Changes in family income, expenses or composition will not affect the flat rent amount because 
it is outside the income-based formula. 

Policies related to the reexamination of families paying flat rent are contained in Chapter 9, and 
policies related to the establishment and review of flat rents are contained in Chapter 16. 



 

Revised	12/17/2015		 Page	267	

 

conditioning installed.  A surcharge schedule for air conditioning has been established at 
the following properties: 

 Lakeside Apartments 
 Salina Apartments 
 North Loop Apartments 

176-I.D. NOTICE REQUIREMENTS [965.502] 

The PHA must give notice to all residents of proposed allowances and scheduled surcharges, and 
revisions thereof. The notice must be given in the manner provided in the lease and must: 

 Be provided at least 60 days before the proposed effective date of the allowances, 
scheduled surcharges or revisions. 

 Describe the basis for determination of the allowances, scheduled surcharges or 
revisions, including a statement of the specific items of equipment and function 
whose utility consumption requirements were included in determining the amounts of 
the allowances and schedule of surcharges. 

 Notify residents of the place where the PHA’s documentation on which allowances 
and surcharges are based is available for inspection. 

 Provide all residents an opportunity to submit written comments during a period 
expiring not less than 30 days before the proposed effective date of the allowances, 
scheduled surcharges or revisions. 

176-I.E. REASONABLE ACCOMMODATION [24 CFR 965.508] 

On request from a family that includes a disabled or elderly person, the PHA must approve a 
utility allowance that is higher than the applicable amount for the dwelling unit if a higher utility 
allowance is needed as a reasonable accommodation to make the program accessible to and 
usable by the family [PH Occ GB, p. 172]. 

Likewise, residents with disabilities may not be charged for the use of certain resident-supplied 
appliances if there is a verified need for special equipment because of the disability [PH Occ GB, 
p. 172]. 

See Chapter 2 for policies regarding the request and approval of reasonable accommodations. 

PART II: ESTABLISHING FLAT RENTS AND PUBLIC HOUSING MAXIMUM 
RENTS 

176-II.A. OVERVIEW 

Flat rents are designed to encourage self-sufficiency and to avoid creating disincentives for 
continued residency by families who are attempting to become economically self-sufficient.  

Public housing maximumflat rents are needed also used to prorate assistance for a mixed family. 
A mixed family is one whose members include those with citizenship or eligible immigration 
status, and those without citizenship or eligible immigrations status [24 CFR 5.504]. 

This part discusses how the PHA establishes and updates flat rents and public housing maximum 
rents. Policies related to the use of flat rents, family choice of rent, flat rent hardships and public 
housing maximumuse of flat rents for prorating assistance for mixed families are discussed in 
Chapter 6. 



 

Revised	12/17/2015		 Page	268	

 

176-II.B. FLAT RENTS [24 CFR 960.253(b), United States Housing Act of 1937 (42 U.S. 
Code § 1437a(a)(2)(B)(i),Notice PIH 2014-12 and Notice PIH 2015-13] 

Establishing Flat Rents 

Flat rents for public housing units are based on the market rent charged for comparable units in 
the private unassisted rental market. The flat rent should be equal to the estimated rent for which 
the PHA could promptly lease the public housing unit after preparation for occupancy.  As 
required by Section 210 of the 2014 Appropriations Act and further amended by the 2015 
Appropriations Act, PHAs must ensure that the flat rent is no less than the lower of 80 percent 
of: 

1.  the applicable Fair Market Rents established under Section 8(c) of the Unites States 
Housing Act of 1937; or 

2. at the discretion of the Secretary, such other applicable fair market rental established 
by the Secretary that the Secretary determines more accurately reflects local market 
conditions and is based on an applicable market area that is geographically smaller 
than the applicable market area used for purposes of the applicable fair market rental 
under Section 8(c) of the United States Housing Act of 1937. 

Notice PIH 2015-13 further identifies that the Small Area Fair Market Rentals (SAFMR) 
established by HUD satisfies the criteria identified as the second option.  Whether the PHA 
chooses the FMR or the SAFMR, the flat rent is subject to utility adjustments.  PHAs are now 
required to apply a utility allowance to flat rents. Flat rents at 80 percent of the FMR or SAFMR 
must be reduced by the amount of the unit’s utility allowance, if any. Should the 80 percent 
threshold increase a family’s existing rental payment by more than 35 percent, the new flat rent 
must be phased in to ensure existing rental payments do not increase by more than 35 percent 
annually.  

Review of Flat Rents 

The PHA must ensure that flat rents continue to mirror market rent values as well as comply with 
the provisions laid out in the 2014 Appropriations Act and PIH Notice 2014-12. No later than 90 
days after HUD publishes new annual FMRs, PHAs must revise flat rents as necessary based on 
the rent reasonableness analysis and changes to the FMR. The PHA must offer changes to the 
flat rent to all new admissions and to existing families at the next annual rent option.  

If the FMR falls from year to year, the PHA may, but is not required to, lower the flat rent to 80 
percent of the current FMR. 

 

HACA Policy 

HACA will review flat rents on an annual basis, and adjust them as necessary to ensure 
that flat rents continue to mirror market rent values, are no less than 80% of the current 
applicable Fair Market Rents(FMR) or Small Area Fair Market Rents (SAFMR)and will 
not cause a family’s existing rental payment to increase more than 35%. If the FMR or 
SAFMR is lower than the previous year, HACA may reduce flat rents to at least 80 
percent of the current FMR or SAFMR. 

PHAs that determine that reasonable rents would be less than 60 percent of the applicable FMR 
may choose to request an exception flat rent.  In order to demonstrate the need for an exception 
flat rent, PHAs are required to submit a market analysis methodolotgy that demonstrates the 
value for the unit.  While HUD does not prescribe a particular formula for determining the 



 

Revised	12/17/2015		 Page	269	

 

market analysis, PHAs must compare the public housing unit in the area using the following 
factors: 

 Location, quality, size, unit type, age of the unit, and 
 Amenities, housing services, maintenance, and utilities the PHA will provide 

under the lease. 

HACA Policy 

If HACA determines that reasonable rents would be less than 60 percent of the applicable 
FMR, the HACA will request an exception flat rent and conduct the market survey. 

 

Posting of Flat Rents 

HACA Policy 

HACA will publicly post the schedule of flat rents in a conspicuous manner in the 
applicable HACA community’s bulletin board as well as at HACA’s Central Office. 

Documentation of Flat Rents [24 CFR 960 Interim Rule] 

The PHA is not required to maintain documentation regarding the PHA’s methods of 
determining a unit’s flat rent, as the process setting flat rents is now less reliant upon 
discretionary actions by the PHA, except in the case of exception requests, which require 
documentation provided by PHAs. 

16-II.C. PUBLIC HOUSING MAXIMUM RENTS 

Establishing Public Housing Maximum Rents 

PHAs are prohibited from making financial assistance available to persons who are not citizens 
or nationals of the United States, and to those who do not have eligible immigration status [24 
CFR 5.500]. Therefore, in order to assist mixed families, PHAs must prorate assistance. Public 
housing maximum rents are needed in order to calculate the tenant rent for a mixed family. 

The public housing maximum rent is based on value of the 95th percentile of the total tenant 
payment (TTP) for each tenant within the PHA. PHAs may calculate a maximum rent on either a 
PHA- or project wide basis. A separate maximum rent can be provided for each separate project 
or projects may be combined into logical groups, if appropriate. HUD recommends that a single 
project basis be avoided for a project unless at least 50 dwelling units are involved. 

PHAs may use the “direct comparison” or the “unit distribution” method for establishing the 
public housing maximum rents for each unit size. Appendix H, of Guidebook 7465.G, 
Restrictions on Assistance to Noncitizens provides detailed guidance on how to establish public 
housing maximum rents using the methodologies identified above. 

Review of Public Housing Maximum Rents 

HACA Policy 

HACA will recalculate the public housing maximum rents on an annual basis. 

Posting of Public Housing Maximum Rents 

HACA Policy 



 

Revised	12/17/2015		 Page	270	

 

HACA will publicly post the schedule of public housing maximum rents in a conspicuous 
manner in the applicable HACA community’s bulletin board as well as at HACA’s 
Central Office. 

Documentation of Public Housing Maximum Rents  

HACA Policy 

HACA will maintain records that document how HACA determined the 95th percentile of 
TTP whether the maximum rent was determined HACA-wide, project-wide or with 
groupings of projects and the methodology used to determine maximum rents for each 
unit size. 

PART III: FAMILY DEBTS TO THE PHA 

176-III.A. OVERVIEW 

This part describes the PHA’s policies for recovery of monies owed to the PHA  by families. 

HACA Policy 

When an action or inaction of a resident family results in the underpayment of rent or 
other amounts, HACA holds the family liable to repay any difference between 
underpayments to HACA and the actual amounts owed to HACA.  

HACA will enter into repayment agreements in accordance with the policies contained in 
this part as a means to recover actual amounts owed as determined by HACA. When a 
family refuses to repay monies owed to HACA, HACA will utilize other available 
collection alternatives including, but not limited to, the following: 

 Collection agencies 
 Small claims court 
 Civil law suit 
 State income tax set-off program 

176-III.B. REPAYMENT POLICY 

Family Debts to the PHA 

HACA Policy 

Any amount owed to HACA by a public housing family must be repaid. If the family is 
unable to repay the debt within 30 days of receipt of written notification of the full 
amount, HACA will offer to enter into a repayment agreement in accordance with the 
policies below.  

If the family refuses to repay the debt, does not enter into a repayment agreement or 
breaches a repayment agreement, HACA will terminate the family’s tenancy in 
accordance with the policies in Chapter 13. HACA will also pursue other modes of 
collection. 

General Repayment Agreement Guidelines 

Payment Thresholds 

Notice PIH 2010-19 acknowledges that PHAs have the discretion to establish “thresholds and 
policies” for repayment agreements with families [24 CFR 982.552(c)(1)(vii). 



 

Revised	12/17/2015		 Page	145	

 

person will be required to submit the information requested and to certify to its accuracy 
at all future reexaminations. 

At any reexamination HACA may request documents that support submitted financial 
statements such as manifests, appointment books, cashbooks or bank statements. 

If a family member has been self-employed less than 3 months, HACA will accept the 
family member's certified estimate of income. If the family member has been self-
employed for 3 to 12 months, HACA will require the family to provide documentation of 
income and expenses for this period and use that information to project income. 

7-III.C. PERIODIC PAYMENTS AND PAYMENTS IN LIEU OF EARNINGS 

Streamlined Income Determination of Fixed Income Sources [24 CFR 960.257] 

On March 8, 2016 HUD published the Streamlining Rule in the Federal Register.  According to 
this rule, for any family member with a fixed source of income, a PHA may elect to determine 
that family member's income by means of a streamlined income determination. A streamlined 
income determination must be conducted by applying, for each fixed-income source, the verified 
cost of living adjustment (COLA) or current rate of interest to the previously verified or adjusted 
income amount. 

 HACA Policy 

 HACA will apply this streamlined income determination for all fixed income sources in 
 the following way:  

 HACA will only use the streamlined income determination as part of a 
reexamination.  HACA will require third-party verification of all income for 
applicants during the admissions process. 

 A “family member with a fixed source of income” is defined as a family member 
whose income includes periodic payments at reasonably predictable levels from one 
or more of the following sources: 

o Social Security, Supplemental Security Income, Supplemental Disability 
Insurance; 

o Federal, state, local, or private pension plans; 
o Annuities or other retirement benefit programs, insurance policies, disability 

or death benefits, or other similar types of periodic receipts; or 
o Any other source of income subject to adjustment by a verifiable COLA or 

current rate of interest. 
 HACA will use a COLA or current rate of interest specific to the fixed source of 

income in order to adjust the income amount. HACA will verify the appropriate 
COLA or current rate of interest from a public source or through tenant-provided, 
third party-generated documentation. If no such verification is available, then 
HACA will obtain third-party verification of income amounts in order to calculate 
the change in income for the source. 

 For any family member whose income is determined pursuant to a streamlined 
income determination, HACA will obtain third-party verification of all income 
amounts every 3 years. 

 Social Security/SSI Benefits 

HACA Policy 

Formatted: Font: (Default) Times New Roman,
12 pt

Formatted: Font: (Default) Times New Roman

Formatted: Normal (Web), Space Before:  0
pt, After:  0 pt, Bulleted + Level: 1 + Aligned
at:  0.58" + Indent at:  0.83"

Formatted: Font: (Default) Times New Roman,
12 pt, Font color: Black

Formatted: Font: (Default) Times New Roman,
12 pt, Font color: Black

Formatted: Font: (Default) Times New Roman,
Pattern: Clear (White)

Formatted: Font: (Default) Times New Roman,
12 pt

Formatted: Normal (Web), Space Before:  0
pt, After:  0 pt, Bulleted + Level: 2 + Aligned
at:  1.08" + Indent at:  1.33"

Formatted: Font: (Default) Times New Roman,
Pattern: Clear (White)

Formatted: Font: (Default) Times New Roman,
12 pt

Formatted: Font: (Default) Times New Roman,
Pattern: Clear (White)

Formatted: Font: (Default) Times New Roman,
12 pt

Formatted: Font: (Default) Times New Roman,
Pattern: Clear (White)

Formatted: Font: (Default) Times New Roman,
12 pt

Formatted: Font: (Default) Times New Roman,
Pattern: Clear (White)

Formatted: Normal (Web), Space Before:  0
pt, After:  0 pt, Bulleted + Level: 1 + Aligned
at:  0.58" + Indent at:  0.83"

Formatted: Font: (Default) Times New Roman,
12 pt

Formatted: Font: (Default) Times New Roman,
12 pt

Formatted: Font: (Default) Times New Roman,
12 pt

Formatted: Font: (Default) Times New Roman,
Pattern: Clear (White)

Formatted: Font: (Default) Times New Roman,
12 pt

Formatted: Font: (Default) Times New Roman,
12 pt

Formatted: Font: (Default) Times New Roman,
12 pt, Pattern: Clear (White)



 

Revised	12/17/2015		 Page	146	

 

To verify the SS/SSI benefits of applicants, HACA will request a current (dated within 
the last 60 days) SSA benefit verification letter from each family member who receives 
social security benefits. If a family member is unable to provide the document, HACA 
help the applicant request a benefit verification letter from SSA’s Web site at 
www.socialsecurity.gov or ask the family to request one by calling SSA at 1-800-772-
1213. Once the family has received the original benefit verification letter, it will be 
required to provide the letter to HACA. 

To verify the SS/SSI benefits of residents, HACA will follow the streamlined income 
determination outlined above.  When third-party verification is required, HACA will 
obtain information about social security/SSI benefits through HUD’s EIV system and 
confirm with the resident(s) that the current listed benefit amount is correct. If the 
resident disputes the EIV-reported benefit amount, or if benefit information is not 
available in HUD systems, HACA will request a current SSA benefit verification letter 
from each family member that receives social security benefits.  If a family member is 
unable to provide the document, HACA will help the resident request a benefit 
verification letter from SSA’s Web site at www.socialsecurity.gov or ask the family to 
request one by calling SSA at 1-800-772-1213. Once the family has received the benefit 
verification letter, it will be required to provide the letter to HACA. 

7-III.D. ALIMONY OR CHILD SUPPORT 

HACA Policy 

The way HACA will seek verification for alimony and child support differs depending on 
whether the family declares that it receives regular payments. 

If the family declares that it receives regular payments, verification will be sought in the 
following order. 

 As a form of upfront income verification, HACA will access child support 
information via the Texas Office of Attorney General (OAG) child support online 
portal. Information accessed is limited to the custodial parent’s case number(s), 
names of children related to each listed case, and a record of the last 12 payments 
received for each case, if any. Written consent by the family is secured via the 
OAG Form 1825, which is kept in the family’s file.  

 Copy of the receipts and/or payment stubs for the most recent 3 month period 
prior to the recertification effective date 

 Copy of divorce decree to include signed child support and/or alimony order 

 If the custodial parent does not have a Social Security number, or if HACA is 
unable to access the custodial parent’s case information for any other reason, 
HACA will request a third party written verification from the state or local child 
support enforcement agency  

 Third-party verification form from the person paying the support.  

 Family's self-certification of amount received and of the likelihood of support 
payments being received in the future, or that support payments are not being 
received.  

If the family declares that it receives irregular or no payments, in addition to the 
verification process listed above, HACA may require the family to provide evidence that 
it has taken all reasonable efforts to collect amounts due. This may include: 



 

Revised	12/17/2015		 Page	201	

 

exemption status.  This will ensure that the head of household is aware of the CSSR 
status and requirements of all household members.  

11-I.C. DETERMINATION OF EXEMPTION STATUS AND COMPLIANCE [24 CFR 
960.605(c)(3)] 
Annual Determination 

Determination of Exemption Status 

An exempt individual is excused from the CSSR [24 CFR 960.603(a)]. 

 

HACA Policy 

At least 60 days prior to lease renewal, HACA will review and verify the exemption 
status of all adult family members. This verification will only be done on an annual basis 
unless the family reports a change or HACA has reason to believe that an individual’s 
exemption status has changed. For individuals who are exempt because they are 62 years 
of age and older, verification of exemption status will be done only at the initial 
examination. 

Upon completion of the verification process, HACA will notify the family of its 
determination in accordance with the policy in Section 11-I.B., Notification 
Requirements. 

Determination of Compliance  

The PHA must review resident family compliance with the CSSR annually, at least 30 days prior 
to the end of the 12-month lease term [24 CFR 960.605(c)(3)]. As part of this review, the PHA 
must verify that any family member that is not exempt from the CSSR has met his or her service 
obligation.  

HACA Policy 

Approximately 90 days prior to the end of the lease term, HACA will provide written 
notice requiring the family to submit documentation that all subject family members have 
complied with the service requirement. The family will be required to submit HACA 
required documentation form(s) at their scheduled annual reexamination interview. 

If the family fails to submit the required documentation at the interview, or by the HACA 
approved extension, the subject family members will be considered noncompliant with 
community service requirements, and notices of noncompliance will be issued pursuant 
to the policies in Section 11-I.E., Noncompliance.  

Change in Status between Annual Determinations  

HACA Policy 

Exempt to Nonexempt Status 

If an exempt individual becomes nonexempt during the 12-month lease term, it is 
the family’s responsibility to report this change to HACA within 10 calendar 
days.  

Within 10 business days of a family reporting such a change, or HACA 
determining such a change is necessary, HACA will provide a 30-day written 



 

Revised	12/17/2015		 Page	202	

 

notice of the effective date of the requirement, and a copy of the CSSR 
Information Packet which includes the CSSR policy, a list of agencies in the 
community that provide volunteer and/or training opportunities, as well as a 
documentation form on which the family member may record the activities 
performed and number of hours contributed.  

The effective date of non-exemption will be the first of the month following 30-
day notice. 

Nonexempt to Exempt Status 

If a nonexempt person becomes exempt during the 12-month lease term, it is the 
family’s responsibility to report this change to HACA within 10 calendar days. 
Any claim of exemption will be verified by HACA in accordance with the policy 
at 11-I.D., Documentation and Verification of Exemption Status. 

Within 10 business days of a family reporting such a change, or HACA 
determining such a change is necessary, HACA will provide the family written 
notice that the family member is no longer subject to the CSSR, if HACA is able 
to verify the exemption.  

The exemption will be effective immediately. 

11-I.D. DOCUMENTATION AND VERIFICATION [24 CFR 960.605(c)(4) and 24 CFR 
960.607] 
The PHA must retain reasonable documentation of CSSR performance or exemption in 
participant files. 

Documentation and Verification of Exemption Status 

HACA Policy 

All family members who claim they are exempt from the CSSR will be required to sign 
the CSSR exemption certification form. HACA will provide a completed copy to the 
family upon request and will keep a copy in the tenant file. 

HACA will verify that an individual is exempt from the CSSR by following the 
verification hierarchy and documentation requirements in Chapter 7. 

HACA makes the final determination whether or not to grant an exemption from the 
CSSR. If a resident does not agree with HACA determination, s/he can dispute the 
decision through the HACA’s grievance procedures (see Chapter 14). 

Documentation and Verification of Compliance 

At each regularly scheduled reexamination, each nonexempt family member presents a signed 
standardized certification form developed by the PHAdocumentation of CSSR activities 
performed over the last 12 months [Notice PIH 2009-48]. 

PHAs must obtain third-party verification of CSSR completion administered through outside 
organizations.  Each PHA develops a standardized form with places for signature confirmation 
by supervisors, instructors, or counselors certifying the number of hours contributed.  Additional 
supporting documentation may be requested of the resident to verify CSSR participation or 
exemption.Acceptable documentation demonstrating compliance include the following: 



 

Revised	12/17/2015		 Page	203	

 

 A signed certification to the PHA by such other organization where the family 
performed the qualifying activities stating who performed the activities, when they were 
performed and for how many hours. 

 A signed self-certification to the PHA by the family member stating that he or she has 
performed the qualifying activities.  The signed self-certification must include the 
following: 

o A statement that the family member contributed at least 8 hours per month of 
community service not including political activities within the community in 
which the adult resides; or participated in an economic self-sufficiency program 
(as that term is defined in 24 CFR 5.603(b)) for at least 8 hours per month; 

o The name, address, and a contact person at the community service provider; or 
the name, address, and contact person for the economic self-sufficiency program; 

o The date(s) during which the tenant completed the community service activity, 
or participated in the economic self-sufficiency program; 

o A description of the activity completed; and\ 
o A certification that the tenant's statement is true. 

  Copies of the certification forms and supporting documents must be retained in the PHA files.  
If the PHA accepts self-certifications, the PHA must validate a sample of these self-certifications 
using third-party verification. 

HACA Policy 

HACA will accept both third-party verification and self-certification of completion of the 
CSSR.  If anyone in the family is subject to the CSSR, HACA will provide the family 
with CSSR documentation forms at move-in, at lease renewal, when a family member 
becomes subject to the requirement during the lease term, or upon request by the family.   

Each individual who is subject to the requirement will be required to record their CSSR 
activities and the number of hours contributed on the required form. The certification 
form will also include places for signatures and phone numbers of supervisors, instructors 
and counselors certifying to the number of hours contributed.  Or the family member can 
provide the self-certification as outlined above. 

Families will be required to submit the documentation to HACA, upon request by 
HACA. 

If HACA has reasonable cause to believe that the certification provided by the family is 
false or fraudulent, HACA has the right to request additional documentation be provided 
by the resident to verify CSSR participation. 

An individual subject to the CSSR must complete the hours him/ herself. No other 
resident may perform the CSSR hours on another resident’s behalf.  CSSR hours may not 
be “donated” by another resident to an individual subject to completion of community 
service. 

HACA will validate a sample of self-certifications.  On an annual basis (beginning at the 
anniversary date of the implementation of self-certification), HACA will determine the 
number of family members that self-certified their CSSR for the previous 12 months.  
Then, using the chart below, HACA will determine the appropriate sample size and 
validate the self-certifications. [PIH Notice 2016-06, Attachment C] 

 

Formatted: List Paragraph, Bulleted + Level: 1
+ Aligned at:  0.32" + Indent at:  0.57"

Formatted: List Paragraph, Space Before:  6
pt, Bulleted + Level: 1 + Aligned at:  0.32" +
Indent at:  0.57", Pattern: Clear

Formatted: Font: (Default) Times New Roman,
12 pt

Formatted: Font color: Auto

Formatted: Font: (Default) Times New Roman,
12 pt

Formatted: Font color: Auto

Formatted: Font: (Default) Times New Roman,
12 pt

Formatted: Font color: Auto

Formatted: Font: (Default) Times New Roman,
12 pt

Formatted: Font color: Auto

Formatted: Font: (Default) Times New Roman,
12 pt

Formatted: Font: (Default) Times New Roman,
12 pt, Font color: Auto

Formatted: Font color: Auto

Formatted: Font color: Auto



 

Revised	12/17/2015		 Page	204	

 

Universe Size 
Sample Size 
AT LEAST 

< or = 10  ALL 
15  13 
20  16 
25  19 
30  21 
35  24 
40  26 
50  29 
60  33 
100  41 
150  47 
200  51 
250  54 
300  56 
350  57 
400  58 
450  59 
500  60 
600  61 
700  62 
800  63 
900  63 
1000  64 
1500  65 
2500  66 

 

11-I.E. NONCOMPLIANCE 
Initial Noncompliance 

The lease specifies that it is renewed automatically for all purposes, unless the family fails to 
comply with the CSSR. Violation of the requirement is grounds for nonrenewal of the lease at 
the end of the 12-month lease term, but not for termination of tenancy during the course of the 
12-month lease term [24 CFR 960.603(b)]. 

If the tenant or another family member has violated the CSSR, the PHA may not renew the lease 
upon expiration of the 12-month term of the lease, unless the tenant and any other noncompliant 
family member enter into a written work-out agreement with the PHA. Under this agreement the 
tenant or noncompliant family member must agree to cure the noncompliance by completing the 
additional CSSR hours needed to make up the total number of hours required, over the 12-month 
term of the new lease. In addition, all other members of the family who are subject to the  
requirement must be in compliance  or must no longer be residing in the unit [24 CFR 
960.607(c)], Notice PIH 2009-48]. 

Notice of Initial Noncompliance [24 CFR 960.607(b)] 

Formatted Table



HOUSING AUTHORITY OF THE CITY OF AUSTIN 
BOARD OF COMMISSIONERS 
REGULAR BOARD MEETING 

 

May 19, 2016 
Regular Meeting 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 

AGENDA ITEM NO. 6 
 

Presentation and Discussion of the proposed Tenant 
Selection Plans for PBRA Family properties, PBRA & 
LIHTC Family properties and PBRA & LIHTC Elderly / 
Disabled properties which will go out for public comment 
beginning on May 23, 2016 
 



1  

HOUSING AUTHORITY OF THE CITY OF AUSTIN  
BOARD OF COMMISSIONERS 

 
Presentation & Discussion 

 
MEETING DATE: May 19, 2016 
 
STAFF CONTACT: Pilar Sanchez, Vice President of Housing and Community 

Development 
  

  Presentation and Discussion of Proposed Tenant Selection 
Plans for Properties Moving to PBRA or a Combination of 
PBRA and LIHTC 

 
ACTION: Place out for Public Comment for 30 days beginning May 23, 

2016 through 5:00 pm on June 21, 2016 
 
SUMMARY:  
As part of the Rental Assistance Demonstration (RAD), HUD requires Housing Authorities to adopt a 
Tenant Selection Plan (TSP).  Owners must develop and make public written tenant selection policies 
and procedures that include descriptions of the eligibility requirements and income limits for 
admission. The contents of the plan must be consistent with the purpose of improving housing 
opportunities and be reasonably related to program eligibility and an applicant’s ability to perform the 
obligations of the lease (HUD Guidebook 4350.3, Chapter 4, Paragraph 4-3). 
 
The RAD policy team reviewed the nine properties that are in the first phase of HACA’s RAD 
conversion.  While each property will have its own Tenant Selection Plan, the basic content will 
remain the same.  The main differences will revolve around whether the property is a family site or a 
mixed elderly / disabled site, and whether the property is only participating in the Project Based Rental 
Assistance (PBRA) program or layered with PBRA and the Low Income Housing Tax Credit (LIHTC) 
program.   
 
As a result of these variables, the policy team identified three different TSPs that would be needed in 
the first phase: 

• TSP for Family Sites that are only PBRA properties 
• TSP for Family Sites that are PBRA and LIHTC properties 
• TSP for Mixed Sites (Elderly / Disabled) that are PBRA and LIHTC properties 

 
Even within these three different TSPs, the majority of the content is the same.  All three plans are 
being presented today.  They have been attached to this summary along with a sheet that outlines the 
differences between the three. 
 

Key Points: 
The change from Public Housing to PBRA will require a change in the waiting list preferences that we 
offer.  HACA will continue to offer a disability preference and involuntarily displaced preference at all 
properties.  The elderly preference will only be offered at Mixed Elderly / Disabled sites.  However, 
the elderly preference will be weighted to grant the highest preference to the elderly at these sites.  
HACA anticipates that it will continue to serve the same number of elderly and disabled households. 
 
The TSPs state that HACA will make use of site-based waiting lists for each property. This issue is 
also part of the proposed ACOP changes coming before the Board today as well.   
 



2  

HACA is maintaining its current screening criteria for income limits, criminal history, rental history, 
ability to establish utility service and overall suitability.   
 
The TSPs will reflect a change in transfer policy.  Those changes include the following: 

• In the PBRA program, a family cannot transfer from one property to another property.  If they 
wish to live at another property, they can apply and get on that property’s waiting list.  

• Transfers take a higher priority over new move ins from the waiting list.   
• The need for a quick move to another property due to VAWA concerns is accomplished by 

granting a preference on the waiting list to families living at HACA properties with a verified 
VAWA situation. 

• The order of transfer priority was adjusted slightly, moving over-housed families ahead of 
under-housed families. 

 
The TSPs will reflect some changes in the occupancy standards, including the following: 

• Families can be on the waiting list at a property for more than one bedroom size, if they 
qualify. 

• The occupancy standards must take into account “anticipated children” (unborn child, child 
currently in foster care, children in process to be adopted or brought into the home via foster 
care, etc) 

• The minimum number allowed in each bedroom size was adjusted for the 3 and 5 bedroom 
standards to better reflect the basic guide of 2 people per bedroom. 

• HACA kept the exception allowing children of opposite genders over age 7 to have separate 
rooms and the exception allowing individuals from different generations to have separate 
bedrooms. 

 
The TSPs with LIHTC properties have a lower income limit (60% of the median family income) as 
well as other minor differences.  A full summary of the differences between PBRA and PBRA / 
LIHTC properties is included as an attachment to this summary. 
 
Public Comment: 
The PBRA Family Site Tenant Selection Plan, the PBRA / LIHTC Family Site Tenant 
Selection Plan and the PBRA / LIHTC Mixed Site Tenant Selection Plan will be posted 
for public comment on May 23rd through June 21st and will be brought back to the Board for 
approval at the J u l y  2 2 ,  2 0 1 6  Board meeting.   
 
ATTACHMENTS: 

• Comparison of the Similarities and Differences between the Three TSPs   
• PBRA Family Site Tenant Selection Plan 
• PBRA / LIHTC Family Site Tenant Selection Plan 
• PBRA / LIHTC Elderly/Disabled Site Tenant Selection Plan 

 
RECOMMENDATION:  
It is HACA’s recommendation to request public comment on the proposed Tenant Selection Plans. 
 
FINANCE REVIEW: 
X Proposed action does not require Finance Department review. 
 

 Fiscal Impact was approved by   _____________________________  
 

      
  Thomas Cherian, Vice-President of Finance 



Tenant Selection Plans  - Comparison
Family PBRA, Family PBRA & LIHTC, Elderly / Disabled PBRA & LIHTC

 

Section Summary Page(s) Summary Page(s) Summary Page(s)

Owner & Property 
Information

Address and contact information for 
property and owner (HACA).  No 
changes from current.

5 Same 5 Same 5

The Purpose of the 
Resident Selection 
Plan

TSP is intended as a way to ensure 
residents are selected according to 
HUD policy and agency plans.  This is 
similar to the Public Housing ACOP, 
Chapters 3-5.

5 Same 5 Same 5

Rules of Conduct

Sets the expectation that applicants, 
residents and staff will conduct 
themselves in a professional manner.  
Reminds everyone that abusive and 
disruptive behavior works against a 
healthy relationship.  Assistance 
animals and children are welcome, but 
must be supervised.

6 Same 6 Same 6

Smoke Free Housing

Provides information about HACA's 
smoke free policy.  The information 
about enforcement is found in the 
House Rules.

6 Same 6 Same 6

Security Deposit 
Requirements

Security deposit will be based on the 
resident's total tenant payment (TTP) 
or 30% of their adjusted monthly 
income.  This is a change fom current 
policy of $75 deposit for Elderly and 
Disabled families and $150 deposit for 
all others.

6 Same 6 Same 6

Pets

Identifies basic pet policy of 2 pets per 
household.  Directs families to the Pet 
Rules for all other details.  All remains 
the same as current policy except 
increasing the pet deposit from 
$50/pet to $100/pet.

7 Same 7 Same 7

Family PBRA & LIHTC                                               
Tenant Selection Plan

Elderly / Disabled PBRA & LIHTC                                       
Tenant Selection Plan

Family PBRA                                                              
Tenant Selection Plan



 

Section Summary Page(s) Summary Page(s) Summary Page(s)

Family PBRA & LIHTC                                               
Tenant Selection Plan

Elderly / Disabled PBRA & LIHTC                                       
Tenant Selection Plan

Family PBRA                                                              
Tenant Selection Plan

Assistance 
Definition

Property is a PBRA property, does not 
accept HCV tenant vouchers and is not 
an assisted living facility.  All residents 
must be able to fulfill the lease 
requirements.  Residents must be able 
to live independently or with the 
assistance of an aide paid at the 
resident's expense.

7-8

Property is a PBRA property, does not 
accept HCV tenant vouchers and is not 
an assisted living facility.  All residents 
must be able to fulfill the lease 
requirements.  Residents must be able 
to live independently or with the 
assistance of an aide paid at the 
resident's expense.  If there are any 
LIHTC-only units, HCV vouchers will be 
accepted.

7-8

Property is a PBRA property, does not 
accept HCV tenant vouchers and is not 
an assisted living facility.  All residents 
must be able to fulfill the lease 
requirements.  Residents must be able 
to live independently or with the 
assistance of an aide paid at the 
resident's expense.  If there are any 
LIHTC-only units, HCV vouchers will be 
accepted.

7-8

Fair Housing Policies

HACA will follow the Fair Housing Act, 
Title VI of the Civil Rights Act, Section 
504 of the Rehabilitation Act, VAWA, 
LEP and Equal Access Rule.  HACA 
currently follows all these under Public 
Housing.

8-9 Same 8-9 Same 8-9

Property Eligibility 
Requirements

Family site open to all families; PBRA 
guidelines; uses the PBRA income limit 
of 80% of median family income; and 
uses the occupancy standards as 
outlined.  Change from current Public 
Housing policy in occupancy standards.

9-11

Family site open to all families; PBRA 
and LIHTC guidelines; uses the LIHTC 
income limit of 60% of median family 
income; uses occupancy standards as 
outlined.  Change from Public Housing 
policy in income limits and occupancy 
standards.

9-11

Elderly / Disabled site open to families 
that meet the definition of Elderly 
households or disabled households; 
uses the LIHTC income limit of 60% of 
median family income; uses occupancy 
standards as outlined.  Change from 
Public Housing policy in income limits 
and occupancy standards.

10-13

Program Eligibility

Sets eligibility requirements, rules 
about SSN disclosure, citizenship or 
immigrant status requirements, single 
residence requirement, PBRA student 
rule and prohibition of non-citizen 
students.  All the same as Public 
Housing except student rule.

11-15

Sets eligibility requirements, rules 
about SSN disclosure, citizenship or 
immigrant status requirements, single 
residence requirement, PBRA and 
LIHTC student rule and prohibition of 
non-citizen students.  All the same as 
Public Housing except student rules.

11-16

Sets eligibility requirements, rules 
about SSN disclosure, citizenship or 
immigrant status requirements, single 
residence requirement, PBRA and 
LIHTC student rule and prohibition of 
non-citizen students.  All the same as 
Public Housing except student rules.

13-17



 

Section Summary Page(s) Summary Page(s) Summary Page(s)

Family PBRA & LIHTC                                               
Tenant Selection Plan

Elderly / Disabled PBRA & LIHTC                                       
Tenant Selection Plan

Family PBRA                                                              
Tenant Selection Plan

Procedures for 
Taking Pre-
Applications & 
Applications

Outlines how HACA will take pre-
applications (online and in person), 
initial eligibility requirements; process 
for completing application as part of 
eligibility interview and all required 
documents.  Change from current 
Public Housing process by adding 
online application and portal.

15-18 Same 16-18 Same 17-20

Live-in Aides Outlines Live-in Aide requirements and 
eligibility screening.

18 Same 18 Same 20

Waiting Lists

Provides guidelines for establishing 
waiting lists, maintaining the waiting 
list, removing applicants from the list 
and following income targeting rules 
for selecting applicants.  Same as 
current Public Housing policy.

18-20 Same 18-21 Same 20-22

Preferences

Preference will be granted to current 
residents (transfers) over waiting list 
applicants.  On the waiting list, 
preference will be granted to VAWA 
victims from other PBRA properties, 
involuntarily displaced families and 
disabled families.  The preferences are 
weighted in the order listed and will be 
verified.  If denied, the family will have 
opportunity to appeal the denial of 
preference.  Preference status can 
change while on the waiting list and 
there are exceptions to the preference 
rules.  This is different from the 
preferences currently used in Public 
Housing.

21-23 Same 21-23

Preference will be granted to current 
residents (transfers) over waiting list 
applicants.  On the waiting list, 
preference will be granted to Elderly 
and Near-Elderly families, involuntarily 
displaced families and disabled 
families.  The preferences are weighted 
in the order listed and will be verified.  
If denied, the family will have 
opportunity to appeal the denial of 
preference.  Preference status can 
change while on the waiting list and 
there are exceptions to the preference 
rules.  This is different from the 
preferences currently used in Public 
Housing.

23-25



 

Section Summary Page(s) Summary Page(s) Summary Page(s)

Family PBRA & LIHTC                                               
Tenant Selection Plan

Elderly / Disabled PBRA & LIHTC                                       
Tenant Selection Plan

Family PBRA                                                              
Tenant Selection Plan

Privacy Policy
States that HACA will comply with the 
Privacy Act of 1974.  Same as current 
policy.

23 Same 24 Same 25

Verification

Outlines what is verified, method and 
sources of verification, consent 
requirements and consequence for 
refusal to provide consent.  Mostly the 
same as current Public Housing policy 
except that verification period is 120 
days (PH is 60) and requirement for 18 
year old to sign consent within 30 days.

23-26 Same 24-26 Same 26-28

Misrepresentation

Intentional misrepresentation of any 
eligibility requirement is grounds for 
denial of the application.  Same as 
current Public Housing policy.

26 Same 26 Same 28

Applicant Screening 
Criteria

HACA will screen for criminal history, 
credit history, ability to establish utility 
service, rental history, duplicate HUD 
assistance.  This is the same as HACA's 
current policy.

27-31 Same 27-32 Same 29-33

Rejecting Ineligible 
or Unqualified 
Applicants

Gives reasons for rejection and the 
rights to appeal.  Same as current 
HACA policy.

32-33 Same 32-33 Same 34-35

Informal Hearings 
for PBRA Applicants

Copied straight from the current ACOP 
as required by RAD notice.

33-37 Same 34-37 Same 36-39

Offering an 
Apartment

Provides the order in which accessible 
units and non-accessible units will be 
offered.  Significantly different from 
current Public Housing policy.

38-39

Provides the order in which accessible 
units and non-accessible units will be 
offered.  Incorporates LIHTC guidelines 
regarding transfers.  Significantly 
different from current Public Housing 
policy.

38-40

Provides the order in which accessible 
units and non-accessible units will be 
offered.  Incorporates LIHTC guidelines 
regarding transfers.  Significantly 
different from current Public Housing 
policy.

40-42



 

Section Summary Page(s) Summary Page(s) Summary Page(s)

Family PBRA & LIHTC                                               
Tenant Selection Plan

Elderly / Disabled PBRA & LIHTC                                       
Tenant Selection Plan

Family PBRA                                                              
Tenant Selection Plan

Right to Refusal

Applicants will be given only one offer.  
The exceptions are when a non-
accessible unit is offered to a family 
needing an accessible unit, or an 
accessible unit is offered to a family 
not needing an accessible unit.  This 
policy is slightly different than current 
Public Housing policy.

40

Applicants will be given only one offer.  
The exceptions are when a non-
accessible unit is offered to a family 
needing an accessible unit, or an 
accessible unit is offered to a family 
not needing an accessible unit.  This 
policy is slightly different than current 
Public Housing policy.

41

Applicants will be given only one offer.  
The exceptions are when a non-
accessible unit is offered to a family 
needing an accessible unit, or an 
accessible unit is offered to a family 
not needing an accessible unit, or a 
family is offered a unit near an animal 
and they do not wish to live near an 
animal.  Policy is different than current 
policy.

43

Timeframe for 
Taking Possession of 
a Unit by the 
Applicant Family

Timeframes for taking possession of 
the unit.  Different from current Public 
Housing policy.

41 Same 42 Same 43

Unit Transfer 
Policies

Establishes the unit transfer order of 
priority.  This is different from current 
Public Housing Policy.

42-43

Establishes the unit transfer order of 
priority.  Also incorporates LIHTC 
transfer requirements.  This is different 
from current policy.

42-44

Establishes the unit transfer order of 
priority.  Also incorporates LIHTC 
transfer requirements.  This is different 
from current policy.

44-46

Changes in 
Household 
Composition

Family must report changes in 
household composition.  Changes will 
prompt an interim to adjust household 
composition and income / rent.  Same 
as current Public Housing policy.

43-44 Same 44-45 Same 46-47

Apartment 
Inspections

List of types and frequency of 
inspections.  Same as current Public 
Housing policy.

45 Same 45 Same 47

Changes to the 
Resident Selection 
Plan

Changes in the Tenant Selection Plan 
will prompt a purge process.  Different 
from current Public Housing policy.

45 Same 46 Same 48

Appendix A – 
Request for 
Reasonable 
Accommodation or 
Modification

Provides policy for how applicants and 
residents can request an 
accommodation or modification.  Same 
policy as current Public Housing policy.

46 Same 47 Same 49



 

Section Summary Page(s) Summary Page(s) Summary Page(s)

Family PBRA & LIHTC                                               
Tenant Selection Plan

Elderly / Disabled PBRA & LIHTC                                       
Tenant Selection Plan

Family PBRA                                                              
Tenant Selection Plan

Appendix B – 
Citizen/Non-citizen 
Eligibility

Provides explanation of citizenship,  
eligible non-citizen status, 
documentation to support.

47-50 Same 48-51 Same 50-53

Appendix C:  Dual 
Subsidy Notice

Provides a written form for families to 
delcare that they are not receiving 
duplicate assistance.  This is a new 
form, but not a new policy.

51 Same 52 Same 54

Appendix D – 
Verification of 
Household 
Composition

Provides a form for families to declare 
family composition and sets rules for 
guests, live-in aides, etc.  New form, 
but same policy.

52-54 Same 53-55 Same 55-57

Appendix E – VAWA 
Policy

Provides current VAWA policy. 55-57 Same 56-58 Same 58-60



(Property Name) Tenant Selection Plan  

Page 1  of 58  Pending Public Comment 5/12/2016  

 
 

 
 
 
 

(Property Name) 
Tenant Selection Plan 

 
Project Based Rental Assistance 

for a Family Site 
 
 
 

  



(Property Name) Tenant Selection Plan  

Page 2  of 58  Pending Public Comment 5/12/2016  

   
OWNER/AGENT & PROPERTY INFORMATION ...................................................................................................................... 5 

THE PURPOSE OF THE RESIDENT SELECTION PLAN ............................................................................................................... 5 

RULES OF CONDUCT ............................................................................................................................................................ 6 

SMOKE FREE HOUSING ........................................................................................................................................................ 6 

SECURITY DEPOSIT REQUIREMENTS .................................................................................................................................... 6 

PETS..................................................................................................................................................................................... 7 

PET DEPOSIT ............................................................................................................................................................................... 7 

ASSISTANCE DEFINITION ...................................................................................................................................................... 7 

SUBSIDY ..................................................................................................................................................................................... 7 
TENANT-BASED VOUCHERS ............................................................................................................................................................ 8 
ASSISTED LIVING .......................................................................................................................................................................... 8 

FAIR HOUSING POLICIES ...................................................................................................................................................... 8 

FAIR HOUSING............................................................................................................................................................................. 8 
TITLE VI OF THE CIVIL RIGHTS ACT OF 1964 ...................................................................................................................................... 8 
SECTION 504 OF THE REHABILITATION ACT OF 1973 .......................................................................................................................... 8 

 Coordinating Efforts to Comply with Section 504 Requirements .............................................................................. 8 
 Requests for Reasonable Accommodation or Modification ...................................................................................... 9 

COMPLIANCE WITH REQUIREMENTS OUTLINED IN THE VIOLENCE AGAINST WOMEN REAUTHORIZATION ACT OF 2013 .................................... 9 
AVAILABILITY OF ASSISTANCE FOR PERSONS WITH LIMITED ENGLISH PROFICIENCY .................................................................................... 9 
THE EQUAL ACCESS RULE .............................................................................................................................................................. 9 

ELIGIBILITY REQUIREMENTS ................................................................................................................................................ 9 

PROPERTY ELIGIBILITY DEFINITION ................................................................................................................................................... 9 
 Household/Resident Type ......................................................................................................................................... 9 
 Income Limits ............................................................................................................................................................ 9 
 Occupancy Standards ............................................................................................................................................. 10 
 Verifying the Need for an Accessible Unit ............................................................................................................... 11 

PROGRAM ELIGIBILITY ................................................................................................................................................................. 11 
 Eligibility Standards ................................................................................................................................................ 11 
 Disclosure and Verification of Social Security Numbers .......................................................................................... 11 
 Exceptions to Disclosure of Social Security Number ............................................................................................... 12 
 Secondary Verification of the Social Security Number ............................................................................................ 12 
 Citizenship/Immigration Status Requirements ....................................................................................................... 13 
 Single Residence/Subsidy Criteria ........................................................................................................................... 13 
 Eligibility of Students Enrolled at an Institute for Higher Education ....................................................................... 14 
 Prohibition of Assistance to Noncitizen Students.................................................................................................... 15 

PROCEDURES FOR TAKING PRE-APPLICATIONS & APPLICATIONS ...................................................................................... 15 

PRE-APPLICATIONS ..................................................................................................................................................................... 16 
 Incomplete Pre-Applications ................................................................................................................................... 16 
 Preliminary Determination of Applicant Eligibility .................................................................................................. 16 

APPLICATIONS ........................................................................................................................................................................... 17 
FINAL DETERMINATION OF ELIGIBILITY ........................................................................................................................................... 18 

LIVE-IN AIDES..................................................................................................................................................................... 18 

WAITING LISTS ................................................................................................................................................................... 18 

MAINTAINING WAITING LISTS ...................................................................................................................................................... 18 



(Property Name) Tenant Selection Plan  

Page 3  of 58  Pending Public Comment 5/12/2016  

REMOVAL OF APPLICANTS FROM THE WAITING LIST.......................................................................................................................... 19 
SELECTING APPLICANTS FROM THE WAITING LIST ............................................................................................................................. 20 

 Income Targeting .................................................................................................................................................... 20 
PREFERENCES ............................................................................................................................................................................ 21 

 Owner/agent-Adopted Preferences ........................................................................................................................ 21 
 HUD Approved Preference ...................................................................................................................................... 21 
 Preference Weights ................................................................................................................................................. 22 
 Verification of Preferences ...................................................................................................................................... 22 
 When a Request for Preference is Denied ............................................................................................................... 22 
 Change in Preference Status While on the Waiting List .......................................................................................... 22 
 Exceptions to the Preference Rule .......................................................................................................................... 23 

OPENING AND CLOSING WAITING LIST ........................................................................................................................................... 23 

PRIVACY POLICY ................................................................................................................................................................ 23 

VERIFICATION .................................................................................................................................................................... 24 

INFORMATION TO BE VERIFIED ...................................................................................................................................................... 24 
METHODS OF VERIFICATION ......................................................................................................................................................... 24 
SOURCES OF INFORMATION .......................................................................................................................................................... 25 
PERIOD FOR VERIFICATION ........................................................................................................................................................... 26 
CONSENT AND VERIFICATION FORMS ............................................................................................................................................. 26 
PROVISIONS FOR REFUSAL TO SIGN ................................................................................................................................................ 26 

MISREPRESENTATION ........................................................................................................................................................ 26 

APPLICANT SCREENING CRITERIA ...................................................................................................................................... 27 

SCREENING FOR DRUG ABUSE AND OTHER CRIMINAL ACTIVITY .......................................................................................................... 27 
 Consideration of Extenuating Circumstances ......................................................................................................... 29 
 Criminal Screening Discoveries ............................................................................................................................... 29 

SCREENING FOR CREDIT HISTORY .................................................................................................................................................. 30 
SCREENING FOR ABILITY TO ESTABLISH UTILITY SERVICE ..................................................................................................................... 30 
SCREENING FOR RENTAL HISTORY.................................................................................................................................................. 30 
SCREENING FOR RECEIPT OF HUD ASSISTANCE IN ANOTHER UNIT ....................................................................................................... 31 

REJECTING INELIGIBLE OR UNQUALIFIED APPLICANTS ....................................................................................................... 32 

REJECTION NOTICES ................................................................................................................................................................... 33 
APPEALING THE DECISION TO REJECT ............................................................................................................................................. 33 

INFORMAL HEARINGS FOR PBRA APPLICANTS ................................................................. ERROR! BOOKMARK NOT DEFINED. 

INFORMAL HEARING PROCESS [24 CFR 960.208(A) AND PH OCC GB, P. 58] ..................................................................................... 34 
 Use of Informal Hearing Process ............................................................................................................................. 34 
 Notice of Denial ...................................................................................................................................................... 34 
 Scheduling an Informal Hearing ............................................................................................................................. 34 
 Conducting an Informal Hearing [PH Occ GB, p. 58]............................................................................................... 34 
 Informal Hearing Decision [PH Occ GB, p. 58] ........................................................................................................ 35 

REASONABLE ACCOMMODATIONS FOR PERSONS WITH DISABILITIES [24 CFR 966.7] ............................................................................. 35 
HEARING AND APPEAL PROVISIONS FOR NON-CITIZENS [24 CFR 5.514] ............................................................................................. 35 

 Notice of Denial or Termination of Assistance [24 CFR 5.514(d)] ........................................................................... 36 
 United States Citizenship and Immigration Services Appeal Process [24 CFR 5.514(e)] ......................................... 36 
 Informal Hearing Procedures for Applicants [24 CFR 5.514(f)] ............................................................................... 37 

OFFERING AN APARTMENT ............................................................................................................................................... 38 

OFFERING ACCESSIBLE UNITS ....................................................................................................................................................... 38 
OFFERING UNITS TO DISABLED APPLICANTS REQUESTING ACCESSIBILITY FEATURES ................................................................................. 39 
OFFERING UNITS TO APPLICANTS OR RESIDENTS WITH PREFERENCES ................................................................................................... 39 



(Property Name) Tenant Selection Plan  

Page 4  of 58  Pending Public Comment 5/12/2016  

APPLICANT/RESIDENT SELECTION ORDER ....................................................................................................................................... 39 
RIGHT TO REFUSAL ..................................................................................................................................................................... 40 
TIMEFRAME FOR TAKING POSSESSION OF A UNIT BY AN APPLICANT FAMILY .......................................................................................... 41 

UNIT TRANSFER POLICIES .................................................................................................................................................. 42 

SECURITY DEPOSITS, PET DEPOSITS & UNIT TRANSFERS .................................................................................................................... 43 
SECURITY DEPOSITS & UNIT TRANSFERS ......................................................................................................................................... 43 

CHANGES IN HOUSEHOLD COMPOSITION .......................................................................................................................... 43 

ADDING HOUSEHOLD MEMBERS AFTER INITIAL OCCUPANCY .............................................................................................................. 43 
REMOVING HOUSEHOLD MEMBERS AFTER INITIAL OCCUPANCY .......................................................................................................... 44 

APARTMENT INSPECTIONS ................................................................................................................................................ 45 

CHANGES TO THE RESIDENT SELECTION PLAN ................................................................................................................... 46 

APPENDIX A – REQUEST FOR REASONABLE ACCOMMODATION OR MODIFICATION ......................................................... 47 

APPENDIX B – CITIZEN/NON-CITIZEN ELIGIBILITY ............................................................................................................... 48 

REQUIRED DOCUMENTATION ....................................................................................................................................................... 48 
TIMEFRAMES FOR SUBMITTING EVIDENCE OF CITIZENSHIP/IMMIGRATION STATUS TO THE OWNER/AGENT .................................................. 49 
REVIEWING AND VERIFICATION OF A HOUSEHOLD’S CITIZENSHIP/IMMIGRATION STATUS ......................................................................... 49 
NOTIFICATION TO APPLICANTS ...................................................................................................................................................... 50 
MIXED HOUSEHOLDS .................................................................................................................................................................. 50 
APPEALING DETERMINATIONS OF INELIGIBILITY ................................................................................................................................ 50 
PROHIBITION AGAINST DELAY OF ASSISTANCE ................................................................................................................................. 50 

APPENDIX C:  DUAL SUBSIDY NOTICE ................................................................................................................................ 52 

APPENDIX D – VERIFICATION OF HOUSEHOLD COMPOSITION ........................................................................................... 53 

APPENDIX E – VAWA POLICY ............................................................................................................................................. 56 

CONFIDENTIALITY ....................................................................................................................................................................... 56 
REQUESTS & CERTIFICATION ........................................................................................................................................................ 57 
LEASE BIFURCATION ................................................................................................................................................................... 58 
CRIMINAL ACTS ......................................................................................................................................................................... 58 
LEASE ADDENDUM ..................................................................................................................................................................... 58 



(Property Name) Tenant Selection Plan  

Page 5  of 58  Pending Public Comment 5/12/2016  

OWNER/AGENT & PROPERTY INFORMATION 
 

Owner/Agent Name Housing Authority of the City of Austin (HACA) 

Owner/Agent Contact Name  

Owner/Agent Address 1124 S IH 35 

Owner/Agent City, State, Zip Austin, TX 78704 

Owner/Agent Phone # (512) 477-4488 

Owner/Agent Fax (512) 472-2958 

Owner/Agent TTY/TTD/Relay  

  

Property Name Property Name 

Property Contact Name Property Manager 

Address Property Address 

City, State, Zip Austin, TX 78704 

Phone Property Phone Number 

Fax Property Fax Number 

TTY/TDD/Audio Relay 711 National Voice Relay  
 

Applications for housing at this property are only received online or at the owner/agent’s office location.  
Applications are not received at the property management office. 
 

All references to office locations within this Tenant Selection Plan include both the HACA Central Office and the 
Property Management Office unless otherwise indicated. 

THE PURPOSE OF THE RESIDENT SELECTION PLAN 
The resident selection plan helps to ensure that residents are selected for occupancy in accordance with HUD 
requirements and established management policies.  
 
Please contact the management office if you need help understanding this document.  
• Contacte por favor la oficina de gestión si usted necesita ayuda a comprender este documento. (Spanish) 
• Por favor contate o escritório de gerência se deve ajudar entendimento este documento. (Portugese) 
• Si vous avez besoin d'aide à la compréhension de ce document, veuillez communiquer avec le Bureau de 

gestion. (French) 
• Souple kontakte Biwo jesyon a si w bezwen èd pou konprann dokiman sa a. (Haitian Creole) 
• Xin liên lạc với văn phòng điều hành nếu bạn cần giúp đỡ sự hiểu biết tài liệu này. (Vietnamese) 
• Пожалуйста свяжитесь с офисом управления, если Вам нужна помощь в понимании этого документа. 

(Russian) 
• Bitte kontaktieren Sie das Leitungsbüro, wenn Sie helfen müssen, dieses Dokument zu verstehen. (German) 
• 請聯絡管理辦公室，如果你需要幫助理解這份文件。(Chinese) 
• もしこの文書を理解しているための助けを必要としていれば、経営オフィスと連絡を取ってくださ

い。(Japanese) 



(Property Name) Tenant Selection Plan  

Page 6  of 58  Pending Public Comment 5/12/2016  

RULES OF CONDUCT 
The relationship between a landlord (owner/agent) and a resident or applicant is a business relationship. A 
courteous and businesslike attitude is required from both parties.  The owner/agent reserves the right to refuse 
to conduct business with anyone who is verbally abusive, swears, is disrespectful, makes threats, uses 
discriminatory language, appears to be intoxicated or under the influence of alcohol or drugs, is argumentative, 
or in general displays an attitude, at any time, which causes the owner/agent or the property staff to believe we 
would not have a positive business relationship.  
 
If an applicant or any member of the applicant’s family demonstrates unprofessional behavior in the presence of 
the management team or other residents/applicants, the applicant, the applicant’s family and other members of 
the applicant’s entourage (if applicable) will be required to leave the property and the application will be 
rejected.   
 
If the applicant or any member of the applicant’s family exhibits threatening behavior, appears to be intoxicated 
or under the influence of alcohol or illegal drugs or attempts to intimidate the staff, the applicant, the 
applicant’s family and other members of the applicant’s entourage (if applicable) will be required to leave the 
property and the application will be rejected.   
 
To ensure the privacy of property staff, property residents and applicants, applicants and residents are asked to 
refrain from use of cell phones or other electronic devices, except those necessary to alleviate the symptoms of 
a disability, by residents or applicants, while in the management office or Administration Central Office.  
 
Assistance Animals are always welcome in the management office.  Please keep all pets outside the 
management office at all times. 
 
Children are always welcome.  When in the Central office or management office, minors must be supervised.  
Admissions Department and property management staff are not responsible for child care or supervision.   
 
Admissions Department staff is not permitted to accept any money, gifts, services or favors connected with the 
application process, criminal or credit checks, eligibility determination, apartment selection, or associated with 
any aspect of residency on this property.   If property staff solicits any mandatory payment for any part of the 
application process, the applicant should notify the owner/agent.  XXXX ENTER CONTACT INFORMATION HERE XXX. 

SMOKE FREE HOUSING 
Smoking is prohibited in any area of the property, both private and common, whether enclosed or outdoors. 
This policy applies to all owner/agents, property staff, applicants, residents, guests, and servicepersons.  
“Smoking” shall include the inhaling, exhaling, or carrying of any lighted cigarette, e-cigarette, cigar, pipe, 
hookah, other tobacco products, marijuana including medical marijuana, herbal smoking products “Legal Weed” 
or products known as “bath salts” or other legal or illegal substances.  

SECURITY DEPOSIT REQUIREMENTS 
The owner/agent must collect a security deposit at the time of the initial lease execution. The owner/agent will 
comply with any HUD rules and applicable state and local laws governing the security deposit. The security 
deposit amount is based on the Total Tenant Payment (TTP) calculated at move in.   
 
If the move-in certification requires correction, and the TTP is recalculated, the security deposit requirement will 
be recalculated as well.  Otherwise, the amount of the security deposit established at move-in does not change 
when a resident’s rent changes. 
 



(Property Name) Tenant Selection Plan  

Page 7  of 58  Pending Public Comment 5/12/2016  

The resident is expected to pay the security deposit from his/her own resources and/or other public or private 
sources.  An applicant will be rejected if he/she does not have sufficient funds to pay the deposit.   

PETS 
Residents are allowed to keep 2 pets in the unit.   
 
Certain restrictions apply and are outlined in the property Pet Rules.  Pets and assistance animals must be 
approved before they are allowed to live in the unit.  Copies of the Pet Rules and Assistance Animals Policy are 
available upon request. 
 
When applicable, residents must agree to pay any required pet deposit and must agree to abide by the 
property’s Pet Rules and Assistance Animal Policies.   
 
If an applicant wishes to request approval of an assistance animal – necessary to alleviate the symptoms or side-
effects of a disability, the applicant (or applicant’s representative) must request a reasonable accommodation.  
Please review the process to request a reasonable accommodation in Appendix A.  The applicant should also 
review the Assistance Animal Policy which is available upon request. 

PET DEPOSIT 
The Pet Rules require residents who own dogs or cats (pets) or keep dogs or cats (pets) in their units to pay a 
refundable pet deposit. This deposit is in addition to any other financial obligation generally imposed on 
residents of the property. 
 
The pet deposit is $100.00 per animal. A minimum of $50.00 is required at the time the pet is brought on to the 
premises.  The resident will have the option to pay the remaining balance in increments of $10.00 per month 
until the $100.00 pet deposit is collected.  Residents are allowed to pay the entire pet deposit in increments 
greater than those described if he/she chooses to do so. 
 
The owner/agent will use the pet deposit only to pay reasonable expenses directly attributable to the presence 
of the pet on the property. Such expenses would include, but not be limited to, the cost of repairs and 
replacement to the unit, fumigation of the unit, and the cost of animal care facilities. 
 
The owner/agent will return the unused portion of a pet deposit to the resident within a reasonable time after 
the resident moves from the property or no longer owns or keeps a household pet in the unit. Residents, their 
guests and/or service providers are required to comply with the property Pet Rules. 
Assistance animals that assist persons with disabilities are exempt from the pet policy and from the refundable 
pet deposit.  Residents, guests and service providers will be required to comply with the Assistance Animal 
Policy. 

ASSISTANCE DEFINITION 
The property is operating under the guidelines established for the HUD Project Based Rental Assistance 
program.  A person must be capable of fulfilling the lease requirements.   

SUBSIDY 
Residents at this property are offered subsidized rent.  This means the rent that a household pays is based upon 
the household income.  The family will pay 30% of their adjusted household income.  The balance of the 
contract rent is subsidized by the Federal Government.  The rent amounts paid by residents may vary.   



(Property Name) Tenant Selection Plan  

Page 8  of 58  Pending Public Comment 5/12/2016  

TENANT-BASED VOUCHERS 
The owner/agent may not admit an applicant with a voucher to a unit with Project Based Rental Assistance 
unless the applicant agrees to give up the voucher prior to occupancy.  This will be verified with the former 
housing provider. 
 
If the owner/agent discovers that any household member failed to give up current HUD housing assistance 
before moving to (Property Name), no rent subsidy or utility allowance will be provided by HUD until the day 
after the move out or surrender of the currently subsidized unit. 
 
Household members who sign the lease will be responsible for paying the market rent until qualified to receive 
HUD assistance on this property.  Any assistance paid in error must be returned to HUD.  Applicants should 
consult with the local HUD office if the former landlord is accepting subsidy after move out. 
 
Please note that housing assistance provided through HUD’s multi-family housing program is not the same as 
the housing assistance provided through the voucher program.  If any family member moves out, the housing 
subsidy will not move with the family as it does with a voucher.  The family will be required to re-apply to a PHA 
to receive a voucher. 

ASSISTED LIVING 
This is not an assisted living property.  The owner/agent and property staff do not provide, nor have the 
authority to provide, any personal care or personal supervision services.  All care and supervision services must 
be provided by the resident or aides supervised by the resident or the resident’s representative(s).   The 
owner/agent and property staff do not provide assistance with personal activities or daily living.   

FAIR HOUSING POLICIES 

FAIR HOUSING 
The Fair Housing Act prohibits discrimination in housing and housing related transactions based on race, color, 
religion, sex, national origin, disability, and familial status.  In addition, the city of Austin has added Fair Housing 
protections based on creed, student status, marital status, sexual orientation, gender identity and age. 

TITLE VI OF THE CIVIL RIGHTS ACT OF 1964 
The owner/agent complies with Title VI of the Civil Rights Act of 1964 which prohibits discrimination based on 
race, color, or national origin in any program or activity receiving federal financial assistance from HUD. 

SECTION 504 OF THE REHABILITATION ACT OF 1973 
The owner/agent complies with Section 504 of the Rehabilitation Act of 1973 which prohibits discrimination, 
based on the presence of a disability in all programs or activities operated by recipients of federal financial 
assistance.   
 
Although Section 504 protections often overlap with the disability discrimination prohibitions included in the 
Fair Housing Act, Section 504 differs in that it imposes broader affirmative obligations to make their programs, 
as a whole, accessible to persons with disabilities.   

• Coordinating Efforts to Comply with Section 504 Requirements 
The owner/agent has designated a person to address questions or requests regarding the specific needs 
of residents and applicants with disabilities.  This person is referred to as the Section 504 Coordinator.   
 

 



(Property Name) Tenant Selection Plan  

Page 9  of 58  Pending Public Comment 5/12/2016  

Name of Section 504 Coordinator: Vice President of Housing and Community Development 

Address:   1124 S IH 35, Austin, TX 78704 

Phone Number:  (512) 477-4488 

TDD/TTY Number: 711 Voice Relay  

• Requests for Reasonable Accommodation or Modification 
In accordance with the Fair Housing Act and Section 504 of the Rehabilitation Act, the owner/agent will 
make reasonable accommodations or modifications for individuals with disabilities (applicants or 
residents) unless these modifications would change the fundamental nature of the housing program or 
result in undue financial and administrative burden.  Please see Appendix A for additional information. 

COMPLIANCE WITH REQUIREMENTS OUTLINED IN THE VIOLENCE AGAINST WOMEN REAUTHORIZATION ACT OF 2013 
The owner/agent understands that, regardless of whether state or local laws protect victims of domestic 
violence, dating violence, sexual assault or stalking, people who have been victims of violence have certain 
protections provided through the Violence Against Women Reauthorization Act of 2013 (VAWA 2013).   
 
If any applicant wishes to exercise the protections provided in the VAWA 2013, he/she should contact the 
owner/agent immediately.   
 
The owner/agent will not assume that any act is a result of abuse covered under the VAWA 2013.  In order to 
receive the protections outlined in the VAWA 2013, the applicant/applicant must specify that he/she wishes to 
exercise these protections.   
 
Please see Appendix E for a copy of the owner/agent’s VAWA Policy. 

AVAILABILITY OF ASSISTANCE FOR PERSONS WITH LIMITED ENGLISH PROFICIENCY  
Executive Order 13166, "Improving Access to Services for Persons with Limited English Proficiency LEP)" requires 
the owner/agent to develop and implement a system to provide housing assistance so persons with Limited 
English Proficiency (LEP) can have meaningful access to assisted housing opportunities. The owner/agent will 
provide for such meaningful access consistent with, and without unduly burdening the fundamental mission of 
the property.  The owner/agent will work to ensure that people who apply for and/or qualify for housing 
assistance are provided meaningful access to HUD’s housing assistance program.   

THE EQUAL ACCESS RULE 
The owner/agent ensures that HUD's core housing programs are open to all eligible persons regardless of sexual 
orientation, gender identity or marital status in accordance with The Equal Access Rule. 

ELIGIBILITY REQUIREMENTS 

PROPERTY ELIGIBILITY DEFINITION 

• Household/Resident Type 
This multi-family Project Based Rental Assistance property is designed to provide housing to families 
who meet the eligibility and screening requirements.   

• Income Limits 
Income limits vary by household size.  The owner/agent will provide applicants a copy of the income 
limits for the property area upon request.  In addition, applicants can review the income limits by 



(Property Name) Tenant Selection Plan  

Page 10  of 58  Pending Public Comment 5/12/2016  

accessing the following web site.  http://www.huduser.org/datasets/il.html.  HUD requires that property 
managers incorporate the most recently published income limits when determining eligibility.   
 
For this property, qualified applicant households must meet the following income limit requirements: 

 
Subsidy Type of Income Limit 

 
 
  Project Based Rental Assistance 

  Low – 80% of median income 
  Very low – 50% of median income 
  Extremely low – very low income household whose income  
  equals or is less than the greater of poverty level or 30% of  
  median income 

• Occupancy Standards 
Occupancy standards serve to prevent the over-utilization or under-utilization of units that can result in 
an inefficient use of housing funding.  Occupancy standards also ensure that residents are treated fairly 
and consistently and receive adequate housing space.   
 
Below, please find this property’s occupancy standards description:   

 
Number of Bedrooms Min. # Household Members Max.  # Household Members 

   
0 1 1 
1 1 2 
2 2 4 
3 4 6 
4 6 8 
5 8 10 

 
o Generally, two persons are expected to share a bedroom. The family will be allowed one bedroom 

for each two persons within the household.  Exceptions to this rule and to the minimum number of 
household members guide above include the following circumstances: 

o Two children of the opposite sex, with one at least seven (7) years of age, will not be 
required to share a bedroom,  

o Persons of different generations (grandparent and grandchild, parent and child) will not be 
required to share a bedroom. 

o A couple (married or unmarried, same sex or opposite sex) engaged in a consensual sexual 
relationship will be allocated one bedroom. 

o Authorized live-in aides will be allocated a separate bedroom. No additional bedrooms will be 
provided for the live-in aide’s family. 

o Single-person families will be allocated either a zero (efficiency) or one bedroom unit. 
o Anticipated children will be included.  Anticipated children include: 

o Children expected to be born to a pregnant woman; 
o Children in process of being adopted by an adult family member; 
o Children whose custody is being obtained by an adult family member; 
o Foster children who will reside in the unit; 
o Children who are temporarily in a foster home who will return to the family; and 
o Children in joint custody arrangements who are present in the household 50% or more of 

the time. 

http://www.huduser.org/datasets/il.html


(Property Name) Tenant Selection Plan  

Page 11  of 58  Pending Public Comment 5/12/2016  

o A household that contains a family member (not the head of household or spouse) who is enrolled 
as a full-time student at an institution of higher learning and who is on the lease will be counted for 
the purposes of establishing occupancy standards for unit size if: 

o the family member is enrolled and actively attending a two-year or four-year college or 
university; and 

o the family member resides in the public housing unit during school breaks and holidays. 
 

Any household placed in a unit size different from that defined in these Occupancy Standards shall agree 
to transfer to an appropriate size unit at the same property when one becomes available.   

• Verifying the Need for an Accessible Unit  
When an applicant requests an accessible unit or a unit preference, such as a first floor unit, the 
owner/agent will conduct inquiries to: 
 
o Verify that the applicant is qualified for the unit, which is only available to persons with a disability 

or to persons with a particular type of disability. 
o Verify that the applicant needs the features of the unit as an accommodation to his or her disability. 
o Verify that the applicant is qualified to receive a priority on the waiting list available to persons with 

a disability or to persons with a particular type of disability. 

PROGRAM ELIGIBILITY 

• Eligibility Standards 
Based on federal regulations, the owner/agent may admit only eligible applicants.  In the selection of 
applicants for admission, eligibility criteria have been established in accordance with HUD guidelines.  
The following eligibility standards will be applied in accordance with HUD requirements: 
 
o The household’s annual income must not exceed program income limits at move-in; 
o The Head-of-Household (HOH), co-Head-of-Household and the spouse (regardless of age) and all 

adults in each household must sign an Authorization for Release of Information (HUD Forms 9887 
and 9887A) and owner/agent created verification documents prior to receiving assistance and 
annually thereafter;   

o The unit for which the household is applying must be the household’s only residence; 
o An applicant must agree to pay the rent required by the program under which the applicant will 

receive assistance; 
o Only U.S. citizens or eligible non-citizens may receive assistance (See additional information below 

and in Appendix B); 
o Applicants who claim eligible status must disclose Social Security Numbers for all household 

members and provide proof of the numbers reported (See additional information below); 
o The household size must be appropriate for the available apartments (See Occupancy Standards); 
o All information reported by the household is subject to verification. 

• Disclosure and Verification of Social Security Numbers 
All household members receiving HUD housing assistance or applying to receive HUD housing assistance 
are required to provide a Social Security Number and adequate documentation necessary to verify that 
number.  This rule applies to all household members including live-in aides, foster children and foster 
adults.  Adequate documentation includes a Social Security card issued by the Social Security 
Administration (SSA) or other acceptable evidence of the SSN such as: 
 



(Property Name) Tenant Selection Plan  

Page 12  of 58  Pending Public Comment 5/12/2016  

o Original Social Security card 
o Driver’s license with SSN 
o Identification card issued by a federal, State, or local agency, a medical insurance provider, or an 

employer or trade union. 
o Earnings statements on payroll stubs 
o Bank statement 
o Form 1099 
o Benefit award letter 
o Retirement benefit letter 
o Life insurance policy 
o Court records 

• Exceptions to Disclosure of Social Security Number  
The Social Security Number requirements do not apply to:  
 
o Individuals age 62 or older as of January 31, 2010, whose initial determination of eligibility was 

begun before January 31, 2010.  
o Individuals who do not contend eligible immigration status. When applicants and residents are 

required to declare their citizenship status, the existing regulations pertaining to proration of 
assistance or screening for mixed families must continue to be followed.  

 
If, at the time a unit becomes available, all non-exempt household members have not provided 
adequate documentation necessary to verify Social Security Numbers, the next eligible applicant must 
be offered the available unit.   
 
All non-exempt household members have ninety (90) days-from the date they are first notified that a 
unit is available-to provide documentation necessary to verify the Social Security Numbers.  During this 
90-day period, the household may retain its place on the waiting list, but will not be considered again 
until the required documentation is provided.   
 
If, after ninety (90) days, the applicant is unable to disclose/verify the Social Security Numbers of all non-
exempt household members, the household will be determined ineligible and removed from the waiting 
list.  
The applicant may apply again, after obtaining the appropriate documentation.  The applicant will be 
placed on the waiting list based on the date and time the new application is received. 

• Secondary Verification of the Social Security Number 
The Social Security Number provided will be compared to the information recorded in the Social Security 
Administration database through HUD’s Enterprise Income Verification System (EIV) to ensure that the 
Social Security Number, birth date and last name match.   
 
If EIV returns an error that cannot be explained or resolved, assistance and/or tenancy may be 
terminated and any assistance paid in error must be returned to HUD.  If the applicant/resident 
deliberately provides an inaccurate Social Security Number, the owner/agent and/or HUD may pursue 
additional penalties due to attempted fraud. 
 
 
 



(Property Name) Tenant Selection Plan  

Page 13  of 58  Pending Public Comment 5/12/2016  

• Citizenship/Immigration Status Requirements 
Applicants are required to declare U.S. citizenship or submit evidence of eligible immigration status for 
each household member seeking housing assistance.  The owner/agent is required to obtain the 
following: 
  
o Family Composition List (lists all household members who will reside in the assisted unit) 
o Citizenship Declaration - Each household member listed on the Family Composition List must 

complete a declaration of citizen or non-citizen status 
o Forms and/or evidence of citizen/immigration status as required by HUD 
 
Additional information regarding submission and verification of proof of citizenship status or eligible 
non-citizen status can be found in Appendix B.   
 
If any applicant has questions or experiences difficulty providing the described information or 
determining the type of documentation required, the applicant should contact the management office.  
If any applicant is unable to provide the required documentation in the timeframe indicated in Appendix 
B, the applicant must contact the management office to request an extension.  If any applicant fails to 
provide this information in the timeframes described, the owner/agent cannot provide assistance and 
the application will be rejected. 
 
The owner/agent will offer the household assistance, providing subsidy to those eligible household 
members whose documents were received on time, when the following criteria is met: 
 
o At least one member of the household has submitted the required documentation in a timely 

manner and has been determined to be eligible based on all of the criteria in this resident selection 
plan 

o Assistance/unit is available 
o The household is the next household to be selected from the waiting list 
 
Proof of declared citizenship status must be provided for all household members.  Members who claim 
U.S. citizenship can provide any documents approved by HUD or the Department of Homeland Security 
(DHS) to prove citizenship.  Additional information is provided in Addendum B.   
 
Non-citizens claiming eligible status must follow the guidance provided in Addendum B and in 24 CFR to 
prove eligible non-citizen status.   
 
Applicants must be able to provide proof of citizenship or legal immigration status. 
 
Citizenship eligibility must be reviewed after move-in if eligibility status can change.  If any household 
member is determined to be an ineligible non-citizen, either at application or after move-in, assistance 
and/or tenancy may be denied, terminated or prorated as appropriate.  

• Single Residence/Subsidy Criteria 
A household is eligible for assistance only if the unit will be the household’s only residence.  The 
owner/agent will not knowingly assist applicants who will maintain a residence in addition to the HUD-
assisted unit.   
 



(Property Name) Tenant Selection Plan  

Page 14  of 58  Pending Public Comment 5/12/2016  

Applicants MUST disclose if they are currently receiving HUD housing assistance.  Residents can only 
receive subsidy for one unit/residence at a time.  This prohibition does not prevent a person who is 
currently receiving assistance from applying for an assisted unit in another property.   
 
If, for any reason, an applicant moves in to this property before moving out of another subsidized unit, 
the new resident will be required to pay market rent until the move out from the previous property is 
complete and the resident is eligible to receive HUD subsidy for this property.  Assistance in the new 
unit will begin, if the household is still eligible, the day after assistance ends for the previous unit.   
 
There is an exception to this rule.  Children in joint custody arrangements can receive HUD housing 
assistance in two units when both parent/guardian families receive HUD housing assistance.  However, 
only one household may use the $480 dependent deduction to determine adjusted income.  In these 
cases, additional verification is required.  The owner/agent will request: 

 
o Verification of the custody/guardianship/living arrangement - Please see Appendix D for additional 

information 
o Verification of the use of the $480 deduction.  The owner/agent will verify use of the $480 

dependent deduction with the other owner/agent if : 
 The child will live in the unit at least 50% of the time and  
 The parent wishes to claim the $480 deduction, and  
 Both families are receiving HUD housing assistance 

 
All adults will be required to sign the Acknowledgement in Appendix C. 

• Eligibility of Students Enrolled at an Institute for Higher Education  
Student eligibility is determined at move-in/initial certification and at each annual certification.  Student 
eligibility may also be reviewed at interim certification if student status has changed since the last 
certification.  All adult students are required to report any change in their student status.  A student who 
is otherwise eligible and meets screening requirements is eligible for assistance if the student meets the 
criteria indicated below.  Section 8 assistance shall not be provided to any individual who: 
 
o Is enrolled as either a part-time or full-time student at an institution of higher education for the 

purpose of obtaining a degree, certificate, or other program leading to a recognized educational 
credential; and 

o Is under the age of 24; and 
o Is not married; and 
o Is not a veteran of the United States Military; and 
o Does not have a dependent child; and 
o Is not a person with disabilities, as such term is defined in 3(b)(3)(E) of the United States Housing Act 

of 1937 (42 U.S.C. 1437a(b)(3)(E)) and was not receiving section 8 assistance as of November 30, 
2005; and 

o Is not living with his or her parents who are receiving Section 8 assistance; and 
o Is not individually eligible to receive Section 8 assistance or has parents (the parents individually or 

jointly) who are not income eligible to receive Section 8 assistance.   
 
NOTE:  Unless the student can demonstrate his or her independence from parents, the student must be 
eligible to receive Section 8 assistance and the parents (individually or jointly) must be eligible (income 
eligible) to receive Section 8 assistance in order for the student to receive Section 8 assistance. 
 



(Property Name) Tenant Selection Plan  

Page 15  of 58  Pending Public Comment 5/12/2016  

For a student to be eligible independent of his or her parents (where the income of the parents is not 
relevant), the student must demonstrate independence from, parents.  While owner/agents may use 
additional criteria for determining the student’s independence from parents, owner/agents must use, 
and the student must meet, at a minimum all of the following criteria to be eligible for Section 8 
assistance.  The student must: 
 
o Be of legal contract age under state law; 
o Have established a household separate from parents or legal guardians for at least one year prior to 

application for occupancy, or, meet the U.S. Department of Education’s definition of an independent 
student; 

o Not be claimed as a dependent by parents or legal guardians pursuant to IRS regulations; and 
o Obtain a certification of the amount of financial assistance that will be provided by parents, signed 

by the individual providing the support.  This certification is required even if no assistance will be 
provided. 

o If an ineligible student is a member of an existing household receiving Section 8 assistance, the 
assistance for the household will not be prorated but will be terminated  

 
NOTE:  An owner/agent cannot evict or require an ineligible student to move from a unit as long as the 
student is in compliance with the terms of the lease. 
 
Any financial assistance a student receives (1) under the Higher Education Act of 1965, (2) from private 
sources, or (3) from an institution of higher education that is in excess of amounts received for tuition 
shall be considered income to that individual, except for: 
 
o A person 24 years of age or older with dependent children as defined by HUD or  
o A person living with his/her parents 
 
The definition of tuition is consistent with the definition provided by the Department of Education and 
includes all mandatory fees associated with being enrolled at that institution of higher education. 

• Prohibition of Assistance to Noncitizen Students   
Noncitizen students and their noncitizen families may not receive assistance.  Noncitizen students are 
not eligible for continuation of assistance or temporary deferral of termination of assistance.  A 
noncitizen student is defined as an individual who is as follows: 
 
o A resident of another country to which the individual intends to return; 
o A bona fide student pursuing a course of study in the United States; and 
o A person admitted to the United States solely for the purpose of pursuing a course of study as 

indicated on an F-1 or M-1 student visa.  
 
This prohibition applies to the noncitizen student’s noncitizen spouse and noncitizen children. However, 
spouses and children who are U.S. citizens may receive assistance.  For example, a family that includes a 
noncitizen student married to a U.S. citizen is a mixed family. 

PROCEDURES FOR TAKING PRE-APPLICATIONS & APPLICATIONS 
It is the owner/agent's policy to accept and process applications in accordance with HUD guidance.  The 
owner/agent will make a reasonable accommodation to assist in the application process if the applicant or any 
member of the applicant household is disabled.   



(Property Name) Tenant Selection Plan 

 Page 16  of 58 Pending Approval 5/12/2016 
 

PRE-APPLICATIONS 
Applicants will first complete a pre-application to have their name placed on the waiting list for housing at 
[name of property].  Pre-applications can be submitted on the internet at www.austin.apply4housing.com.  The 
owner/agent will also accept the application in an equally effective format, as a reasonable accommodation, if 
there is the presence of a disability.  
  
Pre-applications are not accepted at the property site. 
 
The entire pre-application must be completed in full and submitted before the applicant will be placed on the 
waiting list.  Confirmation of successful submission will be provided by the online application portal if all 
requirements are met.    
 
Due to long waiting lists and depending on the preferences for which an applicant family may qualify, the time 
spent on the waiting list may be anywhere from several months to several years.  While waiting on the waiting 
list, applicants may check the status of their application by creating an account at 
https://austin.ourpha.com/applicants.  In this applicant portal, applicants can update their contact information, 
report changes to their application and check the status of their application.  It is the applicant’s responsibility to 
keep all contact information current. 

• Incomplete Pre-Applications 
Electronic submissions of pre-applications cannot be submitted if they are incomplete.  For pre-
applications accepted by an alternate means, if the pre-application is not complete, the owner/agent 
will attempt to contact the applicant to obtain missing information.  The applicant will have ten (10) 
business days to respond and provide missing information.  If the applicant fails to provide required 
information within the ten (10) day period, the owner/agent will return the application. 

• Preliminary Determination of Applicant Eligibility 
Information needed to determine applicant eligibility shall be obtained, verified, and the determination 
of applicant eligibility performed, in accordance with HUD and property eligibility requirements.   
Upon receipt of the completed pre-application, the owner/agent will make a preliminary eligibility 
determination before adding a household to the waiting list or initiating final eligibility tasks.   
 
The owner/agent will review the pre-application to ensure that there are no obvious factors that would 
make the applicant ineligible.  Obvious factors include, but are not limited to: 
• Owing a debt to the Housing Authority of the City of Austin (any property or program) that is still 

within the 4 year statute of limitations; 
• Having been evicted (or vacated in lieu of eviction) from any HACA program within 5 years for drug 

related activity; 
• Having been evicted (or vacated in lieu of eviction) from any HACA program within 2 years for any 

reason other than drug related activity; 
• Head of household or co-head is currently living at this property; 
• Having been denied admission to this program within the past 12 months for any reason at any 

property owned and administered by the Housing Authority of the City of Austin. 
• Having rejected a housing offer for a unit of the same size at the same property within the last 12 

months. 
 

If an applicant is preliminarily ineligible, the owner/agent will send a notice to the applicant indicating 
that they are not eligible, including the reason(s) why they were determined ineligible and stating the 

http://www.austin.apply4housing.com/
https://austin.ourpha.com/applicants


(Property Name) Tenant Selection Plan 

 Page 17  of 58 Pending Approval 5/12/2016 
 

family’s rights to appeal the decision.  This action will be completed in agreement with the 
owner/agent’s Grievance and Appeals Policy which is available to the applicant upon request. 
 
If a preliminary eligibility review indicates that a household is preliminarily eligible for tenancy, but units 
of appropriate size are not available, the owner/agent will place the household on the waiting list for 
the property and notify the household when their name comes to the top of the waiting list.   
 
If an applicant is otherwise eligible but no appropriate unit exists in the property, the owner/agent will 
reject the pre-application.    
 
The owner/agent will notify the applicant family if their pre-application is rejected for any reason. 

APPLICATIONS 
When the applicant family reaches the top of the waiting list, they will receive an invitation by mail to come to 
an eligibility interview.   
 

• Applicant families can receive up to 3 invitations to attend an eligibility interview. 
• If a family does not attend the scheduled appointment, a notice will be sent to the family and their 

name will be withdrawn from the waiting list.  If the family responds within fifteen (15) calendar days of 
the notice and requests to be rescheduled, they will be placed back on the waiting list with their same 
date and time.   

• Once the family misses their third scheduled appointment, they are no longer eligible to be placed back 
on the waiting list.  The family will be required to submit a new application and start the process from 
the beginning. 

 
During the eligibility interview process, the applicant family will complete a full application.  All documents in 
the Application Package must be completed in full, signed and dated in order to be accepted.  All adult 
applicants must complete the application package as instructed.      
 
Upon request, the owner/agent/agent will provide interested parties with a copy of the application package.   
The person who is indicated as the Head-of-Household (HOH) must execute and sign all documents that are 
included in the application package.  Before completing or executing any forms, additional copies should be 
made for all adult household members and in some cases for minors who will live in the unit.   
 
The owner/agent will require applicants to provide several documents as verification and proof of eligibility for 
housing.  These will include: 
 

• A government issued photo ID - used for verifying the identity of all applicants.  A birth certificate or 
other government issued document which includes the applicant’s name and date of birth – used to 
verify the age of all applicant family members. 

• Proof of citizenship – which may include a US birth certificate, US passport or other government issued 
documents demonstrating citizenship. 

• Proof of immigration status (if applicable) -  which may include a permanent resident card, employment 
authorization card, I-94 visa or other government issued document indicating valid immigration status. 

• A Social Security card or any other government issued document including the name and full SSN of all 
applicants. 



(Property Name) Tenant Selection Plan 

 Page 18  of 58 Pending Approval 5/12/2016 
 

• Verification of all sources of income, including (but not limited to) check stubs for employment, SS / SSI 
award letters, VA Pension award letters, TANF award letter, proof of child support and verification of 
asset income. 

FINAL DETERMINATION OF ELIGIBILITY 
Once the applicant family completes the eligibility interview, all eligibility criteria will be reviewed before a final 
eligibility determination is made.  Being eligible, however, does not guarantee that the application will be 
approved.  All adult applicants (and if appropriate minors) will be subject to the certain screening based on 
landlord/rental history, credit history and criminal history.  If the screening process determines that the family 
meets HUD’s and the owner/agent’s standards for admission, the family is found eligible. 

LIVE-IN AIDES 
Please contact the HACA central office Admissions Department if a live-in aide will be moving in to the unit.  If 
the family plans to include a live-in aide, the live-in aide is not required to complete the same application forms.  
Live-in aides must complete the Live-in Aide Questionnaire and participate in screening and other O/A 
verifications that are required.   
 
The live-in aide must meet HUD’s definition of a live-in aide.  The live-in aide has no rights to the unit as a 
remaining family member and must agree to relinquish possession of the unit within a reasonable time if the 
resident is absent for an extended period of time or if the resident leaves for any reason.  The live-in aide will be 
required to sign an acknowledgement the live-in aide has no right of residency or occupancy if the resident is 
absent or if the resident moves out for any reason including death.   

WAITING LISTS  
To ensure that applicants are appropriately and fairly selected for the next available unit, it is essential for the 
owner/agent to maintain waiting lists.  The owner/agent will place the applicant household on the waiting list 
after preliminary eligibility determination is complete. 
 
Applicants will have the option of specifying a desired unit size or multiple unit sizes when completing the pre-
application. The applicant will be placed on the waiting list for all indicated unit sizes/types as long as:  

• The applicant household meets the Occupancy Standards described in this plan, and  
• The waiting list for the unit size is open   

 
The applicant Head-of-Household (HOH) will be contacted, based on the waiting list selection criteria, and 
offered housing for the first unit that becomes available based on the selection guidelines described in this plan. 
 
Families can select the option to be placed on the waiting list for multiple unit sizes at the same property.  If the 
family is determined to be eligible and accepts a unit offer, at that time they will be removed from the other 
bedroom size waiting lists for that property.    

MAINTAINING WAITING LISTS   
It is the policy of the owner/agent to administer its waiting list as required by HUD handbooks and regulations.  
The owner/agent will update the waiting list by removing the names of applicants who are no longer interested 
in or no longer qualify for the PBRA program. 
 
On a regular basis, as determined by the owner/agent considering the length of the waiting list, the 
owner/agent will contact each applicant household by mail, using the address provided on the pre-application.  



(Property Name) Tenant Selection Plan 

 Page 19  of 58 Pending Approval 5/12/2016 
 

Applicants are responsible for updating their application with any changes in address.  The Head-of-Household 
(HOH) will be the only person contacted unless otherwise requested.  
  
If this letter is unable to be delivered by the United States Postal Service, the application will be rejected and the 
household will be removed from the waiting list.   
 
If the Head-of-Household (HOH) fails to respond to the owner/agent inquiries regarding the desire to remain on 
the waiting list, the application will be rejected and the household will be removed from the waiting list. 
 
In addition, an adult member of the applicant household must contact the Admissions Department, in writing, if 
household information changes (i.e. number of household members, number of future household members, 
criminal history, income, etc.).  If the household size or composition changes, the owner/agent will: 
 

• Update the waiting list information and  
• Decide whether the household needs the same or a different unit   

 
If, as a result of the household composition change, it is determined that the household will be on the waiting 
list for a different unit than originally indicated, the household will maintain their place on the waiting list for the 
new unit.  If the waiting list is currently closed for the appropriate unit size, the application will be rejected and 
the household will be removed from the waiting list.  If there are no units of the appropriate size on the 
property, the household will be rejected and will be removed from the waiting list.   

REMOVAL OF APPLICANTS FROM THE WAITING LIST 
The owner/agent will remove an applicant's name from the waiting list when if any of the following apply: 
   

• Applicant requests that the household name be removed  
• The unit that is needed – using household size as the basis – has changed, and no appropriate size/type 

unit exists in the property 
• The unit that is needed – using household size as the basis – has changed, and the waiting list is closed 

for that unit size/type 
• Applicant fails to meet eligibility requirements 
• Applicant fails to meet occupancy standards  
• Applicant fails to meet screening requirements 
• Applicant is rejected for any reason described in this plan 
• Applicant cannot be contacted by US Mail (letters are returned or undeliverable) Applicant fails to keep 

application information up to date based on the requirements described in this plan  
• Applicant was clearly advised, in writing, of the requirement to tell owner/agent of his/her continued 

interest in housing by a particular time and failed to do so  
• Applicant refused offer of a unit (See Right to Refusal Policy for additional information.) 

 
If an applicant is removed from the waiting list, and subsequently the owner/agent determines that an error was 
made in removing the applicant, the applicant will be reinstated at the original place on the waiting list. 
 
If an applicant is removed from the waiting list and later, the applicant household feels that they are now 
qualified for assistance/tenancy, the applicant household must submit a new application.  The applicant will be 
placed on the waiting list, as necessary, based on the submission date and time of the new application. 
 



(Property Name) Tenant Selection Plan 

 Page 20  of 58 Pending Approval 5/12/2016 
 

There are certain situations when the owner/agent may refuse to accept an application.  The owner/agent will 
not accept pre-applications from individuals or families who:  
 

• Were denied admission to any of HACA’s housing programs within the last 12 months because of 
criminal history, derogatory rental history, unreported income or fraud. 

• Owe a move out balance or debt to HACA for previous tenancy in any of HACA’s housing programs that 
is not barred by the statute of limitations.  There is a four year statute of limitations which ends the 
latter of: 
o Four years from the date the debt became delinquent; or 
o Four years from the date the final payment would have been do if the applicant signed a repayment 

agreement.  
• Has been evicted or moved out in lieu of eviction from another property managed or owned by the 

owner/agent, or from the Public Housing or Housing Choice Voucher programs within the past two years 
for any reason other than drug related. 

• Has been evicted or moved out in lieu of eviction from a federally assisted property or program for drug 
related reasons in the last five years 

• Are currently housed at this property (Does not apply to adults that are not the head of household, co-
head or spouse.) 

• Voluntarily moved out of HACA’s Public Housing or [name of property] within the last 12 months. 
• Rejected a housing offer at the same property within the past year. 

 
In addition, if an applicant previously accepted a unit offered by the owner/agent and the applicant failed to 
take possession of the unit on the agreed upon date without notice to the owner/agent, the owner/agent 
reserves the right to refuse all future applications.   

SELECTING APPLICANTS FROM THE WAITING LIST 
When an applicant family reaches the top of the waiting list, they will be invited in to the HACA Central Office 
Admissions Department to complete an eligibility interview.  Once the family has been certified eligible, they will 
wait for the next unit to become available.   
 
The owner/agent will contact the next certified eligible household based on the selection criteria described in 
this plan and make a housing offer to the family.  No decisions to offer the unit shall be made until all 
information presented by the applicant has been verified and the final eligibility determination is complete. 

• Income Targeting 
Based on the HUD contract for this property, the owner/agent is required to comply with the Income 
Targeting Requirement.  Income Targeting requires that the owner/agent implement policies to ensure 
that, during the property fiscal year, 40% of all households that move in to the property or who begin 
receiving assistance fall within the Extremely Low Income Limits for the area where the property is 
located.  
  
At this time, no special selection methods are required to meet the Income Targeting requirements.   
The owner/agent is required to monitor compliance throughout the year.   If, after periodic review, the 
owner/agent discovers that the Income Targeting Requirement will not be attained, the owner/agent 
will only select, in order, those applicants whose income falls within the extremely-low income levels.   
Once the Income Targeting Requirement is met, the owner/agent will return to the “natural” selection 
order.    



(Property Name) Tenant Selection Plan 

 Page 21  of 58 Pending Approval 5/12/2016 
 

PREFERENCES  
Applicants with preferences are selected from the waiting list and receive an opportunity for an eligibility 
interview earlier than those who do not have a preference.   
 
Assigning preferences to applicants who meet certain criteria is a method intended to provide housing 
opportunities to applicants based upon household circumstances.  
 
Preferences affect only the order applicants are selected from the waiting list.  They do not make anyone eligible 
who was not otherwise eligible.  Preferences are not permitted if they, in any way, interfere with affirmative 
marketing efforts or fair housing requirements.   

• Owner/agent-Adopted Preferences  
 
Unit Transfer Preference:  Residents who have submitted a Unit Transfer Request and who are deemed 
eligible for the transfer are given preference on the waiting list. This means that a resident transferring 
from one unit to another will be offered a unit before an applicant.  Unit transfers (on-property) will be 
weighted and offered in the following order: 

o Emergency / Safety 
o Reasonable Accommodation Request 
o Over Housed 
o Under Housed 
o Make an Accessible Unit Available 

• HUD Approved Preference 
 
Preference for Victims of Domestic Violence who reside at any HACA owned property (HACA VAWA):  
Existing applicants or new applicants who currently reside at a HACA owned property will be offered the 
opportunity to claim a preference based on the protections offered in the VAWA Reauthorization Act of 
2013.  Such status will be verified, and when such verification is complete, applicant families will be 
added to the waiting list with a VAWA preference. 
 
Documentation of eligibility for this preference will be required.  See the VAWA policy located in 
Appendix E for a full explanation of acceptable documentation. 
 
Preference for Families that have been Involuntarily Displaced by Natural Disaster or Government 
Action (Involuntarily Displaced):  Existing applicants or new applicants will be offered the opportunity 
to claim that they have been involuntarily displaced within six months of claiming the preference.  Such 
status will be verified, and when such verification is complete, applicant families will be added to the 
waiting list with an involuntarily displaced preference. 
 
Examples of involuntary displacement include, but are not limited to, displacement due to hurricane, 
tornado, flood, fire, or the exercise of eminent domain. 
 
Documentation of eligibility for this preference is required.  Sufficient documentation includes: 
o Documents from FEMA, the State of Texas, the City of Austin or any other government agency 

indicating the destruction (or no longer livable status) of the applicant’s residence due to natural 
disaster or government action within the previous 6 months. 



(Property Name) Tenant Selection Plan 

 Page 22  of 58 Pending Approval 5/12/2016 
 

o Documents from the Red Cross or other disaster support agency indicating that the applicant’s 
residence has been destroyed or is no longer habitable due to natural disaster or government 
action. 

 
Preference for Disabled Head of Household, Disabled Spouse or Disabled Co-head (Disability):  Existing 
applicants and new applicants will be offered the opportunity to disclose the disability status of the 
head of household, spouse or co-head.  Such status will be verified, and when such verification is 
complete, the applicant family will be added to the waiting list with a disability preference 
 
Proof of disability will be required to receive this preference.  Sufficient documentation includes: 
o A Social Security  award letter,, SSI award letter, or Social Security Disability award letter indicating 

that the applicant is disabled; or 
o Verification by a qualified medical professional indicating that the applicant meets the HUD 

definition of disability.  This verification will be sent by the HACA Admissions Department staff to the 
qualified medical professional identified by the applicant and will be accompanied by a release of 
information and consent signed by the applicant. 

• Preference Weights 
The owner/agent will apply different weights to each preference.  The heavier the weight, the higher the 
applicant will move up on the waiting list.  Applicant families are limited to one preference per 
household.  If the family qualifies for more than one preference, the preference with the heaviest 
weight will be applied.  The weights for each preference are as follows: 

o 3     HACA VAWA 
o 2     Involuntarily Displaced 
o 1     Disability 

• Verification of Preferences    
All preferences will be verified using the verification methodology described in this resident selection 
plan.  This verification will be conducted at the time of the eligibility interview. 

• When a Request for Preference is Denied 
If it is determined that an applicant does not meet the criteria for receiving a preference, the applicant 
will receive written notice of this determination within ten (10) business days.   
 
The notice will contain the reasons for the determination.  The applicant has the right to appeal the 
decision.  All requests for appeal must be received within fifteen (15) calendar days from the date of 
notification of denial.  See the full appeals process located in this tenant selection plan.   

• Change in Preference Status While on the Waiting List 
Occasionally households on the waiting list who did not qualify for a preference when they applied will 
experience a change in circumstances that qualifies them for a preference.  In such cases, it is the 
responsibility of the applicant to contact the owner/agent so that their change in status may be verified 
and the waiting list can be updated to reflect the preference as appropriate. 
 
To the extent the verification determines the household does now qualify for a preference, they will be 
selected from the waiting list in accordance with the preference and the date the application was 
received.   



(Property Name) Tenant Selection Plan 

 Page 23  of 58 Pending Approval 5/12/2016 
 

• Exceptions to the Preference Rule 
Management must give priority to current residents: 
 
o Residing in a unit that has been determined uninhabitable due to flood, fire or other natural disaster 
o When a unit is designated for rehabilitation or repair 

 
These situations represent extenuating circumstances and the normal selection order may be adjusted 
to address the needs of these residents. 

OPENING AND CLOSING WAITING LIST 
In order to ensure that applicants on the waiting list are processed in a reasonable amount of time, the 
owner/agent may stop accepting applications and close waiting lists in whole or in part.  Decisions about closing 
and opening the waiting list will be based on the number of applications available for a particular size and type 
of apartment and the ability of the owner/agent to house an applicant in an appropriate apartment within a 
reasonable period of time.  
 
On a regular basis, the owner/agent/agent will review the number of families on the waiting list to determine 
whether the waiting list may be closed.  If the owner/agent has sufficient applications, the waiting list may be 
closed completely.  Notices announcing that the waiting list is closed or open will be publicly announced in the 
following manner: 
 

• Local newspapers 
• Publications described in the Affirmative Fair Housing Marketing Plan 
• Flyers distributed through Social Service agencies as described in the Affirmative Fair Housing Marketing 

Plan 
 

Interested parties who insist on submitting applications when the waiting list is closed will not be considered.  
The application will not be reviewed and will be returned. 
 
During the period when the waiting list is closed, the owner/agent will not maintain a list of individuals who 
wish to be notified when the waiting list is reopened.   
 

PRIVACY POLICY 
It is the policy of the owner/agent to guard the privacy of individuals conferred by the Federal Privacy Act of 
1974 and to ensure the protection of such individuals' records maintained by the owner/agent.   
 
Neither the property owner/agent nor its agents shall disclose any personal information contained in its records 
to any person or agency, other than HUD, its Contract Administrators or other federal/state entity or investor 
auditing entities, unless the individual about whom information is requested gives written consent to such 
disclosure.  Such consent may be provided in an equally effective manner, as a reasonable accommodation, 
when there is the presence of a disability. 
 
This Privacy Policy in no way limits the owner/agent's ability to collect such information to determine eligibility, 
compute rent, or determine an applicant's suitability for tenancy.  
 
  



(Property Name) Tenant Selection Plan 

 Page 24  of 58 Pending Approval 5/12/2016 
 

VERIFICATION 
The owner/agent shall obtain verifications in compliance with requirements set forth by the Department of 
Housing and Urban Development.  After the preliminary eligibility determination, no decision to approve an 
application shall be made until information provided on the application form and during subsequent interviews 
has been collected and any necessary follow-up interviews have been performed.  All information relative to the 
following items must be verified as described in these procedures. 

INFORMATION TO BE VERIFIED  
Information to be verified includes, but is not limited to: 
 

•   Eligibility for Admission, such as 
o Income 
o Assets And Asset Income 
o Identification 
o Age 
o Household Composition 
o Social Security Numbers  
o Citizenship And/or Legal Status 
o Student Status 
o Current HUD Assistance 

• Allowances, such as 
o Age 
o Disability 
o Full Time Student Status 
o Child Care Expenses 
o Disability Assistance Expenses 
o Medical Expenses (For Elderly/Disabled Households Only) 

• Preferences 
o HACA VAWA status 
o Involuntarily Displaced status 
o Disability status 

• Compliance with Resident Screening Guidelines, such as 
o Criminal History 
o Credit History  
o Rental/Residence History 

• The Need for an Accessible Unit 

METHODS OF VERIFICATION  
Verifications will be attempted in the following order: 
 

• Enterprise Income Verification (EIV) 
• Upfront Income Verification (UIV) 
• Applicant provided third party documents (i.e. check stubs, award letters, etc) 
• Third-party form verification (as appropriate) 
• Third-party oral verification (if available) 



(Property Name) Tenant Selection Plan 

 Page 25  of 58 Pending Approval 5/12/2016 
 

• In the absence of any of the above, notarized or witnessed statements from the household member.  
Each file will be documented, when appropriate, to show that staff attempted to obtain third-party 
verification before relying on family certification. 

SOURCES OF INFORMATION  
Sources of information may include, but are not limited to: 
 

• Any member of the applicant household 
• Present and former housing providers/landlords 
• Present and former employers 
• Banks 
• Insurance Companies 
• Any Asset Manager 
• Family members 
• Any person or organization providing gifts/regular contributions to the household 
• Credit Screening providers 
• Criminal Screening providers 
• Eviction Screening providers 
• Social workers/Parole Officers 
• Court records 
• Drug Treatment Centers 
• Health Providers 
• Physicians 
• Clergy 
• Schools/Institutes of Higher Education 
• Department of Homeland Security (DHS) 
• Department of Health and Human Services (HHS) 
• The Internal Revenue Service (IRS) 
• The Social Security Administration (SSA) 
• Medicare/Medicaid 
• Representative of the United States Armed Forces 
• Any federal/local benefit providers 
• Pharmacies 
• Utility Providers 
• Local and non-local law enforcement 
• Automated criminal databases 
• Sexual Offenders registries when available 
• The world wide web (internet) 
• HUD’s EIV system 

 
The owner/agent will be the final judge of the credibility of any verification submitted by an applicant.  If the 
owner/agent questions the validity of a document or the validity of information provided, it will be reviewed by 
management staff for a ruling regarding acceptability.   



(Property Name) Tenant Selection Plan 

 Page 26  of 58 Pending Approval 5/12/2016 
 

PERIOD FOR VERIFICATION 
Only verified information that is less than 120 days old may be used for verification.  Verified information not 
subject to change (such as a person's date of birth) will not be re-verified. 

CONSENT AND VERIFICATION FORMS 
Regardless of age, the Head-of-Household (HOH), the co-Head-of-Household (HOH) the spouse of the Head-of-
Household (HOH) and all adult members of a household must sign HUD’s consent forms so that the owner/agent 
can verify eligibility:   
 

• HUD-9887, Notice and Consent for the Release of Information to HUD and to a PHA 
• HUD-9887-A, Applicant’s/Resident’s Consent to the Release of Information Verification by Owner/agents 

of Information Supplied by Individuals Who Apply for Housing Assistance 
 
Consent and verification forms protect the rights and privacy of residents and applicants by allowing them to 
have control over any information collected about them.  
 
All adult members of an applicant or resident household must also sign individual verification forms authorizing 
the owner/agent to verify household income and applicable eligibility factors (e.g., disability status) and to allow 
for screening.  
 
When a minor living in the unit turns 18, he/she will have thirty (30) days to meet with the management staff 
and sign appropriate forms.  Failure to do so will result in termination of subsidy for the entire household. 

PROVISIONS FOR REFUSAL TO SIGN  
If any member of the applicant’s household does not sign and submit the consent forms as required, the 
owner/agent must reject the application and deny assistance and/or tenancy. 

MISREPRESENTATION 
Any information, provided by the applicant that proves to be untrue may be used to disqualify the applicant 
because of misrepresentation or attempted fraud.  The owner/agent will not take any action to reduce or deny 
assistance based on inconsistent information received during the verification process until the owner/agent has 
independently investigated the information.   
 
The owner/agent considers false information about the following to be grounds for rejecting an applicant: 
 

• Identity 
• Social Security Numbers/Information 
• Income 
• Assets/Income From Assets 
• Household Composition 
• Disability 
• Birth Date/Age 
• Citizenship, Naturalization, And/or Eligible Immigration Status 
• Eviction History 
• Criminal History 
• Sexual Offender Status 
• Eligibility For Preferences and Priorities 



(Property Name) Tenant Selection Plan 

 Page 27  of 58 Pending Approval 5/12/2016 
 

• Allowances 
• Current/Previous Residence History  
• Current Housing Assistance 
• Status As A Student 

Unintentional errors that do not cause preferential treatment will not be used as a basis to reject applicants. 

APPLICANT SCREENING CRITERIA 
Screening is performed in a manner that is reasonable, consistent, and complies with fair housing laws. 
Screening is used to help ensure that households admitted to a property will abide by the terms of the lease, pay 
rent on time, take care of the property and unit, and allow all residents to peacefully enjoy their homes.   
 
Anyone who wishes to live on the property must be screened prior to moving in.  This includes, but is not limited 
to, live-in aides, security/police officers or additional household members wishing to move-in after the initial 
move-in.  Certain exceptions apply to children/minors.  The current screening guidelines in place at the time the 
new household member applies will be used to determine eligibility for admission.    

SCREENING FOR DRUG ABUSE AND OTHER CRIMINAL ACTIVITY 
 HUD has established standards that prohibit admission of: 
 

• Any household in which any member was evicted in the last three years from federally assisted housing 
for drug-related criminal activity   

• Any household in which any member was engaged in the production of methamphetamine. 
• *A household in which any member is currently engaged in illegal use of drugs or for which the  

owner/agent has reasonable cause to believe that a member’s illegal use or pattern of illegal use of a 
drug may interfere with the health, safety, and right to peaceful enjoyment of the property by other 
residents 

• Any household member who is subject to any state lifetime sex offender registration requirement  
• Any household member if there is reasonable cause to believe that member’s behavior, from abuse or 

pattern of abuse of alcohol, may interfere with the health, safety, and right to peaceful enjoyment by 
other residents.  The screening standards must be based on behavior, not the condition of alcoholism or 
alcohol abuse 

 
*”Currently engaged in” is defined as any use of illegal drugs during the previous six months.   

 
In addition to HUD requirements, the owner/agent has established a policy to reject all applications where the 
applicant or any household member has engaged in criminal activity as described in this document.   
 
The owner/agent will reject applications if any household member’s criminal history includes one or more of the 
following: 
 

o Sex Offender Registration:  Applicant, or any member of the applicant family, is or ever has been subject 
to registration under a state sex offender registration program 

o Record of any conviction or adjudication, other than acquittal, of the following felonies by any 
household member, regardless of when it happened:  
o Capital Murder 
o Murder / Manslaughter 
o Arson 
o Kidnapping 



(Property Name) Tenant Selection Plan 

 Page 28  of 58 Pending Approval 5/12/2016 
 

o Child Molestation 
o Treason 
o Rape or Crimes of a Sexual Nature 
o Incest  
o Crimes involving explosives 
o Crimes involving terrorism 
o Gross Lewdness  

 
o If any household member is currently engaged in, or has engaged in any of the following criminal 

activities, within the past four years, the family will be denied admission:  
o Drug-related criminal activity, defined by HUD as the illegal manufacture, sale, distribution or use of 

a drug or the possession of a drug with intent to manufacture, sell, distribute or use the drug [24 
CFR 5.100].   

o Violent criminal activity, defined by HUD as any criminal activity that has as one of its elements the 
use, attempted use or threatened use of physical force substantial enough to cause, or be 
reasonably likely to cause, serious bodily injury or property damage [24 CFR 5.100].  

o Criminal activity that may threaten the health, safety or welfare of other tenants [24 CFR 
960.203(c)(3)].  

o Illegal possession/discharge/display/carrying of firearm or illegal weapon/ deadly weapon.  
o Assault, aggravated assault, assault by threat, stalking.  
o Physical violence to persons or property, or criminal activity that has as one of its elements the use, 

attempted use or threatened use of physical force against the person or property of another. 
o Criminal activity that may threaten the health or safety of HACA staff, contractors, subcontractors or 

agents. 
o Three or more convictions of alcohol-related criminal activity, including Driving under the Influence 

and Public Intoxication.  
o Burglary of a Habitation.  
o If any household member is currently engaged in, or has engaged in any of the following criminal 

activities, within the past three years, the family will be denied admission:  
o A pattern of abuse of alcohol, including, but not limited to, public intoxication and 

driving while intoxicated.  
o  A pattern of fraud committed against a governmental entity.  
o A pattern of theft or fraud.  
o A pattern of organized criminal activity.  
o A pattern of prostitution.  

 
A pattern (for the purposes listed above) consists of three or more incidences, with a minimum of one incident 
occurring within the past three years.  The owner/agent will not use arrest records as the sole basis for denying 
admission to the program.  
 
If a resident or applicant has requested VAWA protections and such protections have been justified based on 
owner/agent investigation, the abuser/perpetrator will not be approved to live on the property. 
  
If the owner/agent is unable to complete required criminal or sexual offender screening, the application will be 
rejected.  If the owner/agent determines that a sex offender is part of the household, the owner/agent will 
allow the household to remove the sex offender from the application.  Removal must be documented using the 
change of address receipt from the Texas Department of Sex Offender Registration. 
 



(Property Name) Tenant Selection Plan 

 Page 29  of 58 Pending Approval 5/12/2016 
 

The household will have five (5) business days to provide verification that the household member has alternative 
housing or that the household member has applied for alternative housing.  Failure to provide such 
documentation will result in rejection of the application for all household members. 
 
The owner/agent reserves the right to monitor household composition after move-in.  If the owner/agent 
discovers that a sex offender has moved in to the unit, assistance will be terminated and the household will be 
evicted in accordance with HUD requirements.  Any assistance paid-in-error must be returned to HUD. 
 
United States Code Title 8, subsection 1324(a)(1)(A) prohibits the harboring of illegal aliens. The provision of 
housing to illegal aliens is a fundamental component of harboring.  All applicants will be required to provide 
proof of citizenship or legal immigration status. 
 
If criminal screening indicates that the applicant has an unacceptable criminal history, the owner/agent will 
reject the applicant in accordance with HUD guidance and the owner/agent’s standards for applicant rejection.   

• Consideration of Extenuating Circumstances 
In deciding whether to exercise discretion to admit an individual who has engaged in prohibited criminal 
activity, the owner/agent will consider all of the circumstances relevant to the particular admission 
decision, including but not limited to: the seriousness of the offending action; the effect that denial of 
the entire household would have on family members not involved in the criminal activity; and the extent 
to which the applicant has taken all reasonable steps to prevent or mitigate the criminal activity.  
 
Additionally, when specifically considering whether to deny admission for illegal drug use by a 
household member who is no longer engaged in such activity, the owner/agent will consider whether 
the household member is participating in or has successfully completed a drug rehabilitation program, 
or has otherwise been rehabilitated successfully.   

• Criminal Screening Discoveries 
If the criminal background investigation indicates that the applicant does not meet the criminal 
screening criteria, the owner/agent will reject the applicant in accordance with HUD guidance and the 
owner/agent’s standards for applicant rejection. Before rejecting the household, the owner/agent will 
compare the information provided by the applicant with the criminal history report.  If the information 
conflicts, the owner/agent will: 
 
o Notify the household of the proposed action based on the information; 
o Provide a copy of the criminal history report; 
o Provide the applicant with an opportunity to dispute the accuracy and relevance of the information 

obtained from any law enforcement agency; 
o Allow the household the opportunity to remove the household member. 
 
In this situation, applicants will have seven (7) calendar days to resolve the discrepancy.  If the applicant 
fails to contact the owner/agent or indicates that he/she cannot provide documentation to refute the 
criminal discovery, the owner/agent will reject the application and remove the household from the 
waiting list.  The owner/agent will notify the applicant family of the rejection in writing.  The family will 
have the opportunity to request an appeal of the denial according to the terms of the grievance policy 
within this tenant selection plan. 

 



(Property Name) Tenant Selection Plan 

 Page 30  of 58 Pending Approval 5/12/2016 
 

If, after move-in, the owner/agent discovers that there was criminal history that would have resulted in 
rejection, the owner/agent will contact the resident to ascertain the accuracy of the criminal report.  If 
the resident would have been rejected had the information been know at the time of the eligibility 
determination, the owner/agent will take appropriate action including notifying HUD’s Office of the 
Inspector General of potential fraud and pursuing termination of tenancy (eviction).   

SCREENING FOR CREDIT HISTORY 
The owner/agent reviews each adult applicant’s credit history.  The owner/agent does not consider medical 
bills/expenses, credit score, or the lack of credit history, when reviewing credit history.   
 
Credit history will be reviewed to determine the following: 
 

• If there is any debt owed to a prior landlord or HUD; 
• If there are any evictions that have not been reported; 
• If there are any other housing related judgments against the applicant.   

 
Applicants will be rejected in the following situations: 
 

• The family owes a debt to a federally assisted housing program which has not been repaid and the 
family has not established a repayment agreement. 

• The family has a pattern of debts owed to housing and residential programs within the past two years.   
 
If the applicant has no credit history, the credit screening will be considered “positive”. 

SCREENING FOR ABILITY TO ESTABLISH UTILITY SERVICE 
The owner/agent will also screen applicant households for the ability to establish utility services in the name of 
at least one adult family member.  All adult applicants will be required to sign the consent for Release of 
Information from Austin Energy.   
 
Applicant households which do not have any adult members able to establish service with Austin Energy will be 
given 7 days to resolve the issue with Austin Energy.  If the household is unable to do so, the application will be 
rejected. 

SCREENING FOR RENTAL HISTORY   
If any member of the applicant household has been evicted from any property owned or managed by the 
Housing Authority of the City of Austin for lease violations within the last two years, that applicant household 
will be rejected.     
 
The owner/agent will review rental history with any landlord indicated in the past two (2) years.  The 
owner/agent will also review information provided through automated databases including eviction databases.  
The application will be rejected for any of the following: 

• The family has been evicted from federally assisted housing within the past 2 years; 
• The family has a pattern of disturbance of neighbors, destruction of property or living or housekeeping 

habits at prior residences within the past two years which may adversely affect the health, safety or 
welfare of other tenants.  

• The family has a pattern of eviction from housing or termination from residential programs within the 
past five years (considering relevant circumstances). 



(Property Name) Tenant Selection Plan 

 Page 31  of 58 Pending Approval 5/12/2016 
 

If the applicant fails to identify one or more residences where he/she lived in the last two (2) years, the applicant 
will be rejected and the household will be removed from the waiting list. 
 
The owner/agent will contact the prior property owner/agent (as indicated above) and inquire about the 
following information:   

• Adherence to the Lease & Community Policies 
• Compliance with certification reporting requirements 
• Rental Payment Performance 
• Compliance with requirements to fully and accurately disclose income information in a timely manner 
• Requirement to Return Assistance Paid in Error due to under-reporting income or un-reported income 
• Unit Maintenance/Damage 
• Record of Disturbing Neighbors 
• Complaints  

 
If information obtained is negative the applicant will be rejected. Negative responses include but are not limited 
to: 

• A pattern of failure to comply with the lease 
• A pattern of failure to comply with House Rules, Pet Rules or Assistance Animal Rules 
• Failure to fully and accurately report income, new employment or changes in household composition in 

a timely manner (if required) 
• Providing false information 
• Attempting to receive or receiving HUD assistance in multiple units/homes 
• Slow or no response to requests to recertify 
• Poor rental payment history (average more than two (2) late payments per year, record of bounced 

checks, any outstanding balance) 
• A pattern of poor unit maintenance or damage to the unit beyond normal wear-and-tear  
• Complaints from neighbors regarding actions that directly affect the peace and quiet comfort of others 

living in the community  
• Record of actions that interfered with or prevented the previous landlord from effectively managing the 

property.   
• A pattern of outstanding balances owed by any household member to a prior landlord 

 
If the applicant has no landlord history, the landlord screening will be considered “positive”. 

SCREENING FOR RECEIPT OF HUD ASSISTANCE IN ANOTHER UNIT 
All applicants must disclose if they are currently receiving HUD housing assistance. The owner/agent will not 
knowingly assist applicants who will maintain a residence in addition to the HUD-assisted unit on this property.  
HUD provides the owner/agent with information about an applicant’s current status as a HUD housing 
assistance recipient.  
 
The owner/agent will use the Existing Tenant Report provided via HUD’s Enterprise Income Verification System 
(EIV) to determine if the applicant or any member of the applicant household is currently receiving HUD housing 
assistance.  This applies to all household members and to new members of an existing household, including 
minors, foster children/adults, and live-in aides.   
 



(Property Name) Tenant Selection Plan 

 Page 32  of 58 Pending Approval 5/12/2016 
 

Nothing prohibits a HUD housing assistance recipient from applying to this property. However, the applicant 
must move out of the current property and/or forfeit any voucher before HUD assistance on this property will 
begin.  Special consideration applies to: 
 

• Minor children where two assisted families share custody 
• Recipients of HUD assistance in another unit who are moving to establish a new household when other 

family/household members will remain in the original unit (Split household/Swap household) 
 
If the owner/agent/agent discovers a discrepancy between the information on the application and the 
information provided by EIV, the applicant will be notified and will have 5 business days to respond to the 
inquiry.    
 
If an applicant fails to fully and accurately disclose receipt of HUD assistance or rental history, the application 
will be rejected and the applicant and all members of the applicant household will be removed from the waiting 
list. 
 
If any household member receives or attempts to receive HUD housing assistance while receiving HUD housing 
assistance on this property, the household member will be required to reimburse HUD for assistance paid in 
error. This is considered a material lease violation and may result in penalties up to and including eviction and 
pursuit of fraud charges.   

REJECTING INELIGIBLE OR UNQUALIFIED APPLICANTS 
 The owner/agent reserves the right to reject applicants for admission based on any of the following: 
 

• No unit of the appropriate size exists on the property 
• The household fails to meet the HUD indicated eligibility requirements for the assistance 

program/property 
• Any non-exempt member of the household fails to provide a Social Security Number or adequate 

documentation to verify the Social Security Number (SSN)  
• Any member of the household fails to meet the applicant screening requirements 
• Any member of the household fails to sign appropriate verification documents 
• Misrepresentation 
• Fraud 
• Any member of the household fails to respond to management inquiries for additional information 

during the application process 
• The owner/agent is unable to contact the applicant via US Mail (letters undeliverable or returned) 

and/or by phone (number disconnected or changed) 
• Any member of the household has a record of eviction, for lease violations, from any property managed 

by the owner/agent or HACA 
• Any member of the household has a pattern of eviction, for lease violations, from any property within 

the last two years 
• There is a pattern of outstanding or overdue payments to a previous landlord 
• There is record of outstanding or overdue payments to HUD  
• The household is unable to establish utilities in the new unit 
• The household is unable to pay the security deposit required 
• The household is unable to take possession of the unit within the timeframes outlined in this plan 
• The household is unable to pay the first month’s rent (TTP) 



(Property Name) Tenant Selection Plan 

 Page 33  of 58 Pending Approval 5/12/2016 
 

• The household does not have a need for an accessible unit and refuses  one unit offer 

REJECTION NOTICES   
The owner/agent will promptly notify the household (Head-of-Household (HOH), in writing, of the denial of 
admission or assistance. A rejection letter will be sent to the Head-of-Household via First Class Mail.  The 
rejection letter will include the reason(s) for the rejection. 

APPEALING THE DECISION TO REJECT 
Any applicant may make a request to appeal the denial in writing within fifteen (15) calendar days from the 
date of the rejection.  The owner/agent will accept the request in an equally effective manner, as a reasonable 
accommodation, if there is the presence of a disability.  Such requests are to be submitted to the Admissions 
Department in HACA’s central office building. If there is no appeal request within fifteen (15) days, the rejection 
will be considered final.  Reasons to appeal include: 
 

• The applicant believes the decision has been made in error 
• The applicant believes there are extenuating circumstances that should be considered 
• The applicant or a member of the applicant’s household is a victim of abuse covered by the Violence 

Against Women Act and the applicant feels the applicant’s status as a victim contributes to the decision 
to deny 

• The applicant or a member of the applicant’s household is a person with a disability, and the applicant 
believes a reasonable accommodation would allow the owner/agent to continue processing the 
application 

• The applicant’s household was rejected because the application includes someone who is a registered 
sex offender and the applicant wishes to remove that household member 

 
Any staff person engaged in the initial review will not be involved in the appeal. HACA’s designated hearing 
officer will conduct the informal review.   
 
Applicants may bring a representative to assist in the appeal meeting.  Applicants and/or their representatives 
have the right to request a reasonable accommodation to: 
 

• Assist in facilitating your request for appeal  
• To assist in your participation during the appeal meeting  

 
The hearing officer will provide written notification of a final decision within ten (10) business days of the 
informal review.   
 
For complete details about the appeals process, see the Grievance and Appeals Policy.  This policy is available 
upon request. 
 

INFORMAL HEARINGS FOR PBRA APPLICANT 
Through PIH Notice 2012-32 Rev. 2, HUD provided guidance that the grievance procedures afforded to families 
living in Conventional Public Housing before conversion through RAD to Project Based Rental Assistance (PBRA) 
must be continued after the conversion.  Below is the full account of all grievance procedures for applicants to 
the PBRA property. 
 



(Property Name) Tenant Selection Plan 

 Page 34  of 58 Pending Approval 5/12/2016 
 

When the owner/agent makes a decision that has a negative impact on an applicant family, the family is often 
entitled to appeal the decision. For applicants, the appeal takes the form of an informal hearing. HUD 
regulations do not provide a structure for or requirements regarding informal hearings for applicants (except 
with regard to citizenship status, to be covered in Part II). This part discusses the owner/agent’s policies 
necessary to respond to applicant appeals through the informal hearing process. 

INFORMAL HEARING PROCESS [24 CFR 960.208(A) AND PH OCC GB, P. 58] 
Informal hearings are provided for PBRA applicants. An applicant is someone who has applied for admission to 
the PBRA program, but is not yet a resident in the program. Informal hearings are intended to provide a means 
for an applicant to dispute a determination of ineligibility for admission to a project [24 CFR 960.208(a)]. 
Applicants to PBRA are not entitled to the same hearing process afforded residents in the owner/agent 
grievance procedure [24 CFR 966.53(a) and PH Occ GB, p. 58]. 
 
Informal hearings provide the applicant a means to hear the details of the reasons for rejection, and an 
opportunity to present evidence to the contrary if available and to claim mitigating circumstances if possible. 

• Use of Informal Hearing Process 
The owner/agent will only offer the opportunity of an informal hearing to applicants who have been 
determined as ineligible for admission. 

• Notice of Denial  
The owner/agent will give an applicant prompt notice of a decision denying eligibility for admission. The 
notice will contain a brief statement of the reasons for the owner/agent’s decision, and will also state 
that the applicant may request an informal hearing to dispute the decision. The notice must describe 
how to obtain the informal hearing. 
 
The Notice of Denial letter will inform the applicant that he/she has a right to be represented by legal 
counsel when disputing the owner/agent’s decision denying eligibility for admission. 
 
Prior to notification of denial based on information obtained from criminal or sex offender registration 
records, the family, in some cases, must be given the opportunity to dispute the information in those 
records which would be the basis of the denial.  

• Scheduling an Informal Hearing 
A request for an informal hearing must be made in writing and delivered to the owner/agent either in 
person, by fax, by email or by first class mail, by the close of the business day, no later than 15 calendar 
days from the date of owner/agent’s notification of denial of admission. 
Owner/agent will send written notice of the informal hearing within 30 business days of the family’s 
request. Owner/agent will make every effort to hold the hearing within 45 calendar days of receiving the 
request for the hearing. 

• Conducting an Informal Hearing [PH Occ GB, p. 58]  
The informal hearing will be conducted by an appointed Hearing Officer who is a person other than the 
one who made the decision under review, or a subordinate of this person. 
 
The applicant will be provided an opportunity to present written or oral objections to the decision of the 
owner/agent. 
 



(Property Name) Tenant Selection Plan 

 Page 35  of 58 Pending Approval 5/12/2016 
 

The Hearing Officer will render a decision on whether admission should be granted or denied.  

• Informal Hearing Decision [PH Occ GB, p. 58] 
The owner/agent will notify the applicant of owner/agent’s final decision, including a brief statement of 
the reasons for the final decision. 
 
In rendering a decision, the owner/agent will evaluate the following matters: 

o Whether or not the grounds for denial were stated factually in the notice. 
o The validity of grounds for denial of admission. If the grounds for denial are not specified in the 

regulations or in the owner/agent’s policy, then the decision to deny assistance will be 
overturned. See the Tenant Selection Plan for a detailed discussion of the grounds for applicant 
denial. 

o The validity of the evidence. The owner/agent will evaluate whether the facts presented prove 
the grounds for denial of admission. If the facts prove that there are grounds for denial, and the 
denial is required by HUD, the owner/agent will uphold the decision to deny admission. 

o If the facts prove the grounds for denial, the Hearing Officer will make the final decision to deny 
admissions. 
 

The owner/agent will notify the applicant of the final decision, including a statement explaining the 
reason(s) for the decision. The notice will be mailed within 15 calendar days of the informal hearing to 
the applicant and his or her representative, if any. 
 
If the informal hearing decision overturns the denial, processing for admission will resume. The 
owner/agent will make every effort to resume the screening process for reinstated applicants within 20 
calendar days of the hearing decision. 
 
If the family fails to appear for their informal hearing, the denial of admission will stand and the family 
will be so notified. 
 
The applicant may request that the Hearing Officer consider a request for Reasonable Accommodations 
under the Fair Housing Act and Section 504 with respect to past conduct (see below).  
 
If the basis for the denial relates to family violence, the applicant may qualify for an exception under the 
Violence Against Women Amendments.  
 
The Notice of Denial letter will inform the applicant that he/she has a right to be represented by legal 
counsel when disputing the owner/agent’s decision denying eligibility for admission. 

REASONABLE ACCOMMODATIONS FOR PERSONS WITH DISABILITIES [24 CFR 966.7] 
Persons with disabilities may request reasonable accommodations to participate in the informal hearing process 
and the owner/agent must consider such accommodations. The owner/agent must also consider reasonable 
accommodation requests pertaining to the reasons for denial if related to the person’s disability.  See the 
Reasonable Accommodation Policy for more detail pertaining to reasonable accommodation requests. 

HEARING AND APPEAL PROVISIONS FOR NON-CITIZENS [24 CFR 5.514] 
Denial or termination of assistance based on immigration status is subject to special hearing and notice rules. 
These special hearings are referred to in the regulations as informal hearings, but the requirements for such 



(Property Name) Tenant Selection Plan 

 Page 36  of 58 Pending Approval 5/12/2016 
 

hearings are different from the informal hearings used to deny applicants for reasons other than immigration 
status. 
 
Assistance to a family may not be delayed, denied or terminated on the basis of immigration status at any time 
prior to a decision under the United States Citizenship and Immigration Services (USCIS) appeal process. 
Assistance to a family may not be terminated or denied while the owner/agent’s hearing is pending, but 
assistance to an applicant may be delayed pending the completion of the informal hearing. 
A decision against a family member, issued in accordance with the USCIS appeal process or the owner/agent’s 
informal hearing process, does not preclude the family from exercising the right, that may otherwise be 
available, to seek redress directly through judicial procedures. 

• Notice of Denial or Termination of Assistance [24 CFR 5.514(d)] 
The notice of denial or termination of assistance for noncitizens must advise the family of any of the 
following that apply: 
o That financial assistance will be denied or terminated, and provide a brief explanation of the reasons 

for the proposed denial or termination of assistance. 
o The family may be eligible for proration of assistance. 
o In the case of a resident, the criteria and procedures for obtaining relief under the provisions for 

preservation of families [24 CFR 5.514 and 5.518]. 
o That the family has a right to request an appeal to the USCIS of the results of secondary verification 

of immigration status and to submit additional documentation or explanation in support of the 
appeal. 

o That the family has a right to request an informal hearing with the owner/agent either upon 
completion of the USCIS appeal or in lieu of the USCIS appeal. 

o For applicants, assistance may not be delayed until the conclusion of the USCIS appeal process, but 
assistance may be delayed during the period of the informal hearing process. 

• United States Citizenship and Immigration Services Appeal Process [24 CFR 5.514(e)] 
When the owner/agent receives notification that the USCIS secondary verification failed to confirm 
eligible immigration status, the following process will be observed: 
o The owner/agent will notify the family of the results of the USCIS verification within 10 calendar 

days of receiving the results.  
o The family will have 30 days from the date of the owner/agent’s notification to request an appeal of 

the USCIS results. The request for appeal must be made by the family in writing directly to the 
USCIS.  

o The family must provide the owner/agent with a copy of the written request for appeal and proof of 
mailing within 10 calendar days of sending the request to USCIS. 

 
The family must forward to the designated USCIS office any additional documentation or written 
explanation in support of the appeal. This material must include a copy of the USCIS document 
verification request (used to process the secondary request) or such other form specified by the USCIS, 
and a letter indicating that the family is requesting an appeal of the USCIS immigration status 
verification results. 
 
The USCIS will notify the family, with a copy to the owner/agent, of its decision. When the USCIS notifies 
the owner/agent of the decision, the owner/agent must notify the family of its right to request an 
informal hearing. 
The owner/agent will send written notice to the family of its right to request an informal hearing within 



(Property Name) Tenant Selection Plan 

 Page 37  of 58 Pending Approval 5/12/2016 
 

10 business days of receiving notice of the USCIS decision regarding the family’s immigration status. 

• Informal Hearing Procedures for Applicants [24 CFR 5.514(f)] 
After notification of the USCIS decision on appeal, or in lieu of an appeal to the USCIS, an applicant 
family may request that the owner/agent provide a hearing. The request for a hearing must be made 
either within 30 days of receipt of the owner/agent’s notice of denial, or within 30 days of receipt of the 
USCIS appeal decision. 
The informal hearing procedures for applicant families are described below.  
 
o Informal Hearing Officer 

The owner/agent must provide an informal hearing before an impartial individual, other than a 
person who made or approved the decision under review, and other than a person who is a 
subordinate of the person who made or approved the decision.  
 

o Evidence 
The family will be provided the opportunity to examine and copy at the family’s expense or $.10 per 
page, at a reasonable time in advance of the hearing, any documents in the possession of the 
owner/agent pertaining to the family’s eligibility status or in the possession of the USCIS (as 
permitted by USCIS requirements), including any records and regulations that may be relevant to 
the hearing. 

 
The family will be provided the opportunity to present evidence and arguments in support of eligible 
status. Evidence may be considered without regard to admissibility under the rules of evidence 
applicable to judicial proceedings. 
 
The family must also be provided the opportunity to refute evidence relied upon by the 
owner/agent, and to confront and cross-examine all witnesses on whose testimony or information 
the owner/agent relies. 

 
o Representation and Interpretive Services 

The family is entitled to be represented by an attorney or other designee, at the family’s expense, 
and to have such person make statements on the family’s behalf. 
 
The family is entitled to arrange for an interpreter to attend the hearing, at the expense of the 
family, or the owner/agent, as may be agreed upon by the two parties. If the family does not 
arrange for their own interpreter, the owner/agent is still obligated to provide oral translation 
services in accordance with its LEP Plan. 

 
o Recording of the Hearing 

The family is entitled to have the hearing recorded by audiotape. The owner/agent will not provide a 
transcript of an audio taped informal hearing. 
 

o Hearing Decision 
The owner/agent must provide the family with a written notice of the final decision, based solely on 
the facts presented at the hearing, within 10 business days of the date of the informal hearing. The 
notice must state the basis for the decision. 
 

 



(Property Name) Tenant Selection Plan 

 Page 38  of 58 Pending Approval 5/12/2016 
 

o Retention of Documents [24 CFR 5.514(h)] 
The owner/agent must retain for a minimum of 5 years the following documents that may have 
been submitted to the owner/agent by the family, or provided to the owner/agent as part of the 
USCIS appeal or the owner/agent’s informal hearing process: 
o The application for assistance 
o The form completed by the family for income reexamination 
o Photocopies of any original documents, including original USCIS documents 
o The signed verification consent form 
o The USCIS verification results 
o The request for a USCIS appeal 
o The final USCIS determination 
o The request for an informal hearing 
o The final informal hearing decision 

OFFERING AN APARTMENT   
When a unit becomes available and eligibility is determined, available units will be offered using one or more of 
the following methods: 
 

• In writing, using the mailing address provided by the applicant family.  
• Over the phone, using the contact phone numbers provided by the applicant family. 
• By email, using the contact email address(es) provided by the applicant family. 

 
If the owner/agent is unable to contact the household within five (5) business days from the date of the letter, 
the offer will be cancelled and the apartment will be offered to the next applicant based on the selection criteria 
described in this plan.   
 
Failure to respond to the owner/agent will be considered a refusal of the unit offer. (See Right to Refusal 
policies.)  It is the applicant family’s responsibility to keep all contact information current with the Admissions 
Department. 

OFFERING ACCESSIBLE UNITS 
Units that have been made accessible in accordance with the Universal Federal Accessibility Standards or the 
Americans with Disabilities Act Accessibility Guidelines will be offered to applicant households with disabled 
members first. In some cases, the owner/agent may implement marketing effort to ensure that disabled 
households occupy accessible units.  
 
Units with communication accessible features will be offered to households with a verified need for 
communication accessible units first. 
 
Units with mobility accessible features will be offered to households with a verified need for mobility accessible 
units first. 
 
After move-in, if the members of the household who required the special features of the accessible unit no 
longer reside in the unit, and where the lease permits, the owner/agent will require the remaining members of 
the household to move to a unit without accessibility features when such a unit of the appropriate size becomes 
available.  
 



(Property Name) Tenant Selection Plan 

 Page 39  of 58 Pending Approval 5/12/2016 
 

If there is no household on the waiting list that has requested an accessible unit, the unit will then be offered to 
the next household based on the selection order. Before the applicant can accept that accessible unit, all adult 
members of the applicant household must sign an agreement that includes a requirement to move, at the 
household’s expense, to the first available non-accessible unit that meets the household’s occupancy 
requirements as described in this plan.  The resident household will not be required to move if: 
 

• No unit that meets the household’s occupancy requirements is available 
• There is no applicant household on the waiting list requesting an accessible unit 

 
In either of the cases above, the household must take possession of the unit within the timeframes outlined in 
this plan. If the applicant fails to move in within the established timeframes, assistance will be terminated.  This 
rule in no way affects the single residence criteria. The household can only accept assistance in one unit on any 
given day. 

OFFERING UNITS TO DISABLED APPLICANTS REQUESTING ACCESSIBILITY FEATURES 
The owner/agent will not skip over a household that has reached the top of the waiting list and has indicated a 
need for certain unit features because of a disability.  
 
The household will be given the opportunity to benefit from the program and decide, in compliance with the 
Fair Housing Act and Section 504, whether a unit meets the needs of the disabled household member.  The 
household may accept the unit and request some modification to the unit as a reasonable accommodation.  See 
the owner/agent’s Reasonable Accommodation Policy in Appendix A for information about requesting a 
reasonable modification. 

OFFERING UNITS TO APPLICANTS OR RESIDENTS WITH PREFERENCES 
Applicants/residents with preferences are selected from the waiting list and receive an opportunity for an 
available unit earlier than those who do not have a preference.   
 
APPLICANT/RESIDENT SELECTION ORDER 
Accessible Apartments will be offered in the following order:   

• The next household on the transfer list who is requesting an accessible unit.  Offers will be made in 
order according to the weighted transfer list preferences: 
 

o Emergency / Safety (with need for an accessible unit) 
o Reasonable Accommodation (with need for an accessible unit) 
o Over Housed (with need for an accessible unit) 
o Under Housed (with need for an accessible unit) 

 
• The next applicant on the waiting list who is requesting an accessible unit.  Offers will be made in order 

according to the weighted waiting list preferences: 
 

o HACA Resident VAWA preference (with need for an accessible unit) 
o Involuntarily Displaced preference (with need for an accessible unit) 
o Disability preference (with need for an accessible unit) 

 
• When there is no one in need of the accessibility features for this unit, the offer will be given to the next 

household on the transfer list.  Offers will be made in order according to the weighted transfer list 
preferences: 



(Property Name) Tenant Selection Plan 

 Page 40  of 58 Pending Approval 5/12/2016 
 

o Emergency / Safety 
o Reasonable Accommodation 
o Over Housed 
o Under Housed  

 
• When there is no one in need of the accessibility features of this unit, the offer will be given to the next 

applicant on the waiting list.  Offers will be made in order according to the weighted waiting list 
preferences:  
 

o HACA Resident VAWA 
o Involuntarily Displaced 
o Disability 

 
Standard Apartments will be offered in the following order: 

• The next household on the transfer list, regardless of need for an accessible unit.  Offers will be made in 
order according to the weighted transfer list preferences:  
 

o Emergency / Safety 
o Reasonable Accommodation 
o Over Housed 
o Under Housed 
o Resident has no need for accessible feature in current unit 

 
• The next applicant on the waiting list, regardless of need for an accessible unit.  Offers will be made in 

order according to the weighted waiting list preferences: 
 

o HACA Resident VAWA 
o Involuntarily Displaced 
o Disability  

RIGHT TO REFUSAL 
The Right to Refusal Policy applies to applicants and existing residents who have submitted a Unit Transfer 
Request.  Residents requesting unit transfer and applicants will be offered available units based on the 
information included in this resident selection plan.  
 
Each household will only be offered the opportunity to accept an offered apartment one (1) time. If a 
resident/applicant does not wish to accept an offered apartment, they have the right to refuse the offer.   
 
Residents/applicants must notify the owner/agent of their intent to refuse the unit offer by using one or more of 
the following methods: 
 

• In writing (delivered by fax, mail or other means) 
• By email 
• Over the phone 

 
Note:  If the refusal is made over the phone, contact must be made with a member of the management 
staff. Leaving a message is not adequate. 



(Property Name) Tenant Selection Plan 

 Page 41  of 58 Pending Approval 5/12/2016 
 

When an applicant or resident refuses a unit, the unit will be offered to the next qualified household based on 
the selection order described above.  
 
When a resident refuses a transfer offer, the terms of the lease require that the assistance be terminated and 
the resident be required to pay the full contract rent. 
 
When an applicant refuses an offered unit, the household will be removed from the waiting list and will have to 
wait one calendar year before applying again. 
 
 
Right to refusal policies will be modified in two cases: 
 

• If a disabled applicant or resident is at the top of the waiting list, they will be offered units as they 
become available regardless of whether they include accessible features. A disabled household has the 
right to refuse an unlimited number of non-accessible units or units that do not meet the specific 
accessibility requirements for the family. This modification applies only when the offered unit is a non-
accessible unit.  The one refusal limit still applies when an accessible unit which meets the family’s 
requirements is offered. Note:  Certain restrictions apply to non-elderly disabled households when HUD’s 
program eligibility requires the need for an accessible unit.   

• If an applicant or resident household with no disabled members is at the top of the waiting list, and 
there are no disabled households on the waiting list, that household may be offered an accessible unit. 
An applicant household with no disabled household members has the right to refuse an unlimited 
number of accessible units or units that do not meet their needs.  

TIMEFRAME FOR TAKING POSSESSION OF A UNIT BY AN APPLICANT FAMILY 
When a housing offer is made, the applicant family must meet the following timeframes for taking possession of 
the offered unit: 
 

• Within 2 business days from the date the offer is received, the applicant family must make contact with 
the property management staff.  At that time, the property management staff will notify the family of 
the anticipated date that the unit will be available to be viewed. 

• Once the unit is ready to view, the property management will schedule an appointment to view the unit.  
Failure to attend the scheduled appointment is considered a rejection of the housing offer. 

• Within 3 calendar days of viewing the unit, the applicant family must accept or reject the unit.  No 
response by close of business on the third day is considered a rejection of the housing offer. 

• Within 2 calendar days of accepting an offer, the applicant family must pay the security deposit and the 
prorated first month’s rent.  At that time, the family will receive the keys and are considered to have 
taken possession of the unit.  Failure to take possession of the unit by close of business on the second 
day is considered a rejection of the unit. 

 
When the first housing offer is rejected and a second (or subsequent) offer is made, the applicant family must 
meet the following timeframes for taking possession of the offered unit: 
 

• Within 2 business days from the date the offer is received, the applicant family must make contact with 
the property management staff.  At that time, the property management staff will schedule an 
appointment to view the unit.  Failure to attend the scheduled appointment is considered a rejection of 
the housing offer. 



(Property Name) Tenant Selection Plan 

 Page 42  of 58 Pending Approval 5/12/2016 
 

• Within 4 calendar days of viewing the unit, the applicant family must accept or reject the unit.  No 
response by close of business on the third day is considered a rejection of the housing offer. 

• Within 4 calendar days of accepting an offer, the applicant family must pay the security deposit and the 
prorated first month’s rent.  At that time, the family will receive the keys and are considered to have 
taken possession of the unit.  Failure to take possession of the unit by close of business on the second 
day is considered a rejection of the unit. 

 
If the applicant household does not complete appropriate paperwork and does not take possession of the unit 
within the timeframes outlined above, the applicant will be subsequently rejected and removed from the 
waiting list.  Extenuating circumstances will be considered, including the following: 
 

• The family is dealing with a documented medical or other family emergency.  In this case the 
owner/agent and family will negotiate an appropriate solution which may include offering the family the 
next unit. 

• The family is required to give 30 days’ notice to their current landlord which is part of another federally 
assisted housing program. 

 
When the family rejects the unit or does not meet the outlined timeframes, the owner/agent reserves the right 
to refuse subsequent applications.  The unit will be offered to the next eligible applicant/resident based on the 
selection order described in this plan.     

UNIT TRANSFER POLICIES 
The owner/agent will accept requests for transfer in the following situations: 
 

• Emergency / Safety:  The household needs to move due to a life-threatening situation.  Life-threatening 
situations include the following: 
 
o Due to no fault of the resident(s), the unit is uninhabitable and cannot be made habitable in a 

reasonable amount of time; 
o A household member has experienced a medical condition which makes the current unit 

uninhabitable or unsafe; 
o A household member is in danger of retaliation; 
o A household member is a victim of domestic violence and qualifies for VAWA protections. 

 
• Reasonable Accommodation:  A family member has a verified need for an accessible unit. 
• Over Housed:  The household is in a unit that is larger than they qualify for according to the 

owner/agent’s subsidy standards. 
• Under Housed:  The household is in a unit that is smaller than they qualify for according to the 

owner/agent’s subsidy standards. 
• Unneeded Accessibility Feature:  The family does not require or no longer needs the accessibility 

features of a unit in which they are living.  However, another family does need that accessibility feature. 
 
Unit transfer requests that do not fall into one of these categories will not be approved.  Families requesting to 
move for any other reason will be provided with information on how to apply for housing assistance at the other 
properties managed or owned and operated by the Housing Authority of the City of Austin. 
 
Existing residents must complete a Unit Transfer Request. The Unit Transfer Request must be completed and 
signed by the head of household and all adult household members who wish to move.  The owner/agent will 



(Property Name) Tenant Selection Plan 

 Page 43  of 58 Pending Approval 5/12/2016 
 

accept the Unit Transfer Request in an equally effective format, as a reasonable accommodation, if there is the 
presence of a disability.   
 
Special consideration is given when the unit transfer is requested because there is: 
 

• A verified medical need for a different unit 
• A verified need for an accessible unit 
• There is a need for a unit transfer of a household that does not require the accessibility features of a 

unit in which they are living to accommodate a disabled resident/applicant on the waiting list. 
• A change in household size that makes the current unit too large or too small for the family based on the 

owner/agent’s occupancy standards 
 
With the exception of Emergencies and Reasonable Accommodations, unit transfers will be granted only if: 
 

• The household has not given notice to move  
• The resident is not being evicted 
• The resident is current for all outstanding charges 
• The resident complies with lease provisions regarding decent safe and sanitary conditions of current unit  

 
A household living in an apartment too large for its needs will not be required to move if there are no applicants 
waiting for the bedroom size to be vacated by the transfer.  
 
An appropriate sized unit will be available before the resident household is required to move.  At that time, the 
household will have thirty (30) days to complete the transfer. 

SECURITY DEPOSITS, PET DEPOSITS & UNIT TRANSFERS 
When a resident transfers to a new unit with all other household members, the owner/agent will charge a new 
security deposit and refund the security deposit for the old unit less any outstanding amounts for rent, fees or 
damages.  If the move out expenses exceed the security deposit, the family will receive an itemized bill which 
must be paid within 30 days of receipt of the bill. 
 
When a resident owns a pet, the original unit will be assessed for damages caused by the pet.  The pet deposit 
will be reduced by charges for those damages and the resident will be required to obtain a pet deposit balance 
of $100.00 per animal for the new unit.  The resident will be allowed to pay the new pet deposit balance due in 
$10.00 monthly payments until the $100.00 pet deposit balance is reached.  

SECURITY DEPOSITS & UNIT TRANSFERS 
When a resident transfers to a new unit with all other household members, the owner/agent will charge a new 
security deposit and refund the security deposit for the old unit less any outstanding amounts for rent, fees or 
damages.  If the move out expenses exceed the security deposit, the family will receive an itemized bill which 
must be paid within 30 days of receipt of the bill. 

CHANGES IN HOUSEHOLD COMPOSITION 

ADDING HOUSEHOLD MEMBERS AFTER INITIAL OCCUPANCY 
The owner/agent must approve any new adult household member before he/she moves in to the unit.  
Eligibility criteria, screening criteria and compliance with occupancy standards will be reviewed before the new 
household member is approved or denied.   



(Property Name) Tenant Selection Plan 

 Page 44  of 58 Pending Approval 5/12/2016 
 

The request to add a new household member will not be considered if the resident has provided notice to 
vacate the unit.  This helps prevent applicants from “jumping” ahead on the waiting list. 
 
Any new adult household member will be considered an applicant and must participate in the eligibility 
determination and screening processes described in the tenant selection plan in place at the time of the 
eligibility determination.   
 
The rent/assistance payment will be re-calculated to reflect any income or allowances for the new household 
member.  If the rent increases, the increase will take effect the first of the month following delivery of a 30-day 
notice of change to rent.  If the rent decreases, the decrease will take effect the first of the month following the 
addition of the new household member.   
 
This policy applies to live-in aides as well.  Screening criteria will also be applied to live-in aides, except for the 
criterion regarding credit performance or the ability to pay rent on time because live-in aides are not 
responsible for rental payments.  However, live in aides must meet other screening criteria established by the 
owner/agent.  Income and/or allowances received by live-in aides will not be considered.   
 
Information about new household members who are minors must be provided to the owner/agent as quickly as 
possible but within no more than thirty (30) calendar days.  This includes, as applicable, required eligibility 
information including Social Security Numbers, proof of citizenship or non-citizen eligibility and other pertinent 
information.   
 
If the new household member is under the age of six, special consideration regarding Social Security Number 
disclosure and verification of Social Security Numbers is given.  The household will be given ninety (90) calendar 
days to provide the Social Security Number and adequate documentation to verify the Social Security Number 
provided.  In some cases, an additional ninety (90) days may be provided.   
 
If the household fails to provide the required Social Security Number information within the allotted timeframe, 
the household’s tenancy will be terminated (eviction) in accordance with HUD requirements.   
 
Each dependent child that lives in the unit may be eligible for a $480 deduction that decreases the monthly rent 
payment by roughly $12.00 per month.  The rent payment will be re-calculated to reflect any income or 
allowances for the new household member.   
 
If the rent increases, the increase will take effect the first of the month following delivery of a 30-day notice of 
change to rent.  If the rent decreases, the decrease will take effect the first of the month following the addition 
of the new household member. 
 
Failure to notify the owner/agent about changes in household composition as described above may result in 
retroactive rent changes and/or termination of subsidy/tenancy for the entire household.  Please contact the 
owner/agent or property staff if you have questions about this policy.   

REMOVING HOUSEHOLD MEMBERS AFTER INITIAL OCCUPANCY 
Residents must notify the owner/agent if any household member listed on the lease or on HUD Form 50059 
leaves the unit.  This notification must occur as quickly as possible but within no more than thirty (30) calendar 
days.   
 



(Property Name) Tenant Selection Plan 

 Page 45  of 58 Pending Approval 5/12/2016 
 

Upon notice, the rent payment will be re-calculated to remove any income or allowances for the previous 
household member.  If the rent increases, the increase will take effect the first of the month following delivery 
of a 30-day notice of change to rent.  If the rent decreases, the decrease will take effect the first of the month 
following the removal of the household member.   
 
Failure to provide notice to the owner/agent, within thirty (30) days, could result in rent increases retroactive to 
the first of the month after the household member left.  Subsidy paid in error will be returned, as required, to 
the Department of Housing & Urban Development.   
 
If the resident fails to notify the owner/agent of a change in household composition within thirty (30) calendar 
days, and that change would result in a rent decrease, the owner/agent will make the decrease effective the first 
of the month following the notice.  No retroactive rent credits will be returned to the resident. 
 
Failure to notify the owner/agent about changes in household composition may result in termination of subsidy 
and/or tenancy for the entire household.  Please contact the owner/agent if you have questions about this 
policy.   

APARTMENT INSPECTIONS 
All apartments must undergo periodic inspection conducted by the on-site management team, HUD or HUD’s 
representatives/agents.  These inspections include not only interior but also exterior inspections.  Residents 
have the right to be present, and are, in fact encouraged, to be present during unit inspection.   
 
The move-in inspection is an opportunity to familiarize the new resident with the property and the unit, as well 
as to document its current condition.  By performing move-in inspections, the owner/agent and residents are 
assured that the unit is in livable condition and is free of damages.  A move-in inspection gives the owner/agent 
an opportunity to familiarize residents with the operation of appliances and equipment in the unit. 
 
The move-out inspection is conducted when a household vacates a unit.   The owner/agent will list the damages 
on the Unit Inspection Form and compare it with the Unit Inspection Form completed at move-in to determine if 
there is any damage or excessive wear-and-tear.     
 
In addition, the owner/agent will perform unit inspections on at least an annual basis to determine whether the 
appliances and equipment in the unit are functioning properly and to assess whether a component needs to be 
repaired or replaced.   
 
This is also an opportunity to determine any damage to the unit and, if so, make the necessary repairs.  At this 
time, residents may be charged for damages to the unit so long as those damages are not the result of normal 
wear-and-tear. 
 
Housekeeping inspections will be conducted on a semi-annual (every 6 months) basis.  Housekeeping 
inspections provide the owner/agent the opportunity to verify that the unit is being properly cared for and to 
verify the need for any necessary repairs.   
 
HUD, or its authorized contractor(s), has the right to inspect the units and the entire property to ensure that 
the property is being well maintained.  These inspections assure HUD that owner/agents and their agents are 
fulfilling their obligations under the regulatory agreements and/or subsidy contracts and that residents are 
provided with decent, safe, and sanitary housing. 
 



(Property Name) Tenant Selection Plan 

 Page 46  of 58 Pending Approval 5/12/2016 
 

CHANGES TO THE RESIDENT SELECTION PLAN 
Applicants will be notified in writing when the resident selection plan undergoes significant change or when 
preferences are added or removed.  At that time, applicants will be: 
 

• Given an opportunity to review the new plan 
• Notified of changes to preferences 
• Asked if they wish to remain on the waiting list 

 
If the applicant household does not respond, that household will be deemed ineligible and removed from the 
waiting list. 
 
The current resident selection plan, in place at the time of final eligibility determination, will be used to make a 
final decision to approve or reject the application. 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 



(Property Name) Tenant Selection Plan 

 Page 47  of 58 Pending Approval 5/12/2016 
 

APPENDIX A – REQUEST FOR REASONABLE ACCOMMODATION OR MODIFICATION 
The owner/agent is committed to complying with the Fair Housing Act and Section 504 of the Rehabilitation Act 
by ensuring that its policies and practices do not deny individuals with disabilities the opportunity to participate 
in, or benefit from, nor otherwise discriminate against individuals with disabilities in connection with the 
operation of housing services or programs solely on the basis of such disabilities.   
 
If an individual with a disability requests an accommodation or modification, the owner/agent will fulfill these 
requests, unless doing so would result in a fundamental alteration in the nature of the program or create an 
undue financial and administrative burden. In such a case, if possible, the owner/agent will offer an alternative 
solution that would not result in a financial or administrative burden. 
 

• The owner/agent informs all applicants/residents that, at any time, the applicant/resident or a person 
acting on behalf of the applicant/resident may make a request for reasonable accommodation or 
modification for an individual with a disability.  

• At the time of application, all applicants are provided with a copy of the Reasonable Accommodation - 
Modification Policy.  This is provided in writing as part of the Application Package or, upon the 
applicant’s request, the Policy will be provided in an equally effective format. 

• All applicants/residents are provided with a Reasonable Accommodation/Modification Request Form 
when requesting a reasonable accommodation or modification.  The request will be accepted in an 
equally effective format, as a reasonable accommodation, if there is the presence of a disability.  A 
resident or applicant may submit the request in writing, orally, or use another equally effective means of 
communication to request an accommodation or modification. 

• Residents and applicants may contact the management office located within their property for 
information about requests.  

• The owner/agent will provide an initial reply to requests as quickly as possible, but no more than ten 
(10) business days from the receipt of the request unless the owner/agent explains the delay.  Response 
may include but is not limited to: 
o Request Approval 
o Request Denial 
o Request for Additional Information or Verification of Need 

• The owner/agent will consent to or deny the request as quickly as possible.  Unless the owner/agent 
explains the delay, the applicant/resident will be notified of the decision to consent or deny within no 
more than thirty (30) calendar days after receiving all necessary information and documentation from 
the resident and/or appropriate verification sources.  All decisions to grant or deny reasonable 
accommodations will be communicated in writing or, if required/requested, in an alternative format. 
Exceptions to the thirty (30) day period for notification of the owner/agent’s decision on the request will 
be provided to the resident setting forth the reasons for the delay.  

• If the request for reasonable accommodation or modification is denied, the requestor has the right to 
appeal the decision within fifteen (15) business days of the date of the written notification of denial.  
The appeal meeting will be conducted by a person who was not originally involved in the decision to 
deny. 
 

For full explanation of reasonable accommodation requests, see the owner/agent’s Reasonable Accommodation 
policy.  The policy is available upon request. 

 
 
 



(Property Name) Tenant Selection Plan 

 Page 48  of 58 Pending Approval 5/12/2016 
 

 APPENDIX B – CITIZEN/NON-CITIZEN ELIGIBILITY 
Applicants are required to declare U.S. Citizenship or submit evidence of eligible immigration status for each of 
household member seeking housing assistance.  The owner/agent is required to obtain the following 
documents: 
  

• Family Composition List (lists all household members who will reside in the assisted unit) 
• Citizenship Declaration (Each household member listed on the Household Summary Sheet must 

complete) 
• Forms and/or evidence of citizen/immigration status 

 
If you have any questions or difficulty in providing the described information or determining the type of 
documentation required, please contact the management office.  If you are unable to provide the required 
documentation in the timeframe indicated, you must contact the management office and request an extension.  
If you fail to provide this information, the owner/agent cannot provide assistance.   
 
The owner/agent agent will offer the household assistance, providing subsidy to those household members 
whose documents were received on time when the following criteria is met: 
 

• Assistance/unit is available  
• The household has come to the top of the waiting list 
• At least one member of the household has submitted the required documentation in a timely manner 

and has been determined to be eligible based on all of the criteria in this resident selection plan 
 
If any household member is determined to be an ineligible non-citizen, either at application or after move-in, 
assistance may be prorated or terminated.   

REQUIRED DOCUMENTATION 
The owner/agent must obtain the following documentation for each household member regardless of age: 
 

 From U.S. citizens, a signed declaration of citizenship.  The owner/agent requires verification of the 
declaration.  The following documents will be accepted as proof of citizenship 
o United States (U.S.) Passport  
o U.S. birth certificate 
o Other documentation as provided by HUD or DHS 

 From non-citizens claiming eligible status who is 62 or older:  
o A signed declaration of eligible immigration status and 
o Proof of age 

 From non-citizens claiming eligible status who is not 62 or older:  
o A signed declaration of eligible immigration status and 
o A signed consent form and 
o One of the DHS-approved documents  

 Form I-551, Permanent Resident Card. 
 Form 1-94, Arrival-Departure Record annotated with one of the following: 

• “Admitted as a Refugee Pursuant to Section 207”; 
• “Section 208” or “Asylum”; 
• “Section 243(h)” or “Deportation stayed by Attorney General”; or 
• “Paroled Pursuant to Section 212(d)(5) of the INA.” 



(Property Name) Tenant Selection Plan 

 Page 49  of 58 Pending Approval 5/12/2016 
 

 Form I-94, Arrival-Departure Record (with no annotation) accompanied by one of the 
following: 

• A final court decision granting asylum (but only if no appeal is taken); 
• A letter from an DHS asylum officer granting asylum (if application was filed on 

or after October 1, 1990) or from an DHS district director granting asylum 
(application filed was before October 1, 1990); 

• A court decision granting withholding of deportation; or 
• A letter from an asylum officer granting withholding of deportation (if 

application was filed on or after October 1, 1990). 
 A receipt issued by the DHS indicating that an application for issuance of a replacement 

document in one of the above-listed categories has been made and that the applicant’s 
entitlement to the document has been verified. 

 Other acceptable evidence.  
 
If other documents are determined by the DHS to constitute acceptable evidence of eligible immigration status, 
they will be announced by notice published in the Federal Register. 

TIMEFRAMES FOR SUBMITTING EVIDENCE OF CITIZENSHIP/IMMIGRATION STATUS TO THE OWNER/AGENT 
Applicants must submit required documentation of citizenship/immigration status no later than the date the 
owner/agent initiates verification of other eligibility factors (pre application or application).  Owner/agents 
determine the applicant’s citizenship or immigration status during the initial eligibility determination prior to 
move-in.   
 
If the applicant cannot supply the documentation within the owner/agent’s specified timeframe, the 
owner/agent may grant the applicant an extension of not more than thirty (30) days, but only if the applicant 
certifies that the documentation is temporarily unavailable and additional time is needed to collect and submit 
the required documentation.  (Although the extension period may not exceed thirty (30) days, the owner/agent 
may establish a shorter extension period based on the circumstances of the individual case.) 
 
The owner/agent will inform the applicant in writing (or, if required/requested, in an alternative format) if an 
extension request is granted or denied.  If the request is granted, the owner/agent will include the new deadline 
for submitting the documentation.  If the request is denied, the owner/agent will state the reasons for the 
denial in the response.  When granting or rejecting extensions, the owner/agent will treat applicants 
consistently. 

REVIEWING AND VERIFICATION OF A HOUSEHOLD’S CITIZENSHIP/IMMIGRATION STATUS 
Owner/agents will conduct primary verification through the (Systematic Alien Verification for Entitlements) 
SAVE ASVI database - the Department of Homeland Security (DHS) automated system.   
After accessing the ASIV database, the owner/agent enters the required data fields.   
 
The system will display one of the following messages for immigration status confirmation on the screen.  
 

• Lawful Permanent Resident  
• Temporary Resident  
• Conditional Resident 
• Asylee 
• Refugee 



(Property Name) Tenant Selection Plan 

 Page 50  of 58 Pending Approval 5/12/2016 
 

• Cuban\Haitian Entrant 
• Conditional Entrant 

 
Secondary verification.  If the message “institute secondary verification” is displayed on the screen, the manual 
verification process must be used.  Within ten (10) days of receiving an “Institute Secondary Verification” 
response, the owner/agent will prepare DHS Form G-845S, Document Verification Request.  The owner/agent 
will send DHS Form G-845S and photocopies of the DHS documents submitted by the applicant to the DHS office 
serving the property’s jurisdiction.   
 
The DHS will return to the owner/agent a copy of DHS Form G-845S indicating the results of the automated and 
manual search.   

NOTIFICATION TO APPLICANTS 
 Owner/agents will notify households in writing that they are:  
 

 Eligible for assistance 
 Eligible for partial assistance, as a mixed household   

 
The owner/agent/agent will notify applicants and/or residents in writing if they are found to be ineligible based 
upon citizenship/immigration status.   

MIXED HOUSEHOLDS 
A mixed household—a household with one or more ineligible members and one or more eligible household 
members—may receive: 
 

• Prorated assistance 
• Continued assistance 

APPEALING DETERMINATIONS OF INELIGIBILITY 
The owner/agent will notify the household in writing as soon as possible if the secondary verification process 
returns a negative result.   
 
The applicant or resident has thirty (30) days from receipt of the notice to choose which option to follow.   
 
The applicant or resident may appeal the owner/agent’s decision directly to the DHS.  The applicant or resident 
must send a copy of the appeal directly to the owner/agent. The DHS should respond to the appeal within thirty 
(30) days.   
 
If the DHS decision results in a positive determination of eligibility, the owner/agent can provide the appropriate 
housing assistance.  If the DHS decision results in a negative determination of eligibility, the household has thirty 
(30) days to request a hearing with the owner/agent. 

PROHIBITION AGAINST DELAY OF ASSISTANCE 
Owner/agents may not delay the household’s assistance if the applicant or resident submitted immigration 
information in a timely manner but the DHS verification or appeals process has not been completed.   
 
If a unit is available, the household has come to the top of the waiting list, and at least one member of the 
household has submitted the required documentation in a timely manner and has been determined to be 



(Property Name) Tenant Selection Plan 

 Page 51  of 58 Pending Approval 5/12/2016 
 

eligible, the owner/agent will offer the household a unit and provide full assistance to those household 
members whose documents were received on time.  The owner/agent will continue to provide full assistance to 
such households until information establishing the immigration status of any remaining non-citizen household 
members has been received and verified. 



(Property Name) Tenant Selection Plan 

 Page 52  of 58 Pending Approval 5/12/2016 
 

APPENDIX C:  DUAL SUBSIDY NOTICE 
I understand that my application to move to NAME OF PROPERTY with the rest of my household members has 
met preliminary eligibility requirements.    
 
I have indicated, on the application, that: 
 

1.  I am not currently receiving HUD assistance in another unit  
 

2.  I am currently receiving HUD assistance in another unit.   
 
According to the current HUD lease, if I am living in a community and receiving HUD project-based assistance, I 
must provide a 30-day notice to the agent managing the property where assistance is currently provided.   
 
If the owner/agent discovers that any household member failed to move out of a HUD assisted residence before 
moving to NAME OF PROPERTY, no rent subsidy or utility allowance will be provided by the Department of 
Housing and Urban Development until the day after the move out is complete.  Household members who signed 
the lease will be responsible for paying the market rent until qualified to receive HUD assistance on this property.  
Any assistance paid in error must be returned to HUD. 
 

3.  I am the recipient of a housing voucher.   
 
I understand that HUD prohibits residents from benefiting from Housing Voucher assistance in a unit assisted 
through HUD’s Section 8 program. 
 
I understand that HUD prohibits residents from benefiting from Housing Voucher assistance in a unit assisted 
through HUD’s Section 8 program.  When the application is submitted the household will be added to the waiting 
list.  A unit will be offered in accordance with the resident selection plan.  If the family later moves out of the 
project, the project subsidy will not move with the family as it does with a voucher.  If you wish to participate in 
the voucher program after move-out, you will need to reapply to the PHA to receive another voucher. 
 
All household members must be removed from or forfeit the voucher before receiving HUD assistance for a unit 
on this property.  If the owner/agent discovers that any household member failed to give up current HUD 
assistance before moving to NAME OF PROPERTY, no rent subsidy or utility allowance will be provided by the 
Department of Housing and Urban Development until the day after the move out is complete.   
 
Household members who signed the lease will be responsible for paying the market rent until qualified to receive 
HUD assistance on this property.  Any assistance paid in error must be returned to HUD. 
 
This information will be verified using the Existing Tenant Report in EIV.  If EIV indicates a conflict and 
verification information indicates that the information provided is not true, and the EIV information is verified, 
then the owner/agent will reject the application based on misrepresentation of information.   

 

 

 

 



(Property Name) Tenant Selection Plan 

 Page 53  of 58 Pending Approval 5/12/2016 
 

APPENDIX D – VERIFICATION OF HOUSEHOLD COMPOSITION 
In compliance with HUD’s Rental Housing Integrity Improvement Project (RHIIP), the owner/agent will make 
every effort to ensure that the correct assistance is provided to those who seek housing assistance.   
 
If an applicant household indicates that one or more members should be removed from the application, the 
owner/agent will accept such notification from the Head-of-Household (HOH) (HOH) if it is provided on a 
notarized form provided by the owner/agent agent.  The following rules apply. 
 
If the household is being rejected because a member is registered as a sex offender in any state lifetime sex 
offender registry, the owner/agent will take extra steps to ensure that the sex offender is not housed in any unit 
on the property.  The household will have to provide documentation to prove that the sex offender will live at 
another location.  Acceptable documentation includes, but is not limited to: 
 

• Confirmation from a landlord with copy of an executed lease 
• Confirmation from local police 
• Confirmation from anyone who maintains sex offender registries including but not limited to: 

o Dru Djodin Sex Offender Registry 
o Megan’s List  
o State or Federal Sex Offender Registries 

• New driver’s license with new address 
  
Information will be confirmed for up to one year after move-in. 
 
If it is discovered that the household allowed any registered sex offender to live in the unit, the applicant must 
understand that he/she is not qualified to receive subsidy or live on the property.  All subsidy paid-in-error must 
be returned to HUD.  Because this is a material lease violation, all household members must vacate the unit 
within 30 days. 
 
One of the key requirements, at application and during residency, is to disclose who will be living in the unit at 
any given time.  It is important to understand the difference between a resident and a guest.   
 
Resident:  A resident is any person who is listed on the application, on any Family Summary submitted and on 
the lease who will reside in the unit.     
 
Guest:  A guest is a person who visits any resident and may stay overnight no more than seven (7) consecutive 
nights in a one-year period and may stay overnight no more than thirty (30) non-consecutive nights in any one-
year period without express written consent of the owner/agent. 
 
If the owner/agent suspects that a guest should actually be classified as a resident, the owner/agent will request 
a meeting with the Head-of-Household (HOH). 
 
In accordance with HUD requirements, the resident will have ten (10) days to meet with the owner/agent.  
Failure to respond to the request to meet will result in termination of assistance beginning the first of the month 
following the 10-day notice.   
 
If the owner/agent suspects that a guest is actually living in the unit, the owner/agent will ask for verification of 
alternative residence.  Samples of such verification include one or more of the following: 



(Property Name) Tenant Selection Plan 

 Page 54  of 58 Pending Approval 5/12/2016 
 

• Verification with the United States Postal Service that no mail, for the guest, is delivered to the unit 
address 

• *A current driver’s license for the “guest” with an alternative address 
• *A current lease indicating an alternative residence 
• *A current utility bill in the person’s name showing an alternative address 
• *A current insurance policy or other such invoice/bill showing an alternative address 

*Current means issued/created within the last thirty (90) days. 
 
In addition, the resident(s), indicated on the lease, must sign a notarized statement confirming that the guest 
does not violate the guest policy as indicated above and does not reside in the unit. 
 
Live-in Aides:  A live-in aide must meet HUD’s definition of a live-in aide: 
 

• Is essential to the care and well-being of the resident 
• Is not dependent on the resident for support 
• Is only living in the unit to provide essential support 

 
If a resident or applicant requests a live-in aide, the owner/agent is required to verify the need for a live-in aide 
using third-party verification.   
 
Live-in Aides are required to complete the Live-in Aide Questionnaire.  The information on the Live-in Aide 
questionnaire will be verified and the prospective live-in aide will be screened in accordance with the resident 
selection plan in place at the time of review.  The live-in aide will not be screened for the “ability to pay rent” 
since the live-in aide is not responsible for rent payment. 
 
The live-in aide must be approved and must sign the House Rules and the HUD-approved Live-in Aide Addendum 
before move-in.  The owner/agent must sign a revised 50059 before the live-in aide is allowed to move-in.   
If a live-in aide moves in prior to screening and prior to signing required forms, the owner/agent will issue a 
notice of lease violation and may pursue other action including, but not limited to eviction of the live-in aide, 
termination of assistance and/or termination of tenancy.   
 
Children/Minors:  At move-in, all non-exempt household members, including children, must have a Social 
Security Number and adequate documentation to verify the Social Security Number. 
 
When children are later added to the household, the following will be required. 
For children who are born, adopted or in foster care or in another legal custodial relationship with an existing 
household member, the owner/agent requires the following: 
 
• Social Security Number and proof that the number is valid  

o For children under the age of 6 years old - must be provided within ninety (90) days or owner/agent 
is required to terminate tenancy.   

o An additional ninety (90) may be provided if extenuating circumstances exist 
• Proof of age/legal custodial arrangement 

o Birth certificate indicating that a household member is a parent; or 
o Adoption paperwork indicating that a household member is a parent as appropriate; or 



(Property Name) Tenant Selection Plan 

 Page 55  of 58 Pending Approval 5/12/2016 
 

o Verification from the foster agency indicating the unit as the primary residence of the foster child as 
appropriate; or 

o Other documents proving legal custody arrangement as appropriate 
 
For children who are not part of a legal custody arrangement who will be living in the unit, the owner/agent 
requires: 
 
• Social Security Number and proof that the number is valid  

o For children under the age of 6 years old - must be provided within ninety (90) days or owner/agent 
is required to termination of tenancy.  An additional ninety (90) may be provided if extenuating 
circumstances exist 

• Two forms of proof that the child resides with a member of the household 
o Verification from a government organization indicating that the unit will be the primary residence 

for the minor (examples include but are not limited to school records, children services agencies, 
foster programs, etc.) 

o Verification from a medical professional in the know indicating that the unit will be the primary 
residence for the minor 

o Verification from a social service organization indicating that the unit will be the primary residence 
of the minor (examples include but are not limited to homeless shelters, shelters for victims of 
domestic violence, etc.) 

o A signed, notarized statement from an adult household member claiming guardianship of the minor 
child  

 
The owner/agent does not and will not establish policies intended to exclude children.  If none of the household 
members can provide documentation for minors, as described above, the owner/agent will meet with the 
resident to discuss reasonable alternatives.  The owner/agent will be the final judge of what is considered 
adequate documentation proving household composition/residency. 
 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 



(Property Name) Tenant Selection Plan 

 Page 56  of 58 Pending Approval 5/12/2016 
 

APPENDIX E – VAWA POLICY 
The Violence Against Women Act (VAWA) provides protections to women or men who are the victims of 
domestic violence, dating violence, sexual assault and/or stalking.  The owner/agent understands that, 
regardless of whether state or local laws protect victims of domestic violence, dating violence, sexual assault 
and/or stalking, people who have been victims of violence have certain rights under the Violence Against 
Women Act Reauthorization of 2013. 
 
This policy is intended to support or assist victims of domestic violence, dating violence, sexual assault and/or 
stalking and protect victims, as well as members of their family, from being denied housing or from losing their 
HUD assisted housing as a consequence of their status as a victim of domestic violence, sexual assault, dating 
violence and/or stalking. 
 
VAWA protections are not provided to guests, unauthorized residents or service providers (including live-in 
aides) hired by the resident.   
 
VAWA ensures that victims are not denied housing and housing assistance is not terminated solely because the 
person is a victim of an act covered under the VAWA (domestic violence, dating violence, stalking and/or sexual 
assault).   
 
However, being a victim of an act covered under the VAWA is not reason to change the eligibility or applicant 
screening requirements set forth in the tenant selection plan unless such requirements interfere with 
protections provided under the VAWA.  Being a victim of an act covered under the VAWA is not reason to waive 
requirements set forth in the HUD Model Lease or in any lease attachment or HUD approved lease addendum 
unless such requirements interfere with protections provided under the VAWA.   
 
The owner/agent will not assume that any act is a result of abuse covered under the Violence Against Women 
Act.  In order to receive the protections outlined in the VAWA, the applicant/resident must specify that he/she 
wishes to exercise these protections.  If any applicant or resident wishes to exercise the protections provided in 
the VAWA, he/she should contact the owner/agent immediately.  The owner/agent is committed to ensuring 
that the Privacy Act is enforced in this and all other situations.   

CONFIDENTIALITY  
The identity of the victim and all information provided to owner/agent relating to the incident(s) of abuse 
covered under the VAWA will be retained in confidence.  Information will not be entered into any shared 
database nor provided to a related entity, except to the extent that the disclosure is  
 

• Requested or consented to by the victim in writing;  
• Required for use in an eviction proceeding or termination of assistance; or  
• Otherwise required by applicable law.  

 
The certification form provides notice to the resident of the confidentiality of the form and the limits thereof.  
The owner/agent will retain all documentation relating to an individual’s domestic violence, dating violence, 
sexual assault and/or stalking in a separate file that is kept in a separate secure location from other applicant or 
resident files.  If the documentation is stored electronically, the owner/agent will keep this information in an 
electronic file that is separate from the applicant or resident file with secured access only to authorized 
individuals. 



(Property Name) Tenant Selection Plan 

 Page 57  of 58 Pending Approval 5/12/2016 
 

REQUESTS & CERTIFICATION  
When the owner/agent responds to a request for protections provided under the VAWA the owner/agent will 
request that an individual complete, sign, and submit a certification form, within fourteen (14) calendar days of 
the request.  This certification may be submitted in an equally effective manner, as a reasonable 
accommodation, if there is the presence of a disability. 
 
If necessary, the victim may request additional time to submit the certification.   
 
The victim is not required to name his/her abuser if doing so would result in imminent threat or if the victim 
does not know the name of his/her abuser. 
 
The owner/agent understands that the delivery of the certification form to the applicant/resident via mail may 
place the victim at risk, (e.g., the abuser may monitor the mail).  The owner/agent will work with the 
applicant/resident in making acceptable delivery arrangements, such as inviting them into the office to pick up 
the certification form or making other discreet arrangements. 
 
If the applicant/resident has sought assistance in addressing domestic violence, dating violence, sexual assault 
and/or stalking from a federal, state, tribal, territorial jurisdiction, local police or court, the applicant/resident 
may submit written proof of this outreach in lieu of the certification form.  The owner/agent may accept the 
following: 
 

• A federal, state, tribal, territorial, or local police record or court record or  
• Documentation signed and attested to by a professional (employee, agent or volunteer of a victim 

service provider, an attorney, medical personnel, etc.) From whom the victim has sought assistance in 
addressing domestic violence, dating violence and/or stalking or the effects of the abuse.  The signatory 
attests under penalty of perjury (28 U.S.C. §1746) to his/her belief that the incident in question 
represents bona fide abuse, and the victim of domestic violence, dating violence and/or stalking has 
signed or attested to the documentation. 

 
If the applicant is currently living in a shelter established to protect victims of violence covered under the VAWA, 
the owner/agent will accept verification of such living arrangement in lieu of additional verification.   
 
To ensure that a person is not wrongly accused of committing an act covered under the VAWA, the owner/agent 
will carefully evaluate abuse claims as to avoid denial, termination of assistance, termination of tenancy or 
eviction based on false or unsubstantiated accusations. 
 
The applicant/resident is required to provide all necessary documentation to the owner/agent no more than ten 
(10) business days after submitting the certification to the owner/agent.  If the victim is unable to provide 
required documentation within the required timeframe, the owner/agent will deny the request. 
 
The owner/agent will review and respond to requests to exercise protections provided under the VAWA within 
ten (10) business days of receiving all required documentation.  The owner/agent may provide the response in 
any manner acceptable to the victim and the owner/agent.  Responses include: 
 

• Approval of the Request 
• Denial of the Request 
• Request for additional information 



(Property Name) Tenant Selection Plan 

 Page 58  of 58 Pending Approval 5/12/2016 
 

LEASE BIFURCATION 
If the owner/agent determines that physical abuse caused by a resident is clear and present, the law provides 
the owner/agent with the authority to bifurcate a lease (i.e., remove, evict, or terminate housing assistance to 
any abuser, while allowing the victim, who lawfully occupies the home, to maintain tenancy.)  
 
The owner/agent may attempt to evict the abuser, but residents should know that state/local tenant/landlord 
laws prevail and the owner/agent must comply with such laws.  The owner/agent cannot guarantee that a court 
will award or enforce an eviction.   
 
Owner/agents must keep in mind that the eviction of or the termination action against the individual must be in 
accordance with the procedures prescribed by federal, state, and local law.  The owner/agent is committed to 
attempting to assist the victim, however, evictions are generally carried out through the court system and the 
owner/agent cannot override or circumvent a legal decision. 
 
In the event that one household member is removed from the unit because of engaging in acts of domestic 
violence, dating violence, sexual assault and/or stalking against another household member, an appropriate 
certification will be processed reflecting the change in household composition.  Special consideration will be 
given if the remaining household members are not qualified to remain in the unit as a “remaining household 
member”.    

CRIMINAL ACTS 
Victims are encouraged to seek police/legal protection from their abuser.  In some cases, the owner/agent may 
file a restraining order against the abuser to prevent the abuser from entering the property.  If there is a 
restraining order against the abuser and the resident willingly allows or invites the abuser onto the premises, 
the owner/agent may seek termination of assistance and/or tenancy.   
 
In accordance with the regulation at 24 CFR 5.861, the owner/agent may terminate tenancy and evict the tenant 
through judicial action for criminal activity by a covered person if the Landlord determines that the covered 
person has engaged in the criminal activity, regardless of whether the covered person has been arrested, or 
convicted for such activity and without satisfying a criminal standard of proof of the activity.   
 
The owner/agent will take into account individual circumstances when making a determination to terminate 
tenancy; such circumstances might include, among other things, the seriousness of the offending action, the 
extent of participation by the leaseholder in the offending action, and whether the leaseholder, if not the 
wrongdoer, took all feasible steps to prevent the offending action from occurring and has removed the 
offending person from the lease or otherwise banned the offending person from the premises in the future.         

LEASE ADDENDUM 
Any HUD approved lease addendum will be implemented and provided in accordance with HUD guidance.  
  
 



(Property Name) Tenant Selection Plan  

Page 1  of 58  Pending Public Comment 5/12/2016  

 
 

 
 
 
 

(Property Name) 
Tenant Selection Plan 

 
Project Based Rental Assistance & 

Low Income Housing Tax Credit 
for a Family Site 

 
 
 

  



(Property Name) Tenant Selection Plan  

Page 2  of 58  Pending Public Comment 5/12/2016  

   
OWNER/AGENT & PROPERTY INFORMATION ...................................................................................................................... 5 

THE PURPOSE OF THE RESIDENT SELECTION PLAN ............................................................................................................... 5 

RULES OF CONDUCT ............................................................................................................................................................ 6 

SMOKE FREE HOUSING ........................................................................................................................................................ 6 

SECURITY DEPOSIT REQUIREMENTS .................................................................................................................................... 6 

PETS..................................................................................................................................................................................... 7 

PET DEPOSIT ............................................................................................................................................................................... 7 

ASSISTANCE DEFINITION ...................................................................................................................................................... 7 

SUBSIDY ..................................................................................................................................................................................... 8 
TENANT-BASED VOUCHERS ............................................................................................................................................................ 8 
ASSISTED LIVING .......................................................................................................................................................................... 8 

FAIR HOUSING POLICIES ...................................................................................................................................................... 8 

FAIR HOUSING............................................................................................................................................................................. 8 
TITLE VI OF THE CIVIL RIGHTS ACT OF 1964 ...................................................................................................................................... 8 
SECTION 504 OF THE REHABILITATION ACT OF 1973 .......................................................................................................................... 8 

 Coordinating Efforts to Comply with Section 504 Requirements .............................................................................. 9 
 Requests for Reasonable Accommodation or Modification ...................................................................................... 9 

COMPLIANCE WITH REQUIREMENTS OUTLINED IN THE VIOLENCE AGAINST WOMEN REAUTHORIZATION ACT OF 2013 .................................... 9 
AVAILABILITY OF ASSISTANCE FOR PERSONS WITH LIMITED ENGLISH PROFICIENCY .................................................................................... 9 
THE EQUAL ACCESS RULE .............................................................................................................................................................. 9 

ELIGIBILITY REQUIREMENTS ................................................................................................................................................ 9 

PROPERTY ELIGIBILITY DEFINITION ................................................................................................................................................... 9 
 Household/Resident Type ......................................................................................................................................... 9 
 Income Limits .......................................................................................................................................................... 10 
 Occupancy Standards ............................................................................................................................................. 10 
 Verifying the Need for an Accessible Unit ............................................................................................................... 11 

PROGRAM ELIGIBILITY ................................................................................................................................................................. 11 
 Eligibility Standards ................................................................................................................................................ 11 
 Disclosure and Verification of Social Security Numbers .......................................................................................... 12 
 Exceptions to Disclosure of Social Security Number ............................................................................................... 12 
 Secondary Verification of the Social Security Number (PBRA Only) ........................................................................ 13 
 Citizenship/Immigration Status Requirements ....................................................................................................... 13 
 Single Residence/Subsidy Criteria ........................................................................................................................... 14 
 Eligibility of Students Enrolled at an Institute for Higher Education ....................................................................... 14 
 Additional Tax Credit Eligibility Requirements for Students Enrolled at an Institute of Higher Education ............. 15 
 Prohibition of Assistance to Noncitizen Students.................................................................................................... 16 

PROCEDURES FOR TAKING PRE-APPLICATIONS & APPLICATIONS ...................................................................................... 16 

PRE-APPLICATIONS ..................................................................................................................................................................... 16 
 Incomplete Pre-Applications ................................................................................................................................... 16 
 Preliminary Determination of Applicant Eligibility .................................................................................................. 17 

APPLICATIONS ........................................................................................................................................................................... 17 
FINAL DETERMINATION OF ELIGIBILITY ........................................................................................................................................... 18 

LIVE-IN AIDES..................................................................................................................................................................... 18 

WAITING LISTS ................................................................................................................................................................... 18 



(Property Name) Tenant Selection Plan  

Page 3  of 58  Pending Public Comment 5/12/2016  

MAINTAINING WAITING LISTS ...................................................................................................................................................... 19 
REMOVAL OF APPLICANTS FROM THE WAITING LIST.......................................................................................................................... 19 
SELECTING APPLICANTS FROM THE WAITING LIST ............................................................................................................................. 21 

 Income Targeting (PBRA Only) ................................................................................................................................ 21 
PREFERENCES (PBRA ONLY) ........................................................................................................................................................ 21 

 Owner/agent-Adopted Preferences ........................................................................................................................ 21 
 HUD Approved Preference ...................................................................................................................................... 22 
 Preference Weights ................................................................................................................................................. 22 
 Verification of Preferences ...................................................................................................................................... 23 
 When a Request for Preference is Denied ............................................................................................................... 23 
 Change in Preference Status While on the Waiting List .......................................................................................... 23 
 Exceptions to the Preference Rule .......................................................................................................................... 23 

OPENING AND CLOSING WAITING LIST ........................................................................................................................................... 23 

PRIVACY POLICY ................................................................................................................................................................ 24 

VERIFICATION .................................................................................................................................................................... 24 

INFORMATION TO BE VERIFIED ...................................................................................................................................................... 24 
METHODS OF VERIFICATION ......................................................................................................................................................... 25 
SOURCES OF INFORMATION .......................................................................................................................................................... 25 
PERIOD FOR VERIFICATION ........................................................................................................................................................... 26 
CONSENT AND VERIFICATION FORMS ............................................................................................................................................. 26 
PROVISIONS FOR REFUSAL TO SIGN ................................................................................................................................................ 26 

MISREPRESENTATION ........................................................................................................................................................ 26 

APPLICANT SCREENING CRITERIA ...................................................................................................................................... 27 

SCREENING FOR DRUG ABUSE AND OTHER CRIMINAL ACTIVITY .......................................................................................................... 27 
 Consideration of Extenuating Circumstances ......................................................................................................... 29 
 Criminal Screening Discoveries ............................................................................................................................... 29 

SCREENING FOR CREDIT HISTORY .................................................................................................................................................. 30 
SCREENING FOR ABILITY TO ESTABLISH UTILITY SERVICE ..................................................................................................................... 30 
SCREENING FOR RENTAL HISTORY.................................................................................................................................................. 31 
SCREENING FOR RECEIPT OF HUD ASSISTANCE IN ANOTHER UNIT (PBRA ONLY) ................................................................................... 32 

REJECTING INELIGIBLE OR UNQUALIFIED APPLICANTS ....................................................................................................... 32 

REJECTION NOTICES ................................................................................................................................................................... 33 
APPEALING THE DECISION TO REJECT ............................................................................................................................................. 33 

INFORMAL HEARINGS FOR PBRA APPLICANTS ................................................................................................................... 34 

INFORMAL HEARING PROCESS [24 CFR 960.208(A) AND PH OCC GB, P. 58] ..................................................................................... 34 
 Use of Informal Hearing Process ............................................................................................................................. 34 
 Notice of Denial ...................................................................................................................................................... 34 
 Scheduling an Informal Hearing ............................................................................................................................. 35 
 Conducting an Informal Hearing [PH Occ GB, p. 58]............................................................................................... 35 
 Informal Hearing Decision [PH Occ GB, p. 58] ........................................................................................................ 35 

REASONABLE ACCOMMODATIONS FOR PERSONS WITH DISABILITIES [24 CFR 966.7] ............................................................................. 36 
HEARING AND APPEAL PROVISIONS FOR NON-CITIZENS [24 CFR 5.514] ............................................................................................. 36 

 Notice of Denial or Termination of Assistance [24 CFR 5.514(d)] ........................................................................... 36 
 United States Citizenship and Immigration Services Appeal Process [24 CFR 5.514(e)] ......................................... 36 
 Informal Hearing Procedures for Applicants [24 CFR 5.514(f)] ............................................................................... 37 

OFFERING AN APARTMENT ............................................................................................................................................... 38 

OFFERING ACCESSIBLE UNITS ....................................................................................................................................................... 39 
OFFERING UNITS TO DISABLED APPLICANTS REQUESTING ACCESSIBILITY FEATURES ................................................................................. 39 



(Property Name) Tenant Selection Plan  

Page 4  of 58  Pending Public Comment 5/12/2016  

OFFERING UNITS TO APPLICANTS OR RESIDENTS WITH PREFERENCES ................................................................................................... 39 
APPLICANT/RESIDENT SELECTION ORDER ....................................................................................................................................... 39 
RIGHT TO REFUSAL ..................................................................................................................................................................... 41 
TIMEFRAME FOR TAKING POSSESSION OF A UNIT BY AN APPLICANT FAMILY .......................................................................................... 42 

UNIT TRANSFER POLICIES .................................................................................................................................................. 43 

SECURITY DEPOSITS, PET DEPOSITS & UNIT TRANSFERS .................................................................................................................... 44 
SECURITY DEPOSITS & UNIT TRANSFERS ......................................................................................................................................... 44 

CHANGES IN HOUSEHOLD COMPOSITION .......................................................................................................................... 44 

ADDING HOUSEHOLD MEMBERS AFTER INITIAL OCCUPANCY .............................................................................................................. 44 
REMOVING HOUSEHOLD MEMBERS AFTER INITIAL OCCUPANCY .......................................................................................................... 45 

APARTMENT INSPECTIONS ................................................................................................................................................ 46 

CHANGES TO THE RESIDENT SELECTION PLAN ................................................................................................................... 46 

APPENDIX A – REQUEST FOR REASONABLE ACCOMMODATION OR MODIFICATION ......................................................... 47 

APPENDIX B – CITIZEN/NON-CITIZEN ELIGIBILITY ............................................................................................................... 48 

REQUIRED DOCUMENTATION ....................................................................................................................................................... 48 
TIMEFRAMES FOR SUBMITTING EVIDENCE OF CITIZENSHIP/IMMIGRATION STATUS TO THE OWNER/AGENT .................................................. 49 
REVIEWING AND VERIFICATION OF A HOUSEHOLD’S CITIZENSHIP/IMMIGRATION STATUS ......................................................................... 49 
NOTIFICATION TO APPLICANTS ...................................................................................................................................................... 50 
MIXED HOUSEHOLDS .................................................................................................................................................................. 50 
APPEALING DETERMINATIONS OF INELIGIBILITY ................................................................................................................................ 50 
PROHIBITION AGAINST DELAY OF ASSISTANCE ................................................................................................................................. 50 

APPENDIX C:  DUAL SUBSIDY NOTICE ................................................................................................................................ 52 

APPENDIX D – VERIFICATION OF HOUSEHOLD COMPOSITION ........................................................................................... 53 

APPENDIX E – VAWA POLICY ............................................................................................................................................. 56 

CONFIDENTIALITY ....................................................................................................................................................................... 56 
REQUESTS & CERTIFICATION ........................................................................................................................................................ 57 
LEASE BIFURCATION ................................................................................................................................................................... 58 
CRIMINAL ACTS ......................................................................................................................................................................... 58 
LEASE ADDENDUM ..................................................................................................................................................................... 58 



(Property Name) Tenant Selection Plan  

Page 5  of 58  Pending Public Comment 5/12/2016  

OWNER/AGENT & PROPERTY INFORMATION 
 

Owner/Agent Name Housing Authority of the City of Austin (HACA) 

Owner/Agent Contact Name  

Owner/Agent Address 1124 S IH 35 

Owner/Agent City, State, Zip Austin, TX 78704 

Owner/Agent Phone Number (512) 477-4488 

Owner/Agent Fax (512) 472-2958 

Owner/Agent TTY/TTD/Relay  

  

Property Name Property Name 

Property Contact Name Property Manager 

Address Property Address 

City, State, Zip Austin, TX 78704 

Phone Property Phone Number 

Fax Property Fax Number 

TTY/TDD/Audio Relay 711 National Voice Relay  
 

Applications for housing at this property are only received online or at the owner/agent’s office location.  
Applications are not received at the property management office. 
 

All references to office locations within this Tenant Selection Plan include both the HACA Central Office and the 
Property Management Office unless otherwise indicated. 

THE PURPOSE OF THE RESIDENT SELECTION PLAN 
The resident selection plan helps to ensure that residents are selected for occupancy in accordance with HUD 
requirements and established management policies.  
 
Please contact the management office if you need help understanding this document.  
• Contacte por favor la oficina de gestión si usted necesita ayuda a comprender este documento. (Spanish) 
• Por favor contate o escritório de gerência se deve ajudar entendimento este documento. (Portugese) 
• Si vous avez besoin d'aide à la compréhension de ce document, veuillez communiquer avec le Bureau de 

gestion. (French) 
• Souple kontakte Biwo jesyon a si w bezwen èd pou konprann dokiman sa a. (Haitian Creole) 
• Xin liên lạc với văn phòng điều hành nếu bạn cần giúp đỡ sự hiểu biết tài liệu này. (Vietnamese) 
• Пожалуйста свяжитесь с офисом управления, если Вам нужна помощь в понимании этого документа. 

(Russian) 
• Bitte kontaktieren Sie das Leitungsbüro, wenn Sie helfen müssen, dieses Dokument zu verstehen. (German) 
• 請聯絡管理辦公室，如果你需要幫助理解這份文件。(Chinese) 
• もしこの文書を理解しているための助けを必要としていれば、経営オフィスと連絡を取ってくださ

い。(Japanese) 



(Property Name) Tenant Selection Plan  

Page 6  of 58  Pending Public Comment 5/12/2016  

RULES OF CONDUCT 
The relationship between a landlord (owner/agent) and a resident or applicant is a business relationship. A 
courteous and businesslike attitude is required from both parties.  The owner/agent reserves the right to refuse 
to conduct business with anyone who is verbally abusive, swears, is disrespectful, makes threats, uses 
discriminatory language, appears to be intoxicated or under the influence of alcohol or drugs, is argumentative, 
or in general displays an attitude, at any time, which causes the owner/agent or the property staff to believe we 
would not have a positive business relationship.  
 
If an applicant or any member of the applicant’s family demonstrates unprofessional behavior in the presence of 
the management team or other residents/applicants, the applicant, the applicant’s family and other members of 
the applicant’s entourage (if applicable) will be required to leave the property and the application will be 
rejected.   
 
If the applicant or any member of the applicant’s family exhibits threatening behavior, appears to be intoxicated 
or under the influence of alcohol or illegal drugs or attempts to intimidate the staff, the applicant, the 
applicant’s family and other members of the applicant’s entourage (if applicable) will be required to leave the 
property and the application will be rejected.   
 
To ensure the privacy of property staff, property residents and applicants, applicants and residents are asked to 
refrain from use of cell phones or other electronic devices, except those necessary to alleviate the symptoms of 
a disability, by residents or applicants, while in the management office or Administration Central Office.  
 
Assistance Animals are always welcome in the management office.  Please keep all pets outside the 
management office at all times. 
 
Children are always welcome.  When in the Central office or management office, minors must be supervised.  
Admissions Department and property management staff are not responsible for child care or supervision.   
 
Admissions Department staff is not permitted to accept any money, gifts, services or favors connected with the 
application process, criminal or credit checks, eligibility determination, apartment selection, or associated with 
any aspect of residency on this property.   If property staff solicits any mandatory payment for any part of the 
application process, the applicant should notify the owner/agent.  XXXX ENTER CONTACT INFORMATION HERE XXX. 

SMOKE FREE HOUSING 
Smoking is prohibited in any area of the property, both private and common, whether enclosed or outdoors. 
This policy applies to all owner/agents, property staff, applicants, residents, guests, and servicepersons.  
“Smoking” shall include the inhaling, exhaling, or carrying of any lighted cigarette, e-cigarette, cigar, pipe, 
hookah, other tobacco products, marijuana including medical marijuana, herbal smoking products “Legal Weed” 
or products known as “bath salts” or other legal or illegal substances.  

SECURITY DEPOSIT REQUIREMENTS 
The owner/agent must collect a security deposit at the time of the initial lease execution. The owner/agent will 
comply with any HUD rules and applicable state and local laws governing the security deposit. The security 
deposit amount is based on the Total Tenant Payment (TTP) calculated at move in.   
 
If the move-in certification requires correction, and the TTP is recalculated, the security deposit requirement will 
be recalculated as well.  Otherwise, the amount of the security deposit established at move-in does not change 
when a resident’s rent changes. 
 



(Property Name) Tenant Selection Plan  

Page 7  of 58  Pending Public Comment 5/12/2016  

The resident is expected to pay the security deposit from his/her own resources and/or other public or private 
sources.  An applicant will be rejected if he/she does not have sufficient funds to pay the deposit.   

PETS 
Residents are allowed to keep 2 pets in the unit.   
 
Certain restrictions apply and are outlined in the property Pet Rules.  Pets and assistance animals must be 
approved before they are allowed to live in the unit.  Copies of the Pet Rules and Assistance Animals Policy are 
available upon request. 
 
When applicable, residents must agree to pay any required pet deposit and must agree to abide by the 
property’s Pet Rules and Assistance Animal Policies.   
 
If an applicant wishes to request approval of an assistance animal – necessary to alleviate the symptoms or side-
effects of a disability, the applicant (or applicant’s representative) must request a reasonable accommodation.  
Please review the process to request a reasonable accommodation in Appendix A.  The applicant should also 
review the Assistance Animal Policy which is available upon request. 

PET DEPOSIT 
The Pet Rules require residents who own dogs or cats (pets) or keep dogs or cats (pets) in their units to pay a 
refundable pet deposit. This deposit is in addition to any other financial obligation generally imposed on 
residents of the property. 
 
The pet deposit is $100.00 per animal. A minimum of $50.00 is required at the time the pet is brought on to the 
premises.  The resident will have the option to pay the remaining balance in increments of $10.00 per month 
until the $100.00 pet deposit is collected.  Residents are allowed to pay the entire pet deposit in increments 
greater than those described if he/she chooses to do so. 
 
The owner/agent will use the pet deposit only to pay reasonable expenses directly attributable to the presence 
of the pet on the property. Such expenses would include, but not be limited to, the cost of repairs and 
replacement to the unit, fumigation of the unit, and the cost of animal care facilities. 
 
The owner/agent will return the unused portion of a pet deposit to the resident within a reasonable time after 
the resident moves from the property or no longer owns or keeps a household pet in the unit. Residents, their 
guests and/or service providers are required to comply with the property Pet Rules. 
Assistance animals that assist persons with disabilities are exempt from the pet policy and from the refundable 
pet deposit.  Residents, guests and service providers will be required to comply with the Assistance Animal 
Policy. 

ASSISTANCE DEFINITION 
The property is operating under the guidelines established for two layered housing programs - the HUD Project 
Based Rental Assistance (PBRA) program and the Low Income Housing Tax Credit (LIHTC) program.  Of the XXX 
tax credit units at this property, XXX are also layered with PBRA subsidy.  Because this plan covers the eligibility 
and tenant selection requirements for both programs, there are some areas of the plan that will only be 
applicable to one program.  Those areas are identified throughout the plan.  A person must be capable of 
fulfilling the lease requirements.   



(Property Name) Tenant Selection Plan  

Page 8  of 58  Pending Public Comment 5/12/2016  

SUBSIDY 
Residents at this property are offered subsidized rent.  This means the rent that a household pays is based upon 
the household income.  The family will pay 30% of their adjusted household income.  The balance of the 
contract rent is subsidized by the Federal Government.  The rent amounts paid by residents may vary.   

TENANT-BASED VOUCHERS 
The owner/agent may not admit an applicant with a voucher to a unit with Project Based Rental Assistance 
unless the applicant agrees to give up the voucher prior to occupancy.  This will be verified with the former 
housing provider. 
 
If the owner/agent discovers that any household member failed to give up current HUD housing assistance 
before moving to NAME OF PROPERTY, no rent subsidy or utility allowance will be provided by HUD until the 
day after the move out or surrender of the currently subsidized unit. 
 
Household members who sign the lease will be responsible for paying the market rent until qualified to receive 
HUD assistance on this property.  Any assistance paid in error must be returned to HUD.  Applicants should 
consult with the local HUD office if the former landlord is accepting subsidy after move-out. 
 
Please note that housing assistance provided through HUD’s multi-family housing program is not the same as 
the housing assistance provided through the voucher program.  If any family member moves out, the housing 
subsidy will not move with the family as it does with a voucher.  The family will be required to re-apply to a PHA 
to receive a voucher. 

ASSISTED LIVING 
This is not an assisted living property.  The owner/agent and property staff do not provide, nor have the 
authority to provide, any personal care or personal supervision services.  All care and supervision services must 
be provided by the resident or aides supervised by the resident or the resident’s representative(s).   The 
owner/agent and property staff do not provide assistance with personal activities or daily living.   

FAIR HOUSING POLICIES 

FAIR HOUSING 
The Fair Housing Act prohibits discrimination in housing and housing related transactions based on race, color, 
religion, sex, national origin, disability, and familial status.  In addition, the city of Austin has added Fair Housing 
protections based on creed, student status, marital status, sexual orientation, gender identity and age. 

TITLE VI OF THE CIVIL RIGHTS ACT OF 1964 
The owner/agent complies with Title VI of the Civil Rights Act of 1964 which prohibits discrimination based on 
race, color, or national origin in any program or activity receiving federal financial assistance from HUD. 

SECTION 504 OF THE REHABILITATION ACT OF 1973 
The owner/agent complies with Section 504 of the Rehabilitation Act of 1973 which prohibits discrimination, 
based on the presence of a disability in all programs or activities operated by recipients of federal financial 
assistance.   
 
Although Section 504 protections often overlap with the disability discrimination prohibitions included in the 
Fair Housing Act, Section 504 differs in that it imposes broader affirmative obligations to make their programs, 
as a whole, accessible to persons with disabilities.   
 



(Property Name) Tenant Selection Plan  

Page 9  of 58  Pending Public Comment 5/12/2016  

• Coordinating Efforts to Comply with Section 504 Requirements 
The owner/agent has designated a person to address questions or requests regarding the specific needs 
of residents and applicants with disabilities.  This person is referred to as the Section 504 Coordinator.   

 
Name of Section 504 Coordinator: Vice President of Housing and Community Development 

Address:   1124 S IH 35, Austin, TX 78704 

Phone Number:  (512) 477-4488 

TDD/TTY Number: 711 Voice Relay  

• Requests for Reasonable Accommodation or Modification 
In accordance with the Fair Housing Act and Section 504 of the Rehabilitation Act, the owner/agent will 
make reasonable accommodations or modifications for individuals with disabilities (applicants or 
residents) unless these modifications would change the fundamental nature of the housing program or 
result in undue financial and administrative burden.  Please see Appendix A for additional information. 

COMPLIANCE WITH REQUIREMENTS OUTLINED IN THE VIOLENCE AGAINST WOMEN REAUTHORIZATION ACT OF 2013 
The owner/agent understands that, regardless of whether state or local laws protect victims of domestic 
violence, dating violence, sexual assault or stalking, people who have been victims of violence have certain 
protections provided through the Violence Against Women Reauthorization Act of 2013 (VAWA 2013).   
 
If any applicant wishes to exercise the protections provided in the VAWA 2013, he/she should contact the 
owner/agent immediately.   
 
The owner/agent will not assume that any act is a result of abuse covered under the VAWA 2013.  In order to 
receive the protections outlined in the VAWA 2013, the applicant/applicant must specify that he/she wishes to 
exercise these protections.   
 
Please see Appendix E for a copy of the owner/agent’s VAWA Policy. 

AVAILABILITY OF ASSISTANCE FOR PERSONS WITH LIMITED ENGLISH PROFICIENCY  
Executive Order 13166, "Improving Access to Services for Persons with Limited English Proficiency LEP)" requires 
the owner/agent to develop and implement a system to provide housing assistance so persons with Limited 
English Proficiency (LEP) can have meaningful access to assisted housing opportunities. The owner/agent will 
provide for such meaningful access consistent with, and without unduly burdening the fundamental mission of 
the property.  The owner/agent will work to ensure that people who apply for and/or qualify for housing 
assistance are provided meaningful access to HUD’s housing assistance program.   

THE EQUAL ACCESS RULE 
The owner/agent ensures that HUD's core housing programs are open to all eligible persons regardless of sexual 
orientation, gender identity or marital status in accordance with The Equal Access Rule. 

ELIGIBILITY REQUIREMENTS 

PROPERTY ELIGIBILITY DEFINITION 

• Household/Resident Type 
This multi-family PBRA / LIHTC property is designed to provide housing to families who meet the 
eligibility and screening requirements.   



(Property Name) Tenant Selection Plan  

Page 10  of 58  Pending Public Comment 5/12/2016  

• Income Limits 
Income limits vary by program type (PBRA or LIHTC) and household size.  The owner/agent will provide 
applicants a copy of the income limits for the property area upon request.  In addition, applicants can 
review the income limits by accessing the following web site.  http://www.huduser.org/datasets/il.html.   
 
HUD requires that property managers incorporate the most recently published income limits when 
determining eligibility.  The IRS “hold harmless” rule states that if the income limits go down, the 
property can maintain the highest level of income limits in effect after the property was placed in 
service with tax credits. 
 
This property is a layered property with all units required to meet both the PBRA and LIHTC income limit 
requirements.  Both income limits are based off a percentage of the median family income for the 
Austin – Round Rock – San Marcos metropolitan statistical area.  Since the LIHTC income limit is lower, 
by default it becomes the effective income limit for the property. 
 
For this property, qualified applicant households must meet the following income limit requirements: 

 
Subsidy Type of Income Limit 

 
 
  Project Based Rental Assistance (PBRA) 

  Low – 80% of median income 
  Very low – 50% of median income 
  Extremely low – very low income household whose    
  income equals or is less than the greater of poverty level  
  or 30% of median income 

  Low Income Housing Tax Credit (LIHTC)   Low – 60% of median family income 

• Occupancy Standards 
Occupancy standards serve to prevent the over-utilization or under-utilization of units that can result in 
an inefficient use of housing funding.  Occupancy standards also ensure that residents are treated fairly 
and consistently and receive adequate housing space.   
 
Below, please find this property’s occupancy standards description:   

 
Number of Bedrooms Min. # Household Members Max.  # Household Members 

   
0 1 1 
1 1 2 
2 2 4 
3 4 6 
4 6 8 
5 8 10 

 
o Generally, two persons are expected to share a bedroom. The family will be allowed one bedroom 

for each two persons within the household.  Exceptions to this rule and to the minimum number of 
household members guide above include the following circumstances: 
 

o Two children of the opposite sex, with one at least seven (7) years of age, will not be 
required to share a bedroom,  

o Persons of different generations (grandparent and grandchild, parent and child) will not be 
required to share a bedroom. 

http://www.huduser.org/datasets/il.html


(Property Name) Tenant Selection Plan  

Page 11  of 58  Pending Public Comment 5/12/2016  

o A couple (married or unmarried, same sex or opposite sex) engaged in a consensual sexual 
relationship will be allocated one bedroom. 

o Authorized live-in aides will be allocated a separate bedroom. No additional bedrooms will be 
provided for the live-in aide’s family. 

o Single-person families will be allocated either a zero (efficiency) or one bedroom unit. 
o Anticipated children will be included.  Anticipated children include: 

 
o Children expected to be born to a pregnant woman; 
o Children in process of being adopted by an adult family member; 
o Children whose custody is being obtained by an adult family member; 
o Foster children who will reside in the unit; 
o Children who are temporarily in a foster home who will return to the family; and 
o Children in joint custody arrangements who are present in the household 50% or more of 

the time. 
 

o A household that contains a family member (not the head of household or spouse) who is enrolled 
as a full-time student at an institution of higher learning and who is on the lease will be counted for 
the purposes of establishing occupancy standards for unit size if: 
 

o the family member is enrolled and actively attending a two-year or four-year college or 
university; and 

o the family member resides in the public housing unit during school breaks and holidays. 
 

Any household placed in a unit size different from that defined in these Occupancy Standards shall agree 
to transfer to an appropriate size unit at the same property when one becomes available.   

• Verifying the Need for an Accessible Unit  
When an applicant requests an accessible unit or a unit preference, such as a first floor unit, the 
owner/agent will conduct inquiries to: 
 
o Verify that the applicant is qualified for the unit, which is only available to persons with a disability 

or to persons with a particular type of disability. 
o Verify that the applicant needs the features of the unit as an accommodation to his or her disability. 
o Verify that the applicant is qualified to receive a priority on the waiting list available to persons with 

a disability or to persons with a particular type of disability. 

PROGRAM ELIGIBILITY 

• Eligibility Standards 
Based on federal regulations, the owner/agent may admit only eligible applicants.  In the selection of 
applicants for admission, eligibility criteria have been established in accordance with HUD guidelines.  
The following eligibility standards will be applied in accordance with HUD requirements: 
 
o The household’s annual income must not exceed program income limits at move-in; 
o The Head-of-Household (HOH), co-Head-of-Household and the spouse (regardless of age) and all 

adults in each household must sign an Authorization for Release of Information (HUD Forms 9887 
and 9887A) and owner/agent created verification documents prior to receiving assistance and 
annually thereafter;   

o The unit for which the household is applying must be the household’s only residence; 



(Property Name) Tenant Selection Plan  

Page 12  of 58  Pending Public Comment 5/12/2016  

o An applicant must agree to pay the rent required by the program under which the applicant will 
receive assistance; 

o Only U.S. citizens or eligible non-citizens may receive assistance (See additional information below 
and in Appendix B); 

o Applicants who claim eligible status must disclose Social Security Numbers for all household 
members and provide proof of the numbers reported (See additional information below); 

o The household size must be appropriate for the available apartments (See Occupancy Standards); 
o All information reported by the household is subject to verification. 

• Disclosure and Verification of Social Security Numbers 
All household members receiving HUD housing assistance or applying to receive HUD housing assistance 
are required to provide a Social Security Number and adequate documentation necessary to verify that 
number.  This rule applies to all household members including live-in aides, foster children and foster 
adults.  Adequate documentation includes a Social Security card issued by the Social Security 
Administration (SSA) or other acceptable evidence of the SSN such as: 
 
o Original Social Security card 
o Driver’s license with SSN 
o Identification card issued by a federal, State, or local agency, a medical insurance provider, or an 

employer or trade union. 
o Earnings statements on payroll stubs 
o Bank statement 
o Form 1099 
o Benefit award letter 
o Retirement benefit letter 
o Life insurance policy 
o Court records 

• Exceptions to Disclosure of Social Security Number  
The Social Security Number requirements do not apply to:  
 
o Individuals age 62 or older as of January 31, 2010, whose initial determination of eligibility was 

begun before January 31, 2010.  
o Individuals who do not contend eligible immigration status. When applicants and residents are 

required to declare their citizenship status, the existing regulations pertaining to proration of 
assistance or screening for mixed families must continue to be followed.  
 

If, at the time a unit becomes available, all non-exempt household members have not provided 
adequate documentation necessary to verify Social Security Numbers, the next eligible applicant must 
be offered the available unit.   
 
All non-exempt household members have ninety (90) days-from the date they are first notified that a 
unit is available-to provide documentation necessary to verify the Social Security Numbers.  During this 
90-day period, the household may retain its place on the waiting list, but will not be considered again 
until the required documentation is provided.   
 
If, after ninety (90) days, the applicant is unable to disclose/verify the Social Security Numbers of all non-
exempt household members, the household will be determined ineligible and removed from the waiting 
list.  



(Property Name) Tenant Selection Plan  

Page 13  of 58  Pending Public Comment 5/12/2016  

The applicant may apply again, after obtaining the appropriate documentation.  The applicant will be 
placed on the waiting list based on the date and time the new application is received. 

• Secondary Verification of the Social Security Number (PBRA Only) 
The Social Security Number provided will be compared to the information recorded in the Social Security 
Administration database through HUD’s Enterprise Income Verification System (EIV) to ensure that the 
Social Security Number, birth date and last name match.   
 
If EIV returns an error that cannot be explained or resolved, assistance and/or tenancy may be 
terminated and any assistance paid in error must be returned to HUD.  If the applicant/resident 
deliberately provides an inaccurate Social Security Number, the owner/agent and/or HUD may pursue 
additional penalties due to attempted fraud. 

• Citizenship/Immigration Status Requirements 
Applicants are required to declare U.S. citizenship or submit evidence of eligible immigration status for 
each household member seeking housing assistance.  The owner/agent is required to obtain the 
following: 
  
o Family Composition List (lists all household members who will reside in the assisted unit) 
o Citizenship Declaration - Each household member listed on the Family Composition List must 

complete a declaration of citizen or non-citizen status 
o Forms and/or evidence of citizen/immigration status as required by HUD 
 
Additional information regarding submission and verification of proof of citizenship status or eligible 
non-citizen status can be found in Appendix B.   
 
If any applicant has questions or experiences difficulty providing the described information or 
determining the type of documentation required, the applicant should contact the management office.  
If any applicant is unable to provide the required documentation in the timeframe indicated in Appendix 
B, the applicant must contact the management office to request an extension.  If any applicant fails to 
provide this information in the timeframes described, the owner/agent cannot provide assistance and 
the application will be rejected. 
 
The owner/agent will offer the household assistance, providing subsidy to those eligible household 
members whose documents were received on time, when the following criteria is met: 
 
o At least one member of the household has submitted the required documentation in a timely 

manner and has been determined to be eligible based on all of the criteria in this resident selection 
plan 

o Assistance/unit is available 
o The household is the next household to be selected from the waiting list 
 
Proof of declared citizenship status must be provided for all household members.  Members who claim 
U.S. citizenship can provide any documents approved by HUD or the Department of Homeland Security 
(DHS) to prove citizenship.  Additional information is provided in Addendum B.   
 
Non-citizens claiming eligible status must follow the guidance provided in Addendum B and in 24 CFR to 
prove eligible non-citizen status.   
 



(Property Name) Tenant Selection Plan  

Page 14  of 58  Pending Public Comment 5/12/2016  

Applicants must be able to provide proof of citizenship or legal immigration status. 
 
Citizenship eligibility must be reviewed after move-in if eligibility status can change.  If any household 
member is determined to be an ineligible non-citizen, either at application or after move-in, assistance 
and/or tenancy may be denied, terminated or prorated as appropriate.  

• Single Residence/Subsidy Criteria 
A household is eligible for assistance only if the unit will be the household’s only residence.  The 
owner/agent will not knowingly assist applicants who will maintain a residence in addition to the HUD-
assisted unit.   
 
Applicants MUST disclose if they are currently receiving HUD housing assistance.  Residents can only 
receive subsidy for one unit/residence at a time.  This prohibition does not prevent a person who is 
currently receiving assistance from applying for an assisted unit in another property.   
 
If, for any reason, an applicant moves in to this property before moving out of another subsidized unit, 
the new resident will be required to pay market rent until the move out from the previous property is 
complete and the resident is eligible to receive HUD subsidy for this property.  Assistance in the new 
unit will begin, if the household is still eligible, the day after assistance ends for the previous unit.   
 
There is an exception to this rule.  Children in joint custody arrangements can receive HUD housing 
assistance in two units when both parent/guardian families receive HUD housing assistance.  However, 
only one household may use the $480 dependent deduction to determine adjusted income.  In these 
cases, additional verification is required.  The owner/agent will request: 

 
o Verification of the custody/guardianship/living arrangement - Please see Appendix D for additional 

information 
o Verification of the use of the $480 deduction.  The owner/agent will verify use of the $480 

dependent deduction with the other owner/agent if : 
 The child will live in the unit at least 50% of the time and  
 The parent wishes to claim the $480 deduction, and  
 Both families are receiving HUD housing assistance 

 
All adults will be required to sign the Acknowledgement in Appendix C. 

• Eligibility of Students Enrolled at an Institute for Higher Education  
Student eligibility is determined at move-in/initial certification and at each annual certification.  Student 
eligibility may also be reviewed at interim certification if student status has changed since the last 
certification.  All adult students are required to report any change in their student status.  A student who 
is otherwise eligible and meets screening requirements is eligible for assistance if the student meets the 
criteria indicated below.  Section 8 assistance shall not be provided to any individual who: 
 
o Is enrolled as either a part-time or full-time student at an institution of higher education for the 

purpose of obtaining a degree, certificate, or other program leading to a recognized educational 
credential; and 

o Is under the age of 24; and 
o Is not married; and 
o Is not a veteran of the United States Military; and 
o Does not have a dependent child; and 



(Property Name) Tenant Selection Plan  

Page 15  of 58  Pending Public Comment 5/12/2016  

o Is not a person with disabilities, as such term is defined in 3(b)(3)(E) of the United States Housing Act 
of 1937 (42 U.S.C. 1437a(b)(3)(E)) and was not receiving section 8 assistance as of November 30, 
2005; and 

o Is not living with his or her parents who are receiving Section 8 assistance; and 
o Is not individually eligible to receive Section 8 assistance or has parents (the parents individually or 

jointly) who are not income eligible to receive Section 8 assistance.   
 
NOTE:  Unless the student can demonstrate his or her independence from parents, the student must be 
eligible to receive Section 8 assistance and the parents (individually or jointly) must be eligible (income 
eligible) to receive Section 8 assistance in order for the student to receive Section 8 assistance. 
 
For a student to be eligible independent of his or her parents (where the income of the parents is not 
relevant), the student must demonstrate independence from, parents.  While owner/agents may use 
additional criteria for determining the student’s independence from parents, owner/agents must use, 
and the student must meet, at a minimum all of the following criteria to be eligible for Section 8 
assistance.  The student must: 
 
o Be of legal contract age under state law; 
o Have established a household separate from parents or legal guardians for at least one year prior to 

application for occupancy, or, meet the U.S. Department of Education’s definition of an independent 
student; 

o Not be claimed as a dependent by parents or legal guardians pursuant to IRS regulations; and 
o Obtain a certification of the amount of financial assistance that will be provided by parents, signed 

by the individual providing the support.  This certification is required even if no assistance will be 
provided. 

o If an ineligible student is a member of an existing household receiving Section 8 assistance, the 
assistance for the household will not be prorated but will be terminated  

 
NOTE:  An owner/agent cannot evict or require an ineligible student to move from a unit as long as the 
student is in compliance with the terms of the lease. 
 
Any financial assistance a student receives (1) under the Higher Education Act of 1965, (2) from private 
sources, or (3) from an institution of higher education that is in excess of amounts received for tuition 
shall be considered income to that individual, except for: 
 
o A person 24 years of age or older with dependent children as defined by HUD or  
o A person living with his/her parents 
 
The definition of tuition is consistent with the definition provided by the Department of Education and 
includes all mandatory fees associated with being enrolled at that institution of higher education. 

• Additional Tax Credit Eligibility Requirements for Students Enrolled at an Institute of Higher Education 
Households composed entirely of full-time students are not eligible for tax credit program unless, they 
meet one of these 5 criteria:   
 
o Married and filing a joint tax return or eligible to file a joint tax return, or  
o Single parent, at least 1 child, neither of whom is a dependent on another person's tax return, 

except for the return of the other parent of the child, or  
o Receiving welfare or TANF, or  



(Property Name) Tenant Selection Plan 

 Page 16  of 58 Created 5/19/2016 
 

o Participating in job-training program funded through Workforce Investment Act, or 
o Household member was a participant in the foster care program. 

• Prohibition of Assistance to Noncitizen Students   
Noncitizen students and their noncitizen families may not receive assistance.  Noncitizen students are 
not eligible for continuation of assistance or temporary deferral of termination of assistance.  A 
noncitizen student is defined as an individual who is as follows: 
 
o A resident of another country to which the individual intends to return; 
o A bona fide student pursuing a course of study in the United States; and 
o A person admitted to the United States solely for the purpose of pursuing a course of study as 

indicated on an F-1 or M-1 student visa.  
 
This prohibition applies to the noncitizen student’s noncitizen spouse and noncitizen children. However, 
spouses and children who are U.S. citizens may receive assistance.  For example, a family that includes a 
noncitizen student married to a U.S. citizen is a mixed family. 

PROCEDURES FOR TAKING PRE-APPLICATIONS & APPLICATIONS 
It is the owner/agent's policy to accept and process applications in accordance with HUD guidance.  The 
owner/agent will make a reasonable accommodation to assist in the application process if the applicant or any 
member of the applicant household is disabled.   

PRE-APPLICATIONS 
Applicants will first complete a pre-application to have their name placed on the waiting list for housing at 
[name of property].  Pre-applications can be submitted on the internet at www.austin.apply4housing.com.  The 
owner/agent will also accept the application in an equally effective format, as a reasonable accommodation, if 
there is the presence of a disability.  
  
Pre-applications are not accepted at the property site. 
The entire pre-application must be completed in full and submitted before the applicant will be placed on the 
waiting list.  Confirmation of successful submission will be provided by the online application portal if all 
requirements are met.  
 
Due to long waiting lists and depending on the preferences for which an applicant family may qualify, the time 
spent on the waiting list may be anywhere from several months to several years.  While waiting on the waiting 
list, applicants may check the status of their application by creating an account at 
https://austin.ourpha.com/applicants.  In this applicant portal, applicants can update their contact information, 
report changes to their application and check the status of their application.  It is the applicant’s responsibility to 
keep all contact information current. 

• Incomplete Pre-Applications 
Electronic submissions of pre-applications cannot be submitted if they are incomplete.  For pre-
applications accepted by an alternate means, if the pre-application is not complete, the owner/agent 
will attempt to contact the applicant to obtain missing information.  The applicant will have ten (10) 
business days to respond and provide missing information.  If the applicant fails to provide required 
information within the ten (10) day period, the owner/agent will return the application. 
 

http://www.austin.apply4housing.com/
https://austin.ourpha.com/applicants


(Property Name) Tenant Selection Plan 

 Page 17  of 58 Created 5/19/2016 
 

• Preliminary Determination of Applicant Eligibility 
Information needed to determine applicant eligibility shall be obtained, verified, and the determination 
of applicant eligibility performed, in accordance with HUD and property eligibility requirements.   
 
Upon receipt of the completed pre-application, the owner/agent will make a preliminary eligibility 
determination before adding a household to the waiting list or initiating final eligibility tasks.   
 
The owner/agent will review the pre-application to ensure that there are no obvious factors that would 
make the applicant ineligible.  Obvious factors include, but are not limited to: 
 
• Owing a debt to the Housing Authority of the City of Austin (any property or program) that is still 

within the 4 year statute of limitations; 
• Having been evicted (or vacated in lieu of eviction) from any HACA program within 5 years for drug 

related activity; 
• Having been evicted (or vacated in lieu of eviction) from any HACA program within 2 years for any 

reason other than drug related activity; 
• Head of household or co-head is currently living at this property; 
• Having been denied admission to this program within the past 12 months for any reason at any 

property owned and administered by the Housing Authority of the City of Austin. 
• Having rejected a housing offer for a unit of the same size at the same property within the last 12 

months. 
 

If an applicant is preliminarily ineligible, the owner/agent will send a notice to the applicant indicating 
that they are not eligible, including the reason(s) why they were determined ineligible and stating the 
family’s rights to appeal the decision.  This action will be completed in agreement with the 
owner/agent’s Grievance and Appeals Policy which is available to the applicant upon request. 
 
If a preliminary eligibility review indicates that a household is preliminarily eligible for tenancy, but units 
of appropriate size are not available, the owner/agent will place the household on the waiting list for 
the property and notify the household when their name comes to the top of the waiting list.   
If an applicant is otherwise eligible but no appropriate unit exists in the property, the owner/agent will 
reject the pre-application.    
 
The owner/agent will notify the applicant family if their pre-application is rejected for any reason. 

APPLICATIONS 
When the applicant family reaches the top of the waiting list, they will receive an invitation by mail to come to 
an eligibility interview.   
 

• Applicant families can receive up to 3 invitations to attend an eligibility interview. 
• If a family does not attend the scheduled appointment, a notice will be sent to the family and their 

name will be withdrawn from the waiting list.  If the family responds within fifteen (15) calendar days of 
the notice and requests to be rescheduled, they will be placed back on the waiting list with their same 
date and time.   

• Once the family misses their third scheduled appointment, they are no longer eligible to be placed back 
on the waiting list.  The family will be required to submit a new application and start the process from 
the beginning. 



(Property Name) Tenant Selection Plan 

 Page 18  of 58 Created 5/19/2016 
 

During the eligibility interview process, the applicant family will complete a full application.  All documents in 
the Application Package must be completed in full, signed and dated in order to be accepted.  All adult 
applicants must complete the application package as instructed.      
 
Upon request, the owner/agent/agent will provide interested parties with a copy of the application package.   
The person who is indicated as the Head-of-Household (HOH) must execute and sign all documents that are 
included in the application package.  Before completing or executing any forms, additional copies should be 
made for all adult household members and in some cases for minors who will live in the unit.   
 
The owner/agent will require applicants to provide several documents as verification and proof of eligibility for 
housing.  These will include: 
 

• A government issued photo ID - used for verifying the identity of all applicants.  A birth certificate or 
other government issued document which includes the applicant’s name and date of birth – used to 
verify the age of all applicant family members. 

• Proof of citizenship – which may include a US birth certificate, US passport or other government issued 
documents demonstrating citizenship. 

• Proof of immigration status (if applicable) -  which may include a permanent resident card, employment 
authorization card, I-94 visa or other government issued document indicating valid immigration status. 

• A Social Security card or any other government issued document including the name and full SSN of all 
applicants. 

• Verification of all sources of income, including (but not limited to) check stubs for employment, SS / SSI 
award letters, VA Pension award letters, TANF award letter, proof of child support and verification of 
asset income. 

FINAL DETERMINATION OF ELIGIBILITY 
Once the applicant family completes the eligibility interview, all eligibility criteria will be reviewed before a final 
eligibility determination is made.  Being eligible, however, does not guarantee that the application will be 
approved.  All adult applicants (and if appropriate minors) will be subject to the certain screening based on 
landlord/rental history, credit history and criminal history.  If the screening process determines that the family 
meets HUD’s and the owner/agent’s standards for admission, the family is found eligible. 

LIVE-IN AIDES 
Please contact the HACA central office Admissions Department if a live-in aide will be moving in to the unit.  If 
the family plans to include a live-in aide, the live-in aide is not required to complete the same application forms.  
Live-in aides must complete the Live-in Aide Questionnaire and participate in screening and other O/A 
verifications that are required.   
 
The live-in aide must meet HUD’s definition of a live-in aide.  The live-in aide has no rights to the unit as a 
remaining family member and must agree to relinquish possession of the unit within a reasonable time if the 
resident is absent for an extended period of time or if the resident leaves for any reason.  The live-in aide will be 
required to sign an acknowledgement the live-in aide has no right of residency or occupancy if the resident is 
absent or if the resident moves out for any reason including death.   

WAITING LISTS  
To ensure that applicants are appropriately and fairly selected for the next available unit, it is essential for the 
owner/agent to maintain waiting lists.  The owner/agent will place the applicant household on the waiting list 
after preliminary eligibility determination is complete. 



(Property Name) Tenant Selection Plan 

 Page 19  of 58 Created 5/19/2016 
 

Applicants will have the option of specifying a desired unit size or multiple unit sizes when completing the pre-
application. The applicant will be placed on the waiting list for all indicated unit sizes/types as long as:  
 

• The applicant household meets the Occupancy Standards described in this plan, and  
• The waiting list for the unit size is open   

 
The applicant Head-of-Household (HOH) will be contacted, based on the waiting list selection criteria, and 
offered housing for the first unit that becomes available based on the selection guidelines described in this plan. 
 
Families can select the option to be placed on the waiting list for multiple unit sizes at the same property.  If the 
family is determined to be eligible and accepts a unit offer, at that time they will be removed from the other 
bedroom size waiting lists for that property.    

MAINTAINING WAITING LISTS   
It is the policy of the owner/agent to administer its waiting list as required by HUD handbooks and regulations.  
The owner/agent will update the waiting list by removing the names of applicants who are no longer interested 
in or no longer qualify for the PBRA and/or LIHTC program. 
 
On a regular basis, as determined by the owner/agent considering the length of the waiting list, the 
owner/agent will contact each applicant household by mail, using the address provided on the pre-application.  
Applicants are responsible for updating their application with any changes in address.  The Head-of-Household 
(HOH) will be the only person contacted unless otherwise requested.  
  
If this letter is unable to be delivered by the United States Postal Service, the application will be rejected and the 
household will be removed from the waiting list.   
 
If the Head-of-Household (HOH) fails to respond to the owner/agent inquiries regarding the desire to remain on 
the waiting list, the application will be rejected and the household will be removed from the waiting list. 
In addition, an adult member of the applicant household must contact the Admissions Department, in writing, if 
household information changes (i.e. number of household members, number of future household members, 
criminal history, income, etc.).  If the household size or composition changes, the owner/agent will: 
 

• Update the waiting list information and  
• Decide whether the household needs the same or a different unit   

 
If, as a result of the household composition change, it is determined that the household will be on the waiting 
list for a different unit than originally indicated, the household will maintain their place on the waiting list for the 
new unit.  If the waiting list is currently closed for the appropriate unit size, the application will be rejected and 
the household will be removed from the waiting list.  If there are no units of the appropriate size on the 
property, the household will be rejected and will be removed from the waiting list.   

REMOVAL OF APPLICANTS FROM THE WAITING LIST 
The owner/agent will remove an applicant's name from the waiting list when if any of the following apply: 
   

• Applicant requests that the household name be removed  
• The unit that is needed – using household size as the basis – has changed, and no appropriate size/type 

unit exists in the property 



(Property Name) Tenant Selection Plan 

 Page 20  of 58 Created 5/19/2016 
 

• The unit that is needed – using household size as the basis – has changed, and the waiting list is closed 
for that unit size/type 

• Applicant fails to meet eligibility requirements 
• Applicant fails to meet occupancy standards  
• Applicant fails to meet screening requirements 
• Applicant is rejected for any reason described in this plan 
• Applicant cannot be contacted by US Mail (letters are returned or undeliverable) Applicant fails to keep 

application information up to date based on the requirements described in this plan  
• Applicant was clearly advised, in writing, of the requirement to tell owner/agent of his/her continued 

interest in housing by a particular time and failed to do so  
• Applicant refused offer of a unit (See Right to Refusal Policy for additional information.) 

 
If an applicant is removed from the waiting list, and subsequently the owner/agent determines that an error was 
made in removing the applicant, the applicant will be reinstated at the original place on the waiting list. 
 
If an applicant is removed from the waiting list and later, the applicant household feels that they are now 
qualified for assistance/tenancy, the applicant household must submit a new application.  The applicant will be 
placed on the waiting list, as necessary, based on the submission date and time of the new application. 
 
There are certain situations when the owner/agent may refuse to accept an application.  The owner/agent will 
not accept pre-applications from individuals or families who:  
 

• Were denied admission to any of HACA’s housing programs within the last 12 months because of 
criminal history, derogatory rental history, unreported income or fraud. 

• Owe a move out balance or debt to HACA for previous tenancy in any of HACA’s housing programs that 
is not barred by the statute of limitations.  There is a four year statute of limitations which ends the 
latter of: 
o Four years from the date the debt became delinquent; or 
o Four years from the date the final payment would have been do if the applicant signed a repayment 

agreement.  
• Has been evicted or moved out in lieu of eviction from another property managed or owned by the 

owner/agent, or from the Public Housing or Housing Choice Voucher programs within the past two years 
for any reason other than drug related. 

• Has been evicted or moved out in lieu of eviction from a federally assisted property or program for drug 
related reasons in the last five years 

• Are currently housed at this property (Does not apply to adults that are not the head of household, co-
head or spouse.) 

• Voluntarily moved out of HACA’s Public Housing or [name of property] within the last 12 months. 
• Rejected a housing offer at the same property within the past year. 

 
In addition, if an applicant previously accepted a unit offered by the owner/agent and the applicant failed to 
take possession of the unit on the agreed upon date without notice to the owner/agent, the owner/agent 
reserves the right to refuse all future applications.   



(Property Name) Tenant Selection Plan 

 Page 21  of 58 Created 5/19/2016 
 

SELECTING APPLICANTS FROM THE WAITING LIST 
When an applicant family reaches the top of the waiting list, they will be invited in to the HACA Central Office 
Admissions Department to complete an eligibility interview.  Once the family has been certified eligible, they will 
wait for the next unit to become available.   
 
The owner/agent will contact the next certified eligible household based on the selection criteria described in 
this plan and make a housing offer to the family.  No decisions to offer the unit shall be made until all 
information presented by the applicant has been verified and the final eligibility determination is complete. 

• Income Targeting (PBRA Only) 
Based on the HUD contract for this property, the owner/agent is required to comply with the Income 
Targeting Requirement.  Income Targeting requires that the owner/agent implement policies to ensure 
that, during the property fiscal year, 40% of all households that move in to the property or who begin 
receiving assistance fall within the Extremely Low Income Limits for the area where the property is 
located.  
  
At this time, no special selection methods are required to meet the Income Targeting requirements.   
The owner/agent is required to monitor compliance throughout the year.   If, after periodic review, the 
owner/agent discovers that the Income Targeting Requirement will not be attained, the owner/agent 
will only select, in order, those applicants whose income falls within the extremely-low income levels.   
Once the Income Targeting Requirement is met, the owner/agent will return to the “natural” selection 
order.    

PREFERENCES (PBRA ONLY) 
Applicants with preferences are selected from the waiting list and receive an opportunity for an eligibility 
interview earlier than those who do not have a preference.   
 
Assigning preferences to applicants who meet certain criteria is a method intended to provide housing 
opportunities to applicants based upon household circumstances.  
 
Preferences affect only the order applicants are selected from the waiting list.  They do not make anyone eligible 
who was not otherwise eligible.  Preferences are not permitted if they, in any way, interfere with affirmative 
marketing efforts or fair housing requirements.   

• Owner/agent-Adopted Preferences  
 
Unit Transfer Preference:  Residents who have submitted a Unit Transfer Request and who are deemed 
eligible for the transfer are given preference on the waiting list. This means that a resident transferring 
from one unit to another will be offered a unit before an applicant.  Unit transfers (on-property) will be 
weighted and offered in the following order: 

o Emergency / Safety 
o Reasonable Accommodation Request 
o Over Housed 
o Under Housed 
o Make an Accessible Unit Available 

 
 



(Property Name) Tenant Selection Plan 

 Page 22  of 58 Created 5/19/2016 
 

• HUD Approved Preference 
 
Preference for Victims of Domestic Violence who reside at any HACA owned property (HACA VAWA):  
Existing applicants or new applicants who currently reside at a HACA owned property will be offered the 
opportunity to claim a preference based on the protections offered in the VAWA Reauthorization Act of 
2013.  Such status will be verified, and when such verification is complete, applicant families will be 
added to the waiting list with a VAWA preference. 
 
Documentation of eligibility for this preference will be required.  See the VAWA policy located in 
Appendix __ for a full explanation of acceptable documentation. 
 
Preference for Families that have been Involuntarily Displaced by Natural Disaster or Government 
Action (Involuntarily Displaced):  Existing applicants or new applicants will be offered the opportunity 
to claim that they have been involuntarily displaced within six months of claiming the preference.  Such 
status will be verified, and when such verification is complete, applicant families will be added to the 
waiting list with an involuntarily displaced preference. 
 
Examples of involuntary displacement include, but are not limited to, displacement due to hurricane, 
tornado, flood, fire, or the exercise of eminent domain. 
 
Documentation of eligibility for this preference is required.  Sufficient documentation includes: 
 
o Documents from FEMA, the State of Texas, the City of Austin or any other government agency 

indicating the destruction (or no longer livable status) of the applicant’s residence due to natural 
disaster or government action within the previous 6 months. 

o Documents from the Red Cross or other disaster support agency indicating that the applicant’s 
residence has been destroyed or is no longer habitable due to natural disaster or government 
action. 

 
Preference for Disabled Head of Household, Disabled Spouse or Disabled Co-head (Disability):  Existing 
applicants and new applicants will be offered the opportunity to disclose the disability status of the 
head of household, spouse or co-head.  Such status will be verified, and when such verification is 
complete, the applicant family will be added to the waiting list with a disability preference 
 
Proof of disability will be required to receive this preference.  Sufficient documentation includes: 
 
o A Social Security  award letter,, SSI award letter, or Social Security Disability award letter indicating 

that the applicant is disabled; or 
o Verification by a qualified medical professional indicating that the applicant meets the HUD 

definition of disability.  This verification will be sent by the HACA Admissions Department staff to the 
qualified medical professional identified by the applicant and will be accompanied by a release of 
information and consent signed by the applicant. 

• Preference Weights 
The owner/agent will apply different weights to each preference.  The heavier the weight, the higher the 
applicant will move up on the waiting list.  Applicant families are limited to one preference per 
household.  If the family qualifies for more than one preference, the preference with the heaviest 
weight will be applied.  The weights for each preference are as follows: 



(Property Name) Tenant Selection Plan 

 Page 23  of 58 Created 5/19/2016 
 

o 3     HACA VAWA 
o 2     Involuntarily Displaced 
o 1     Disability 

• Verification of Preferences    
All preferences will be verified using the verification methodology described in this resident selection 
plan.  This verification will be conducted at the time of the eligibility interview. 

• When a Request for Preference is Denied 
If it is determined that an applicant does not meet the criteria for receiving a preference, the applicant 
will receive written notice of this determination within ten (10) business days.   
 
The notice will contain the reasons for the determination.  The applicant has the right to appeal the 
decision.  All requests for appeal must be received within fifteen (15) calendar days from the date of 
notification of denial.  See the full appeals process located in this tenant selection plan.   

• Change in Preference Status While on the Waiting List 
Occasionally households on the waiting list who did not qualify for a preference when they applied will 
experience a change in circumstances that qualifies them for a preference.  In such cases, it is the 
responsibility of the applicant to contact the owner/agent so that their change in status may be verified 
and the waiting list can be updated to reflect the preference as appropriate. 
 
To the extent the verification determines the household does now qualify for a preference, they will be 
selected from the waiting list in accordance with the preference and the date the application was 
received.   

• Exceptions to the Preference Rule 
Management must give priority to current residents: 
 
o Residing in a unit that has been determined uninhabitable due to flood, fire or other natural disaster 
o When a unit is designated for rehabilitation or repair 

 
These situations represent extenuating circumstances and the normal selection order may be adjusted 
to address the needs of these residents. 

OPENING AND CLOSING WAITING LIST 
In order to ensure that applicants on the waiting list are processed in a reasonable amount of time, the 
owner/agent may stop accepting applications and close waiting lists in whole or in part.  Decisions about closing 
and opening the waiting list will be based on the number of applications available for a particular size and type 
of apartment and the ability of the owner/agent to house an applicant in an appropriate apartment within a 
reasonable period of time.  
 
On a regular basis, the owner/agent/agent will review the number of families on the waiting list to determine 
whether the waiting list may be closed.  If the owner/agent has sufficient applications, the waiting list may be 
closed completely.  Notices announcing that the waiting list is closed or open will be publicly announced in the 
following manner: 
 

• Local newspapers 



(Property Name) Tenant Selection Plan 

 Page 24  of 58 Created 5/19/2016 
 

• Publications described in the Affirmative Fair Housing Marketing Plan 
• Flyers distributed through Social Service agencies as described in the Affirmative Fair Housing Marketing 

Plan 
 

Interested parties who insist on submitting applications when the waiting list is closed will not be considered.  
The application will not be reviewed and will be returned. 
 
During the period when the waiting list is closed, the owner/agent will not maintain a list of individuals who 
wish to be notified when the waiting list is reopened.   

PRIVACY POLICY 
It is the policy of the owner/agent to guard the privacy of individuals conferred by the Federal Privacy Act of 
1974 and to ensure the protection of such individuals' records maintained by the owner/agent.   
 
Neither the property owner/agent nor its agents shall disclose any personal information contained in its records 
to any person or agency, other than HUD, its Contract Administrators or other federal/state entity or investor 
auditing entities, unless the individual about whom information is requested gives written consent to such 
disclosure.  Such consent may be provided in an equally effective manner, as a reasonable accommodation, 
when there is the presence of a disability. 
 
This Privacy Policy in no way limits the owner/agent's ability to collect such information to determine eligibility, 
compute rent, or determine an applicant's suitability for tenancy.   

VERIFICATION 
The owner/agent shall obtain verifications in compliance with requirements set forth by the Department of 
Housing and Urban Development.  After the preliminary eligibility determination, no decision to approve an 
application shall be made until information provided on the application form and during subsequent interviews 
has been collected and any necessary follow-up interviews have been performed.  All information relative to the 
following items must be verified as described in these procedures. 

INFORMATION TO BE VERIFIED  
Information to be verified includes, but is not limited to: 
 

•   Eligibility for Admission, such as 
o Income 
o Assets And Asset Income 
o Identification 
o Age 
o Household Composition 
o Social Security Numbers  
o Citizenship And/or Legal Status 
o Student Status 
o Current HUD Assistance 

• Allowances, such as 
o Age 
o Disability 
o Full Time Student Status 
o Child Care Expenses 



(Property Name) Tenant Selection Plan 

 Page 25  of 58 Created 5/19/2016 
 

o Disability Assistance Expenses 
o Medical Expenses (For Elderly/Disabled Households Only) 

• Preferences 
o HACA VAWA status 
o Involuntarily Displaced status 
o Disability status 

• Compliance with Resident Screening Guidelines, such as 
o Criminal History 
o Credit History  
o Rental/Residence History 

• The Need for an Accessible Unit 

METHODS OF VERIFICATION  
Verifications will be attempted in the following order: 
 

• Enterprise Income Verification (EIV) – For PBRA Only 
• Upfront Income Verification (UIV) 
• Applicant provided third party documents (i.e. check stubs, award letters, etc) 
• Third-party form verification (as appropriate) 
• Third-party oral verification (if available) 
• In the absence of any of the above, notarized or witnessed statements from the household member.  

Each file will be documented, when appropriate, to show that staff attempted to obtain third-party 
verification before relying on family certification. 

SOURCES OF INFORMATION  
Sources of information may include, but are not limited to: 
 

• Any member of the applicant household 
• Present and former housing providers/landlords 
• Present and former employers 
• Banks 
• Insurance Companies 
• Any Asset Manager 
• Family members 
• Any person or organization providing gifts/regular contributions to the household 
• Credit Screening providers 
• Criminal Screening providers 
• Eviction Screening providers 
• Social workers/Parole Officers 
• Court records 
• Drug Treatment Centers 
• Health Providers 
• Physicians 
• Clergy 
• Schools/Institutes of Higher Education 
• Department of Homeland Security (DHS) 
• Department of Health and Human Services (HHS) 



(Property Name) Tenant Selection Plan 

 Page 26  of 58 Created 5/19/2016 
 

• The Internal Revenue Service (IRS) 
• The Social Security Administration (SSA) 
• Medicare/Medicaid 
• Representative of the United States Armed Forces 
• Any federal/local benefit providers 
• Pharmacies 
• Utility Providers 
• Local and non-local law enforcement 
• Automated criminal databases 
• Sexual Offenders registries when available 
• The world wide web (internet) 
• HUD’s EIV system (For PBRA Only) 

 
The owner/agent will be the final judge of the credibility of any verification submitted by an applicant.  If the 
owner/agent questions the validity of a document or the validity of information provided, it will be reviewed by 
management staff for a ruling regarding acceptability.   

PERIOD FOR VERIFICATION 
Only verified information that is less than 120 days old may be used for verification.  Verified information not 
subject to change (such as a person's date of birth) will not be re-verified. 

CONSENT AND VERIFICATION FORMS 
Regardless of age, the Head-of-Household (HOH), the co-Head-of-Household (HOH) the spouse of the Head-of-
Household (HOH) and all adult members of a household must sign HUD’s consent forms so that the owner/agent 
can verify eligibility:   
 

• HUD-9887, Notice and Consent for the Release of Information to HUD and to a PHA 
• HUD-9887-A, Applicant’s/Resident’s Consent to the Release of Information Verification by Owner/agents 

of Information Supplied by Individuals Who Apply for Housing Assistance 
 
Consent and verification forms protect the rights and privacy of residents and applicants by allowing them to 
have control over any information collected about them.  
 
All adult members of an applicant or resident household must also sign individual verification forms authorizing 
the owner/agent to verify household income and applicable eligibility factors (e.g., disability status) and to allow 
for screening.  
 
When a minor living in the unit turns 18, he/she will have thirty (30) days to meet with the management staff 
and sign appropriate forms.  Failure to do so will result in termination of subsidy for the entire household. 

PROVISIONS FOR REFUSAL TO SIGN  
If any member of the applicant’s household does not sign and submit the consent forms as required, the 
owner/agent must reject the application and deny assistance and/or tenancy. 

MISREPRESENTATION 
Any information, provided by the applicant that proves to be untrue may be used to disqualify the applicant 
because of misrepresentation or attempted fraud.  The owner/agent will not take any action to reduce or deny 



(Property Name) Tenant Selection Plan 

 Page 27  of 58 Created 5/19/2016 
 

assistance based on inconsistent information received during the verification process until the owner/agent has 
independently investigated the information.   
 
The owner/agent considers false information about the following to be grounds for rejecting an applicant: 
 

• Identity 
• Social Security Numbers/Information 
• Income 
• Assets/Income From Assets 
• Household Composition 
• Disability 
• Birth Date/Age 
• Citizenship, Naturalization, And/or Eligible Immigration Status 
• Eviction History 
• Criminal History 
• Sexual Offender Status 
• Eligibility For Preferences and Priorities 
• Allowances 
• Current/Previous Residence History  
• Current Housing Assistance 
• Status As A Student 

 
Unintentional errors that do not cause preferential treatment will not be used as a basis to reject applicants. 

APPLICANT SCREENING CRITERIA 
Screening is performed in a manner that is reasonable, consistent, and complies with fair housing laws. 
Screening is used to help ensure that households admitted to a property will abide by the terms of the lease, pay 
rent on time, take care of the property and unit, and allow all residents to peacefully enjoy their homes.   
Anyone who wishes to live on the property must be screened prior to moving in.  This includes, but is not limited 
to, live-in aides, security/police officers or additional household members wishing to move-in after the initial 
move-in.  Certain exceptions apply to children/minors.  The current screening guidelines in place at the time the 
new household member applies will be used to determine eligibility for admission.    

SCREENING FOR DRUG ABUSE AND OTHER CRIMINAL ACTIVITY 
 HUD has established standards that prohibit admission of: 
 

• Any household in which any member was evicted in the last three years from federally assisted housing 
for drug-related criminal activity   

• Any household in which any member was engaged in the production of methamphetamine. 
• *A household in which any member is currently engaged in illegal use of drugs or for which the  

owner/agent has reasonable cause to believe that a member’s illegal use or pattern of illegal use of a 
drug may interfere with the health, safety, and right to peaceful enjoyment of the property by other 
residents 

• Any household member who is subject to any state lifetime sex offender registration requirement  
• Any household member if there is reasonable cause to believe that member’s behavior, from abuse or 

pattern of abuse of alcohol, may interfere with the health, safety, and right to peaceful enjoyment by 



(Property Name) Tenant Selection Plan 

 Page 28  of 58 Created 5/19/2016 
 

other residents.  The screening standards must be based on behavior, not the condition of alcoholism or 
alcohol abuse 

 
*”Currently engaged in” is defined as any use of illegal drugs during the previous six months.   

 
In addition to HUD requirements, the owner/agent has established a policy to reject all applications where the 
applicant or any household member has engaged in criminal activity as described in this document.   
 
The owner/agent will reject applications if any household member’s criminal history includes one or more of the 
following: 
 

o Sex Offender Registration:  Applicant, or any member of the applicant family, is or ever has been subject 
to registration under a state sex offender registration program 

o Record of any conviction or adjudication, other than acquittal, of the following felonies by any 
household member, regardless of when it happened:  
o Capital Murder 
o Murder / Manslaughter 
o Arson 
o Kidnapping 
o Child Molestation 
o Treason 
o Rape or Crimes of a Sexual Nature 
o Incest  
o Crimes involving explosives 
o Crimes involving terrorism 
o Gross Lewdness  

 
o If any household member is currently engaged in, or has engaged in any of the following criminal 

activities, within the past four years, the family will be denied admission:  
o Drug-related criminal activity, defined by HUD as the illegal manufacture, sale, distribution or use of 

a drug or the possession of a drug with intent to manufacture, sell, distribute or use the drug [24 
CFR 5.100].   

o Violent criminal activity, defined by HUD as any criminal activity that has as one of its elements the 
use, attempted use or threatened use of physical force substantial enough to cause, or be 
reasonably likely to cause, serious bodily injury or property damage [24 CFR 5.100].  

o Criminal activity that may threaten the health, safety or welfare of other tenants [24 CFR 
960.203(c)(3)].  

o Illegal possession/discharge/display/carrying of firearm or illegal weapon/ deadly weapon.  
o Assault, aggravated assault, assault by threat, stalking.  
o Physical violence to persons or property, or criminal activity that has as one of its elements the use, 

attempted use or threatened use of physical force against the person or property of another. 
o Criminal activity that may threaten the health or safety of HACA staff, contractors, subcontractors or 

agents. 
o Three or more convictions of alcohol-related criminal activity, including Driving under the Influence 

and Public Intoxication.  
o Burglary of a Habitation.  
o If any household member is currently engaged in, or has engaged in any of the following criminal 

activities, within the past three years, the family will be denied admission:  



(Property Name) Tenant Selection Plan 

 Page 29  of 58 Created 5/19/2016 
 

o A pattern of abuse of alcohol, including, but not limited to, public intoxication and 
driving while intoxicated.  

o  A pattern of fraud committed against a governmental entity.  
o A pattern of theft or fraud.  
o A pattern of organized criminal activity.  
o A pattern of prostitution.  

 
A pattern (for the purposes listed above) consists of three or more incidences, with a minimum of one incident 
occurring within the past three years.  The owner/agent will not use arrest records as the sole basis for denying 
admission to the program.  
 
If a resident or applicant has requested VAWA protections and such protections have been justified based on 
owner/agent investigation, the abuser/perpetrator will not be approved to live on the property. 
  
If the owner/agent is unable to complete required criminal or sexual offender screening, the application will be 
rejected.  If the owner/agent determines that a sex offender is part of the household, the owner/agent will 
allow the household to remove the sex offender from the application.  Removal must be documented using the 
change of address receipt from the Texas Department of Sex Offender Registration. 
 
The household will have five (5) business days to provide verification that the household member has alternative 
housing or that the household member has applied for alternative housing.  Failure to provide such 
documentation will result in rejection of the application for all household members. 
 
The owner/agent reserves the right to monitor household composition after move-in.  If the owner/agent 
discovers that a sex offender has moved in to the unit, assistance will be terminated and the household will be 
evicted in accordance with HUD requirements.  Any assistance paid-in-error must be returned to HUD. 
 
United States Code Title 8, subsection 1324(a)(1)(A) prohibits the harboring of illegal aliens. The provision of 
housing to illegal aliens is a fundamental component of harboring.  All applicants will be required to provide 
proof of citizenship or legal immigration status. 
 
If criminal screening indicates that the applicant has an unacceptable criminal history, the owner/agent will 
reject the applicant in accordance with HUD guidance and the owner/agent’s standards for applicant rejection.   

• Consideration of Extenuating Circumstances 
In deciding whether to exercise discretion to admit an individual who has engaged in prohibited criminal 
activity, the owner/agent will consider all of the circumstances relevant to the particular admission 
decision, including but not limited to: the seriousness of the offending action; the effect that denial of 
the entire household would have on family members not involved in the criminal activity; and the extent 
to which the applicant has taken all reasonable steps to prevent or mitigate the criminal activity.  
Additionally, when specifically considering whether to deny admission for illegal drug use by a 
household member who is no longer engaged in such activity, the owner/agent will consider whether 
the household member is participating in or has successfully completed a drug rehabilitation program, 
or has otherwise been rehabilitated successfully.   

• Criminal Screening Discoveries 
If the criminal background investigation indicates that the applicant does not meet the criminal 
screening criteria, the owner/agent will reject the applicant in accordance with HUD guidance and the 



(Property Name) Tenant Selection Plan 

 Page 30  of 58 Created 5/19/2016 
 

owner/agent’s standards for applicant rejection. Before rejecting the household, the owner/agent will 
compare the information provided by the applicant with the criminal history report.  If the information 
conflicts, the owner/agent will: 
 
o Notify the household of the proposed action based on the information; 
o Provide a copy of the criminal history report; 
o Provide the applicant with an opportunity to dispute the accuracy and relevance of the information 

obtained from any law enforcement agency; 
o Allow the household the opportunity to remove the household member. 
 
In this situation, applicants will have seven (7) calendar days to resolve the discrepancy.  If the applicant 
fails to contact the owner/agent or indicates that he/she cannot provide documentation to refute the 
criminal discovery, the owner/agent will reject the application and remove the household from the 
waiting list.  The owner/agent will notify the applicant family of the rejection in writing.  The family will 
have the opportunity to request an appeal of the denial according to the terms of the grievance policy 
within this tenant selection plan. 

 
If, after move-in, the owner/agent discovers that there was criminal history that would have resulted in 
rejection, the owner/agent will contact the resident to ascertain the accuracy of the criminal report.  If 
the resident would have been rejected had the information been know at the time of the eligibility 
determination, the owner/agent will take appropriate action including notifying HUD’s Office of the 
Inspector General of potential fraud and pursuing termination of tenancy (eviction).   

SCREENING FOR CREDIT HISTORY 
The owner/agent reviews each adult applicant’s credit history.  The owner/agent does not consider medical 
bills/expenses, credit score, or the lack of credit history, when reviewing credit history.  Credit history will be 
reviewed to determine the following: 
 

• If there is any debt owed to a prior landlord or HUD; 
• If there are any evictions that have not been reported; 
• If there are any other housing related judgments against the applicant.   

 
Applicants will be rejected in the following situations: 
 

• The family owes a debt to a federally assisted housing program which has not been repaid and the 
family has not established a repayment agreement. 

• The family has a pattern of debts owed to housing and residential programs within the past two years.   
 
If the applicant has no credit history, the credit screening will be considered “positive”. 

SCREENING FOR ABILITY TO ESTABLISH UTILITY SERVICE 
The owner/agent will also screen applicant households for the ability to establish utility services in the name of 
at least one adult family member.  All adult applicants will be required to sign the consent for Release of 
Information from Austin Energy.   
 
Applicant households which do not have any adult members able to establish service with Austin Energy will be 
given 7 days to resolve the issue with Austin Energy.  If the household is unable to do so, the application will be 
rejected. 



(Property Name) Tenant Selection Plan 

 Page 31  of 58 Created 5/19/2016 
 

SCREENING FOR RENTAL HISTORY   
If any member of the applicant household has been evicted from any property owned or managed by the 
Housing Authority of the City of Austin for lease violations within the last two years, that applicant household 
will be rejected.     
 
The owner/agent will review rental history with any landlord indicated in the past two (2) years.  The 
owner/agent will also review information provided through automated databases including eviction databases.  
The application will be rejected for any of the following: 
 

• The family has been evicted from federally assisted housing within the past 2 years; 
• The family has a pattern of disturbance of neighbors, destruction of property or living or housekeeping 

habits at prior residences within the past two years which may adversely affect the health, safety or 
welfare of other tenants.  

• The family has a pattern of eviction from housing or termination from residential programs within the 
past five years (considering relevant circumstances). 

 
If the applicant fails to identify one or more residences where he/she lived in the last two (2) years, the applicant 
will be rejected and the household will be removed from the waiting list. 
 
The owner/agent will contact the prior property owner/agent (as indicated above) and inquire about the 
following information:   
 

• Adherence to the Lease & Community Policies 
• Compliance with certification reporting requirements 
• Rental Payment Performance 
• Compliance with requirements to fully and accurately disclose income information in a timely manner 
• Requirement to Return Assistance Paid in Error due to under-reporting income or un-reported income 
• Unit Maintenance/Damage 
• Record of Disturbing Neighbors 
• Complaints  

 
If information obtained is negative the applicant will be rejected. Negative responses include but are not limited 
to: 

• A pattern of failure to comply with the lease 
• A pattern of failure to comply with House Rules, Pet Rules or Assistance Animal Rules 
• Failure to fully and accurately report income, new employment or changes in household composition in 

a timely manner (if required) 
• Providing false information 
• Attempting to receive or receiving HUD assistance in multiple units/homes 
• Slow or no response to requests to recertify 
• Poor rental payment history (average more than two (2) late payments per year, record of bounced 

checks, any outstanding balance) 
• A pattern of poor unit maintenance or damage to the unit beyond normal wear-and-tear  
• Complaints from neighbors regarding actions that directly affect the peace and quiet comfort of others 

living in the community  



(Property Name) Tenant Selection Plan 

 Page 32  of 58 Created 5/19/2016 
 

• Record of actions that interfered with or prevented the previous landlord from effectively managing the 
property.   

• A pattern of outstanding balances owed by any household member to a prior landlord 
 
If the applicant has no landlord history, the landlord screening will be considered “positive”. 

SCREENING FOR RECEIPT OF HUD ASSISTANCE IN ANOTHER UNIT (PBRA ONLY) 
All applicants must disclose if they are currently receiving HUD housing assistance. The owner/agent will not 
knowingly assist applicants who will maintain a residence in addition to the HUD-assisted unit on this property.  
HUD provides the owner/agent with information about an applicant’s current status as a HUD housing 
assistance recipient.  
 
The owner/agent will use the Existing Tenant Report provided via HUD’s Enterprise Income Verification System 
(EIV) to determine if the applicant or any member of the applicant household is currently receiving HUD housing 
assistance.  This applies to all household members and to new members of an existing household, including 
minors, foster children/adults, and live-in aides.   
 
Nothing prohibits a HUD housing assistance recipient from applying to this property. However, the applicant 
must move out of the current property and/or forfeit any voucher before HUD assistance on this property will 
begin.  Special consideration applies to: 
 

• Minor children where two assisted families share custody 
• Recipients of HUD assistance in another unit who are moving to establish a new household when other 

family/household members will remain in the original unit (Split household/Swap household) 
 
If the owner/agent/agent discovers a discrepancy between the information on the application and the 
information provided by EIV, the applicant will be notified and will have 5 business days to respond to the 
inquiry.    
 
If an applicant fails to fully and accurately disclose receipt of HUD assistance or rental history, the application 
will be rejected and the applicant and all members of the applicant household will be removed from the waiting 
list. 
 
If any household member receives or attempts to receive HUD housing assistance while receiving HUD housing 
assistance on this property, the household member will be required to reimburse HUD for assistance paid in 
error. This is considered a material lease violation and may result in penalties up to and including eviction and 
pursuit of fraud charges.   

REJECTING INELIGIBLE OR UNQUALIFIED APPLICANTS 
 The owner/agent reserves the right to reject applicants for admission based on any of the following: 
 

• No unit of the appropriate size exists on the property 
• The household fails to meet the HUD indicated eligibility requirements for the assistance 

program/property 
• Any non-exempt member of the household fails to provide a Social Security Number or adequate 

documentation to verify the Social Security Number (SSN)  
• Any member of the household fails to meet the applicant screening requirements 



(Property Name) Tenant Selection Plan 

 Page 33  of 58 Created 5/19/2016 
 

• Any member of the household fails to sign appropriate verification documents 
• Misrepresentation 
• Fraud 
• Any member of the household fails to respond to management inquiries for additional information 

during the application process 
• The owner/agent is unable to contact the applicant via US Mail (letters undeliverable or returned) 

and/or by phone (number disconnected or changed) 
• Any member of the household has a record of eviction, for lease violations, from any property managed 

by the owner/agent or HACA 
• Any member of the household has a pattern of eviction, for lease violations, from any property within 

the last two years 
• There is a pattern of outstanding or overdue payments to a previous landlord 
• There is record of outstanding or overdue payments to HUD  
• The household is unable to establish utilities in the new unit 
• The household is unable to pay the security deposit required 
• The household is unable to take possession of the unit within the timeframes outlined in this plan 
• The household is unable to pay the first month’s rent (TTP) 
• The household does not have a need for an accessible unit and refuses  one unit offer 

REJECTION NOTICES   
The owner/agent will promptly notify the household (Head-of-Household (HOH), in writing, of the denial of 
admission or assistance. A rejection letter will be sent to the Head-of-Household via First Class Mail.  The 
rejection letter will include the reason(s) for the rejection. 

APPEALING THE DECISION TO REJECT 
Any applicant may make a request to appeal the denial in writing within fifteen (15) calendar days from the 
date of the rejection.  The owner/agent will accept the request in an equally effective manner, as a reasonable 
accommodation, if there is the presence of a disability.  Such requests are to be submitted to the Admissions 
Department in HACA’s central office building. If there is no appeal request within fifteen (15) days, the rejection 
will be considered final.  Reasons to appeal include: 
 

• The applicant believes the decision has been made in error 
• The applicant believes there are extenuating circumstances that should be considered 
• The applicant or a member of the applicant’s household is a victim of abuse covered by the Violence 

Against Women Act and the applicant feels the applicant’s status as a victim contributes to the decision 
to deny 

• The applicant or a member of the applicant’s household is a person with a disability, and the applicant 
believes a reasonable accommodation would allow the owner/agent to continue processing the 
application 

• The applicant’s household was rejected because the application includes someone who is a registered 
sex offender and the applicant wishes to remove that household member 

 
Any staff person engaged in the initial review will not be involved in the appeal. HACA’s designated hearing 
officer will conduct the informal review.   
 
Applicants may bring a representative to assist in the appeal meeting.  Applicants and/or their representatives 
have the right to request a reasonable accommodation to: 



(Property Name) Tenant Selection Plan 

 Page 34  of 58 Created 5/19/2016 
 

• Assist in facilitating your request for appeal  
• To assist in your participation during the appeal meeting  

 
The hearing officer will provide written notification of a final decision within ten (10) business days of the 
informal review.   
 
For complete details about the appeals process, see the Grievance and Appeals Policy.  This policy is available 
upon request.  

INFORMAL HEARINGS FOR PBRA APPLICANTS 
Through PIH Notice 2012-32 Rev. 2, HUD provided guidance that the grievance procedures afforded to families 
living in Conventional Public Housing before conversion through RAD to Project Based Rental  
Assistance (PBRA) must be continued after the conversion.  Below is the full account of all grievance procedures 
for applicants to the PBRA property. 
 
When the owner/agent makes a decision that has a negative impact on an applicant family, the family is often 
entitled to appeal the decision. For applicants, the appeal takes the form of an informal hearing. HUD 
regulations do not provide a structure for or requirements regarding informal hearings for applicants (except 
with regard to citizenship status, to be covered in Part II). This part discusses the owner/agent’s policies 
necessary to respond to applicant appeals through the informal hearing process. 

INFORMAL HEARING PROCESS [24 CFR 960.208(A) AND PH OCC GB, P. 58] 
Informal hearings are provided for PBRA applicants. An applicant is someone who has applied for admission to 
the PBRA program, but is not yet a resident in the program. Informal hearings are intended to provide a means 
for an applicant to dispute a determination of ineligibility for admission to a project [24 CFR 960.208(a)]. 
Applicants to PBRA are not entitled to the same hearing process afforded residents in the owner/agent 
grievance procedure [24 CFR 966.53(a) and PH Occ GB, p. 58]. 
 
Informal hearings provide the applicant a means to hear the details of the reasons for rejection, and an 
opportunity to present evidence to the contrary if available and to claim mitigating circumstances if possible. 

• Use of Informal Hearing Process 
The owner/agent will only offer the opportunity of an informal hearing to applicants who have been 
determined as ineligible for admission. 

• Notice of Denial  
The owner/agent will give an applicant prompt notice of a decision denying eligibility for admission. The 
notice will contain a brief statement of the reasons for the owner/agent’s decision, and will also state 
that the applicant may request an informal hearing to dispute the decision. The notice must describe 
how to obtain the informal hearing. 
 
The Notice of Denial letter will inform the applicant that he/she has a right to be represented by legal 
counsel when disputing the owner/agent’s decision denying eligibility for admission. 
 
Prior to notification of denial based on information obtained from criminal or sex offender registration 
records, the family, in some cases, must be given the opportunity to dispute the information in those 
records which would be the basis of the denial.  



(Property Name) Tenant Selection Plan 

 Page 35  of 58 Created 5/19/2016 
 

• Scheduling an Informal Hearing 
A request for an informal hearing must be made in writing and delivered to the owner/agent either in 
person, by fax, by email or by first class mail, by the close of the business day, no later than 15 calendar 
days from the date of owner/agent’s notification of denial of admission. 
 
Owner/agent will send written notice of the informal hearing within 30 business days of the family’s 
request. Owner/agent will make every effort to hold the hearing within 45 calendar days of receiving the 
request for the hearing. 

• Conducting an Informal Hearing [PH Occ GB, p. 58]  
The informal hearing will be conducted by an appointed Hearing Officer who is a person other than the 
one who made the decision under review, or a subordinate of this person. 
 
The applicant will be provided an opportunity to present written or oral objections to the decision of the 
owner/agent. 
 
The Hearing Officer will render a decision on whether admission should be granted or denied.  

• Informal Hearing Decision [PH Occ GB, p. 58] 
The owner/agent will notify the applicant of owner/agent’s final decision, including a brief statement of 
the reasons for the final decision. 

 
In rendering a decision, the owner/agent will evaluate the following matters: 
 

o Whether or not the grounds for denial were stated factually in the notice. 
o The validity of grounds for denial of admission. If the grounds for denial are not specified in the 

regulations or in the owner/agent’s policy, then the decision to deny assistance will be 
overturned. See the Tenant Selection Plan for a detailed discussion of the grounds for applicant 
denial. 

o The validity of the evidence. The owner/agent will evaluate whether the facts presented prove 
the grounds for denial of admission. If the facts prove that there are grounds for denial, and the 
denial is required by HUD, the owner/agent will uphold the decision to deny admission. 

o If the facts prove the grounds for denial, the Hearing Officer will make the final decision to deny 
admissions. 
 

The owner/agent will notify the applicant of the final decision, including a statement explaining the 
reason(s) for the decision. The notice will be mailed within 15 calendar days of the informal hearing to 
the applicant and his or her representative, if any. 
 
If the informal hearing decision overturns the denial, processing for admission will resume. The 
owner/agent will make every effort to resume the screening process for reinstated applicants within 20 
calendar days of the hearing decision. 
 
If the family fails to appear for their informal hearing, the denial of admission will stand and the family 
will be so notified. 
 
The applicant may request that the Hearing Officer consider a request for Reasonable Accommodations 
under the Fair Housing Act and Section 504 with respect to past conduct (see below).  



(Property Name) Tenant Selection Plan 

 Page 36  of 58 Created 5/19/2016 
 

If the basis for the denial relates to family violence, the applicant may qualify for an exception under the 
Violence Against Women Amendments.  
 
The Notice of Denial letter will inform the applicant that he/she has a right to be represented by legal 
counsel when disputing the owner/agent’s decision denying eligibility for admission. 

REASONABLE ACCOMMODATIONS FOR PERSONS WITH DISABILITIES [24 CFR 966.7] 
Persons with disabilities may request reasonable accommodations to participate in the informal hearing process 
and the owner/agent must consider such accommodations. The owner/agent must also consider reasonable 
accommodation requests pertaining to the reasons for denial if related to the person’s disability.  See the 
Reasonable Accommodation Policy for more detail pertaining to reasonable accommodation requests. 

HEARING AND APPEAL PROVISIONS FOR NON-CITIZENS [24 CFR 5.514] 
Denial or termination of assistance based on immigration status is subject to special hearing and notice rules. 
These special hearings are referred to in the regulations as informal hearings, but the requirements for such 
hearings are different from the informal hearings used to deny applicants for reasons other than immigration 
status. 
 
Assistance to a family may not be delayed, denied or terminated on the basis of immigration status at any time 
prior to a decision under the United States Citizenship and Immigration Services (USCIS) appeal process. 
Assistance to a family may not be terminated or denied while the owner/agent’s hearing is pending, but 
assistance to an applicant may be delayed pending the completion of the informal hearing. 
 
A decision against a family member, issued in accordance with the USCIS appeal process or the owner/agent’s 
informal hearing process, does not preclude the family from exercising the right, that may otherwise be 
available, to seek redress directly through judicial procedures. 

• Notice of Denial or Termination of Assistance [24 CFR 5.514(d)] 
The notice of denial or termination of assistance for noncitizens must advise the family of any of the 
following that apply: 
 
o That financial assistance will be denied or terminated, and provide a brief explanation of the reasons 

for the proposed denial or termination of assistance. 
o The family may be eligible for proration of assistance. 
o In the case of a resident, the criteria and procedures for obtaining relief under the provisions for 

preservation of families [24 CFR 5.514 and 5.518]. 
o That the family has a right to request an appeal to the USCIS of the results of secondary verification 

of immigration status and to submit additional documentation or explanation in support of the 
appeal. 

o That the family has a right to request an informal hearing with the owner/agent either upon 
completion of the USCIS appeal or in lieu of the USCIS appeal. 

o For applicants, assistance may not be delayed until the conclusion of the USCIS appeal process, but 
assistance may be delayed during the period of the informal hearing process. 

• United States Citizenship and Immigration Services Appeal Process [24 CFR 5.514(e)] 
When the owner/agent receives notification that the USCIS secondary verification failed to confirm 
eligible immigration status, the following process will be observed: 
 



(Property Name) Tenant Selection Plan 

 Page 37  of 58 Created 5/19/2016 
 

o The owner/agent will notify the family of the results of the USCIS verification within 10 calendar 
days of receiving the results.  

o The family will have 30 days from the date of the owner/agent’s notification to request an appeal of 
the USCIS results. The request for appeal must be made by the family in writing directly to the 
USCIS.  

o The family must provide the owner/agent with a copy of the written request for appeal and proof of 
mailing within 10 calendar days of sending the request to USCIS. 

 
The family must forward to the designated USCIS office any additional documentation or written 
explanation in support of the appeal. This material must include a copy of the USCIS document 
verification request (used to process the secondary request) or such other form specified by the USCIS, 
and a letter indicating that the family is requesting an appeal of the USCIS immigration status 
verification results. 
 
The USCIS will notify the family, with a copy to the owner/agent, of its decision. When the USCIS notifies 
the owner/agent of the decision, the owner/agent must notify the family of its right to request an 
informal hearing. 
 
The owner/agent will send written notice to the family of its right to request an informal hearing within 
10 business days of receiving notice of the USCIS decision regarding the family’s immigration status. 

• Informal Hearing Procedures for Applicants [24 CFR 5.514(f)] 
After notification of the USCIS decision on appeal, or in lieu of an appeal to the USCIS, an applicant 
family may request that the owner/agent provide a hearing. The request for a hearing must be made 
either within 30 days of receipt of the owner/agent’s notice of denial, or within 30 days of receipt of the 
USCIS appeal decision. 
 
The informal hearing procedures for applicant families are described below.  
 
o Informal Hearing Officer 

The owner/agent must provide an informal hearing before an impartial individual, other than a 
person who made or approved the decision under review, and other than a person who is a 
subordinate of the person who made or approved the decision.  
 

o Evidence 
The family will be provided the opportunity to examine and copy at the family’s expense or $.10 per 
page, at a reasonable time in advance of the hearing, any documents in the possession of the 
owner/agent pertaining to the family’s eligibility status or in the possession of the USCIS (as 
permitted by USCIS requirements), including any records and regulations that may be relevant to 
the hearing. 

 
The family will be provided the opportunity to present evidence and arguments in support of eligible 
status. Evidence may be considered without regard to admissibility under the rules of evidence 
applicable to judicial proceedings. 
 
The family must also be provided the opportunity to refute evidence relied upon by the 
owner/agent, and to confront and cross-examine all witnesses on whose testimony or information 
the owner/agent relies. 



(Property Name) Tenant Selection Plan 

 Page 38  of 58 Created 5/19/2016 
 

o Representation and Interpretive Services 
The family is entitled to be represented by an attorney or other designee, at the family’s expense, 
and to have such person make statements on the family’s behalf. 
 
The family is entitled to arrange for an interpreter to attend the hearing, at the expense of the 
family, or the owner/agent, as may be agreed upon by the two parties. If the family does not 
arrange for their own interpreter, the owner/agent is still obligated to provide oral translation 
services in accordance with its LEP Plan. 

 
o Recording of the Hearing 

The family is entitled to have the hearing recorded by audiotape. The owner/agent will not provide a 
transcript of an audio taped informal hearing. 
 

o Hearing Decision 
The owner/agent must provide the family with a written notice of the final decision, based solely on 
the facts presented at the hearing, within 10 business days of the date of the informal hearing. The 
notice must state the basis for the decision. 

 
o Retention of Documents [24 CFR 5.514(h)] 

The owner/agent must retain for a minimum of 5 years the following documents that may have 
been submitted to the owner/agent by the family, or provided to the owner/agent as part of the 
USCIS appeal or the owner/agent’s informal hearing process: 
o The application for assistance 
o The form completed by the family for income reexamination 
o Photocopies of any original documents, including original USCIS documents 
o The signed verification consent form 
o The USCIS verification results 
o The request for a USCIS appeal 
o The final USCIS determination 
o The request for an informal hearing 
o The final informal hearing decision 

OFFERING AN APARTMENT   
When a unit becomes available and eligibility is determined, available units will be offered using one or more of 
the following methods: 
 

• In writing, using the mailing address provided by the applicant family.  
• Over the phone, using the contact phone numbers provided by the applicant family. 
• By email, using the contact email address(es) provided by the applicant family. 

 
If the owner/agent is unable to contact the household within five (5) business days from the date of the letter, 
the offer will be cancelled and the apartment will be offered to the next applicant based on the selection criteria 
described in this plan.   
 
Failure to respond to the owner/agent will be considered a refusal of the unit offer. (See Right to Refusal 
policies.)  It is the applicant family’s responsibility to keep all contact information current with the Admissions 
Department. 



(Property Name) Tenant Selection Plan 

 Page 39  of 58 Created 5/19/2016 
 

OFFERING ACCESSIBLE UNITS 
Units that have been made accessible in accordance with the Universal Federal Accessibility Standards or the 
Americans with Disabilities Act Accessibility Guidelines will be offered to applicant households with disabled 
members first. In some cases, the owner/agent may implement marketing effort to ensure that disabled 
households occupy accessible units.  
 
Units with communication accessible features will be offered to households with a verified need for 
communication accessible units first. 
 
Units with mobility accessible features will be offered to households with a verified need for mobility accessible 
units first. 
 
After move-in, if the members of the household who required the special features of the accessible unit no 
longer reside in the unit, and where the lease permits, the owner/agent will require the remaining members of 
the household to move to a unit without accessibility features when such a unit of the appropriate size becomes 
available.  
 
If there is no household on the waiting list that has requested an accessible unit, the unit will then be offered to 
the next household based on the selection order. Before the applicant can accept that accessible unit, all adult 
members of the applicant household must sign an agreement that includes a requirement to move, at the 
household’s expense, to the first available non-accessible unit that meets the household’s occupancy 
requirements as described in this plan.  The resident household will not be required to move if: 
 

• No unit that meets the household’s occupancy requirements is available 
• There is no applicant household on the waiting list requesting an accessible unit 

 
In either of the cases above, the household must take possession of the unit within the timeframes outlined in 
this plan. If the applicant fails to move in within the established timeframes, assistance will be terminated.  This 
rule in no way affects the single residence criteria. The household can only accept assistance in one unit on any 
given day. 

OFFERING UNITS TO DISABLED APPLICANTS REQUESTING ACCESSIBILITY FEATURES 
The owner/agent will not skip over a household that has reached the top of the waiting list and has indicated a 
need for certain unit features because of a disability.  
 
The household will be given the opportunity to benefit from the program and decide, in compliance with the 
Fair Housing Act and Section 504, whether a unit meets the needs of the disabled household member.  The 
household may accept the unit and request some modification to the unit as a reasonable accommodation.  See 
the owner/agent’s Reasonable Accommodation Policy in Appendix A for information about requesting a 
reasonable modification. 

OFFERING UNITS TO APPLICANTS OR RESIDENTS WITH PREFERENCES 
Applicants/residents with preferences are selected from the waiting list and receive an opportunity for an 
available unit earlier than those who do not have a preference.   
 
APPLICANT/RESIDENT SELECTION ORDER 
Accessible Apartments will be offered in the following order:   
 



(Property Name) Tenant Selection Plan 

 Page 40  of 58 Created 5/19/2016 
 

• *The next household on the transfer list who is requesting an accessible unit.  Offers will be made in 
order according to the weighted transfer list preferences: 
 

o Emergency / Safety (with need for an accessible unit) 
o Reasonable Accommodation (with need for an accessible unit) 
o Over Housed (with need for an accessible unit) 
o Under Housed (with need for an accessible unit) 

 
• The next applicant on the waiting list who is requesting an accessible unit.  Offers will be made in order 

according to the weighted waiting list preferences: 
 

o HACA Resident VAWA preference (with need for an accessible unit) 
o Involuntarily Displaced preference (with need for an accessible unit) 
o Disability preference (with need for an accessible unit) 

 
• *When there is no one in need of the accessibility features for this unit, the offer will be given to the 

next household on the transfer list.  Offers will be made in order according to the weighted transfer list 
preferences: 
 

o Emergency / Safety 
o Reasonable Accommodation 
o Over Housed 
o Under Housed  

 
• When there is no one in need of the accessibility features of this unit, the offer will be given to the next 

applicant on the waiting list.  Offers will be made in order according to the weighted waiting list 
preferences:  
 

o HACA Resident VAWA 
o Involuntarily Displaced 
o Disability 

 
*Note:  If the next family on the transfer list is currently over 140% of the LIHTC income limit for their 
family size, a transfer will only be offered to another unit in the same building, in accord with the 
LIHTC “Next Available Unit” rule.  The definition of “building” for this property is outlined on IRS Form 
8806.  In this case, if the family cannot move to another building, the offer will be made to the next 
family on the transfer list. 

 
Standard Apartments will be offered in the following order: 

• *The next household on the transfer list, regardless of need for an accessible unit.  Offers will be made 
in order according to the weighted transfer list preferences:  
 

o Emergency / Safety 
o Reasonable Accommodation 
o Over Housed 
o Under Housed 
o Resident has no need for accessible feature in current unit 

 



(Property Name) Tenant Selection Plan 

 Page 41  of 58 Created 5/19/2016 
 

• The next applicant on the waiting list, regardless of need for an accessible unit.  Offers will be made in 
order according to the weighted waiting list preferences: 

o HACA Resident VAWA 
o Involuntarily Displaced 
o Disability  

 
*Note:  If the next family on the transfer list is currently over 140% of the LIHTC income limit for their 
family size, a transfer will only be offered to another unit in the same building, in accord with the 
LIHTC “Next Available Unit” rule.  The definition of “building” for this property is outlined on IRS Form 
8806.  In this case, if the family cannot move to another building, the offer will be made to the next 
family on the transfer list. 

RIGHT TO REFUSAL 
The Right to Refusal Policy applies to applicants and existing residents who have submitted a Unit Transfer 
Request.  Residents requesting unit transfer and applicants will be offered available units based on the 
information included in this resident selection plan.  
 
Each household will only be offered the opportunity to accept an offered apartment one (1) time. If a 
resident/applicant does not wish to accept an offered apartment, they have the right to refuse the offer.   
 
Residents/applicants must notify the owner/agent of their intent to refuse the unit offer by using one or more of 
the following methods: 
 

• In writing (delivered by fax, mail or other means) 
• By email 
• Over the phone 

 
Note:  If the refusal is made over the phone, contact must be made with a member of the management 
staff. Leaving a message is not adequate. 

 
When an applicant or resident refuses a unit, the unit will be offered to the next qualified household based on 
the selection order described above.  
 
When a resident refuses a transfer offer, the terms of the lease require that the assistance be terminated and 
the resident be required to pay the full contract rent. 
 
When an applicant refuses an offered unit, the household will be removed from the waiting list and will have to 
wait one calendar year before applying again. 
 
Right to refusal policies will be modified in two cases: 
 

• If a disabled applicant or resident is at the top of the waiting list, they will be offered units as they 
become available regardless of whether they include accessible features. A disabled household has the 
right to refuse an unlimited number of non-accessible units or units that do not meet the specific 
accessibility requirements for the family. This modification applies only when the offered unit is a non-
accessible unit.  The one refusal limit still applies when an accessible unit which meets the family’s 
requirements is offered. Note:  Certain restrictions apply to non-elderly disabled households when HUD’s 
program eligibility requires the need for an accessible unit.   



(Property Name) Tenant Selection Plan 

 Page 42  of 58 Created 5/19/2016 
 

• If an applicant or resident household with no disabled members is at the top of the waiting list, and 
there are no disabled households on the waiting list, that household may be offered an accessible unit. 
An applicant household with no disabled household members has the right to refuse an unlimited 
number of accessible units or units that do not meet their needs.  

TIMEFRAME FOR TAKING POSSESSION OF A UNIT BY AN APPLICANT FAMILY 
When a housing offer is made, the applicant family must meet the following timeframes for taking possession of 
the offered unit: 
 

• Within 2 business days from the date the offer is received, the applicant family must make contact with 
the property management staff.  At that time, the property management staff will notify the family of 
the anticipated date that the unit will be available to be viewed. 

• Once the unit is ready to view, the property management will schedule an appointment to view the unit.  
Failure to attend the scheduled appointment is considered a rejection of the housing offer. 

• Within 3 calendar days of viewing the unit, the applicant family must accept or reject the unit.  No 
response by close of business on the third day is considered a rejection of the housing offer. 

• Within 2 calendar days of accepting an offer, the applicant family must pay the security deposit and the 
prorated first month’s rent.  At that time, the family will receive the keys and are considered to have 
taken possession of the unit.  Failure to take possession of the unit by close of business on the second 
day is considered a rejection of the unit. 

 
When the first housing offer is rejected and a second (or subsequent) offer is made, the applicant family must 
meet the following timeframes for taking possession of the offered unit: 
 

• Within 2 business days from the date the offer is received, the applicant family must make contact with 
the property management staff.  At that time, the property management staff will schedule an 
appointment to view the unit.  Failure to attend the scheduled appointment is considered a rejection of 
the housing offer. 

• Within 4 calendar days of viewing the unit, the applicant family must accept or reject the unit.  No 
response by close of business on the third day is considered a rejection of the housing offer. 

• Within 4 calendar days of accepting an offer, the applicant family must pay the security deposit and the 
prorated first month’s rent.  At that time, the family will receive the keys and are considered to have 
taken possession of the unit.  Failure to take possession of the unit by close of business on the second 
day is considered a rejection of the unit. 

 
If the applicant household does not complete appropriate paperwork and does not take possession of the unit 
within the timeframes outlined above, the applicant will be subsequently rejected and removed from the 
waiting list.  Extenuating circumstances will be considered, including the following: 
 

• The family is dealing with a documented medical or other family emergency.  In this case the 
owner/agent and family will negotiate an appropriate solution which may include offering the family the 
next unit. 

• The family is required to give 30 days’ notice to their current landlord which is part of another federally 
assisted housing program. 
 



(Property Name) Tenant Selection Plan 

 Page 43  of 58 Created 5/19/2016 
 

When the family rejects the unit or does not meet the outlined timeframes, the owner/agent reserves the right 
to refuse subsequent applications.  The unit will be offered to the next eligible applicant/resident based on the 
selection order described in this plan.     

UNIT TRANSFER POLICIES 
The owner/agent will accept requests for transfer in the following situations: 
 

• Emergency / Safety:  The household needs to move due to a life-threatening situation.  Life-threatening 
situations include the following: 
o Due to no fault of the resident(s), the unit is uninhabitable and cannot be made habitable in a 

reasonable amount of time; 
o A household member has experienced a medical condition which makes the current unit 

uninhabitable or unsafe; 
o A household member is in danger of retaliation; 
o A household member is a victim of domestic violence and qualifies for VAWA protections. 

• Reasonable Accommodation:  A family member has a verified need for an accessible unit. 
• Over Housed:  The household is in a unit that is larger than they qualify for according to the 

owner/agent’s subsidy standards. 
• Under Housed:  The household is in a unit that is smaller than they qualify for according to the 

owner/agent’s subsidy standards. 
• Unneeded Accessibility Feature:  The family does not require or no longer needs the accessibility 

features of a unit in which they are living.  However, another family does need that accessibility feature. 
 
Unit transfer requests that do not fall into one of these categories will not be approved.  Families requesting to 
move for any other reason will be provided with information on how to apply for housing assistance at the other 
properties managed or owned and operated by the Housing Authority of the City of Austin. 
 
Existing residents must complete a Unit Transfer Request. The Unit Transfer Request must be completed and 
signed by the head of household and all adult household members who wish to move.  The owner/agent will 
accept the Unit Transfer Request in an equally effective format, as a reasonable accommodation, if there is the 
presence of a disability.   
 
Special consideration is given when the unit transfer is requested because there is: 
 

• A verified medical need for a different unit 
• A verified need for an accessible unit 
• There is a need for a unit transfer of a household that does not require the accessibility features of a 

unit in which they are living to accommodate a disabled resident/applicant on the waiting list. 
• A change in household size that makes the current unit too large or too small for the family based on the 

owner/agent’s occupancy standards 
 
With the exception of Emergencies and Reasonable Accommodations, unit transfers will be granted only if: 
 

• The household has not given notice to move  
• The resident is not being evicted 
• The resident is current for all outstanding charges 
• The resident complies with lease provisions regarding decent safe and sanitary conditions of current unit  

 



(Property Name) Tenant Selection Plan 

 Page 44  of 58 Created 5/19/2016 
 

A household living in an apartment too large for its needs will not be required to move if there are no applicants 
waiting for the bedroom size to be vacated by the transfer.   An appropriate sized unit will be available before 
the resident household is required to move.  At that time, the household will have thirty (30) days to complete 
the transfer. 
 
A household whose annual gross income is over 140% of the LIHTC income limit for their household size will only 
be allowed to transfer to another unit within their same building (as defined by BIN – Building Identification 
Number – on IRS Form 8609).    

SECURITY DEPOSITS, PET DEPOSITS & UNIT TRANSFERS 
When a resident transfers to a new unit with all other household members, the owner/agent will charge a new 
security deposit and refund the security deposit for the old unit less any outstanding amounts for rent, fees or 
damages.  If the move out expenses exceed the security deposit, the family will receive an itemized bill which 
must be paid within 30 days of receipt of the bill. 
 
When a resident owns a pet, the original unit will be assessed for damages caused by the pet.  The pet deposit 
will be reduced by charges for those damages and the resident will be required to obtain a pet deposit balance 
of $100.00 per animal for the new unit.  The resident will be allowed to pay the new pet deposit balance due in 
$10.00 monthly payments until the $100.00 pet deposit balance is reached.  

SECURITY DEPOSITS & UNIT TRANSFERS 
When a resident transfers to a new unit with all other household members, the owner/agent will charge a new 
security deposit and refund the security deposit for the old unit less any outstanding amounts for rent, fees or 
damages.  If the move out expenses exceed the security deposit, the family will receive an itemized bill which 
must be paid within 30 days of receipt of the bill. 

CHANGES IN HOUSEHOLD COMPOSITION 

ADDING HOUSEHOLD MEMBERS AFTER INITIAL OCCUPANCY 
The owner/agent must approve any new adult household member before he/she moves in to the unit.  
Eligibility criteria, screening criteria and compliance with occupancy standards will be reviewed before the new 
household member is approved or denied.   
 
The request to add a new household member will not be considered if the resident has provided notice to 
vacate the unit.  This helps prevent applicants from “jumping” ahead on the waiting list. 
 
Any new adult household member will be considered an applicant and must participate in the eligibility 
determination and screening processes described in the tenant selection plan in place at the time of the 
eligibility determination.   
 
(For PBRA Only) In addition, the rent/assistance payment will be re-calculated to reflect any income or 
allowances for the new household member.  If the rent increases, the increase will take effect the first of the 
month following delivery of a 30-day notice of change to rent.  If the rent decreases, the decrease will take 
effect the first of the month following the addition of the new household member.   
 
This policy applies to live-in aides as well.  Screening criteria will also be applied to live-in aides, except for the 
criterion regarding credit performance or the ability to pay rent on time because live-in aides are not 



(Property Name) Tenant Selection Plan 

 Page 45  of 58 Created 5/19/2016 
 

responsible for rental payments.  However, live in aides must meet other screening criteria established by the 
owner/agent.  Income and/or allowances received by live-in aides will not be considered.   
 
Information about new household members who are minors must be provided to the owner/agent as quickly as 
possible but within no more than thirty (30) calendar days.  This includes, as applicable, required eligibility 
information including Social Security Numbers, proof of citizenship or non-citizen eligibility and other pertinent 
information.   
 
If the new household member is under the age of six, special consideration regarding Social Security Number 
disclosure and verification of Social Security Numbers is given.  The household will be given ninety (90) calendar 
days to provide the Social Security Number and adequate documentation to verify the Social Security Number 
provided.  In some cases, an additional ninety (90) days may be provided.   
 
If the household fails to provide the required Social Security Number information within the allotted timeframe, 
the household’s tenancy will be terminated (eviction) in accordance with HUD requirements.   
 
(For PBRA Only) Each dependent child that lives in the unit may be eligible for a $480 deduction that decreases 
the monthly rent payment by roughly $12.00 per month.  The rent payment will be re-calculated to reflect any 
income or allowances for the new household member.   
 
If the rent increases, the increase will take effect the first of the month following delivery of a 30-day notice of 
change to rent.  If the rent decreases, the decrease will take effect the first of the month following the addition 
of the new household member. 
 
Failure to notify the owner/agent about changes in household composition as described above may result in 
retroactive rent changes and/or termination of subsidy/tenancy for the entire household.  Please contact the 
owner/agent or property staff if you have questions about this policy.   

REMOVING HOUSEHOLD MEMBERS AFTER INITIAL OCCUPANCY 
Residents must notify the owner/agent if any household member listed on the lease , on HUD Form 50059 or on 
the LIHTC  Tenant Income Certification (TIC) leaves the unit.  This notification must occur as quickly as possible 
but within no more than thirty (30) calendar days.   
 
(For PBRA Only) Upon notice, the rent payment will be re-calculated to remove any income or allowances for 
the previous household member.  If the rent increases, the increase will take effect the first of the month 
following delivery of a 30-day notice of change to rent.  If the rent decreases, the decrease will take effect the 
first of the month following the removal of the household member.   
 
Failure to provide notice to the owner/agent, within thirty (30) days, could result in rent increases retroactive to 
the first of the month after the household member left.  Subsidy paid in error will be returned, as required, to 
the Department of Housing & Urban Development.   
 
If the resident fails to notify the owner/agent of a change in household composition within thirty (30) calendar 
days, and that change would result in a rent decrease, the owner/agent will make the decrease effective the first 
of the month following the notice.  No retroactive rent credits will be returned to the resident. 
 



(Property Name) Tenant Selection Plan 

 Page 46  of 58 Created 5/19/2016 
 

Failure to notify the owner/agent about changes in household composition may result in termination of subsidy 
and/or tenancy for the entire household.  Please contact the owner/agent if you have questions about this 
policy.   

APARTMENT INSPECTIONS 
All apartments must undergo periodic inspection conducted by the on-site management team, HUD or HUD’s 
representatives/agents.  These inspections include not only interior but also exterior inspections.  Residents 
have the right to be present, and are, in fact encouraged, to be present during unit inspection.   
 
The move-in inspection is an opportunity to familiarize the new resident with the property and the unit, as well 
as to document its current condition.  By performing move-in inspections, the owner/agent and residents are 
assured that the unit is in livable condition and is free of damages.  A move-in inspection gives the owner/agent 
an opportunity to familiarize residents with the operation of appliances and equipment in the unit. 
 
The move-out inspection is conducted when a household vacates a unit.   The owner/agent will list the damages 
on the Unit Inspection Form and compare it with the Unit Inspection Form completed at move-in to determine if 
there is any damage or excessive wear-and-tear.     
 
In addition, the owner/agent will perform unit inspections on at least an annual basis to determine whether the 
appliances and equipment in the unit are functioning properly and to assess whether a component needs to be 
repaired or replaced.   
 
This is also an opportunity to determine any damage to the unit and, if so, make the necessary repairs.  At this 
time, residents may be charged for damages to the unit so long as those damages are not the result of normal 
wear-and-tear. 
 
Housekeeping inspections will be conducted on a semi-annual (every 6 months) basis.  Housekeeping 
inspections provide the owner/agent the opportunity to verify that the unit is being properly cared for and to 
verify the need for any necessary repairs.   
 
TDHCA and HUD, or its authorized contractor(s), have the right to inspect the units and the entire property to 
ensure that the property is being well maintained.  These inspections assure HUD that owner/agents and their 
agents are fulfilling their obligations under the regulatory agreements and/or subsidy contracts and that 
residents are provided with decent, safe, and sanitary housing. 

CHANGES TO THE RESIDENT SELECTION PLAN 
Applicants will be notified in writing when the resident selection plan undergoes significant change or when 
preferences are added or removed.  At that time, applicants will be: 
 

• Given an opportunity to review the new plan 
• Notified of changes to preferences 
• Asked if they wish to remain on the waiting list 

 
If the applicant household does not respond, that household will be deemed ineligible and removed from the 
waiting list. 
 
The current resident selection plan, in place at the time of final eligibility determination, will be used to make a 
final decision to approve or reject the application. 



(Property Name) Tenant Selection Plan 

 Page 47  of 58 Created 5/19/2016 
 

APPENDIX A – REQUEST FOR REASONABLE ACCOMMODATION OR MODIFICATION 
The owner/agent is committed to complying with the Fair Housing Act and Section 504 of the Rehabilitation Act 
by ensuring that its policies and practices do not deny individuals with disabilities the opportunity to participate 
in, or benefit from, nor otherwise discriminate against individuals with disabilities in connection with the 
operation of housing services or programs solely on the basis of such disabilities.   
 
If an individual with a disability requests an accommodation or modification, the owner/agent will fulfill these 
requests, unless doing so would result in a fundamental alteration in the nature of the program or create an 
undue financial and administrative burden. In such a case, if possible, the owner/agent will offer an alternative 
solution that would not result in a financial or administrative burden. 
 

• The owner/agent informs all applicants/residents that, at any time, the applicant/resident or a person 
acting on behalf of the applicant/resident may make a request for reasonable accommodation or 
modification for an individual with a disability.  

• At the time of application, all applicants are provided with a copy of the Reasonable Accommodation - 
Modification Policy.  This is provided in writing as part of the Application Package or, upon the 
applicant’s request, the Policy will be provided in an equally effective format. 

• All applicants/residents are provided with a Reasonable Accommodation/Modification Request Form 
when requesting a reasonable accommodation or modification.  The request will be accepted in an 
equally effective format, as a reasonable accommodation, if there is the presence of a disability.  A 
resident or applicant may submit the request in writing, orally, or use another equally effective means of 
communication to request an accommodation or modification. 

• Residents and applicants may contact the management office located within their property for 
information about requests.  

• The owner/agent will provide an initial reply to requests as quickly as possible, but no more than ten 
(10) business days from the receipt of the request unless the owner/agent explains the delay.  Response 
may include but is not limited to: 
o Request Approval 
o Request Denial 
o Request for Additional Information or Verification of Need 

• The owner/agent will consent to or deny the request as quickly as possible.  Unless the owner/agent 
explains the delay, the applicant/resident will be notified of the decision to consent or deny within no 
more than thirty (30) calendar days after receiving all necessary information and documentation from 
the resident and/or appropriate verification sources.  All decisions to grant or deny reasonable 
accommodations will be communicated in writing or, if required/requested, in an alternative format. 
Exceptions to the thirty (30) day period for notification of the owner/agent’s decision on the request will 
be provided to the resident setting forth the reasons for the delay.  

• If the request for reasonable accommodation or modification is denied, the requestor has the right to 
appeal the decision within fifteen (15) business days of the date of the written notification of denial.  
The appeal meeting will be conducted by a person who was not originally involved in the decision to 
deny. 
 

For full explanation of reasonable accommodation requests, see the owner/agent’s Reasonable Accommodation 
policy.  The policy is available upon request. 

 
 
 



(Property Name) Tenant Selection Plan 

 Page 48  of 58 Created 5/19/2016 
 

 APPENDIX B – CITIZEN/NON-CITIZEN ELIGIBILITY 
Applicants are required to declare U.S. Citizenship or submit evidence of eligible immigration status for each of 
household member seeking housing assistance.  The owner/agent is required to obtain the following 
documents: 
  

• Family Composition List (lists all household members who will reside in the assisted unit) 
• Citizenship Declaration (Each household member listed on the Household Summary Sheet must 

complete) 
• Forms and/or evidence of citizen/immigration status 

 
If you have any questions or difficulty in providing the described information or determining the type of 
documentation required, please contact the management office.  If you are unable to provide the required 
documentation in the timeframe indicated, you must contact the management office and request an extension.  
If you fail to provide this information, the owner/agent cannot provide assistance.   
 
The owner/agent agent will offer the household assistance, providing subsidy to those household members 
whose documents were received on time when the following criteria is met: 
 

• Assistance/unit is available  
• The household has come to the top of the waiting list 
• At least one member of the household has submitted the required documentation in a timely manner 

and has been determined to be eligible based on all of the criteria in this resident selection plan 
 
If any household member is determined to be an ineligible non-citizen, either at application or after move-in, 
assistance may be prorated or terminated.   

REQUIRED DOCUMENTATION 
The owner/agent must obtain the following documentation for each household member regardless of age: 
 

 From U.S. citizens, a signed declaration of citizenship.  The owner/agent requires verification of the 
declaration.  The following documents will be accepted as proof of citizenship 
o United States (U.S.) Passport  
o U.S. birth certificate 
o Other documentation as provided by HUD or DHS 

 From non-citizens claiming eligible status who is 62 or older:  
o A signed declaration of eligible immigration status and 
o Proof of age 

 From non-citizens claiming eligible status who is not 62 or older:  
o A signed declaration of eligible immigration status and 
o A signed consent form and 
o One of the DHS-approved documents  

 Form I-551, Permanent Resident Card. 
 Form 1-94, Arrival-Departure Record annotated with one of the following: 

• “Admitted as a Refugee Pursuant to Section 207”; 
• “Section 208” or “Asylum”; 
• “Section 243(h)” or “Deportation stayed by Attorney General”; or 
• “Paroled Pursuant to Section 212(d)(5) of the INA.” 



(Property Name) Tenant Selection Plan 

 Page 49  of 58 Created 5/19/2016 
 

 Form I-94, Arrival-Departure Record (with no annotation) accompanied by one of the 
following: 

• A final court decision granting asylum (but only if no appeal is taken); 
• A letter from an DHS asylum officer granting asylum (if application was filed on 

or after October 1, 1990) or from an DHS district director granting asylum 
(application filed was before October 1, 1990); 

• A court decision granting withholding of deportation; or 
• A letter from an asylum officer granting withholding of deportation (if 

application was filed on or after October 1, 1990). 
 A receipt issued by the DHS indicating that an application for issuance of a replacement 

document in one of the above-listed categories has been made and that the applicant’s 
entitlement to the document has been verified. 

 Other acceptable evidence.  
 
If other documents are determined by the DHS to constitute acceptable evidence of eligible immigration status, 
they will be announced by notice published in the Federal Register. 

TIMEFRAMES FOR SUBMITTING EVIDENCE OF CITIZENSHIP/IMMIGRATION STATUS TO THE OWNER/AGENT 
Applicants must submit required documentation of citizenship/immigration status no later than the date the 
owner/agent initiates verification of other eligibility factors (pre application or application).  Owner/agents 
determine the applicant’s citizenship or immigration status during the initial eligibility determination prior to 
move-in.   
 
If the applicant cannot supply the documentation within the owner/agent’s specified timeframe, the 
owner/agent may grant the applicant an extension of not more than thirty (30) days, but only if the applicant 
certifies that the documentation is temporarily unavailable and additional time is needed to collect and submit 
the required documentation.  (Although the extension period may not exceed thirty (30) days, the owner/agent 
may establish a shorter extension period based on the circumstances of the individual case.) 
 
The owner/agent will inform the applicant in writing (or, if required/requested, in an alternative format) if an 
extension request is granted or denied.  If the request is granted, the owner/agent will include the new deadline 
for submitting the documentation.  If the request is denied, the owner/agent will state the reasons for the 
denial in the response.  When granting or rejecting extensions, the owner/agent will treat applicants 
consistently. 

REVIEWING AND VERIFICATION OF A HOUSEHOLD’S CITIZENSHIP/IMMIGRATION STATUS 
Owner/agents will conduct primary verification through the (Systematic Alien Verification for Entitlements) 
SAVE ASVI database - the Department of Homeland Security (DHS) automated system.   
After accessing the ASIV database, the owner/agent enters the required data fields.   
 
The system will display one of the following messages for immigration status confirmation on the screen.  
 

• Lawful Permanent Resident  
• Temporary Resident  
• Conditional Resident 
• Asylee 
• Refugee 



(Property Name) Tenant Selection Plan 

 Page 50  of 58 Created 5/19/2016 
 

• Cuban\Haitian Entrant 
• Conditional Entrant 

 
Secondary verification.  If the message “institute secondary verification” is displayed on the screen, the manual 
verification process must be used.  
Within ten (10) days of receiving an “Institute Secondary Verification” response, the owner/agent will prepare 
DHS Form G-845S, Document Verification Request.  The owner/agent will send DHS Form G-845S and 
photocopies of the DHS documents submitted by the applicant to the DHS office serving the property’s 
jurisdiction.   
 
The DHS will return to the owner/agent a copy of DHS Form G-845S indicating the results of the automated and 
manual search.   

NOTIFICATION TO APPLICANTS 
 Owner/agents will notify households in writing that they are:  
 

 Eligible for assistance 
 Eligible for partial assistance, as a mixed household   

 
The owner/agent/agent will notify applicants and/or residents in writing if they are found to be ineligible based 
upon citizenship/immigration status.   

MIXED HOUSEHOLDS 
A mixed household—a household with one or more ineligible members and one or more eligible household 
members—may receive: 
 

• Prorated assistance 
• Continued assistance 

APPEALING DETERMINATIONS OF INELIGIBILITY 
The owner/agent will notify the household in writing as soon as possible if the secondary verification process 
returns a negative result.   
 
The applicant or resident has thirty (30) days from receipt of the notice to choose which option to follow.   
 
The applicant or resident may appeal the owner/agent’s decision directly to the DHS.  The applicant or resident 
must send a copy of the appeal directly to the owner/agent. The DHS should respond to the appeal within thirty 
(30) days.   
 
If the DHS decision results in a positive determination of eligibility, the owner/agent can provide the appropriate 
housing assistance.  If the DHS decision results in a negative determination of eligibility, the household has thirty 
(30) days to request a hearing with the owner/agent. 

PROHIBITION AGAINST DELAY OF ASSISTANCE 
Owner/agents may not delay the household’s assistance if the applicant or resident submitted immigration 
information in a timely manner but the DHS verification or appeals process has not been completed.   
 



(Property Name) Tenant Selection Plan 

 Page 51  of 58 Created 5/19/2016 
 

If a unit is available, the household has come to the top of the waiting list, and at least one member of the 
household has submitted the required documentation in a timely manner and has been determined to be 
eligible, the owner/agent will offer the household a unit and provide full assistance to those household 
members whose documents were received on time.  The owner/agent will continue to provide full assistance to 
such households until information establishing the immigration status of any remaining non-citizen household 
members has been received and verified. 



(Property Name) Tenant Selection Plan 

 Page 52  of 58 Created 5/19/2016 
 

APPENDIX C:  DUAL SUBSIDY NOTICE 
I understand that my application to move to NAME OF PROPERTY with the rest of my household members has 
met preliminary eligibility requirements.    
 
I have indicated, on the application, that: 
 

1.  I am not currently receiving HUD assistance in another unit  
 

2.  I am currently receiving HUD assistance in another unit.   
 
According to the current HUD lease, if I am living in a community and receiving HUD project-based assistance, I 
must provide a 30-day notice to the agent managing the property where assistance is currently provided.   
 
If the owner/agent discovers that any household member failed to move out of a HUD assisted residence before 
moving to NAME OF PROPERTY, no rent subsidy or utility allowance will be provided by the Department of 
Housing and Urban Development until the day after the move out is complete.  Household members who signed 
the lease will be responsible for paying the market rent until qualified to receive HUD assistance on this property.  
Any assistance paid in error must be returned to HUD. 
 

3.  I am the recipient of a housing voucher.   
 
I understand that HUD prohibits residents from benefiting from Housing Voucher assistance in a unit assisted 
through HUD’s Section 8 program. 
 
I understand that HUD prohibits residents from benefiting from Housing Voucher assistance in a unit assisted 
through HUD’s Section 8 program.  When the application is submitted the household will be added to the waiting 
list.  A unit will be offered in accordance with the resident selection plan.  If the family later moves out of the 
project, the project subsidy will not move with the family as it does with a voucher.  If you wish to participate in 
the voucher program after move-out, you will need to reapply to the PHA to receive another voucher. 
 
All household members must be removed from or forfeit the voucher before receiving HUD assistance for a unit 
on this property.  If the owner/agent discovers that any household member failed to give up current HUD 
assistance before moving to NAME OF PROPERTY, no rent subsidy or utility allowance will be provided by the 
Department of Housing and Urban Development until the day after the move out is complete.   
 
Household members who signed the lease will be responsible for paying the market rent until qualified to receive 
HUD assistance on this property.  Any assistance paid in error must be returned to HUD. 
 
This information will be verified using the Existing Tenant Report in EIV.  If EIV indicates a conflict and 
verification information indicates that the information provided is not true, and the EIV information is verified, 
then the owner/agent will reject the application based on misrepresentation of information.   

 

 

 

 



(Property Name) Tenant Selection Plan 

 Page 53  of 58 Created 5/19/2016 
 

APPENDIX D – VERIFICATION OF HOUSEHOLD COMPOSITION 
In compliance with HUD’s Rental Housing Integrity Improvement Project (RHIIP), the owner/agent will make 
every effort to ensure that the correct assistance is provided to those who seek housing assistance.   
 
If an applicant household indicates that one or more members should be removed from the application, the 
owner/agent will accept such notification from the Head-of-Household (HOH) (HOH) if it is provided on a 
notarized form provided by the owner/agent agent.  The following rules apply. 
 
If the household is being rejected because a member is registered as a sex offender in any state lifetime sex 
offender registry, the owner/agent will take extra steps to ensure that the sex offender is not housed in any unit 
on the property.  The household will have to provide documentation to prove that the sex offender will live at 
another location.  Acceptable documentation includes, but is not limited to: 
 

• Confirmation from a landlord with copy of an executed lease 
• Confirmation from local police 
• Confirmation from anyone who maintains sex offender registries including but not limited to: 

o Dru Djodin Sex Offender Registry 
o Megan’s List  
o State or Federal Sex Offender Registries 

• New driver’s license with new address 
  
Information will be confirmed for up to one year after move-in. 
 
If it is discovered that the household allowed any registered sex offender to live in the unit, the applicant must 
understand that he/she is not qualified to receive subsidy or live on the property.  All subsidy paid-in-error must 
be returned to HUD.  Because this is a material lease violation, all household members must vacate the unit 
within 30 days. 
 
One of the key requirements, at application and during residency, is to disclose who will be living in the unit at 
any given time.  It is important to understand the difference between a resident and a guest.   
 
Resident:  A resident is any person who is listed on the application, on any Family Summary submitted and on 
the lease who will reside in the unit.     
 
Guest:  A guest is a person who visits any resident and may stay overnight no more than seven (7) consecutive 
nights in a one-year period and may stay overnight no more than thirty (30) non-consecutive nights in any one-
year period without express written consent of the owner/agent. 
 
If the owner/agent suspects that a guest should actually be classified as a resident, the owner/agent will request 
a meeting with the Head-of-Household (HOH). 
 
In accordance with HUD requirements, the resident will have ten (10) days to meet with the owner/agent.  
Failure to respond to the request to meet will result in termination of assistance beginning the first of the month 
following the 10-day notice.   
 
If the owner/agent suspects that a guest is actually living in the unit, the owner/agent will ask for verification of 
alternative residence.  Samples of such verification include one or more of the following: 



(Property Name) Tenant Selection Plan 

 Page 54  of 58 Created 5/19/2016 
 

• Verification with the United States Postal Service that no mail, for the guest, is delivered to the unit 
address 

• *A current driver’s license for the “guest” with an alternative address 
• *A current lease indicating an alternative residence 
• *A current utility bill in the person’s name showing an alternative address 
• *A current insurance policy or other such invoice/bill showing an alternative address 

*Current means issued/created within the last thirty (90) days. 
 
In addition, the resident(s), indicated on the lease, must sign a notarized statement confirming that the guest 
does not violate the guest policy as indicated above and does not reside in the unit. 
 
Live-in Aides:  A live-in aide must meet HUD’s definition of a live-in aide: 
 

• Is essential to the care and well-being of the resident 
• Is not dependent on the resident for support 
• Is only living in the unit to provide essential support 

 
If a resident or applicant requests a live-in aide, the owner/agent is required to verify the need for a live-in aide 
using third-party verification.   
 
Live-in Aides are required to complete the Live-in Aide Questionnaire.  The information on the Live-in Aide 
questionnaire will be verified and the prospective live-in aide will be screened in accordance with the resident 
selection plan in place at the time of review.  The live-in aide will not be screened for the “ability to pay rent” 
since the live-in aide is not responsible for rent payment. 
 
The live-in aide must be approved and must sign the House Rules and the HUD-approved Live-in Aide Addendum 
before move-in.  The owner/agent must sign a revised 50059 before the live-in aide is allowed to move-in.   
If a live-in aide moves in prior to screening and prior to signing required forms, the owner/agent will issue a 
notice of lease violation and may pursue other action including, but not limited to eviction of the live-in aide, 
termination of assistance and/or termination of tenancy.   
 
Children/Minors:  At move-in, all non-exempt household members, including children, must have a Social 
Security Number and adequate documentation to verify the Social Security Number. 
 
When children are later added to the household, the following will be required. 
For children who are born, adopted or in foster care or in another legal custodial relationship with an existing 
household member, the owner/agent requires the following: 
 
• Social Security Number and proof that the number is valid  

o For children under the age of 6 years old - must be provided within ninety (90) days or owner/agent 
is required to terminate tenancy.   

o An additional ninety (90) may be provided if extenuating circumstances exist 
• Proof of age/legal custodial arrangement 

o Birth certificate indicating that a household member is a parent; or 
o Adoption paperwork indicating that a household member is a parent as appropriate; or 



(Property Name) Tenant Selection Plan 

 Page 55  of 58 Created 5/19/2016 
 

o Verification from the foster agency indicating the unit as the primary residence of the foster child as 
appropriate; or 

o Other documents proving legal custody arrangement as appropriate 
 
For children who are not part of a legal custody arrangement who will be living in the unit, the owner/agent 
requires: 
 
• Social Security Number and proof that the number is valid  

o For children under the age of 6 years old - must be provided within ninety (90) days or owner/agent 
is required to termination of tenancy.  An additional ninety (90) may be provided if extenuating 
circumstances exist 

• Two forms of proof that the child resides with a member of the household 
o Verification from a government organization indicating that the unit will be the primary residence 

for the minor (examples include but are not limited to school records, children services agencies, 
foster programs, etc.) 

o Verification from a medical professional in the know indicating that the unit will be the primary 
residence for the minor 

o Verification from a social service organization indicating that the unit will be the primary residence 
of the minor (examples include but are not limited to homeless shelters, shelters for victims of 
domestic violence, etc.) 

o A signed, notarized statement from an adult household member claiming guardianship of the minor 
child  

 
The owner/agent does not and will not establish policies intended to exclude children.  If none of the household 
members can provide documentation for minors, as described above, the owner/agent will meet with the 
resident to discuss reasonable alternatives.  The owner/agent will be the final judge of what is considered 
adequate documentation proving household composition/residency. 
 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 



(Property Name) Tenant Selection Plan 

 Page 56  of 58 Created 5/19/2016 
 

APPENDIX E – VAWA POLICY 
The Violence Against Women Act (VAWA) provides protections to women or men who are the victims of 
domestic violence, dating violence, sexual assault and/or stalking.  The owner/agent understands that, 
regardless of whether state or local laws protect victims of domestic violence, dating violence, sexual assault 
and/or stalking, people who have been victims of violence have certain rights under the Violence Against 
Women Act Reauthorization of 2013. 
 
This policy is intended to support or assist victims of domestic violence, dating violence, sexual assault and/or 
stalking and protect victims, as well as members of their family, from being denied housing or from losing their 
HUD assisted housing as a consequence of their status as a victim of domestic violence, sexual assault, dating 
violence and/or stalking. 
 
VAWA protections are not provided to guests, unauthorized residents or service providers (including live-in 
aides) hired by the resident.   
 
VAWA ensures that victims are not denied housing and housing assistance is not terminated solely because the 
person is a victim of an act covered under the VAWA (domestic violence, dating violence, stalking and/or sexual 
assault).   
 
However, being a victim of an act covered under the VAWA is not reason to change the eligibility or applicant 
screening requirements set forth in the tenant selection plan unless such requirements interfere with 
protections provided under the VAWA.  Being a victim of an act covered under the VAWA is not reason to waive 
requirements set forth in the HUD Model Lease or in any lease attachment or HUD approved lease addendum 
unless such requirements interfere with protections provided under the VAWA.   
 
The owner/agent will not assume that any act is a result of abuse covered under the Violence Against Women 
Act.  In order to receive the protections outlined in the VAWA, the applicant/resident must specify that he/she 
wishes to exercise these protections.  If any applicant or resident wishes to exercise the protections provided in 
the VAWA, he/she should contact the owner/agent immediately.  The owner/agent is committed to ensuring 
that the Privacy Act is enforced in this and all other situations.   

CONFIDENTIALITY  
The identity of the victim and all information provided to owner/agent relating to the incident(s) of abuse 
covered under the VAWA will be retained in confidence.  Information will not be entered into any shared 
database nor provided to a related entity, except to the extent that the disclosure is  
 

• Requested or consented to by the victim in writing;  
• Required for use in an eviction proceeding or termination of assistance; or  
• Otherwise required by applicable law.  

 
The certification form provides notice to the resident of the confidentiality of the form and the limits thereof.  
The owner/agent will retain all documentation relating to an individual’s domestic violence, dating violence, 
sexual assault and/or stalking in a separate file that is kept in a separate secure location from other applicant or 
resident files.  If the documentation is stored electronically, the owner/agent will keep this information in an 
electronic file that is separate from the applicant or resident file with secured access only to authorized 
individuals. 



(Property Name) Tenant Selection Plan 

 Page 57  of 58 Created 5/19/2016 
 

REQUESTS & CERTIFICATION  
When the owner/agent responds to a request for protections provided under the VAWA the owner/agent will 
request that an individual complete, sign, and submit a certification form, within fourteen (14) calendar days of 
the request.  This certification may be submitted in an equally effective manner, as a reasonable 
accommodation, if there is the presence of a disability. 
 
If necessary, the victim may request additional time to submit the certification.   
 
The victim is not required to name his/her abuser if doing so would result in imminent threat or if the victim 
does not know the name of his/her abuser. 
 
The owner/agent understands that the delivery of the certification form to the applicant/resident via mail may 
place the victim at risk, (e.g., the abuser may monitor the mail).  The owner/agent will work with the 
applicant/resident in making acceptable delivery arrangements, such as inviting them into the office to pick up 
the certification form or making other discreet arrangements. 
 
If the applicant/resident has sought assistance in addressing domestic violence, dating violence, sexual assault 
and/or stalking from a federal, state, tribal, territorial jurisdiction, local police or court, the applicant/resident 
may submit written proof of this outreach in lieu of the certification form.  The owner/agent may accept the 
following: 
 

• A federal, state, tribal, territorial, or local police record or court record or  
• Documentation signed and attested to by a professional (employee, agent or volunteer of a victim 

service provider, an attorney, medical personnel, etc.) From whom the victim has sought assistance in 
addressing domestic violence, dating violence and/or stalking or the effects of the abuse.  The signatory 
attests under penalty of perjury (28 U.S.C. §1746) to his/her belief that the incident in question 
represents bona fide abuse, and the victim of domestic violence, dating violence and/or stalking has 
signed or attested to the documentation. 

 
If the applicant is currently living in a shelter established to protect victims of violence covered under the VAWA, 
the owner/agent will accept verification of such living arrangement in lieu of additional verification.   
 
To ensure that a person is not wrongly accused of committing an act covered under the VAWA, the owner/agent 
will carefully evaluate abuse claims as to avoid denial, termination of assistance, termination of tenancy or 
eviction based on false or unsubstantiated accusations. 
 
The applicant/resident is required to provide all necessary documentation to the owner/agent no more than ten 
(10) business days after submitting the certification to the owner/agent.  If the victim is unable to provide 
required documentation within the required timeframe, the owner/agent will deny the request. 
 
The owner/agent will review and respond to requests to exercise protections provided under the VAWA within 
ten (10) business days of receiving all required documentation.  The owner/agent may provide the response in 
any manner acceptable to the victim and the owner/agent.  Responses include: 
 

• Approval of the Request 
• Denial of the Request 
• Request for additional information 



(Property Name) Tenant Selection Plan 

 Page 58  of 58 Created 5/19/2016 
 

LEASE BIFURCATION 
If the owner/agent determines that physical abuse caused by a resident is clear and present, the law provides 
the owner/agent with the authority to bifurcate a lease (i.e., remove, evict, or terminate housing assistance to 
any abuser, while allowing the victim, who lawfully occupies the home, to maintain tenancy.)  
 
The owner/agent may attempt to evict the abuser, but residents should know that state/local tenant/landlord 
laws prevail and the owner/agent must comply with such laws.  The owner/agent cannot guarantee that a court 
will award or enforce an eviction.   
 
Owner/agents must keep in mind that the eviction of or the termination action against the individual must be in 
accordance with the procedures prescribed by federal, state, and local law.  The owner/agent is committed to 
attempting to assist the victim, however, evictions are generally carried out through the court system and the 
owner/agent cannot override or circumvent a legal decision. 
 
In the event that one household member is removed from the unit because of engaging in acts of domestic 
violence, dating violence, sexual assault and/or stalking against another household member, an appropriate 
certification will be processed reflecting the change in household composition.  Special consideration will be 
given if the remaining household members are not qualified to remain in the unit as a “remaining household 
member”.    

CRIMINAL ACTS 
Victims are encouraged to seek police/legal protection from their abuser.  In some cases, the owner/agent may 
file a restraining order against the abuser to prevent the abuser from entering the property.  If there is a 
restraining order against the abuser and the resident willingly allows or invites the abuser onto the premises, 
the owner/agent may seek termination of assistance and/or tenancy.   
 
In accordance with the regulation at 24 CFR 5.861, the owner/agent may terminate tenancy and evict the tenant 
through judicial action for criminal activity by a covered person if the Landlord determines that the covered 
person has engaged in the criminal activity, regardless of whether the covered person has been arrested, or 
convicted for such activity and without satisfying a criminal standard of proof of the activity.   
 
The owner/agent will take into account individual circumstances when making a determination to terminate 
tenancy; such circumstances might include, among other things, the seriousness of the offending action, the 
extent of participation by the leaseholder in the offending action, and whether the leaseholder, if not the 
wrongdoer, took all feasible steps to prevent the offending action from occurring and has removed the 
offending person from the lease or otherwise banned the offending person from the premises in the future.         

LEASE ADDENDUM 
Any HUD approved lease addendum will be implemented and provided in accordance with HUD guidance.  
  
 



(Property Name) Tenant Selection Plan for PBRA / LIHTC Elderly/Disabled Housing 

Page 1  of 60  Pending Public Comment 5/12/2016  

 
 

 
 
 
 

(Property Name) 
Tenant Selection Plan 

 
Project Based Rental Assistance & 

Low Income Housing Tax Credit 
Housing for Elderly 

& People with Disabilities 
  

 
 

  



(Property Name) Tenant Selection Plan for PBRA / LIHTC Elderly/Disabled Housing 

Page 2  of 60  Pending Public Comment 5/12/2016  

 

OWNER/AGENT & PROPERTY INFORMATION ...................................................................................................................... 5 

THE PURPOSE OF THE RESIDENT SELECTION PLAN ............................................................................................................... 5 

RULES OF CONDUCT ............................................................................................................................................................ 6 

SMOKE FREE HOUSING ........................................................................................................................................................ 6 

SECURITY DEPOSIT REQUIREMENTS .................................................................................................................................... 6 

PETS..................................................................................................................................................................................... 7 

PET DEPOSIT ............................................................................................................................................................................... 7 

ASSISTANCE DEFINITION ...................................................................................................................................................... 7 

SUBSIDY ..................................................................................................................................................................................... 8 
TENANT-BASED VOUCHERS ............................................................................................................................................................ 8 
ASSISTED LIVING .......................................................................................................................................................................... 8 

FAIR HOUSING POLICIES ...................................................................................................................................................... 8 

FAIR HOUSING............................................................................................................................................................................. 8 
TITLE VI OF THE CIVIL RIGHTS ACT OF 1964 ...................................................................................................................................... 8 
SECTION 504 OF THE REHABILITATION ACT OF 1973 .......................................................................................................................... 8 

 Coordinating Efforts to Comply with Section 504 Requirements .............................................................................. 9 
 Requests for Reasonable Accommodation or Modification ...................................................................................... 9 

COMPLIANCE WITH REQUIREMENTS IN THE VIOLENCE AGAINST WOMEN REAUTHORIZATION ACT OF 2013 .................................................. 9 
AVAILABILITY OF ASSISTANCE FOR PERSONS WITH LIMITED ENGLISH PROFICIENCY .................................................................................... 9 
THE EQUAL ACCESS RULE .............................................................................................................................................................. 9 

ELIGIBILITY REQUIREMENTS ................................................................................................................................................ 9 

PROPERTY ELIGIBILITY DEFINITION ................................................................................................................................................... 9 
 Household/Resident Type ....................................................................................................................................... 10 
 Income Limits .......................................................................................................................................................... 11 
 Occupancy Standards ............................................................................................................................................. 12 
 Verifying the Need for an Accessible Unit ............................................................................................................... 12 

PROGRAM ELIGIBILITY ................................................................................................................................................................. 13 
 Eligibility Standards ................................................................................................................................................ 13 
 Disclosure and Verification of Social Security Numbers .......................................................................................... 13 
 Exceptions to Disclosure of Social Security Number ............................................................................................... 13 
 Secondary Verification of the Social Security Number (PBRA Only) ........................................................................ 14 
 Citizenship/Immigration Status Requirements ....................................................................................................... 14 
 Single Residence/Subsidy Criteria ........................................................................................................................... 15 
 Eligibility of Students Enrolled at an Institute for Higher Education ....................................................................... 16 
 Additional Tax Credit Eligibility Requirements for Students Enrolled at an Institute of Higher Education ............. 17 
 Prohibition of Assistance to Noncitizen Students.................................................................................................... 17 

PROCEDURES FOR TAKING PRE-APPLICATIONS & APPLICATIONS ...................................................................................... 17 

PRE-APPLICATIONS ..................................................................................................................................................................... 17 
 Incomplete Pre-Applications ................................................................................................................................... 18 
 Preliminary Determination of Applicant Eligibility .................................................................................................. 18 

APPLICATIONS ........................................................................................................................................................................... 19 
FINAL DETERMINATION OF ELIGIBILITY ........................................................................................................................................... 20 

LIVE-IN AIDES..................................................................................................................................................................... 20 

WAITING LISTS ................................................................................................................................................................... 20 



(Property Name) Tenant Selection Plan for PBRA / LIHTC Elderly/Disabled Housing 

Page 3  of 60  Pending Public Comment 5/12/2016  

MAINTAINING WAITING LISTS ...................................................................................................................................................... 20 
REMOVAL OF APPLICANTS FROM THE WAITING LIST.......................................................................................................................... 21 
SELECTING APPLICANTS FROM THE WAITING LIST ............................................................................................................................. 22 

 Income Targeting (PBRA Only) ................................................................................................................................ 22 
PREFERENCES (PBRA ONLY) ........................................................................................................................................................ 23 

 Owner/agent-Adopted Preferences ........................................................................................................................ 23 
 HUD Approved Preference ...................................................................................................................................... 23 
 Preference Weights ................................................................................................................................................. 24 
 Verification of Preferences ...................................................................................................................................... 24 
 When a Request for Preference is Denied ............................................................................................................... 24 
 Change in Preference Status While on the Waiting List .......................................................................................... 24 
 Exceptions to the Preference Rule .......................................................................................................................... 25 

OPENING AND CLOSING WAITING LIST ........................................................................................................................................... 25 

PRIVACY POLICY ................................................................................................................................................................ 25 

VERIFICATION .................................................................................................................................................................... 26 

INFORMATION TO BE VERIFIED ...................................................................................................................................................... 26 
METHODS OF VERIFICATION ......................................................................................................................................................... 26 
SOURCES OF INFORMATION .......................................................................................................................................................... 27 
PERIOD FOR VERIFICATION ........................................................................................................................................................... 28 
CONSENT AND VERIFICATION FORMS ............................................................................................................................................. 28 
PROVISIONS FOR REFUSAL TO SIGN ................................................................................................................................................ 28 

MISREPRESENTATION ........................................................................................................................................................ 28 

APPLICANT SCREENING CRITERIA ...................................................................................................................................... 29 

SCREENING FOR DRUG ABUSE AND OTHER CRIMINAL ACTIVITY .......................................................................................................... 29 
 Consideration of Extenuating Circumstances ......................................................................................................... 31 
 Criminal Screening Discoveries ............................................................................................................................... 31 

SCREENING FOR CREDIT HISTORY .................................................................................................................................................. 32 
SCREENING FOR ABILITY TO ESTABLISH UTILITY SERVICE ..................................................................................................................... 32 
SCREENING RENTAL HISTORY........................................................................................................................................................ 32 
SCREENING FOR RECEIPT OF HUD ASSISTANCE IN ANOTHER UNIT (PBRA ONLY) ................................................................................... 33 

REJECTING INELIGIBLE OR UNQUALIFIED APPLICANTS ....................................................................................................... 34 

REJECTION NOTICES ................................................................................................................................................................... 35 
APPEALING THE DECISION TO REJECT ............................................................................................................................................. 35 

INFORMAL HEARINGS FOR PBRA APPLICANTS ................................................................................................................... 36 

INFORMAL HEARING PROCESS [24 CFR 960.208(A) AND PH OCC GB, P. 58] ..................................................................................... 36 
 Use of Informal Hearing Process ............................................................................................................................. 36 
 Notice of Denial ...................................................................................................................................................... 36 
 Scheduling an Informal Hearing ............................................................................................................................. 36 
 Conducting an Informal Hearing [PH Occ GB, p. 58]............................................................................................... 37 
 Informal Hearing Decision [PH Occ GB, p. 58] ........................................................................................................ 37 

REASONABLE ACCOMMODATIONS FOR PERSONS WITH DISABILITIES [24 CFR 966.7] ............................................................................. 37 
HEARING AND APPEAL PROVISIONS FOR NON-CITIZENS [24 CFR 5.514] ............................................................................................. 38 

 Notice of Denial or Termination of Assistance [24 CFR 5.514(d)] ........................................................................... 38 
 United States Citizenship and Immigration Services Appeal Process [24 CFR 5.514(e)] ......................................... 38 
 Informal Hearing Procedures for Applicants [24 CFR 5.514(f)] ............................................................................... 39 

OFFERING AN APARTMENT ............................................................................................................................................... 40 

OFFERING ACCESSIBLE UNITS ....................................................................................................................................................... 40 
OFFERING UNITS TO APPLICANTS WITH DISABILITIES REQUESTING ACCESSIBILITY FEATURES ..................................................................... 41 



(Property Name) Tenant Selection Plan for PBRA / LIHTC Elderly/Disabled Housing 

Page 4  of 60  Pending Public Comment 5/12/2016  

OFFERING UNITS TO APPLICANTS OR RESIDENTS WITH PREFERENCES ................................................................................................... 41 
APPLICANT/RESIDENT SELECTION ORDER ....................................................................................................................................... 41 
RIGHT TO REFUSAL ..................................................................................................................................................................... 43 
TIMEFRAME FOR TAKING POSSESSION OF A UNIT ............................................................................................................................. 44 

UNIT TRANSFER POLICIES .................................................................................................................................................. 45 

SECURITY DEPOSITS, PET DEPOSITS & UNIT TRANSFERS .................................................................................................................... 46 

CHANGES IN HOUSEHOLD COMPOSITION .......................................................................................................................... 46 

ADDING HOUSEHOLD MEMBERS AFTER INITIAL OCCUPANCY .............................................................................................................. 46 
REMOVING HOUSEHOLD MEMBERS AFTER INITIAL OCCUPANCY .......................................................................................................... 47 

APARTMENT INSPECTIONS ................................................................................................................................................ 47 

CHANGES TO THE RESIDENT SELECTION PLAN ................................................................................................................... 48 

APPENDIX A – REQUEST FOR REASONABLE ACCOMMODATION OR MODIFICATION ......................................................... 49 

APPENDIX B – CITIZEN/NON-CITIZEN ELIGIBILITY ............................................................................................................... 50 

REQUIRED DOCUMENTATION ....................................................................................................................................................... 50 
TIMEFRAMES FOR SUBMITTING EVIDENCE OF CITIZENSHIP/IMMIGRATION STATUS TO THE OWNER/AGENT ................................................. 51 
REVIEWING AND VERIFICATION OF A HOUSEHOLD’S CITIZENSHIP/IMMIGRATION STATUS ......................................................................... 51 
NOTIFICATION TO APPLICANTS ...................................................................................................................................................... 52 
MIXED HOUSEHOLDS .................................................................................................................................................................. 52 
APPEALING DETERMINATIONS OF INELIGIBILITY ................................................................................................................................ 52 
PROHIBITION AGAINST DELAY OF ASSISTANCE ................................................................................................................................. 52 

APPENDIX C:  DUAL SUBSIDY NOTICE ................................................................................................................................ 54 

APPENDIX D – VERIFICATION OF HOUSEHOLD COMPOSITION ........................................................................................... 55 

APPENDIX E – VAWA POLICY ............................................................................................................................................. 58 

CONFIDENTIALITY ....................................................................................................................................................................... 58 
REQUESTS & CERTIFICATION ........................................................................................................................................................ 59 
LEASE BIFURCATION ................................................................................................................................................................... 60 
CRIMINAL ACTS ......................................................................................................................................................................... 60 
LEASE ADDENDUM ..................................................................................................................................................................... 60 



(Property Name) Tenant Selection Plan for PBRA / LIHTC Elderly/Disabled Housing 

Page 5  of 60  Pending Public Comment 5/12/2016  

OWNER/AGENT & PROPERTY INFORMATION 
Owner/Agent Name       

Owner/Agent Contact Name       

Owner/Agent Address       

City, State, Zip       

Owner/Agent Phone       

Owner/Agent Fax       

TTY/TDD/Audio Relay 711 National Voice  

  
Property Name  

Property Contact Name  

Property Address  

City, State, Zip  

Property Phone  

Property Fax  

TTY/TDD/Audio Relay  
 
Applications for housing at this property are only received online or at the owner/agent’s office location.  
Applications are not received at the property management office. 
 
All references to office locations within this Tenant Selection Plan include both the HACA Central Office and the 
Property Management Office, unless otherwise indicated. 

THE PURPOSE OF THE RESIDENT SELECTION PLAN 
The resident selection plan helps to ensure that residents are selected for occupancy in accordance with HUD & 
IRS requirements and established management policies.   
 
Please contact the management office if you need help understanding this document.  
 
 Contacte por favor la oficina de gestión si usted necesita ayuda a comprender este documento. (Spanish) 
 Por favor contate o escritório de gerência se deve ajudar entendimento este documento. (Portugese) 
 Si vous avez besoin d'aide à la compréhension de ce document, veuillez communiquer avec le Bureau de 

gestion. (French) 
 Souple kontakte Biwo jesyon a si w bezwen èd pou konprann dokiman sa a. (Haitian Creole) 
 Xin liên lạc với văn phòng điều hành nếu bạn cần giúp đỡ sự hiểu biết tài liệu này. (Vietnamese) 
 Пожалуйста свяжитесь с офисом управления, если Вам нужна помощь в понимании этого документа. 

(Russian) 
 Bitte kontaktieren Sie das Leitungsbüro, wenn Sie helfen müssen, dieses Dokument zu verstehen. (German) 
 請聯絡管理辦公室，如果你需要幫助理解這份文件。(Chinese) 
 もしこの文書を理解しているための助けを必要としていれば、経営オフィスと連絡を取ってくださ

い。(Japanese) 



(Property Name) Tenant Selection Plan for PBRA / LIHTC Elderly/Disabled Housing 

Page 6  of 60  Pending Public Comment 5/12/2016  

RULES OF CONDUCT 
The relationship between a landlord (owner/agent) and a resident or applicant is a business relationship. A 
courteous and businesslike attitude is required from both parties.  The owner/agent reserves the right to refuse 
to conduct business with anyone who is verbally abusive, swears, is disrespectful, makes threats, uses 
discriminatory language, appears to be intoxicated or under the influence of alcohol or drugs, is argumentative, 
or in general displays an attitude, at any time, which causes the /agent or the property staff to believe we would 
not have a positive business relationship.  
 
If an applicant or any member of the applicant’s family demonstrates unprofessional behavior in the presence of 
the management team or other residents/applicants, the applicant, the applicant’s family and other members of 
the applicant’s entourage (if applicable) will be required to leave the property and the application will be 
rejected.   
 
If the applicant or any member of the applicant’s family exhibits threatening behavior, appears to be intoxicated 
or under the influence of alcohol or illegal drugs or attempts to intimidate the staff, the applicant, the 
applicant’s family and other members of the applicant’s entourage (if applicable) will be required to leave the 
property and the application will be rejected.   
 
To ensure the privacy of property staff, property residents and applicants, residents and applicants are asked to 
refrain from use of cell phones or other electronic devices, except those necessary to alleviate the symptoms of 
a disability, by residents or applicants, while in the management office or Administration Central Office.  
 
Assistance Animals are always welcome in the management office.  Please keep all pets outside the 
management office at all times. 
 
Children are always welcome.  When in the Central Office or Management Office, minors must be supervised.  
Admissions Department and property staff are not responsible for child care or supervision.   
 
Admissions Department staff is not permitted to accept any money, gifts, services or favors connected with the 
application process, criminal or credit checks, eligibility determination, apartment selection or associated with 
any aspect of residency on this property.   If staff solicits any mandatory payment for any part of the application 
process, the applicant should notify the owner/agent.  XXXX ENTER CONTACT INFORMATION HERE XXX. 

SMOKE FREE HOUSING 
Smoking is prohibited in any area of the property, both private and common, whether enclosed or outdoors. 
This policy applies to all owner/agents, property staff, applicants, residents, guests, and servicepersons.  
“Smoking” shall include the inhaling, exhaling, or carrying of any lighted cigarette, e-cigarette, cigar, pipe, 
hookah, other tobacco products, marijuana including medical marijuana, herbal smoking products “Legal Weed” 
or products known as “bath salts” or other legal or illegal substances.   

SECURITY DEPOSIT REQUIREMENTS 
The owner/agent must collect a security deposit at the time of the initial lease execution. The owner/agent will 
comply with any HUD rules and applicable state and local laws governing the security deposit. The security 
deposit amount is based on the Total Tenant Payment (TTP) calculated at move in.   
 
If the move-in certification requires correction, and the TTP is recalculated, the security deposit requirement will 
be recalculated as well.  Otherwise, the amount of the security deposit established at move-in does not change 
when a resident’s rent changes. 
 



(Property Name) Tenant Selection Plan for PBRA / LIHTC Elderly/Disabled Housing 

Page 7  of 60  Pending Public Comment 5/12/2016  

The resident is expected to pay the security deposit from his/her own resources and/or other public or private 
sources.  An applicant will be rejected if he/she does not have sufficient funds to pay the deposit.   

PETS 
Residents are allowed to keep 2 pets in the unit.   
 
Certain restrictions apply and are outlined in the property Pet Rules.  Pets and assistance animals must be 
approved before they are allowed to live in the unit.  Copies of the Pet Rules and Assistance Animals Policy are 
available upon request. 
 
When applicable, residents must agree to pay any required pet deposit and must agree to abide by the 
property’s Pet Rules and Assistance Animal Policies.   
 
If an applicant wishes to request approval of an assistance animal – necessary to alleviate the symptoms or side-
effects of a disability - the applicant (or applicant’s representative) must request a reasonable accommodation.  
Please review the process to request a reasonable accommodation in Appendix A.  The applicant should also 
review the Assistance Animal Policy which is available upon request. 

PET DEPOSIT 
The Pet Rules require residents who own dogs or cats (pets) or keep dogs or cats (pets) in their units to pay a 
refundable pet deposit. This deposit is in addition to any other financial obligation generally imposed on 
residents of the property. 
 
The pet deposit is $100.00. A minimum of $50.00 is required at the time the pet is brought on to the premises.  
The resident will be required to pay the remaining balance in increments of $10.00 per month until the $100.00 
pet deposit is collected.  Residents are allowed to pay the entire pet deposit in increments greater than those 
described if he/she chooses to do so. 
 
The owner/agent will use the pet deposit only to pay reasonable expenses directly attributable to the presence 
of the pet on the property. Such expenses would include, but not be limited to, the cost of repairs and 
replacement to the unit, fumigation of the unit, and the cost of animal care facilities. 
 
The owner/agent will return the unused portion of a pet deposit to the resident within a reasonable time after 
the resident moves from the property or no longer owns or keeps a household pet in the unit. Residents, their 
guests and/or service providers are required to comply with the property Pet Policies. 
 
Assistance animals that assist persons with disabilities are exempt from the pet policy and from the refundable 
pet deposit.  Residents, guests and service providers will be required to comply with the Assistance Animal 
Policy. 

ASSISTANCE DEFINITION 
The property is operating under the guidelines established for two layered housing programs - the HUD Project 
Based Rental Assistance (PBRA) program and the Low Income Housing Tax Credit (LIHTC) program.  Of the XXX 
tax credit units at this property, XXX are also layered with PBRA subsidy.  Because this plan covers the eligibility 
and tenant selection requirements for both programs, there are some areas of the plan that will only be 
applicable to one program.  Those areas are identified throughout the plan.  A person must be capable of 
fulfilling all the lease requirements for both programs.   



(Property Name) Tenant Selection Plan for PBRA / LIHTC Elderly/Disabled Housing 

Page 8  of 60  Pending Public Comment 5/12/2016  

SUBSIDY 
Residents at this property are offered subsidized rent.  This means the rent that a household pays is based upon 
the household income.  The family will pay 30% of their adjusted household income.  The balance of the 
contract rent is subsidized by the Federal Government.  The rent amounts paid by residents may vary.   

TENANT-BASED VOUCHERS 
The owner/agent may not admit an applicant with a voucher to a unit with Project Based Rental Assistance 
unless the applicant agrees to give up the voucher prior to occupancy.  This will be verified with the former 
housing provider. 
 
If the owner/agent discovers that any household member failed to give up current HUD housing assistance 
before moving to NAME OF PROPERTY, no rent subsidy or utility allowance will be provided by HUD until the 
day after the move out or surrender of the currently subsidized unit.   
 
Household members who sign the lease will be responsible for paying the market rent until qualified to receive 
HUD assistance on this property.  Any assistance paid in error must be returned to HUD.  Applicants should 
consult with the local HUD office if the former landlord is accepting subsidy after move-out. 
 
Please note that housing assistance provided through HUD’s multi-family housing program is not the same as 
the housing assistance provided through the voucher program.  If any family member moves out, the housing 
subsidy will not move with the family as it does with a voucher.  The family will be required to re-apply to a PHA 
to receive a voucher. 

ASSISTED LIVING 
This is not an assisted living property.  The owner/agent and property staff do not provide, nor have the 
authority to provide, any personal care or personal supervision services.  All care and supervision services must 
be provided by the resident or aides supervised by the resident or the resident’s representative(s).   The 
owner/agent and property staff do not provide assistance with personal activities or daily living.   

FAIR HOUSING POLICIES 

FAIR HOUSING 
The Fair Housing Act prohibits discrimination in housing and housing related transactions based on race, color, 
religion, sex, national origin, disability, and familial status.  In addition, the city of Austin has added Fair Housing 
protections based on creed, student status, marital status, sexual orientation, gender identity and age. 

TITLE VI OF THE CIVIL RIGHTS ACT OF 1964 
The owner/agent complies with Title VI of the Civil Rights Act of 1964 which prohibits discrimination based on 
race, color, or national origin in any program or activity receiving federal financial assistance from HUD. 

SECTION 504 OF THE REHABILITATION ACT OF 1973 
The owner/agent complies with Section 504 of the Rehabilitation Act of 1973 which prohibits discrimination, 
based on the presence of a disability in all programs or activities operated by recipients of federal financial 
assistance.   
 
Although Section 504 protections often overlap with the disability discrimination prohibitions included in the 
Fair Housing Act, Section 504 differs in that it imposes broader affirmative obligations to make their programs, 
as a whole, accessible to persons with disabilities.   



(Property Name) Tenant Selection Plan for PBRA / LIHTC Elderly/Disabled Housing 

Page 9  of 60  Pending Public Comment 5/12/2016  

• Coordinating Efforts to Comply with Section 504 Requirements 
The owner/agent has designated a person to address questions or requests regarding the specific needs 
of residents and applicants with disabilities.  This person is referred to as the Section 504 Coordinator.   

 
Name of Section 504 Coordinator: Vice President of Housing and Community Development 

Address:   1124 S IH 35, Austin, TX 78704 

Phone Number:  (512) 477-4488 

TDD/TTY Number: 711 Voice Relay  

• Requests for Reasonable Accommodation or Modification 
In accordance with the Fair Housing Act and Section 504 of the Rehabilitation Act, the owner/agent will 
make reasonable accommodations or modifications for individuals with disabilities (applicants or 
residents) unless these modifications would change the fundamental nature of the housing program or 
result in undue financial and administrative burden.  Please see Appendix A for additional information. 

COMPLIANCE WITH REQUIREMENTS IN THE VIOLENCE AGAINST WOMEN REAUTHORIZATION ACT OF 2013 
The owner/agent understands that, regardless of whether state or local laws protect victims of domestic 
violence, dating violence, sexual assault or stalking, people who have been victims of violence have certain 
protections provided through the Violence Against Women Reauthorization Act of 2013 (VAWA 2013).   
 
If any applicant wishes to exercise the protections provided in the VAWA 2013, he/she should contact the 
owner/agent immediately.   
 
The owner/agent will not assume that any act is a result of abuse covered under the VAWA 2013.  In order to 
receive the protections outlined in the VAWA 2013, the applicant/applicant must specify that he/she wishes to 
exercise these protections.   
 
Please see Appendix E for a copy of the owner/agent’s VAWA Policy. 

AVAILABILITY OF ASSISTANCE FOR PERSONS WITH LIMITED ENGLISH PROFICIENCY  
Executive Order 13166, "Improving Access to Services for Persons with Limited English Proficiency LEP)" requires 
the owner/agent to develop and implement a system to provide housing assistance so persons with Limited 
English Proficiency (LEP) can have meaningful access to assisted housing opportunities. The owner/agent will 
provide for such meaningful access consistent with, and without unduly burdening the fundamental mission of 
the property.  The owner/agent will work to ensure that people who apply for and/or qualify for housing 
assistance are provided meaningful access to HUD’s housing assistance program.   

THE EQUAL ACCESS RULE 
The owner/agent ensures that HUD's core housing programs are open to all eligible persons regardless of sexual 
orientation, gender identity or marital status in accordance with The Equal Access Rule. 

ELIGIBILITY REQUIREMENTS 

PROPERTY ELIGIBILITY DEFINITION 
 
 



(Property Name) Tenant Selection Plan for PBRA / LIHTC Elderly/Disabled Housing 

Page 10  of 60  Pending Public Comment 5/12/2016  

• Household/Resident Type 
This multi-family PBRA & LIHTC property is designed to provide housing to elderly and disabled families 
who meet the eligibility and screening requirements.  In order for a family/household to meet the 
“family type” eligibility requirements, the head-of-household, the co-head-of-household or a spouse 
must be  
o 62 or older or  
o Disabled as defined by HUD. 

 
• Definition of Disabled Family. A disabled family is a family whose head, spouse, or sole member is a 

person with disabilities. 
 

• Definition of Person with Disabilities: A person with disabilities for purposes of program eligibility: 
o Means a person who 
 Has a disability, as defined in 42 U.S.C. 423; 
 Inability to engage in any substantial gainful activity by reason of any medically 

determinable physical or mental impairment which can be expected to result in death or 
which has lasted or can be expected to last for a continuous period of not less than 12 
months; or 

 In the case of an individual who has attained the age of 55 and is blind, inability by reason of 
such blindness to engage in substantial gainful activity requiring skills or abilities comparable 
to those of any gainful activity in which he/she has previously engaged with some regularity 
and over a substantial period of time.  For the purposes of this definition, the term 
blindness, as defined in section 416(i)(1) of this title, means central vision acuity of 20/200 
or less in the better eye with use of a correcting lens.  An eye which is accompanied by a 
limitation in the fields of vision such that the widest diameter of the visual field subtends an 
angle no greater than 20 degrees shall be considered for the purposes of this paragraph as 
having a central visual acuity of 20/200 or less. 

 Is determined, pursuant to HUD regulations, to have a physical, mental, or emotional 
impairment that: 
 Is expected to be of long-continued and indefinite duration, 
 Substantially impedes his or her ability to live independently, and 
 Is of such a nature that the ability to live independently could be improved by more suitable 

housing conditions; or 
 Has a developmental disability, as defined in Section 102(7) of the Developmental Disabilities 

Assistance and Bill of Rights Act (42 U.S.C. 6001(8)), i.e., a person with a severe chronic disability 
that 
 Is attributable to a mental or physical impairment or combination of mental and physical 

impairments; 
 Is manifested before the person attains age 22; 
 Is likely to continue indefinitely; 
 Results in substantial functional limitation in three or more of the following areas of major life 

activity: 
 Self-care, 
 Receptive and expressive language, 
 Learning, 
 Mobility, 
 Self-direction, 
 Capacity for independent living, and 



(Property Name) Tenant Selection Plan for PBRA / LIHTC Elderly/Disabled Housing 

Page 11  of 60  Pending Public Comment 5/12/2016  

 Economic self-sufficiency; and 
 Reflects the person’s need for a combination and sequence of special, interdisciplinary, or 

generic care, treatment, or other services that are of lifelong or extended duration and are 
individually planned and coordinated. 

o Does not exclude persons who have the disease of acquired immunodeficiency syndrome or any 
conditions arising from the etiologic agent for acquired immunodeficiency syndrome; 

o For purposes of qualifying for low-income housing, does not include a person whose disability is 
based solely on any drug or alcohol dependence; and 

o Means person with disabilities (individual with handicaps), as defined in 24 CFR 8.3, for purposes of 
reasonable accommodation and program accessibility for persons with disabilities 

 
Note: A person whose sole impairment is alcoholism or drug addiction (i.e., who does not have a 
developmental disability, chronic mental illness, or physical disability that is the disabling condition 
required for eligibility in a particular project) will not be considered to be disabled for the purposes of 
the Project Based Rental Assistance program. 
 

• Definition of Nonelderly Disabled (Handicapped) Family.  
A nonelderly disabled (handicapped) family means a disabled family in which the head of the family 
(and/or spouse, if any) is less than 62 years of age at the time of the family's initial occupancy of a 
project. 

• Income Limits 
Income limits vary by program type (PBRA or LIHTC) and household size.  The owner/agent will provide 
applicants a copy of the income limits for the property area upon request.  In addition, applicants can 
review the income limits by accessing the following web site.  http://www.huduser.org/datasets/il.html.   
 
HUD requires that property managers incorporate the most recently published income limits when 
determining eligibility.  The IRS “hold harmless” rule states that if the income limits go down, the 
property can maintain the highest level of income limits in effect after the property was placed 
in service with tax credits. 
 
This property is a layered property with all units required to meet both the PBRA and LIHTC income limit 
requirements.  Both income limits are based off a percentage of the median family income for the 
Austin – Round Rock – San Marcos metropolitan statistical area.  Since the LIHTC income limit is lower, 
by default it becomes the effective income limit for the property. 
 
For this property, qualified applicant households must meet the following income limit requirements: 

 
Subsidy Type of Income Limit 

   
 
  Project Based Rental Assistance 

 Low – 80% of median family income 
 Very low – 50% of median family income 
 Extremely low – very low income household whose income  
 equals  or is less than the greater of poverty level or 30% of  
 median family income 

  Low Income Housing Tax Credit (LIHTC)  Low – 60% of median family income 
 

http://www.huduser.org/datasets/il.html


(Property Name) Tenant Selection Plan for PBRA / LIHTC Elderly/Disabled Housing 

Page 12  of 60  Pending Public Comment 5/12/2016  

• Occupancy Standards 
Occupancy standards serve to prevent the over-utilization or under-utilization of units that can result in 
an inefficient use of housing funding.  Occupancy standards also ensure that residents are treated fairly 
and consistently and receive adequate housing space.   
 
(Below, please find this property’s occupancy standards description:   
 

Number                                   
of Bedrooms 

Min. # Household 
Members 

Max.  # Household 
Members 

0 1 1 
1 1 2 
2 2 4 

 
o Generally, two persons are expected to share a bedroom. The family will be allowed one bedroom 

for each two persons within the household.  Exceptions to this rule and to the minimum number of 
household members guide above include the following circumstances: 
o Two children of the opposite sex, with one at least seven (7) years of age, will not be required to 

share a bedroom,  
o Persons of different generations (grandparent and grandchild, parent and child) will not be 

required to share a bedroom. 
o A couple (married or unmarried, same sex or opposite sex) engaged in a consensual sexual 

relationship will be allocated one bedroom. 
o Authorized live-in aides will be allocated a separate bedroom.  No additional bedrooms will be 

provided for the live-in aide’s family. 
o Single-person families will be allocated either a zero (efficiency) or one bedroom unit. 
o Anticipated children will be included.  Anticipated children include: 

o Children expected to be born to a pregnant woman; 
o Children in process of being adopted by an adult family member; 
o Children whose custody is being obtained by an adult family member; 
o Foster children who will reside in the unit; 
o Children who are temporarily in a foster home who will return to the family; and  
o Children in joint custody arrangements who are present in the household 50% or more of the 

time. 
o A household that contains a family member (not the head of household or spouse) who is enrolled 

as a full-time student at an institution of higher learning and who is on the lease will be counted for 
the purposes of establishing occupancy standards for unit size if: 
o The family member is enrolled and actively attending a two-year or four-year college or 

university; and  
o The family member resides in the Project Based Rental Assistance unit during school breaks and 

holidays. 
 

Any household placed in a unit size different from that defined in these Occupancy Standards shall agree 
to transfer to an appropriate size unit when one becomes available.   

• Verifying the Need for an Accessible Unit  
When an applicant requests an accessible unit or a unit preference, such as a first floor unit, the 
owner/agent will conduct inquiries to: 

 



(Property Name) Tenant Selection Plan for PBRA / LIHTC Elderly/Disabled Housing 

Page 13  of 60  Pending Public Comment 5/12/2016  

o Verify that the applicant is qualified for the unit, which is only available to persons with a disability 
or to persons with a particular type of disability 

o Verify that the applicant needs the features of the unit as an accommodation to his or her disability 
o Verify that the applicant is qualified to receive a priority on the waiting list available to persons with 

a disability or to persons with a particular type of disability 

PROGRAM ELIGIBILITY 

• Eligibility Standards 
Based on federal regulations, the owner/agent may admit only eligible applicants.  In the selection of 
applicants for admission, eligibility criteria have been established in accordance with HUD guidelines.   
The following eligibility standards will be applied in accordance with HUD requirements: 

 
o The household’s annual income must not exceed program income limits at move-in 
o The Head-of-Household (HOH), co-Head-of-Household and the spouse (regardless of age) and all 

adults in each household must sign an Authorization for Release of Information (HUD Forms 9887 
and 9887A) and owner/agent created verification documents prior to receiving assistance and 
annually thereafter   

o The unit for which the household is applying must be the household’s only residence 
o An applicant must agree to pay the rent required by the program under which the applicant will 

receive assistance 
o Only U.S. citizens or eligible non-citizens may receive assistance (See additional information below 

and in Appendix B) 
o Applicants who claim eligible status must disclose Social Security Numbers for all household 

members and provide proof of the numbers reported (See additional information below) 
o The household size must be appropriate for the available apartments (See Occupancy Standards) 
o All information reported by the household is subject to verification 

• Disclosure and Verification of Social Security Numbers 
All household members receiving HUD housing assistance or applying to receive HUD housing assistance 
are required to provide a Social Security Number and adequate documentation necessary to verify that 
number.  This rule applies to all household members including live-in aides, foster children and foster 
adults.  Adequate documentation includes a Social Security card issued by the Social Security 
Administration (SSA) or other acceptable evidence of the SSN such as: 

 
o Original Social Security card 
o Driver’s license with SSN 
o Identification card issued by a federal, State, or local agency, a medical insurance provider, or an 

employer or trade union. 
o Earnings statements on payroll stubs 
o Bank statement 
o Form 1099 
o Retirement benefit letter 
o Life insurance policy 
o Court records 

• Exceptions to Disclosure of Social Security Number  
The Social Security Number requirements do not apply to:  
 



(Property Name) Tenant Selection Plan for PBRA / LIHTC Elderly/Disabled Housing 

Page 14  of 60  Pending Public Comment 5/12/2016  

o Individuals age 62 or older as of January 31, 2010, whose initial determination of eligibility was 
begun before January 31, 2010.  

o Individuals who do not contend eligible immigration status. When applicants and residents are 
required to declare their citizenship status, the existing regulations pertaining to proration of 
assistance or screening for mixed families must continue to be followed.  

 
If, at the time a unit becomes available, all non-exempt household members have not provided 
adequate documentation necessary to verify Social Security Numbers, the next eligible applicant must 
be offered the available unit.   
 
All non-exempt household members have ninety (90) days-from the date they are first notified that a 
unit is available-to provide documentation necessary to verify the Social Security Numbers.  During this 
90-day period, the household may retain its place on the waiting list, but will not be considered again 
until the required documentation is provided.   
 
If, after ninety (90) days, the applicant is unable to disclose/verify the Social Security Numbers of all non-
exempt household members, the household will be determined ineligible and removed from the waiting 
list.  
 
The applicant may apply again, after obtaining the appropriate documentation.  The applicant will be 
placed on the waiting list based on the date and time the new application is received. 

• Secondary Verification of the Social Security Number (PBRA Only) 
The Social Security Number provided will be compared to the information recorded in the Social Security 
Administration database through HUD’s Enterprise Income Verification System (EIV) to ensure that the 
Social Security Number, birth date and last name match.   
 
If EIV returns an error that cannot be explained or resolved, assistance and/or tenancy may be 
terminated and any assistance paid in error must be returned to HUD.  If the applicant/resident 
deliberately provides an inaccurate Social Security Number, the owner/agent and/or HUD may pursue 
additional penalties due to attempted fraud. 

• Citizenship/Immigration Status Requirements 
Applicants are required to declare U.S. citizenship or submit evidence of eligible immigration status for 
each household member seeking housing assistance.  The owner/agent is required to obtain the 
following: 
  
o Family Composition Sheet (lists all household members who will reside in the assisted unit) 
o Citizenship Declaration - Each household member listed on the Family Summary Sheet must 

complete a declaration of citizen or non-citizen status 
o Forms and/or evidence of citizen/immigration status as required by HUD 
 
Additional information regarding submission and verification of proof of citizenship status or eligible 
non-citizen status can be found in Appendix B.   
 
If any applicant has questions or experiences difficulty providing the described information or 
determining the type of documentation required, the applicant should contact the management office.  
If any applicant is unable to provide the required documentation in the timeframe indicated in Appendix 
B, the applicant must contact the management office to request an extension.  If any applicant fails to 



(Property Name) Tenant Selection Plan for PBRA / LIHTC Elderly/Disabled Housing 

Page 15  of 60  Pending Public Comment 5/12/2016  

provide this information in the timeframes described, the owner/agent cannot provide assistance and 
the application will be rejected. 
 
The owner/agent will offer the household assistance, providing subsidy to those eligible household 
members whose documents were received on time, when the following criteria is met: 
 
o At least one member of the household has submitted the required documentation in a timely 

manner and has been determined to be eligible based on all of the criteria in this resident selection 
plan 

o Assistance/unit is available 
o The household is the next household to be selected from the waiting list 
 
Proof of declared citizenship status must be provided for all household members.  Members who claim 
U.S. citizenship can provide any documents approved by HUD or the Department of Homeland Security 
(DHS) to prove citizenship.  Additional information is provided in Addendum B.   
 
Non-citizens claiming eligible status must follow the guidance provided in Addendum B and in 24 CFR to 
prove eligible non-citizen status.   
 
Applicants must be able to provide proof of citizenship or legal immigration status. 
 
Citizenship eligibility must be reviewed after move-in if eligibility status can change.  If any household 
member is determined to be an ineligible non-citizen, either at application or after move-in, assistance 
and/or tenancy may be denied, terminated or prorated as appropriate.  

• Single Residence/Subsidy Criteria 
A household is eligible for assistance only if the unit will be the household’s only residence.  The 
owner/agent will not knowingly assist applicants who will maintain a residence in addition to the HUD-
assisted unit.   
 
Applicants MUST disclose if they are currently receiving HUD housing assistance.  Residents can only 
receive subsidy for one unit/residence at a time.  This prohibition does not prevent a person who is 
currently receiving assistance from applying for an assisted unit in another property.   
 
If, for any reason, an applicant moves in to this property before moving out of another subsidized unit, 
the new resident will be required to pay market rent until the move out from the previous property is 
complete and the resident is eligible to receive HUD subsidy for this property.  Assistance in the new 
unit will begin, if the household is still eligible, the day after assistance ends for the previous unit.   
There is an exception to this rule.  Children in joint custody arrangements can receive HUD housing 
assistance in two units when both parent/guardian families receive HUD housing assistance.  However, 
only one household may use the $480 dependent deduction to determine adjusted income.  In these 
cases, additional verification is required.  The owner/agent will request: 

 
o Verification of the custody/guardianship/living arrangement - Please see Appendix D for additional 

information 
o Verification of the use of the $480 deduction.  The owner/agent will verify use of the $480 

dependent deduction with the other owner/agent if : 
 The child will live in the unit at least 50% of the time and  
 The parent wishes to claim the $480 deduction, and  



(Property Name) Tenant Selection Plan for PBRA / LIHTC Elderly/Disabled Housing 

Page 16  of 60  Pending Public Comment 5/12/2016  

 Both families are receiving HUD housing assistance 
 

All adults will be required to sign the Acknowledgement in Appendix C. 

• Eligibility of Students Enrolled at an Institute for Higher Education  
Student eligibility is determined at move-in/initial certification and at each annual certification.  Student 
eligibility may also be reviewed at interim certification if student status has changed since the last 
certification. All adult students are required to report any change in their student status. A student who 
is otherwise eligible and meets screening requirements is eligible for assistance if the student meets the 
criteria indicated below.  Section 8 assistance shall not be provided to any individual who: 
 
o Is enrolled as either a part-time or full-time student at an institution of higher education for the 

purpose of obtaining a degree, certificate, or other program leading to a recognized educational 
credential; and 

o Is under the age of 24; and 
o Is not married; and 
o Is not a veteran of the United States Military; and 
o Does not have a dependent child; and 
o Is not a person with disabilities, as such term is defined in 3(b)(3)(E) of the United States Housing Act 

of 1937 (42 U.S.C. 1437a(b)(3)(E)) and was not receiving section 8 assistance as of November 30, 
2005; and 

o Is not living with his or her parents who are receiving Section 8 assistance; and 
o Is not individually eligible to receive Section 8 assistance or has parents (the parents individually or 

jointly) who are not income eligible to receive Section 8 assistance.   
 

NOTE:  Unless the student can demonstrate his or her independence from parents, the student must be 
eligible to receive Project Based Rental Assistance (PBRA)and the parents (individually or jointly) must be 
eligible (income eligible) to receive PBRA assistance in order for the student to receive PBRA assistance. 

 
For a student to be eligible independent of his or her parents (where the income of the parents is not 
relevant), the student must demonstrate independence from, parents.  While owner/agents may use 
additional criteria for determining the student’s independence from parents, owner/agents must use, 
and the student must meet, at a minimum all of the following criteria to be eligible for Section 8 
assistance.  The student must: 

 
o Be of legal contract age under state law; 
o Have established a household separate from parents or legal guardians for at least one year prior to 

application for occupancy, or, meet the U.S. Department of Education’s definition of an independent 
student.   

o Not be claimed as a dependent by parents or legal guardians pursuant to IRS regulations; and 
o Obtain a certification of the amount of financial assistance that will be provided by parents, signed 

by the individual providing the support.  This certification is required even if no assistance will be 
provided. 

o If an ineligible student is a member of an existing household receiving Section 8 assistance, the 
assistance for the household will not be prorated but will be terminated  

NOTE:  An owner/agent cannot evict or require an ineligible student to move from a unit as long as the 
student is in compliance with the terms of the lease. 



(Property Name) Tenant Selection Plan for PBRA / LIHTC Elderly/Disabled Housing 

 Page 17  of 60 Pending Approval 5/12/2016 

Any financial assistance a student receives (1) under the Higher Education Act of 1965, (2) from private 
sources, or (3) from an institution of higher education that is in excess of amounts received for tuition 
shall be considered income to that individual, except for: 

 
o A person 24 years of age or older with dependent children as defined by HUD or  
o A person living with his/her parents 

 
The definition of tuition is consistent with the definition provided by the Department of Education and 
includes all mandatory fees associated with being enrolled at that institution of higher education. 

• Additional Tax Credit Eligibility Requirements for Students Enrolled at an Institute of Higher 
Education 
Households composed entirely of full-time students are not eligible for tax credit program unless, they 
meet one of these 5 criteria:   
 
o Married and filing a joint tax return or eligible to file a joint tax return, or  
o Single parent, at least 1 child, neither of whom is a dependent on another person's tax return, 

except for the return of the other parent of the child, or  
o Receiving welfare or TANF, or  
o Participating in job-training program funded through Workforce Investment Act, or 
o Household member was a participant in the foster care program. 

• Prohibition of Assistance to Noncitizen Students   
Noncitizen students and their noncitizen families may not receive assistance.  Noncitizen students are 
not eligible for continuation of assistance or temporary deferral of termination of assistance.  A 
noncitizen student is defined as an individual who is as follows: 
 
o A resident of another country to which the individual intends to return; 
o A bona fide student pursuing a course of study in the United States; and 
o A person admitted to the United States solely for the purpose of pursuing a course of study as 

indicated on an F-1 or M-1 student visa.  
 
This prohibition applies to the noncitizen student’s noncitizen spouse and noncitizen children. However, 
spouses and children who are U.S. citizens may receive assistance.  For example, a family that includes a 
noncitizen student married to a U.S. citizen is a mixed family. 

PROCEDURES FOR TAKING PRE-APPLICATIONS & APPLICATIONS 
It is the owner/agent's policy to accept and process applications in accordance with HUD & IRS guidance.  The 
owner/agent will make a reasonable accommodation to assist in the application process if the applicant or any 
member of the applicant household is disabled.   

PRE-APPLICATIONS 
Applicants will first complete a pre-application to have their name placed on the waiting list for housing at 
[name of property].  Pre-applications can be submitted on the internet at www.austin.apply4housing.com.  The 
owner / agent will also accept the application in an equally effective format, as a reasonable accommodation, if 
there is the presence of a disability. 
 

http://www.austin.apply4housing.com/


(Property Name) Tenant Selection Plan for PBRA / LIHTC Elderly/Disabled Housing 

 Page 18  of 60 Pending Approval 5/12/2016 

Pre-Applications are not accepted at the property site. 
 
The entire pre-application must be completed and submitted before the applicant will be placed on the waiting 
list.  Confirmation of successful submission will be provided by the online application portal if all requirements 
are met.    
 
Due to long waiting lists and depending on the preferences for which an applicant family may qualify, the time 
spent on the waiting list may be anywhere from several months to several years.  While waiting on the waiting 
list, applicants may check the status of their application by creating an account at 
https://austin.ourpha.com/applicants.  In this applicant portal, applicants can update their contact information, 
report changes to their application and check the status of their application.  It is the applicant’s responsibility to 
keep all contact information current. 

• Incomplete Pre-Applications 
Electronic submissions of pre-applications cannot be submitted if they are incomplete.  For pre-
applications accepted by an alternate means, if the pre-application is not complete, the owner/agent 
will attempt to contact the applicant to obtain missing information.  The applicant will have ten (10) 
business days to respond and provide missing information.  If the applicant fails to provide required 
information within the ten (10) day period, the owner/agent will return the application. 

• Preliminary Determination of Applicant Eligibility 
Information needed to determine applicant eligibility shall be obtained, verified, and the determination 
of applicant eligibility performed, in accordance with HUD, IRS and property eligibility requirements.   

 
Upon receipt of the completed pre-application, the owner/agent / agent will make a preliminary 
eligibility determination before adding a household to the waiting list or initiating final eligibility tasks. 
 
The owner/agent will review the pre-application to ensure that there are no obvious factors that would 
make the applicant ineligible.  Obvious factors include, but are not limited to: 
 
• Owing a debt to the Housing Authority of the City of Austin (any property or any program)that is still 

within the 4 year statute of limitations; 
• Having been evicted (or vacated in lieu of eviction) from any HACA program within 5 years for drug 

related activity; 
• Having been evicted (or vacated in lieu of eviction) for any HACA program within 2 years for any 

reason other than drug related activity; 
• Head of household or co-head is currently living at this property; 
• Having been denied admission to this program within the past 12 months for any reason at any 

property owned and administered by the Housing Authority of the City of Austin. 
• Having rejected a housing offer for a unit of the same size at the same property within the last 12 

months. 
 
If an applicant is preliminarily ineligible, the owner/agent / agent will send a notice to the applicant 
indicating that they are not eligible, including the reason(s) why they were determined ineligible and 
stating the family’s rights to appeal the decision.  This action will be completed in agreement with the 
owner / agent’s Grievance and Appeals Policy which is available to the applicant upon request. 
 

https://austin.ourpha.com/applicants


(Property Name) Tenant Selection Plan for PBRA / LIHTC Elderly/Disabled Housing 

 Page 19  of 60 Pending Approval 5/12/2016 

If a preliminary eligibility review indicates that a household is preliminarily eligible for tenancy, but units 
of appropriate size are not available, the owner / agent will place the household on the waiting list for 
the property and notify the household when their name comes to the top of the waiting list. 
 
If an applicant is otherwise eligible but no appropriate unit exists in the property, the owner / agent will 
reject the pre-application. 
 
The owner / agent will notify the applicant family if their pre-application is rejected for any reason.  

APPLICATIONS 
When the applicant family reaches the top of the waiting list, they will receive an invitation by mail to come to 
an eligibility interview.   
 

• Applicant families can receive up to 3 invitations to attend an eligibility interview. 
• If a family does not attend the scheduled appointment, a notice will be sent to the family and their 

name will be withdrawn from the waiting list.  If the family responds within fifteen (15) calendar days of 
the notice and requests to be rescheduled, they will be placed back on the waiting list with their same 
date and time.   

• Once the family misses their third scheduled appointment, they are no longer eligible to be placed back 
on the waiting list.  The family will be required to submit a new application and start the process from 
the beginning. 

 
During the eligibility interview process, the applicant family will complete a full application.  All documents in 
the Application Package must be completed in full, signed and dated in order to be accepted.  All adult 
applicants must complete the application package as instructed.      
 
Upon request, the owner/agent will provide interested parties with a copy of the application package.   
The person who is indicated as the Head-of-Household (HOH) must execute and sign all documents that are 
included in the application package.  Before completing or executing any forms, additional copies should be 
made for all adult household members and in some cases for minors who will live in the unit.   
 
The owner/agent will require applicants to provide several documents as verification and proof of eligibility for 
housing.  These will include: 
 

• A government issued photo ID - used for verifying the identity of all applicants.  A birth certificate or 
other government issued document which includes the applicant’s name and date of birth – used to 
verify the age of all applicant family members. 

• Proof of citizenship – which may include a US birth certificate, US passport or other government issued 
documents demonstrating citizenship. 

• Proof of immigration status (if applicable) -  which may include a permanent resident card, employment 
authorization card, I-94 visa or other government issued document indicating valid immigration status. 

• A Social Security card or any other government issued document including the name and full SSN of all 
applicants. 

• Verification of all sources of income, including (but not limited to) check stubs for employment, SS / SSI 
award letters, VA Pension award letters, TANF award letter, proof of child support and verification of 
asset income. 



(Property Name) Tenant Selection Plan for PBRA / LIHTC Elderly/Disabled Housing 

 Page 20  of 60 Pending Approval 5/12/2016 

FINAL DETERMINATION OF ELIGIBILITY 
Once the applicant family completes the eligibility interview, all eligibility criteria will be reviewed before a final 
eligibility determination is made.  Being eligible, however, does not guarantee that the application will be 
approved.  All adult applicants (and if appropriate minors) will be subject to the certain screening based on 
landlord/rental history, credit history and criminal history.  If the screening process determines that the family 
meets HUD’s and the owner/agent’s standards for admission, the family is found eligible. 

LIVE-IN AIDES 
Please contact the HACA central office Admissions Department if a live-in aide will be moving in to the unit.  If 
the family plans to include a live-in aide, the live-in aide is not required to complete the same application forms.  
Live-in aides must complete the Live-in Aide Questionnaire and participate in screening and other O/A 
verifications that are required.   
 
The live-in aide must meet HUD’s definition of a live-in aide.  The live-in aide has no rights to the unit as a 
remaining family member and must agree to relinquish possession of the unit within a reasonable time if the 
resident is absent for an extended period of time or if the resident leaves for any reason.  The live-in aide will be 
required to sign an acknowledgement the live-in aide has no right of residency or occupancy if the resident is 
absent or if the resident moves out for any reason including death.   

WAITING LISTS  
To ensure that applicants are appropriately and fairly selected for the next available unit (when a unit of the 
appropriate size or type is not available at the time of application), it is essential for the owner/agent to 
maintain waiting lists.  The owner/agent will place the applicant household on the waiting list after preliminary 
eligibility determination is complete. 
 
Applicants will have the option of specifying a desired unit size or multiple unit sizes when completing the 
application. The applicant will be placed on the waiting list for all indicated unit sizes/types as long as:  

• The applicant household meets the Occupancy Standards described in this plan, and  
• The waiting list for the unit size is open   

 
The applicant (Head-of-Household (HOH) will be contacted, based on the waiting list selection criteria, for the 
first unit that becomes available based on the selection guidelines described in this plan. 
 
Families can select the option to be placed on the waiting list for multiple unit sizes at the same property.  If the 
family is determined to be eligible and accepts a unit offer, at that time they will be removed from the other 
bedroom size waiting lists for that property.    

MAINTAINING WAITING LISTS   
It is the policy of the owner/agent to administer its waiting list as required by HUD handbooks and IRS tax credit 
regulations.  The owner/agent will update the waiting list by removing the names of applicants  
who are no longer interested in or no longer qualify for the PBRA and/or LIHTC program. 
 
On a regular basis, as determined by the owner/agent considering the length of the waiting list, the 
owner/agent will contact each applicant household by mail, using the address provided on the pre-application.  
Applicants are responsible for updating their application with any changes in address.  The Head-of-Household 
(HOH) will be the only person contacted unless otherwise requested.  
  



(Property Name) Tenant Selection Plan for PBRA / LIHTC Elderly/Disabled Housing 

 Page 21  of 60 Pending Approval 5/12/2016 

If this letter is unable to be delivered by the United States Postal Service, the application will be rejected and the 
household will be removed from the waiting list.   
 
If the Head-of-Household (HOH) fails to respond to the owner/agent inquiries regarding the desire to remain on 
the waiting list, the application will be rejected and the household will be removed from the waiting list. 
 
In addition, an adult member of the applicant household must contact the Admissions Department, in writing, if 
household information changes (i.e. number of household members, number of future household members, 
criminal history, income, etc.).  If the household size or composition changes, the owner/agent will: 
 

• Update the waiting list information and  
• Decide whether the household needs the same or a different unit   

 
If, as a result of the household composition change, it is determined that the household will be on the waiting 
list for a different unit than originally indicated, the household will maintain their place on the waiting list for the 
new unit.  If the waiting list is currently closed for the appropriate unit size, the application will be rejected and 
the household will be removed from the waiting list.  If there are no units of the appropriate size on the 
property, the household will be rejected and will be removed from the waiting list.   

REMOVAL OF APPLICANTS FROM THE WAITING LIST 
The owner will remove an applicant's name from the waiting list when if any of the following apply: 
   

• Applicant requests that the household name be removed  
• The unit that is needed – using household size as the basis – has changed, and no appropriate size/type 

unit exists in the property 
• The unit that is needed – using household size as the basis – has changed, and the waiting list is closed 

for that unit size/type 
• Applicant fails to meet eligibility requirements 
• Applicant fails to meet occupancy standards  
• Applicant fails to meet screening requirements 
• Applicant is rejected for any reason described in this plan 
• Applicant cannot be contacted by US Mail (letters are returned or undeliverable) Applicant fails to keep 

application information up to date based on the requirements described in this plan  
• Applicant was clearly advised, in writing, of the requirement to tell owner/agent of his/her continued 

interest in housing by a particular time and failed to do so  
• Applicant refused offer of a unit (See Right to Refusal Policy for additional information.) 

 
If an applicant is removed from the waiting list, and subsequently the owner/agent determines that an error was 
made in removing the applicant, the applicant will be reinstated at the original place on the waiting list. 
 
If an applicant is removed from the waiting list and later, the applicant household feels that they are now 
qualified for assistance/tenancy, the applicant household must submit a new application.  The applicant will be 
place on the waiting list, as necessary, based on the submission date and time of the new application. 
 
There are certain situations when the owner/agent may refuse to accept an application.  The owner/agent will 
not accept pre-applications from individuals or families who:  
 



(Property Name) Tenant Selection Plan for PBRA / LIHTC Elderly/Disabled Housing 

 Page 22  of 60 Pending Approval 5/12/2016 

• Were denied admission to any of HACA’s housing programs within the last 12 months because of 
criminal history, derogatory rental history, unreported income or fraud. 

• Owe a move out balance or debt to HACA for previous tenancy in any of HACA’s housing programs that 
is not barred by the statute of limitations.  There is a four year statute of limitations which ends the 
latter of: 
o Four years from the date the debt became delinquent; or 
o Four years from the date the final payment would have been do if the applicant signed a repayment 

agreement.  
• Has been evicted or moved out in lieu of eviction from another property managed or owned by the 

owner/agent, or from the Public Housing or Housing Choice Voucher programs within the past two years 
for any reason other than drug related. 

• Has been evicted or moved out in lieu of eviction from a federally assisted property or program for drug 
related reasons in the last five years 

• Are currently housed at this property (Does not apply to adults that are not the head of household, co-
head or spouse.) 

• Voluntarily moved out of HACA’s Public Housing or [name of property] within the last 12 months. 
• Rejected a housing offer at the same property within the past year. 

 
In addition, if an applicant previously accepted a unit offered by the owner/agent and the applicant failed to 
take possession of the unit on the agreed upon date without notice to the owner/agent, the owner/agent 
reserves the right to refuse all future applications.   

SELECTING APPLICANTS FROM THE WAITING LIST 
When an applicant family reaches the top of the waiting list, they will be invited in to the HACA Central Office 
Admissions Department to complete an eligibility interview.  Once the family has been certified eligible, they will 
wait for the next unit to become available.   
 
The owner/agent will contact the next certified eligible household based on the selection criteria described in 
this plan and make a housing offer to the family.  No decisions to offer the unit shall be made until all 
information presented by the applicant has been verified and the final eligibility determination is complete. 

• Income Targeting (PBRA Only) 
Based on the HUD contract for this property, the owner/agent is required to comply with the Income 
Targeting Requirement.  Income Targeting requires that the owner/agent implement policies to ensure 
that, during the property fiscal year, 40% of all households that move in to the property or who begin 
receiving assistance fall within the Extremely Low Income Limits for the area where the property is 
located.   
 
At this time, no special selection methods are required to meet the Income Targeting requirements.   
The owner/agent is required to monitor compliance throughout the year.   If, after periodic review, the 
owner/agent discovers that the Income Targeting Requirement will not be attained, the owner/agent 
will only select, in order, those applicants whose income falls within the extremely-low income levels.   
Once the Income Targeting Requirement is met, the owner/agent will return to the “natural” selection 
order.    



(Property Name) Tenant Selection Plan for PBRA / LIHTC Elderly/Disabled Housing 

 Page 23  of 60 Pending Approval 5/12/2016 

PREFERENCES (PBRA ONLY) 
Applicants with preferences are selected from the waiting list and receive an opportunity for an available unit 
earlier than those who do not have a preference.   
 
Assigning preferences to applicants who meet certain criteria is a method intended to provide housing 
opportunities to applicants based upon household circumstances.  
 
Preferences affect only the order applicants are selected from the waiting list.  They do not make anyone eligible 
who was not otherwise eligible.  Preferences are not permitted if they, in any way, interfere with affirmative 
marketing efforts or fair housing requirements.   

• Owner/agent-Adopted Preferences  
Unit Transfer Preference:  Residents who have submitted a Unit Transfer Request and who are deemed 
eligible for the transfer are given preference on the waiting list. This means that a resident transferring 
from one unit to another will be offered a unit before an applicant.  Unit transfers (on-property) will be 
weighted and offered in the following order: 
 

o Emergency / Safety 
o Reasonable Accommodation Request 
o Over Housed 
o Under Housed 
o Make an Accessible Unit Available 

• HUD Approved Preference 
Preference for Elderly or Near-Elderly Head of Household, Spouse or Co-Head (Elderly / Near-Elderly):  
Existing applicants or new applicants will be offered the opportunity to claim that they qualify as an 
Elderly or Near-Elderly household.  To qualify for this preference, the applicant family must be either: 

o Near-Elderly:  Head of household, spouse or co-head is age 55 or older; or 
o Elderly:  Head of household, spouse or co-head is age 62 or older. 

Such status will be verified, and when such verification is complete, applicant families will be added to 
the waiting list with the Elderly / Near-Elderly preference. 
 
Preference for Families that have been Involuntarily Displaced by Natural Disaster or Government 
Action (Involuntarily Displaced):  Existing applicants or new applicants will be offered the opportunity 
to claim that they have been involuntarily displaced within six months of claiming the preference.  Such 
status will be verified, and when such verification is complete, applicant families will be added to the 
waiting list with an involuntarily displaced preference. 
 
Examples of involuntary displacement include, but are not limited to, displacement due to hurricane, 
tornado, flood, fire, or the exercise of eminent domain. 
 
Documentation of eligibility for this preference is required.  Sufficient documentation includes: 
 
o Documents from FEMA, the State of Texas, the City of Austin or any other government agency 

indicating the destruction (or no longer livable status) of the applicant’s residence due to natural 
disaster or government action within the previous 6 months. 



(Property Name) Tenant Selection Plan for PBRA / LIHTC Elderly/Disabled Housing 

 Page 24  of 60 Pending Approval 5/12/2016 

o Documents from the Red Cross or other disaster support agency indicating that the applicant’s 
residence has been destroyed or is no longer habitable due to natural disaster or government 
action. 

 
Preference for Disabled Head of Household, Disabled Spouse or Disabled Co-head (Disability):  Existing 
applicants and new applicants will be offered the opportunity to disclose the disability status of the 
head of household, spouse or co-head.  Such status will be verified, and when such verification is 
complete, the applicant family will be added to the waiting list with a disability preference 
 
Proof of disability will be required to receive this preference.  Sufficient documentation includes: 
 
o A Social Security  award letter,, SSI award letter, or Social Security Disability award letter indicating 

that the applicant is disabled; or 
o Verification by a qualified medical professional indicating that the applicant meets the HUD 

definition of disability.  This verification will be sent by the HACA Admissions Department staff to the 
qualified medical professional identified by the applicant and will be accompanied by a release of 
information and consent signed by the applicant.  

• Preference Weights 
The owner/agent will apply different weights to each preference.  The heavier the weight, the higher the 
applicant will move up on the waiting list.  Applicant families are limited to one preference per 
household.  If the family qualifies for more than one preference, the preference with the heaviest 
weight will be applied.  The weights for each preference are as follows: 
 

o 3     Elderly / Near-Elderly 
o 2     Involuntarily Displaced 
o 1     Disability 

• Verification of Preferences    
All preferences will be verified using the verification methodology described in this resident selection 
plan. This verification will be conducted at the time of the eligibility interview. 

• When a Request for Preference is Denied 
If it is determined that an applicant does not meet the criteria for receiving a preference, the applicant 
will receive written notice of this determination within ten (10) business days.   
 
The notice will contain the reasons for the determination.  The applicant has the right to appeal the 
decision.  All requests for appeal must be received within fifteen (15) calendar days from the date of 
notification of denial.  See the full appeals process located in this tenant selection plan.   

• Change in Preference Status While on the Waiting List 
Occasionally households on the waiting list who did not qualify for a preference when they applied will 
experience a change in circumstances that qualifies them for a preference.  In such cases, it is the 
responsibility of the applicant to contact the owner/agent so that their change in status may be verified 
and the waiting list can be updated to reflect the preference as appropriate. 
 



(Property Name) Tenant Selection Plan for PBRA / LIHTC Elderly/Disabled Housing 

 Page 25  of 60 Pending Approval 5/12/2016 

To the extent the verification determines the household does now qualify for a preference, they will be 
selected from the waiting list in accordance with the preference and the date the application was 
received.   

• Exceptions to the Preference Rule 
Management must give priority to current residents: 

 
o Residing in a unit that has been determined uninhabitable due to flood, fire or other natural disaster 
o When a unit is designated for rehabilitation or repair 

 
These situations represent extenuating circumstances and the normal selection order may be adjusted 
to address the needs of these residents. 

OPENING AND CLOSING WAITING LIST 
In order to ensure that applicants on the waiting list are processed in a reasonable amount of time, the 
owner/agent may stop accepting applications and close waiting lists in whole or in part.  Decisions about closing 
and opening the waiting list will be based on the number of applications available for a particular size and type 
of apartment and the ability of the owner/agent to house an applicant in an appropriate apartment within a 
reasonable period of time.  
 
On a regular basis, the owner/agent will review the number of families on the waiting list to determine whether 
the waiting list may be closed.  If the owner/agent has sufficient applications, the waiting list may be closed 
completely.  Notices announcing that the waiting list is closed or open will be publicly announced in the 
following manner: 
 

• Local newspapers 
• Publications described in the Affirmative Fair Housing Marketing Plan (AFHMP) 
• Flyers distributed through Social Service agencies described in the AFHMP 

 
Interested parties who insist on submitting applications when the waiting list is closed will not be considered.  
The application will not be reviewed and will be returned. 
 
During the period when the waiting list is closed, the owner/agent will not maintain a list of individuals who 
wish to be notified when the waiting list is reopened.   

PRIVACY POLICY 
It is the policy of the owner/agent to guard the privacy of individuals conferred by the Federal Privacy Act of 
1974 and to ensure the protection of such individuals' records maintained by the owner/agent.   
 
Neither the property owner/agent nor its agents shall disclose any personal information contained in its records 
to any person or agency, other than HUD, its Contract Administrators or other federal/state entity or investor 
auditing entities, unless the individual about whom information is requested gives written consent to such 
disclosure.  Such consent may be provided in an equally effective manner, as a reasonable accommodation, 
when there is the presence of a disability. 
 
This Privacy Policy in no way limits the owner/agent's ability to collect such information to determine eligibility, 
compute rent, or determine an applicant's suitability for tenancy.   



(Property Name) Tenant Selection Plan for PBRA / LIHTC Elderly/Disabled Housing 

 Page 26  of 60 Pending Approval 5/12/2016 

VERIFICATION 
The owner/agent shall obtain verifications in compliance with requirements set forth by the Department of 
Housing and Urban Development.  After the preliminary eligibility determination, no decision to approve an 
application shall be made until information provided on the application form and during subsequent interviews 
has been collected and any necessary follow-up interviews have been performed.  All information relative to the 
following items must be verified as described in these procedures: 

INFORMATION TO BE VERIFIED  
Information to be verified includes, but is not limited to: 
 

• Eligibility for Admission, such as 
o Income 
o Assets And Asset Income 
o Identification 
o Age 
o Household Composition 
o Social Security Numbers  
o Citizenship And/or Legal Status 
o Student Status 
o Current HUD Assistance 

• Allowances, such as 
o Age 
o Disability 
o Full Time Student Status 
o Child Care Expenses 
o Disability Assistance Expenses 
o Medical Expenses (For Elderly/Disabled Households Only) 

• Preferences 
o Elderly / Non-Elderly status 
o Involuntarily Displaced status 
o Disability status 

• Compliance with Resident Screening Guidelines, such as 
o Criminal History 
o Credit History  
o Rental/Residence History 

• The Need for an Accessible Unit 

METHODS OF VERIFICATION  
Verifications will be attempted in the following order: 
 

• Enterprise Income Verification (EIV) – For PBRA Only 
• Upfront Income Verification (UIV) 
• Applicant provided third-party documents (i.e. check stubs, award letters, etc) 
• Third-party form verification  (as appropriate) 
• Third-party oral verification (if available) 



(Property Name) Tenant Selection Plan for PBRA / LIHTC Elderly/Disabled Housing 

 Page 27  of 60 Pending Approval 5/12/2016 

• In the absence of any of the above, notarized or witnessed statements from the household.  Each file 
will be documented, when appropriate, to show that staff attempted to obtain third-party verification 
before relying on family self-certification. 

SOURCES OF INFORMATION  
Sources of information may include, but are not limited to: 
 

• Any member of the applicant household 
• Present and former housing providers/landlords 
• Present and former employers 
• Banks 
• Insurance Companies 
• Any Asset Manager 
• Family members 
• Any person or organization providing gifts/regular contributions to the household 
• Credit Screening providers 
• Criminal Screening providers 
• Eviction Screening providers 
• Social workers/Parole Officers 
• Court records 
• Drug Treatment Centers 
• Health Providers 
• Physicians 
• Clergy 
• Schools/Institutes of Higher Education 
• Department of Homeland Security (DHS) 
• Department of Health and Human Services (HHS) 
• The Internal Revenue Service (IRS) 
• The Social Security Administration (SSA) 
• Medicare/Medicaid 
• Representative of the United States Armed Forces 
• Any federal/local benefit providers 
• Pharmacies 
• Utility Providers 
• Local and non-local law enforcement 
• Automated criminal databases 
• Sexual Offenders registries when available 
• The world wide web (internet) 
• HUD’s EIV system (For PBRA Only) 

 
The owner/agent will be the final judge of the credibility of any verification submitted by an applicant.  If the 
owner/agent questions the validity of a document or the validity of information provided, it will be reviewed by 
management staff for a ruling regarding acceptability.   



(Property Name) Tenant Selection Plan for PBRA / LIHTC Elderly/Disabled Housing 

 Page 28  of 60 Pending Approval 5/12/2016 

PERIOD FOR VERIFICATION 
Only verified information that is less than 120 days old may be used for verification.  Verified information not 
subject to change (such as a person's date of birth) will not be re-verified. 

CONSENT AND VERIFICATION FORMS 
Regardless of age, the Head-of-Household (HOH), the co-Head-of-Household (HOH) the spouse of the Head-of-
Household (HOH) and all adult members of a household must sign HUD’s consent forms so that the owner/agent 
can verify eligibility.   
 

• HUD-9887, Notice and Consent for the Release of Information to HUD and to a PHA 
• HUD-9887-A, Applicant’s/Resident’s Consent to the Release of Information Verification by Owner/agents 

of Information Supplied by Individuals Who Apply for Housing Assistance 
 
Consent and verification forms protect the rights and privacy of residents and applicants by allowing them to 
have control over any information collected about them.  
 
All adult members of an applicant or resident household must also sign individual verification forms authorizing 
the owner/agent to verify household income and applicable eligibility factors (e.g., disability status) and to allow 
for screening.  
 
When a minor living in the unit turns 18, he/she will have thirty (30) days to communicate with the management 
staff and sign appropriate forms.  Failure to do so will result in termination of subsidy for the entire household. 

PROVISIONS FOR REFUSAL TO SIGN  
If any member of the applicant’s household does not sign and submit the consent forms as required, the 
owner/agent must reject the application and deny assistance and/or tenancy. 

MISREPRESENTATION 
Any information, provided by the applicant that proves to be untrue may be used to disqualify the applicant 
because of misrepresentation or attempted fraud.  The owner/agent will not take any action to reduce or deny 
assistance based on inconsistent information received during the verification process until the owner/agent has 
independently investigated the information.   
 
The owner/agent considers false information about the following to be grounds for rejecting an applicant: 
 

• Identity 
• Social Security Numbers/Information 
• Income 
• Assets/Income From Assets 
• Household Composition 
• Disability 
• Birth Date/Age 
• Citizenship, Naturalization, And/or Eligible Immigration Status 
• Eviction History 
• Criminal History 
• Sexual Offender Status 
• Eligibility For Preferences and Priorities 



(Property Name) Tenant Selection Plan for PBRA / LIHTC Elderly/Disabled Housing 

 Page 29  of 60 Pending Approval 5/12/2016 

• Allowances 
• Current/Previous Residence History  
• Current Housing Assistance 
• Status As A Student 

 
Unintentional errors that do not cause preferential treatment will not be used as a basis to reject applicants. 

APPLICANT SCREENING CRITERIA 
Screening is performed in a manner that is reasonable, consistent, and complies with fair housing laws. 
Screening is used to help ensure that households admitted to a property will abide by the terms of the lease, pay 
rent on time, take care of the property and unit, and allow all residents to peacefully enjoy their homes.   
 
Anyone who wishes to live on the property must be screened prior to moving in.  This includes, but is not limited 
to, live-in aides, security/police officers or additional household members wishing to move-in after the initial 
move-in.  Certain exceptions apply to children/minors.  The current screening guidelines in place at the time the 
new household member applies will be used to determine eligibility for admission.    

SCREENING FOR DRUG ABUSE AND OTHER CRIMINAL ACTIVITY 
 HUD has established standards that prohibit admission of: 
 

• Any household in which any member was evicted in the last three years from federally assisted housing 
for drug-related criminal activity   

• Any household in which any member was engaged in the production of methamphetamine 
• *A household in which any member is currently engaged in illegal use of drugs or for which the  

owner/agent has reasonable cause to believe that a member’s illegal use or pattern of illegal use of a 
drug may interfere with the health, safety, and right to peaceful enjoyment of the property by other 
residents 

• Any household member who is subject to any state lifetime sex offender registration requirement  
• Any household member if there is reasonable cause to believe that member’s behavior, from abuse or 

pattern of abuse of alcohol, may interfere with the health, safety, and right to peaceful enjoyment by 
other residents.  The screening standards must be based on behavior, not the condition of alcoholism or 
alcohol abuse 

 
NOTE*”Currently engaged in” is defined as any use of illegal drugs during the previous six months.   

 
In addition to HUD requirements, the owner/agent has established a policy to reject all applications where the 
applicant or any household member has engaged in criminal activity as described in this document.   
 
The owner/agent will reject applications if any household member’s criminal history includes one or more of the 
following: 
 

• Sex Offender Registration:  Applicant, or any member of the applicant family, is or ever has been subject 
to registration under a state sex offender registration program 

• Record of any conviction or adjudication, other than acquittal, of the following felonies by any 
household member, regardless of when it happened:  
o Capital Murder 
o Murder / Manslaughter 



(Property Name) Tenant Selection Plan for PBRA / LIHTC Elderly/Disabled Housing 

 Page 30  of 60 Pending Approval 5/12/2016 

o Arson 
o Kidnapping 
o Child Molestation 
o Treason 
o Rape or Crimes of a Sexual Nature 
o Incest  
o Crimes involving explosives 
o Crimes involving terrorism 
o Gross Lewdness  

 
• If any household member is currently engaged in, or has engaged in any of the following criminal 

activities, within the past four years, the family will be denied admission:  
o Drug-related criminal activity, defined by HUD as the illegal manufacture, sale, distribution or use of 

a drug or the possession of a drug with intent to manufacture, sell, distribute or use the drug [24 
CFR 5.100].   

o Violent criminal activity, defined by HUD as any criminal activity that has as one of its elements the 
use, attempted use or threatened use of physical force substantial enough to cause, or be 
reasonably likely to cause, serious bodily injury or property damage [24 CFR 5.100].  

o Criminal activity that may threaten the health, safety or welfare of other tenants [24 CFR 
960.203(c)(3)].  

o Illegal possession/discharge/display/carrying of firearm or illegal weapon/ deadly weapon.  
o Assault, aggravated assault, assault by threat, stalking.  
o Physical violence to persons or property, or criminal activity that has as one of its elements the use, 

attempted use or threatened use of physical force against the person or property of another. 
o Criminal activity that may threaten the health or safety of HACA staff, contractors, subcontractors or 

agents. 
o Three or more convictions of alcohol-related criminal activity, including Driving under the Influence 

and Public Intoxication.  
o Burglary of a Habitation.  
o If any household member is currently engaged in, or has engaged in any of the following criminal 

activities, within the past three years, the family will be denied admission:  
• A pattern of abuse of alcohol, including, but not limited to, public intoxication and 

driving while intoxicated.  
•  A pattern of fraud committed against a governmental entity.  
• A pattern of theft or fraud.  
• A pattern of organized criminal activity.  
• A pattern of prostitution.  

 
A pattern (for the purposes listed above) consists of three or more incidences, with a minimum of one incident 
occurring within the past three years.  The owner/agent will not use arrest records as the sole basis for denying 
admission to the program.  
 
If a resident or applicant has requested VAWA protections and such protections have been justified based on 
owner/agent investigation, the abuser/perpetrator will not be approved to live on the property. 
  
If the owner/agent is unable to complete required criminal or sexual offender screening, the application will be 
rejected.  If the owner/agent determines that a sex offender is part of the household, the owner/agent will 



(Property Name) Tenant Selection Plan for PBRA / LIHTC Elderly/Disabled Housing 

 Page 31  of 60 Pending Approval 5/12/2016 

allow the household to remove the sex offender from the application.  Removal must be documented using the 
change of address receipt from the Texas Department of Sex Offender Registration. 
The household will have five (5) business days to provide verification that the household member has alternative 
housing or that the household member has applied for alternative housing.  Failure to provide such 
documentation will result in rejection of the application for all household members. 
 
The owner/agent reserves the right to monitor household composition after move-in.  If the owner/agent 
discovers that a sex offender has moved in to the unit, assistance will be terminated and the household will be 
evicted in accordance with HUD requirements.  Any assistance paid-in-error must be returned to HUD. 
 
United States Code Title 8, subsection 1324(a)(1)(A) prohibits the harboring of illegal aliens. The provision of 
housing to illegal aliens is a fundamental component of harboring.  All applicants will be required to provide 
proof of citizenship or legal immigration status. 
 
If criminal screening indicates that the applicant has an unacceptable criminal history, the owner/agent will 
reject the applicant in accordance with HUD guidance and the owner/agent’s standards for applicant rejection.   

• Consideration of Extenuating Circumstances 
In deciding whether to exercise discretion to admit an individual who has engaged in prohibited criminal 
activity, the owner/agent will consider all of the circumstances relevant to the particular admission 
decision, including but not limited to: the seriousness of the offending action; the effect that denial of 
the entire household would have on family members not involved in the criminal activity; and the extent 
to which the applicant has taken all reasonable steps to prevent or mitigate the criminal activity.  
 
Additionally, when specifically considering whether to deny admission for illegal drug use by a 
household member who is no longer engaged in such activity, the owner/agent will consider whether 
the household member is participating in or has successfully completed a drug rehabilitation program, 
or has otherwise been rehabilitated successfully.   

• Criminal Screening Discoveries 
If the criminal background investigation indicates that the applicant does not meet the criminal 
screening criteria, the owner/agent will reject the applicant in accordance with HUD guidance and the 
owner/agent’s standards for applicant rejection. Before rejecting the household, the owner/agent will 
compare the information provided by the applicant with the criminal history report.  If the information 
conflicts, the owner/agent will: 
 
o Notify the household of the proposed action based on the information; 
o Provide a copy of the criminal history report; 
o Provide the applicant with an opportunity to dispute the accuracy and relevance of the information 

obtained from any law enforcement agency; 
o Allow the household the opportunity to remove the household member. 
 
In this situation, applicants will have seven (7) business days to resolve the discrepancy.  If the applicant 
fails to contact the owner/agent or indicates that he/she cannot provide documentation to refute the 
criminal discovery, the owner/agent will reject the application and remove the household from the 
waiting list.  The owner/agent will notify the applicant family of the rejection in writing.  The family will 
have the opportunity to request an appeal of the denial according to the terms of the grievance policy 
within this tenant selection plan. 



(Property Name) Tenant Selection Plan for PBRA / LIHTC Elderly/Disabled Housing 

 Page 32  of 60 Pending Approval 5/12/2016 

If, after move-in, the owner/agent discovers that there was criminal history that would have resulted in 
rejection, the owner/agent will contact the resident to ascertain the accuracy of the criminal report.  If 
the resident would have been rejected had the information been know at the time of the eligibility 
determination, the owner/agent will take appropriate action including notifying HUD’s Office of the 
Inspector General of potential fraud and pursuing termination of tenancy (eviction).   

SCREENING FOR CREDIT HISTORY 
The owner/agent reviews each adult applicant’s credit history.  The owner/agent does not consider medical 
bills/expenses, credit score, or the lack of credit history when reviewing credit history.   
 
Credit history will be reviewed to determine the following: 
 

• If there is any debt owed to a prior landlord or HUD’ 
• If there are any evictions that have not been reported; 
• If there are any other housing related judgments against the applicant. 

 
Applicants will be rejected in the following situations: 
 

• The family owes a debt to a federally assisted housing program which has not been repaid and the 
family has not established a repayment agreement. 

• The family has a pattern of debts owed to housing and residential programs within the past two (2) 
years. 

 
If the applicant has no credit history, the credit screening will be considered “positive.” 

SCREENING FOR ABILITY TO ESTABLISH UTILITY SERVICE 
The owner/agent will also screen applicant households for the ability to establish utility services in the name of 
at least one adult family member.  All adult applicants will be required to sign the consent for Release of 
Information from Austin Energy.   
 
Applicant households which do not have any adult members able to establish service with Austin Energy will be 
given 7 days to resolve the issue with Austin Energy.  If the household is unable to do so, the application will be 
rejected. 

SCREENING RENTAL HISTORY   
If any member of the applicant household has been evicted from any property owned or managed by the 
Housing Authority of the City of Austin for lease violations within the last two years, that applicant household 
will be rejected.     
 
The owner/agent will review rental history with any landlord indicated in the past two (2) years.  The 
owner/agent will also review information provided through automated databases including eviction databases 
The application will be rejected for any of the following: 
 

• The family has been evicted from federally assisted housing within the past 2 years; 
• The family has a pattern of disturbance of neighbors, destruction of property or living or housekeeping 

habits at prior residences within the past two years which may adversely affect the health, safety or 
welfare of other tenants.  



(Property Name) Tenant Selection Plan for PBRA / LIHTC Elderly/Disabled Housing 

 Page 33  of 60 Pending Approval 5/12/2016 

• The family has a pattern of eviction from housing or termination from residential programs within the 
past five years (considering relevant circumstances). 

 
If the applicant fails to identify one or more residences where he/she lived in the last two (2) years, the applicant 
will be rejected and the household will be removed from the waiting list. 
 
The owner/agent will contact the prior property owner/agent (as indicated above) and inquire about the 
following information:   
 

• Adherence to the Lease & Community Policies 
• Compliance with certification reporting requirements 
• Rental Payment Performance 
• Compliance with requirements to fully and accurately disclose income information in a timely manner 
• Requirement to Return Assistance Paid in Error due to under-reporting income or un-reported income 
• Unit Maintenance/Damage 
• Record of Disturbing Neighbors 
• Complaints  

 
If information obtained is negative the applicant will be rejected. Negative responses include but are not limited 
to: 
 

• A pattern of failure to comply with the lease 
• A pattern of failure to comply with House Rules, Pet Rules or Assistance Animal Rules 
• Failure to fully and accurately report income, new employment or changes in household composition in 

a timely manner 
• Providing false information 
• Attempting to receive or receiving HUD assistance in multiple units/homes 
• Slow or no response to requests to recertify 
• Poor rental payment history (average more than two (2) late payments per year, record of bounced 

checks, any outstanding balance) 
• A pattern of poor unit maintenance or damage to the unit beyond normal wear-and-tear 
• Complaints from neighbors regarding actions that directly affect the peace and quiet comfort of others 

living in the community  
• Record of actions that interfered with or prevented the previous landlord from effectively managing the 

property.   
• A pattern of outstanding balances owed by any household member to a prior landlord 

 
If the applicant has no landlord history, the landlord screening will be considered “positive”. 

SCREENING FOR RECEIPT OF HUD ASSISTANCE IN ANOTHER UNIT (PBRA ONLY) 
All applicants must disclose if they are currently receiving HUD housing assistance. The owner/agent will not 
knowingly assist applicants who will maintain a residence in addition to the HUD-assisted unit on this property.  
HUD provides the owner/agent with information about an applicant’s current status as a HUD housing 
assistance recipient.  
 



(Property Name) Tenant Selection Plan for PBRA / LIHTC Elderly/Disabled Housing 

 Page 34  of 60 Pending Approval 5/12/2016 

The owner/agent will use the Existing Tenant Report provided via HUD’s Enterprise Income Verification System 
(EIV) to determine if the applicant or any member of the applicant household is currently receiving HUD housing 
assistance.  This applies to all household members and to new members of an existing household, including 
minors, foster children/adults, and live-in aides.   
 
Nothing prohibits a HUD housing assistance recipient from applying to this property. However, the applicant 
must move out of the current property and/or forfeit any voucher before HUD assistance on this property will 
begin.  Special consideration applies to: 
 

• Minor children where two assisted families share custody 
• Recipients of HUD assistance in another unit who are moving to establish a new household when other 

family/household members will remain in the original unit (Split household/Swap household) 
 
If the owner/agent discovers a discrepancy between the information on the application and the information 
provided by EIV, the applicant will be notified and will have 5 business days to respond to the inquiry.    
 
If an applicant fails to fully and accurately disclose receipt of HUD assistance or rental history, the application 
will be rejected and the applicant and all members of the applicant household will be removed from the waiting 
list. 
  
If any household member receives or attempts to receive HUD housing assistance while receiving HUD housing 
assistance on this property, the household member will be required to reimburse HUD for assistance paid in 
error. This is considered a material lease violation and may result in penalties up to and including eviction and 
pursuit of fraud charges.   

REJECTING INELIGIBLE OR UNQUALIFIED APPLICANTS 
The owner/agent reserves the right to reject applicants for admission based on any of the following: 
 

• No unit of the appropriate size exists on the property 
• The household fails to meet the HUD indicated eligibility requirements for the assistance 

program/property 
• Any non-exempt member of the household fails to provide a Social Security Number or adequate 

documentation to verify the Social Security Number (SSN)  
• Any member of the household fails to meet the applicant screening requirements 
• Any member of the household fails to sign appropriate verification documents 
• Misrepresentation 
• Fraud 
• Any member of the household fails to respond to management inquiries for additional information 

during the application process 
• The owner/agent is unable to contact the applicant via US Mail (letters undeliverable or returned) 

and/or by phone (number disconnected or changed) 
• Any member of the household has a record of eviction, for lease violations, from any property managed 

by the owner/agent or HACA 
• Any member of the household has a pattern of eviction, for lease violations, from any property within 

the last two years 
• There is pattern of outstanding or overdue payments to a previous landlord 
• There is record of outstanding or overdue payments to HUD  



(Property Name) Tenant Selection Plan for PBRA / LIHTC Elderly/Disabled Housing 

 Page 35  of 60 Pending Approval 5/12/2016 

• The household is unable to establish utilities in the new unit 
• The household is unable to pay the security deposit required 
• The household is unable to take possession of the unit within the timeframes outlined in this plan 
• The household is unable to pay the first month’s rent (TTP) 
• The household does not have a need for an accessible unit and refuses one offer 

REJECTION NOTICES   
The owner/agent will promptly notify the household (Head-of-Household (HOH)), in writing, of the denial of 
admission or assistance.  A rejection letter will be sent to the Head-of-Household via First Class Mail.  The 
rejection letter will include the reason(s) for the rejection. 

APPEALING THE DECISION TO REJECT   
Any applicant may make a request to appeal the denial in writing within fifteen (15) calendar days from the 
date of the rejection.  The owner/agent will accept the request in an equally effective manner, as a reasonable 
accommodation, if there is the presence of a disability.  Such requests are to be submitted to the Admissions 
Department in HACA’s central office building.  If there is no appeal request within fifteen (15) days, the 
rejection will be considered final. Reasons to appeal include: 
 

• The applicant believes the decision has been made in error 
• The applicant believes there are extenuating circumstances that should be considered 
• The applicant or a member of the applicant’s household is a victim of abuse covered by the Violence 

Against Women Act and the applicant feels the applicant’s status as a victim contributes to the decision 
to deny 

• The applicant or a member of the applicant’s household is a person with a disability, and the applicant 
believes a reasonable accommodation would allow the owner/agent to continue processing the 
application 

• The applicant’s household was rejected because the application includes someone who is a registered 
sex offender and the applicant wishes to remove that household member 

 
Any staff person engaged in the initial review will not be involved in the appeal.  HACA’s designated hearing 
officer will conduct the informal review.   
 
Applicants may bring a representative to assist in the appeal meeting.  Applicants and/or their representatives 
have the right to request a reasonable accommodation to: 
  

• Assist in facilitating your request for appeal  
• To assist in your participation during the appeal meeting  

 
The hearing officer will provide written notification of a final decision within ten (10) business days of the 
informal review. 
 
For complete details about the appeals process, see the Grievance and Appeals Policy.  This policy is available 
upon request. 

 



(Property Name) Tenant Selection Plan for PBRA / LIHTC Elderly/Disabled Housing 

 Page 36  of 60 Pending Approval 5/12/2016 

INFORMAL HEARINGS FOR PBRA APPLICANTS 
Through PIH Notice 2012-32 Rev. 2, HUD provided guidance that the grievance procedures afforded to families 
living in Conventional Public Housing before conversion through RAD to Project Based Rental  
Assistance (PBRA) must be continued after the conversion.  Below is the full account of all grievance procedures 
for applicants to the PBRA property. 
 
When the owner/agent makes a decision that has a negative impact on an applicant family, the family is often 
entitled to appeal the decision. For applicants, the appeal takes the form of an informal hearing. HUD 
regulations do not provide a structure for or requirements regarding informal hearings for applicants (except 
with regard to citizenship status, to be covered in Part II). This part discusses the owner/agent’s policies 
necessary to respond to applicant appeals through the informal hearing process. 

INFORMAL HEARING PROCESS [24 CFR 960.208(A) AND PH OCC GB, P. 58] 
Informal hearings are provided for PBRA applicants. An applicant is someone who has applied for admission to 
the PBRA program, but is not yet a resident in the program. Informal hearings are intended to provide a means 
for an applicant to dispute a determination of ineligibility for admission to a project [24 CFR 960.208(a)]. 
Applicants to PBRA are not entitled to the same hearing process afforded residents in the owner/agent 
grievance procedure [24 CFR 966.53(a) and PH Occ GB, p. 58]. 
Informal hearings provide the applicant a means to hear the details of the reasons for rejection, and an 
opportunity to present evidence to the contrary if available and to claim mitigating circumstances if possible. 

• Use of Informal Hearing Process 
The owner/agent will only offer the opportunity of an informal hearing to applicants who have been 
determined as ineligible for admission. 

• Notice of Denial  
The owner/agent will give an applicant prompt notice of a decision denying eligibility for admission. The 
notice will contain a brief statement of the reasons for the owner/agent’s decision, and will also state 
that the applicant may request an informal hearing to dispute the decision. The notice must describe 
how to obtain the informal hearing. 
 
The Notice of Denial letter will inform the applicant that he/she has a right to be represented by legal 
counsel when disputing the owner/agent’s decision denying eligibility for admission. 
 
Prior to notification of denial based on information obtained from criminal or sex offender registration 
records, the family, in some cases, must be given the opportunity to dispute the information in those 
records which would be the basis of the denial.  

• Scheduling an Informal Hearing 
A request for an informal hearing must be made in writing and delivered to the owner/agent either in 
person, by fax, by email or by first class mail, by the close of the business day, no later than 15 calendar 
days from the date of owner/agent’s notification of denial of admission. 
Owner/agent will send written notice of the informal hearing within 30 business days of the family’s 
request. Owner/agent will make every effort to hold the hearing within 45 calendar days of receiving the 
request for the hearing. 
 



(Property Name) Tenant Selection Plan for PBRA / LIHTC Elderly/Disabled Housing 

 Page 37  of 60 Pending Approval 5/12/2016 

• Conducting an Informal Hearing [PH Occ GB, p. 58]  
The informal hearing will be conducted by an appointed Hearing Officer who is a person other than the 
one who made the decision under review, or a subordinate of this person. 
 
The applicant will be provided an opportunity to present written or oral objections to the decision of the 
owner/agent. 
 
The Hearing Officer will render a decision on whether admission should be granted or denied.  

• Informal Hearing Decision [PH Occ GB, p. 58] 
The owner/agent will notify the applicant of owner/agent’s final decision, including a brief statement of 
the reasons for the final decision. 

 
In rendering a decision, the owner/agent will evaluate the following matters: 

o Whether or not the grounds for denial were stated factually in the notice. 
o The validity of grounds for denial of admission. If the grounds for denial are not specified in the 

regulations or in the owner/agent’s policy, then the decision to deny assistance will be 
overturned. See the Tenant Selection Plan for a detailed discussion of the grounds for applicant 
denial. 

o The validity of the evidence. The owner/agent will evaluate whether the facts presented prove 
the grounds for denial of admission. If the facts prove that there are grounds for denial, and the 
denial is required by HUD, the owner/agent will uphold the decision to deny admission. 

o If the facts prove the grounds for denial, the Hearing Officer will make the final decision to deny 
admissions. 
 

The owner/agent will notify the applicant of the final decision, including a statement explaining the 
reason(s) for the decision. The notice will be mailed within 15 calendar days of the informal hearing to 
the applicant and his or her representative, if any. 
 
If the informal hearing decision overturns the denial, processing for admission will resume. The 
owner/agent will make every effort to resume the screening process for reinstated applicants within 20 
calendar days of the hearing decision. 
 
If the family fails to appear for their informal hearing, the denial of admission will stand and the family 
will be so notified. 
 
The applicant may request that the Hearing Officer consider a request for Reasonable Accommodations 
under the Fair Housing Act and Section 504 with respect to past conduct (see below).  
 
If the basis for the denial relates to family violence, the applicant may qualify for an exception under the 
Violence Against Women Amendments.  
 
The Notice of Denial letter will inform the applicant that he/she has a right to be represented by legal 
counsel when disputing the owner/agent’s decision denying eligibility for admission. 



(Property Name) Tenant Selection Plan for PBRA / LIHTC Elderly/Disabled Housing 

 Page 38  of 60 Pending Approval 5/12/2016 

REASONABLE ACCOMMODATIONS FOR PERSONS WITH DISABILITIES [24 CFR 966.7] 
Persons with disabilities may request reasonable accommodations to participate in the informal hearing process 
and the owner/agent must consider such accommodations. The owner/agent must also consider reasonable 
accommodation requests pertaining to the reasons for denial if related to the person’s disability.  See the 
Reasonable Accommodation Policy for more detail pertaining to reasonable accommodation requests. 

HEARING AND APPEAL PROVISIONS FOR NON-CITIZENS [24 CFR 5.514] 
Denial or termination of assistance based on immigration status is subject to special hearing and notice rules. 
These special hearings are referred to in the regulations as informal hearings, but the requirements for such 
hearings are different from the informal hearings used to deny applicants for reasons other than immigration 
status. 
 
Assistance to a family may not be delayed, denied or terminated on the basis of immigration status at any time 
prior to a decision under the United States Citizenship and Immigration Services (USCIS) appeal process. 
Assistance to a family may not be terminated or denied while the owner/agent’s hearing is pending, but 
assistance to an applicant may be delayed pending the completion of the informal hearing. 
 
A decision against a family member, issued in accordance with the USCIS appeal process or the owner/agent’s 
informal hearing process, does not preclude the family from exercising the right, that may otherwise be 
available, to seek redress directly through judicial procedures. 

• Notice of Denial or Termination of Assistance [24 CFR 5.514(d)] 
The notice of denial or termination of assistance for noncitizens must advise the family of any of the 
following that apply: 
 
o That financial assistance will be denied or terminated, and provide a brief explanation of the reasons 

for the proposed denial or termination of assistance. 
o The family may be eligible for proration of assistance. 
o In the case of a resident, the criteria and procedures for obtaining relief under the provisions for 

preservation of families [24 CFR 5.514 and 5.518]. 
o That the family has a right to request an appeal to the USCIS of the results of secondary verification 

of immigration status and to submit additional documentation or explanation in support of the 
appeal. 

o That the family has a right to request an informal hearing with the owner/agent either upon 
completion of the USCIS appeal or in lieu of the USCIS appeal. 

o For applicants, assistance may not be delayed until the conclusion of the USCIS appeal process, but 
assistance may be delayed during the period of the informal hearing process. 

• United States Citizenship and Immigration Services Appeal Process [24 CFR 5.514(e)] 
When the owner/agent receives notification that the USCIS secondary verification failed to confirm 
eligible immigration status, the following process will be observed: 
 
o The owner/agent will notify the family of the results of the USCIS verification within 10 calendar 

days of receiving the results.  
o The family will have 30 days from the date of the owner/agent’s notification to request an appeal of 

the USCIS results. The request for appeal must be made by the family in writing directly to the 
USCIS.  



(Property Name) Tenant Selection Plan for PBRA / LIHTC Elderly/Disabled Housing 

 Page 39  of 60 Pending Approval 5/12/2016 

o The family must provide the owner/agent with a copy of the written request for appeal and proof of 
mailing within 10 calendar days of sending the request to USCIS. 

 
The family must forward to the designated USCIS office any additional documentation or written 
explanation in support of the appeal. This material must include a copy of the USCIS document 
verification request (used to process the secondary request) or such other form specified by the USCIS, 
and a letter indicating that the family is requesting an appeal of the USCIS immigration status 
verification results. 
 
The USCIS will notify the family, with a copy to the owner/agent, of its decision. When the USCIS notifies 
the owner/agent of the decision, the owner/agent must notify the family of its right to request an 
informal hearing. 
 
The owner/agent will send written notice to the family of its right to request an informal hearing within 
10 business days of receiving notice of the USCIS decision regarding the family’s immigration status. 

• Informal Hearing Procedures for Applicants [24 CFR 5.514(f)] 
After notification of the USCIS decision on appeal, or in lieu of an appeal to the USCIS, an applicant 
family may request that the owner/agent provide a hearing. The request for a hearing must be made 
either within 30 days of receipt of the owner/agent’s notice of denial, or within 30 days of receipt of the 
USCIS appeal decision. 
 
The informal hearing procedures for applicant families are described below.  
 
o Informal Hearing Officer 

The owner/agent must provide an informal hearing before an impartial individual, other than a 
person who made or approved the decision under review, and other than a person who is a 
subordinate of the person who made or approved the decision.  
 

o Evidence 
The family will be provided the opportunity to examine and copy at the family’s expense or $.10 per 
page, at a reasonable time in advance of the hearing, any documents in the possession of the 
owner/agent pertaining to the family’s eligibility status or in the possession of the USCIS (as 
permitted by USCIS requirements), including any records and regulations that may be relevant to 
the hearing. 

 
The family will be provided the opportunity to present evidence and arguments in support of eligible 
status. Evidence may be considered without regard to admissibility under the rules of evidence 
applicable to judicial proceedings. 
 
The family must also be provided the opportunity to refute evidence relied upon by the 
owner/agent, and to confront and cross-examine all witnesses on whose testimony or information 
the owner/agent relies. 

 
o Representation and Interpretive Services 

The family is entitled to be represented by an attorney or other designee, at the family’s expense, 
and to have such person make statements on the family’s behalf. 



(Property Name) Tenant Selection Plan for PBRA / LIHTC Elderly/Disabled Housing 

 Page 40  of 60 Pending Approval 5/12/2016 

The family is entitled to arrange for an interpreter to attend the hearing, at the expense of the 
family, or the owner/agent, as may be agreed upon by the two parties. If the family does not 
arrange for their own interpreter, the owner/agent is still obligated to provide oral translation 
services in accordance with its LEP Plan. 

 
o Recording of the Hearing 

The family is entitled to have the hearing recorded by audiotape. The owner/agent will not provide a 
transcript of an audio taped informal hearing. 
 

o Hearing Decision 
The owner/agent must provide the family with a written notice of the final decision, based solely on 
the facts presented at the hearing, within 10 business days of the date of the informal hearing. The 
notice must state the basis for the decision. 

 
o Retention of Documents [24 CFR 5.514(h)] 

The owner/agent must retain for a minimum of 5 years the following documents that may have 
been submitted to the owner/agent by the family, or provided to the owner/agent as part of the 
USCIS appeal or the owner/agent’s informal hearing process: 
o The application for assistance 
o The form completed by the family for income reexamination 
o Photocopies of any original documents, including original USCIS documents 
o The signed verification consent form 
o The USCIS verification results 
o The request for a USCIS appeal 
o The final USCIS determination 
o The request for an informal hearing 
o The final informal hearing decision 

OFFERING AN APARTMENT   
When a unit becomes available and eligibility is determined, available units will be offered using one or more of 
the following methods: 
 

• In writing, using the mailing address provided by the applicant family. 
• Over the phone, using the contact phone number(s) provided by the applicant family. 
• By email, using the contact email address(es) provided by the applicant family. 

 
If the owner/agent is unable to contact the household within five (5) business days from the date of the letter, 
the offer will be cancelled and the apartment will be offered to the next applicant based on the selection criteria 
described in this plan.   
 
Failure to respond to the owner/agent will be considered a refusal of the unit offer. (See Right to Refusal 
policies.)  It is the applicant family’s responsibility to keep all contact information current with the Admissions 
Department. 

OFFERING ACCESSIBLE UNITS 
Units that have been made accessible in accordance with the Universal Federal Accessibility Standards or the 
Americans with Disabilities Act Accessibility Guidelines will be offered to applicant households with disabled 



(Property Name) Tenant Selection Plan for PBRA / LIHTC Elderly/Disabled Housing 

 Page 41  of 60 Pending Approval 5/12/2016 

members first.  In some cases, the owner/agent may implement marketing efforts to ensure that disabled 
households occupy accessible units.  
 
Units with communication accessible features will be offered to households with a verified need for 
communication accessible units first 
 
Units with mobility accessible features will be offered to households with a verified need for mobility accessible 
units first 
 
After move-in, if the members of the household who required the special features of the accessible unit no 
longer reside in the unit, and where the lease permits, the owner/agent will require the remaining members of 
the household to move to a unit without accessibility features when such a unit of the appropriate size becomes 
available.  
 
If there is no household on the waiting list that has requested an accessible unit, the unit will then be offered to 
the next household based on the selection order. Before the applicant can accept that accessible unit, all adult 
members of the applicant household must sign an agreement that includes a requirement to move, at the 
household’s expense, to the first available non-accessible unit that meets the household’s occupancy 
requirements as described in this plan.  The resident household will not be required to move if: 
 

• No unit that meets the household’s occupancy requirements is available 
• There is no applicant household on the waiting list requesting an accessible unit 

 
In either of the cases above, the household must take possession of the unit according to the timeframes 
outlined in this plan. If the applicant fails to move within the established timeframes, assistance will be 
terminated.  This rule, in no way, affects the single residence criteria. The household can only accept assistance 
in one unit on any given day. 

OFFERING UNITS TO APPLICANTS WITH DISABILITIES REQUESTING ACCESSIBILITY FEATURES 
The owner/agent will not skip over a household that has reached the top of the waiting list and has indicated a 
need for certain unit features because of a disability.  
 
The household will be given the opportunity to benefit from the program and decide, in compliance with the 
Fair Housing Act and Section 504, whether a unit meets the needs of the disabled household member.  The 
household may accept the unit and request some modification to the unit as a reasonable accommodation.  See  
the owner/agent’s Reasonable Accommodation Policy in Appendix A for information about requesting a 
reasonable modification. 

OFFERING UNITS TO APPLICANTS OR RESIDENTS WITH PREFERENCES 
Applicants/residents with preferences are selected from the waiting list and receive an opportunity for an 
available unit earlier than those who do not have a preference.   

APPLICANT/RESIDENT SELECTION ORDER 
Accessible Apartments will be offered in the following order: 
 

• *The next household on the transfer list who is requesting an accessible unit.  Offers will be made in 
order according to the weighted transfer list preferences: 



(Property Name) Tenant Selection Plan for PBRA / LIHTC Elderly/Disabled Housing 

 Page 42  of 60 Pending Approval 5/12/2016 

o Emergency / Safety (with need for an accessible unit) 
o Reasonable Accommodation (with need for an accessible unit) 
o Over Housed (with need for an accessible unit) 
o Under Housed (with need for an accessible unit) 

 
• The next applicant on the waiting list who is requesting an accessible unit.  Offers will be made in order 

according to the weighted waiting list preferences: 
 

o Elderly / Non-Elderly preference (with need for an accessible unit) 
o Involuntarily Displaced preference (with need for an accessible unit) 
o Disability preference (with need for an accessible unit) 

 
• *When there is no one in need of the accessibility features for this unit, the offer will be given to the 

next household on the transfer list.  Offers will be made in order according to the weighted transfer list 
preferences: 
 

o Emergency / Safety 
o Reasonable Accommodation 
o Over Housed 
o Under Housed  

 
• When there is no one in need of the accessibility features of this unit, the offer will be given to the next 

applicant on the waiting list.  Offers will be made in order according to the weighted waiting list 
preferences:  
 

o Elderly / Non-Elderly 
o Involuntarily Displaced 
o Disability 

 
*Note:  If the next family on the transfer list is currently over 140% of the LIHTC income limit for their 
family size, a transfer will only be offered to another unit in the same building, in accord with the 
LIHTC “Next Available Unit” rule.  The definition of “building” for this property is outlined on IRS Form 
8806.  In this case, if the family cannot move to another building, the offer will be made to the next 
family on the transfer list. 

 
Standard Apartments will be offered in the following order: 

• *The next household on the transfer list, regardless of need for an accessible unit.  Offers will be made 
in order according to the weighted transfer list preferences:  
 

o Emergency / Safety 
o Reasonable Accommodation 
o Over Housed 
o Under Housed 
o Resident has no need for accessible feature in current unit 

 
• The next applicant on the waiting list, regardless of need for an accessible unit.  Offers will be made in 

order according to the weighted waiting list preferences: 
 



(Property Name) Tenant Selection Plan for PBRA / LIHTC Elderly/Disabled Housing 

 Page 43  of 60 Pending Approval 5/12/2016 

o Elderly / Near Elderly 
o Involuntarily Displaced 
o Disability  

 
*Note:  If the next family on the transfer list is currently over 140% of the LIHTC income limit for their 
family size, a transfer will only be offered to another unit in the same building, in accord with the 
LIHTC “Next Available Unit” rule.  The definition of “building” for this property is outlined on IRS Form 
8806. In this case, if the family cannot move to another building, the offer will be made to the next 
family on the transfer list. 

RIGHT TO REFUSAL 
The Right to Refusal Policy applies to applicants and existing residents who have submitted a Unit Transfer 
Request.  Residents requesting unit transfer and applicants will be offered available units based on the 
information included in this resident selection plan.  
 
Each household will be offered the opportunity to accept an offered apartment one (1) time. If a 
resident/applicant does not wish to accept an offered apartment, they have the right to refuse the offer.   
 
Residents/applicants must notify the owner/agent of their intent to refuse the unit offer by using one or more of 
the following methods: 
 

• In writing (delivered by fax, mail or other means) 
• By email 
• Over the phone 

 
Note:  If the refusal is made over the phone, contact must be made with a member of the management 
staff. Leaving a message is not adequate. 
 

When an applicant or resident refuses a unit, the unit will be offered to the next qualified household based on 
the selection order described above. 
 
When a resident refuses a transfer offer, the terms of the lease require that the assistance be terminated and 
the resident be required to pay the full contract rent. 
 
When an applicant refuses an offered unit, the household will be removed from the waiting list and will have to 
wait one calendar year before applying again.   
 
Right to refusal policies will be modified in three cases: 
 

• If a disabled applicant or resident is at the top of the waiting list, they will be offered units as they 
become available regardless of whether they include accessible features. A disabled household has the 
right to refuse an unlimited number of non-accessible units or units that do not meet specific 
accessibility requirements. Note:  Certain restrictions apply to non-elderly disabled households when 
HUD’s program eligibility requires the need for an accessible unit.   

• If an applicant or resident household with no disabled members is at the top of the waiting list, and 
there are no disabled households on the waiting list, that household may be offered an accessible unit. 



(Property Name) Tenant Selection Plan for PBRA / LIHTC Elderly/Disabled Housing 

 Page 44  of 60 Pending Approval 5/12/2016 

An applicant household with no disabled household members has the right to refuse an unlimited 
number of accessible units or units that do not meet their needs.  

• Any applicant may reject an available unit on a property set aside for the elderly and/or disabled if this 
unit is close to another unit with an animal.  For this purpose, “close” means an adjacent unit or one 
directly across the hall.  This action will not negatively affect the household’s application for occupancy 
or position on the waiting list to be eligible for the next available unit. The owner/agent is not obligated 
at the time the applicant rejects a unit to provide an alternate unit.  

TIMEFRAME FOR TAKING POSSESSION OF A UNIT 
When the first housing offer is made for a unit, the applicant family must meet the following timeframes for 
taking possession of the offered unit: 

• Within 2 business days from the date the offer is received, the applicant family must make contact with 
the property management staff.  At that time, the property management staff will notify the family of 
the anticipated date that the unit will be available to be viewed. 

• Once the unit is ready to view, the property management will schedule an appointment to view the unit.  
Failure to attend the scheduled appointment is considered a rejection of the housing offer. 

• Within 3 calendar days of viewing the unit, the applicant family must accept or reject the unit.  No 
response by close of business on the third day is considered a rejection of the housing offer. 

• Within 2 calendar days of accepting an offer, the applicant family must pay the security deposit and the 
prorated first month’s rent.  At that time, the family will receive the keys and are considered to have 
taken possession of the unit.  Failure to take possession of the unit by close of business on the second 
day is considered a rejection of the unit. 

 
When the first housing offer is rejected and a second (or subsequent) offer is made, the applicant family must 
meet the following timeframes for taking possession of the offered unit: 
 

• Within 2 business days from the date the offer is received, the applicant family must make contact with 
the property management staff.  At that time, the property management staff will schedule an 
appointment to view the unit.  Failure to attend the scheduled appointment is considered a rejection of 
the housing offer. 

• Within 4 calendar days of viewing the unit, the applicant family must accept or reject the unit.  No 
response by close of business on the third day is considered a rejection of the housing offer. 

• Within 4 calendar days of accepting an offer, the applicant family must pay the security deposit and the 
prorated first month’s rent.  At that time, the family will receive the keys and are considered to have 
taken possession of the unit.  Failure to take possession of the unit by close of business on the second 
day is considered a rejection of the unit. 

 
If the applicant household does not complete appropriate paperwork and does not take possession of the unit 
within the timeframes outlined above, the applicant will be subsequently rejected and removed from the 
waiting list.  Extenuating circumstances will be considered, including the following: 
 

• The family is dealing with a documented medical or other family emergency.  In this case the 
owner/agent and family will negotiate an appropriate solution which may include offering the family the 
next unit. 

• The family is required to give 30 days’ notice to their current landlord which is part of another federally 
assisted housing program. 

 



(Property Name) Tenant Selection Plan for PBRA / LIHTC Elderly/Disabled Housing 

 Page 45  of 60 Pending Approval 5/12/2016 

When the family rejects the unit or does not meet the outlined timeframes, the owner/agent reserves the right 
to refuse subsequent applications.  The unit will be offered to the next eligible applicant/resident based on the 
selection order described in this plan.     

UNIT TRANSFER POLICIES 
The owner/agent will accept requests for transfer in the following situations: 
 

• Emergency / Safety:  The household needs to move due to a life-threatening situation.  Life-threatening 
situations include the following: 
o Due to no fault of the resident(s), the unit is uninhabitable and cannot be made habitable in a 

reasonable amount of time; 
o A household member has experienced a medical condition which makes the current unit 

uninhabitable or unsafe; 
o A household member is in danger of retaliation; 
o A household member is a victim of domestic violence and qualifies for VAWA protections. 

• Reasonable Accommodation:  A family member has a verified need for an accessible unit. 
• Over Housed:  The household is in a unit that is larger than they qualify for according to the 

owner/agent’s subsidy standards. 
• Under Housed:  The household is in a unit that is smaller than they qualify for according to the 

owner/agent’s subsidy standards. 
• Unneeded Accessibility Feature:  The family does not require or no longer needs the accessibility 

features of a unit in which they are living.  However, another family does need that accessibility feature. 
 
Unit transfer requests that do not fall into one of these categories will not be approved.  Families requesting to 
move for any other reason will be provided with information on how to apply for housing assistance at the other 
properties managed or owned and operated by the Housing Authority of the City of Austin. 
 
Existing residents must complete a Unit Transfer Request. The Unit Transfer Request must be completed and 
signed by the head of household and all adult household members who wish to move.  The owner/agent will 
accept the Unit Transfer Request in an equally effective format, as a reasonable accommodation, if there is the 
presence of a disability.   
 
Special consideration is given when the unit transfer is requested because there is: 
 

• A verified medical need for a different unit 
• A verified need for an accessible unit 
• There is a need for a unit transfer of a household that does not require the accessibility features of a 

unit in which they are living to accommodate a disabled resident/applicant on the waiting list. 
• A change in household size that makes the current unit too large or too small for the family based on the 

owner/agent’s occupancy standards 
 
With the exception of Emergencies and Reasonable Accommodations, unit transfers will be granted only if: 
 

• The household has not given notice to move  
• The resident is not being evicted 
• The resident is current for all outstanding charges 
• The resident complies with lease provisions regarding decent safe and sanitary conditions of current unit  



(Property Name) Tenant Selection Plan for PBRA / LIHTC Elderly/Disabled Housing 

 Page 46  of 60 Pending Approval 5/12/2016 

A household living in an apartment too large for its needs will not be required to move if there are no applicants 
waiting for the bedroom size to be vacated by the transfer.  An appropriate sized unit will be available before 
the resident household is required to move.  At that time, the household will have thirty (30) days to complete 
the transfer. 
 
A household whose annual gross income is over 140% of the LIHTC income limit for their household size will only 
be allowed to transfer to another unit within their same building (as defined by BIN – Building Identification 
Number – on IRS Form 8609).    

SECURITY DEPOSITS, PET DEPOSITS & UNIT TRANSFERS 
When a resident transfers to a new unit with all other household members, the owner/agent will charge a new 
security deposit and refund the security deposit for the old unit less any outstanding amounts for rent, fees or 
damages.  If the move out expenses exceed the security deposit, the family will receive an itemized bill which 
must be paid within 30 days of receipt of the bill. 
 
When a resident owns a pet, the original unit will be assessed for damages caused by the pet.  The pet deposit 
will be reduced by charges for those damages and the resident will be required to obtain a pet deposit balance 
of $100.00 for the new unit.  The resident will be allowed to pay the new pet deposit balance due in $10.00 
monthly payments until the $100.00 pet deposit balance is reached.  

CHANGES IN HOUSEHOLD COMPOSITION 

ADDING HOUSEHOLD MEMBERS AFTER INITIAL OCCUPANCY 
The owner/agent must approve any new adult household member before he/she moves in to the unit.  Eligibility 
criteria, screening criteria and compliance with occupancy standards will be reviewed before the new household 
member is approved or denied.   
 
The request to add a new household member will not be considered if the resident has provided notice to 
vacate the unit.  This helps prevent applicants from “jumping” ahead on the waiting list. 
 
Any new adult household member will be considered an applicant and must participate in the eligibility 
determination and screening processes described in the resident selection plan in place at the time of the 
eligibility determination.   
 
(For PBRA Only) In addition, the rent/assistance payment will be re-calculated to reflect any income or 
allowances for the new household member.  If the rent increases, the increase will take effect the first of the 
month following delivery of a 30-day notice of change to rent.  If the rent decreases, the decrease will take 
effect the first of the month following the addition of the new household member.   
 
This policy applies to live-in aides as well.  Screening criteria will also be applied to live-in aides, except for the 
criterion regarding credit performance or the ability to pay rent on time because live-in aides are not 
responsible for rental payments.  However, live in aides must meet other screening criteria established by the 
owner/agent.  Income and/or allowances received by live-in aides will not be considered.   
 
Information about new household members who are minors must be provided to the owner/agent as quickly as 
possible but within no more than thirty (30) calendar days.  This includes, as applicable, required eligibility 



(Property Name) Tenant Selection Plan for PBRA / LIHTC Elderly/Disabled Housing 

 Page 47  of 60 Pending Approval 5/12/2016 

information including Social Security Numbers, proof of citizenship or non-citizen eligibility and other pertinent 
information.   
 
If the new household member is under the age of six, special consideration regarding Social Security Number 
disclosure and verification of Social Security Numbers is given.  The household will be given ninety (90) calendar 
days to provide the Social Security Number and adequate documentation to verify the Social Security Number 
provided.  In some cases, an additional ninety (90) days may be provided.   
 
If the household fails to provide the required Social Security Number information within the allotted timeframe, 
the household’s tenancy will be terminated (eviction) in accordance with HUD requirements.   
(For PBRA Only) Each dependent child that lives in the unit may be eligible for a $480 deduction that decreases 
the monthly rent payment by roughly $12.00 per month.  The rent payment will be re-calculated to reflect any 
income or allowances for the new household member.   
 
If the rent increases, the increase will take effect the first of the month following delivery of a 30-day notice of 
change to rent.  If the rent decreases, the decrease will take effect the first of the month following the addition 
of the new household member. 
 
Failure to notify the owner/agent about changes in household composition as described above may result in 
retroactive rent changes and/or termination of subsidy/tenancy for the entire household.  Please contact the 
owner/agent or property staff if you have questions about this policy.   

REMOVING HOUSEHOLD MEMBERS AFTER INITIAL OCCUPANCY 
Residents must notify the owner/agent if any household member listed on the lease or on HUD Form 50059 or 
on LIHTC Form TIC (Tenant Income Certification) leaves the unit.  This notification must occur as quickly as 
possible but within no more than thirty (30) calendar days.   
 
(For PBRA Only) Upon notice, the rent payment will be re-calculated to remove any income or allowances for 
the previous household member.  If the rent increases, the increase will take effect the first of the month 
following delivery of a 30-day notice of change to rent.  If the rent decreases, the decrease will take effect the 
first of the month following the removal of the household member.   
 
Failure to provide notice to the owner/agent, within thirty (30) days, could result in rent increases retroactive to 
the first of the month after the household member left.  Subsidy paid in error will be returned, as required, to 
the Department of Housing & Urban Development.   
 
If the resident fails to notify the owner/agent of a change in household composition within thirty (30) calendar 
days, and that change would result in a rent decrease, the owner/agent will make the decrease effective the first 
of the month following the notice.  No retroactive rent credits will be returned to the resident. 
 
Failure to notify the owner/agent about changes in household composition may result in termination of subsidy 
and/or tenancy for the entire household.  Please contact the owner/agent if you have questions about this 
policy.   

APARTMENT INSPECTIONS 
All apartments must undergo periodic inspection conducted by the on-site management team, HUD or HUD’s 
representatives/agents.  These inspections include not only interior but also exterior inspections.  Residents 
have the right to be present, and are, in fact encouraged, to be present during unit inspection.   



(Property Name) Tenant Selection Plan for PBRA / LIHTC Elderly/Disabled Housing 

 Page 48  of 60 Pending Approval 5/12/2016 

The move-in inspection is an opportunity to familiarize the new resident with the property and the unit, as well 
as to document its current condition.  By performing move-in inspections, the owner/agent and residents are 
assured that the unit is in livable condition and is free of damages.  A move-in inspection gives the owner/agent 
an opportunity to familiarize residents with the operation of appliances and equipment in the unit. 
 
The move-out inspection is conducted when a household vacates a unit.   The owner/agent will list the damages 
on the Unit Inspection Form and compare it with the Unit Inspection Form completed at move-in to determine if 
there is any damage or excessive wear-and-tear.     
 
In addition, the owner/agent will perform unit inspections on at least an annual basis to determine whether the 
appliances and equipment in the unit are functioning properly and to assess whether a component needs to be 
repaired or replaced.   
 
This is also an opportunity to determine any damage to the unit and, if so, make the necessary repairs.  At this 
time, residents may be charged for damages to the unit so long as those damages are not the result of normal 
wear-and-tear. 
 
Housekeeping inspections will be conducted on a semi-annual (every 6 months) basis.  Housekeeping 
inspections provide the owner/agent the opportunity to verify that the unit is being properly cared for and to 
verify the need for any repairs. 
 
TDHCA and HUD, or their authorized contractor(s), have the right to inspect the units and the entire property 
to ensure that the property is being well maintained.  These inspections assure HUD that owners and their 
agents are fulfilling their obligations under the regulatory agreements and/or subsidy contracts and that 
residents are provided with decent, safe, and sanitary housing. 

CHANGES TO THE RESIDENT SELECTION PLAN 
Applicants will be notified in writing when the resident selection plan undergoes significant change or when 
preferences are added or removed.  At that time, applicants will be: 
 

• Given an opportunity to review the new plan 
• Notified of changes to preferences 
• Asked if they wish to remain on the waiting list 

 
If the applicant household does not respond, that household will be deemed ineligible and removed from the 
waiting list. 
 
The current resident selection plan, in place at the time of final eligibility determination, will be used to make a 
final decision to approve or reject the application. 



(Property Name) Tenant Selection Plan for PBRA / LIHTC Elderly/Disabled Housing 

 Page 49  of 60 Pending Approval 5/12/2016 

APPENDIX A – REQUEST FOR REASONABLE ACCOMMODATION OR MODIFICATION 
The owner/agent is committed to complying with the Fair Housing Act and Section 504 of the Rehabilitation Act 
by ensuring that its policies and practices do not deny individuals with disabilities the opportunity to participate 
in, or benefit from, nor otherwise discriminate against individuals with disabilities in connection with the 
operation of housing services or programs solely on the basis of such disabilities.   
 
If an individual with a disability requests an accommodation or modification, the owner/agent will fulfill these 
requests, unless doing so would result in a fundamental alteration in the nature of the program or create an 
undue financial and administrative burden. In such a case, if possible, the owner/agent will offer an alternative 
solution that would not result in a financial or administrative burden. 
 
• The owner/agent informs all applicants/residents that, at any time, the applicant/resident or a person acting 

on behalf of the applicant/resident may make a request for reasonable accommodation or modification for 
an individual with a disability.  

• At the time of application, all applicants are provided with a copy of the Reasonable Accommodation - 
Modification Policy.  This is provided in writing as part of the Application Package or, upon the applicant’s 
request, the Policy will be provided in an equally effective format. 

• All applicants/residents are provided with a Reasonable Accommodation/Modification Request Form when 
requesting a reasonable accommodation or modification.  The request will be accepted in an equally 
effective format, as a reasonable accommodation, if there is the presence of a disability.  A resident or 
applicant may submit the request in writing, orally, or use another equally effective means of 
communication to request an accommodation or modification. 

• Residents and applicants may contact the management office located within their property for information 
about requests.  

• The owner/agent will provide an initial reply to requests as quickly as possible, but no more than ten (10) 
business days from the receipt of the request unless the owner/agent explains the delay.  Response may 
include but is not limited to: 

o Request Approval 
o Request Denial 
o Request for Additional Information or Verification of Need 

• The owner/agent will consent to or deny the request as quickly as possible.  Unless the owner/agent 
explains the delay, the applicant/resident will be notified of the decision to consent or deny within no more 
than thirty (30) calendar days after receiving all necessary information and documentation from the resident 
and/or appropriate verification sources.  All decisions to grant or deny reasonable accommodations will be 
communicated in writing or, if required/requested, in an alternative format. Exceptions to the thirty (30) day 
period for notification of the owner/agent’s decision on the request will be provided to the resident setting 
forth the reasons for the delay.  

• If the request for reasonable accommodation or modification is denied, the requestor has the right to 
appeal the decision within fifteen (15) business days of the date of the written notification of denial.  The 
appeal meeting will be conducted by a person who was not originally involved in the decision to deny. 

 
For full explanation of reasonable accommodation requests, see the owner/agent’s Reasonable Accommodation 
policy.  This policy is available upon request. 
 
  



(Property Name) Tenant Selection Plan for PBRA / LIHTC Elderly/Disabled Housing 

 Page 50  of 60 Pending Approval 5/12/2016 

 APPENDIX B – CITIZEN/NON-CITIZEN ELIGIBILITY 
Applicants are required to declare U.S. Citizenship or submit evidence of eligible immigration status for each of 
household member seeking housing assistance.  The owner/agent is required to obtain the following 
documents: 
  
• Family Composition List (lists all household members who will reside in the assisted unit) 
• Citizenship Declaration (Each household member listed on the Household Summary Sheet must complete) 
• Forms and/or evidence of citizen/immigration status 
 
If you have any questions or difficulty in providing the described information or determining the type of 
documentation required, please contact the management office.  If you are unable to provide the required 
documentation in the timeframe indicated, you must contact the management office and request an extension.  
If you fail to provide this information, the owner/agent cannot provide assistance.   
 
The owner agent will offer the household assistance, providing subsidy to those household members whose 
documents were received on time when the following criteria is met: 
 
• Assistance/unit is available  
• The household has come to the top of the waiting list 
• At least one member of the household has submitted the required documentation in a timely manner and 

has been determined to be eligible based on all of the criteria in this resident selection plan 
 
If any household member is determined to be an ineligible non-citizen, either at application or after move-in, 
assistance may be prorated or terminated.   

REQUIRED DOCUMENTATION 
The owner/agent must obtain the following documentation for each household member regardless of age: 
 

 From U.S. citizens, a signed declaration of citizenship.  The owner/agent requires verification of the 
declaration.  The following documents will be accepted as proof of citizenship 
o United States (U.S.) Passport  
o U.S. birth certificate 
o Other documentation as provided by HUD or DHS 

 From non-citizens claiming eligible status who is 62 or older:  
o A signed declaration of eligible immigration status and 
o Proof of age 

 From non-citizens claiming eligible status who is not 62 or older:  
o A signed declaration of eligible immigration status and 
o A signed consent form and 
o One of the DHS-approved documents  

 Form I-551, Permanent Resident Card. 
 Form 1-94, Arrival-Departure Record annotated with one of the following: 

• “Admitted as a Refugee Pursuant to Section 207”; 
• “Section 208” or “Asylum”; 
• “Section 243(h)” or “Deportation stayed by Attorney General”; or 
• “Paroled Pursuant to Section 212(d)(5) of the INA.” 



(Property Name) Tenant Selection Plan for PBRA / LIHTC Elderly/Disabled Housing 

 Page 51  of 60 Pending Approval 5/12/2016 

 Form I-94, Arrival-Departure Record (with no annotation) accompanied by one of the 
following: 

• A final court decision granting asylum (but only if no appeal is taken); 
• A letter from an DHS asylum officer granting asylum (if application was filed on 

or after October 1, 1990) or from an DHS district director granting asylum 
(application filed was before October 1, 1990); 

• A court decision granting withholding of deportation; or 
• A letter from an asylum officer granting withholding of deportation (if 

application was filed on or after October 1, 1990). 
 A receipt issued by the DHS indicating that an application for issuance of a replacement 

document in one of the above-listed categories has been made and that the applicant’s 
entitlement to the document has been verified. 

 Other acceptable evidence.  
 
If other documents are determined by the DHS to constitute acceptable evidence of eligible immigration status, 
they will be announced by notice published in the Federal Register. 

TIMEFRAMES FOR SUBMITTING EVIDENCE OF CITIZENSHIP/IMMIGRATION STATUS TO THE OWNER/AGENT 
Applicants must submit required documentation of citizenship/immigration status no later than the date the 
owner/agent initiates verification of other eligibility factors (pre application or application).  Owner/agents 
determine the applicant’s citizenship or immigration status during the initial eligibility determination prior to 
move-in.   
 
If the applicant cannot supply the documentation within the owner/agent’s specified timeframe, the 
owner/agent may grant the applicant an extension of not more than thirty (30) days, but only if the applicant 
certifies that the documentation is temporarily unavailable and additional time is needed to collect and submit 
the required documentation.  (Although the extension period may not exceed thirty (30) days, the owner/agent 
may establish a shorter extension period based on the circumstances of the individual case.) 
 
The owner/agent will inform the applicant in writing (or, if required/requested, in an alternative format) if an 
extension request is granted or denied.  If the request is granted, the owner/agent will include the new deadline 
for submitting the documentation.  If the request is denied, the owner/agent will state the reasons for the 
denial in the response.  When granting or rejecting extensions, the owner/agent will treat applicants 
consistently. 

REVIEWING AND VERIFICATION OF A HOUSEHOLD’S CITIZENSHIP/IMMIGRATION STATUS 
Owner/agents will conduct primary verification through the (Systematic Alien Verification for Entitlements) 
SAVE ASVI database - the Department of Homeland Security (DHS) automated system.   
After accessing the ASIV database, the owner/agent enters the required data fields.   
 
The system will display one of the following messages for immigration status confirmation on the screen.  
 

• Lawful Permanent Resident  
• Temporary Resident  
• Conditional Resident 
• Asylee 
• Refugee 



(Property Name) Tenant Selection Plan for PBRA / LIHTC Elderly/Disabled Housing 

 Page 52  of 60 Pending Approval 5/12/2016 

• Cuban\Haitian Entrant 
• Conditional Entrant 

 
Secondary verification.  If the message “institute secondary verification” is displayed on the screen, the manual 
verification process must be used.  
 
Within ten (10) days of receiving an “Institute Secondary Verification” response, the owner/agent will prepare 
DHS Form G-845S, Document Verification Request.  The owner/agent will send DHS Form G-845S and 
photocopies of the DHS documents submitted by the applicant to the DHS office serving the property’s 
jurisdiction.   
 
The DHS will return to the owner/agent a copy of DHS Form G-845S indicating the results of the automated and 
manual search.   

NOTIFICATION TO APPLICANTS 
 Owner/agents will notify households in writing that they are:  
 

 Eligible for assistance 
 Eligible for partial assistance, as a mixed household   

 
The owner/agent will notify applicants and/or residents in writing if they are found to be ineligible based upon 
citizenship/immigration status.   

MIXED HOUSEHOLDS 
A mixed household—a household with one or more ineligible members and one or more eligible household 
members—may receive: 
 

• Prorated assistance 
• Continued assistance 

APPEALING DETERMINATIONS OF INELIGIBILITY 
The owner/agent will notify the household in writing as soon as possible if the secondary verification process 
returns a negative result.  The applicant or resident has thirty (30) days from receipt of the notice to choose 
which option to follow.   
 
The applicant or resident may appeal the owner/agent’s decision directly to the DHS.  The applicant or resident 
must send a copy of the appeal directly to the owner/agent. The DHS should respond to the appeal within thirty 
(30) days.   
 
If the DHS decision results in a positive determination of eligibility, the owner/agent can provide the appropriate 
housing assistance.  If the DHS decision results in a negative determination of eligibility, the household has thirty 
(30) days to request a hearing with the owner/agent. 

PROHIBITION AGAINST DELAY OF ASSISTANCE 
Owner/agents may not delay the household’s assistance if the applicant or resident submitted immigration 
information in a timely manner but the DHS verification or appeals process has not been completed.   
 



(Property Name) Tenant Selection Plan for PBRA / LIHTC Elderly/Disabled Housing 

 Page 53  of 60 Pending Approval 5/12/2016 

If a unit is available, the household has come to the top of the waiting list, and at least one member of the 
household has submitted the required documentation in a timely manner and has been determined to be 
eligible, the owner/agent will offer the household a unit and provide full assistance to those household 
members whose documents were received on time.  The owner/agent will continue to provide full assistance to 
such households until information establishing the immigration status of any remaining non-citizen household 
members has been received and verified. 
 



(Property Name) Tenant Selection Plan for PBRA / LIHTC Elderly/Disabled Housing 

 Page 54  of 60 Pending Approval 5/12/2016 

APPENDIX C:  DUAL SUBSIDY NOTICE 
I understand that my application to move to NAME OF PROPERTY with the rest of my household members has 
met preliminary eligibility requirements.    
 
I have indicated, on the application, that: 
 

1.  I am not currently receiving HUD assistance in another unit  
 

2.  I am currently receiving HUD assistance in another unit.   
 
According to the current HUD lease, if I am living in a community and receiving HUD project-based assistance, I 
must provide a 30-day notice to the agent managing the property where assistance is currently provided.   
 
If the owner/agent discovers that any household member failed to move out of a HUD assisted residence before 
moving to NAME OF PROPERTY, no rent subsidy or utility allowance will be provided by the Department of 
Housing and Urban Development until the day after the move out is complete.  Household members who signed 
the lease will be responsible for paying the market rent until qualified to receive HUD assistance on this property.  
Any assistance paid in error must be returned to HUD. 
 

3.  I am the recipient of a housing voucher.   
 
I understand that HUD prohibits residents from benefiting from Housing Voucher assistance in a unit assisted 
through HUD’s Section 8 program. 
 
I understand that HUD prohibits residents from benefiting from Housing Voucher assistance in a unit assisted 
through HUD’s Section 8 program.  When the application is submitted the household will be added to the waiting 
list.  A unit will be offered in accordance with the resident selection plan.  If the family later moves out of the 
project, the project subsidy will not move with the family as it does with a voucher.  If you wish to participate in 
the voucher program after move-out, you will need to reapply to the PHA to receive another voucher. 
 
All household members must be removed from or forfeit the voucher before receiving HUD assistance for a unit 
on this property.  If the owner/agent discovers that any household member failed to give up current HUD 
assistance before moving to NAME OF PROPERTY, no rent subsidy or utility allowance will be provided by the 
Department of Housing and Urban Development until the day after the move out is complete.   
 
Household members who signed the lease will be responsible for paying the market rent until qualified to receive 
HUD assistance on this property.  Any assistance paid in error must be returned to HUD. 
 
This information will be verified using the Existing Tenant Report in EIV.  If EIV indicates a conflict and 
verification information indicates that the information provided is not true, and the EIV information is verified, 
then the owner/agent will reject the application based on misrepresentation of information.   

 

 



(Property Name) Tenant Selection Plan for PBRA / LIHTC Elderly/Disabled Housing 

 Page 55  of 60 Pending Approval 5/12/2016 

APPENDIX D – VERIFICATION OF HOUSEHOLD COMPOSITION 
In compliance with HUD’s Rental Housing Integrity Improvement Project (RHIIP), the owner/agent will make 
every effort to ensure that the correct assistance is provided to those who seek housing assistance.   
 
If an applicant household indicates that one or more members should be removed from the application, the 
owner/agent will accept such notification from the Head-of-Household (HOH) (HOH) if it is provided on a 
notarized form provided by the owner agent.  The following rules apply. 
 
If the household is being rejected because a member is registered as a sex offender in any state lifetime sex 
offender registry, the owner/agent will take extra steps to ensure that the sex offender is not housed in any unit 
on the property.  The household will have to provide documentation to prove that the sex offender will live at 
another location.  Acceptable documentation includes, but is not limited to: 
 
• Confirmation from a landlord with copy of an executed lease 
• Confirmation from local police 
• Confirmation from anyone who maintains sex offender registries including but not limited to: 

o Dru Djodin Sex Offender Registry 
o Megan’s List  
o State or Federal Sex Offender Registries 

• New driver’s license with new address 
  
Information will be confirmed for up to one year after move-in. 
 
If it is discovered that the household allowed any registered sex offender to live in the unit, the applicant must 
understand that he/she is not qualified to receive subsidy or live on the property.  All subsidy paid-in-error must 
be returned to HUD.  Because this is a material lease violation, all household members must vacate the unit 
within 30 days. 
 
One of the key requirements, at application and during residency, is to disclose who will be living in the unit at 
any given time.  It is important to understand the difference between a resident and a guest.   
 
Resident:  A resident is any person who is listed on the application, on any Family Summary submitted and on 
the lease who will reside in the unit.     
 
Guest:  A guest is a person who visits any resident and may stay overnight no more than seven (7) consecutive 
nights in a one-year period and may stay overnight no more than thirty (30) non-consecutive nights in any one-
year period without express written consent of the owner/agent. 
 
If the owner/agent suspects that a guest should actually be classified as a resident, the owner/agent will request 
a meeting with the Head-of-Household (HOH). 
 
In accordance with HUD requirements, the resident will have ten (10) days to meet with the owner/agent.  
Failure to respond to the request to meet will result in termination of assistance beginning the first of the month 
following the 10-day notice.   
 
If the owner/agent suspects that a guest is actually living in the unit, the owner/agent will ask for verification of 
alternative residence.  Samples of such verification include one or more of the following: 



(Property Name) Tenant Selection Plan for PBRA / LIHTC Elderly/Disabled Housing 

 Page 56  of 60 Pending Approval 5/12/2016 

• Verification with the United States Postal Service that no mail, for the guest, is delivered to the unit address 
• *A current driver’s license for the “guest” with an alternative address 
• *A current lease indicating an alternative residence 
• *A current utility bill in the person’s name showing an alternative address 
• *A current insurance policy or other such invoice/bill showing an alternative address 

*Current means issued/created within the last thirty (90) days. 
 
In addition, the resident(s), indicated on the lease, must sign a notarized statement confirming that the guest 
does not violate the guest policy as indicated above and does not reside in the unit. 
 
Live-in Aides:  A live-in aide must meet HUD’s definition of a live-in aide: 
 

o Is essential to the care and well-being of the resident 
o Is not dependent on the resident for support 
o Is only living in the unit to provide essential support 

 
If a resident or applicant requests a live-in aide, the owner/agent is required to verify the need for a live-in aide 
using third-party verification.   
 
Live-in Aides are required to complete the Live-in Aide Questionnaire.  The information on the Live-in Aide 
questionnaire will be verified and the prospective live-in aide will be screened in accordance with the resident 
selection plan in place at the time of review.  The live-in aide will not be screened for the “ability to pay rent” 
since the live-in aide is not responsible for rent payment. 
 
The live-in aide must be approved and must sign the House Rules and the HUD-approved Live-in Aide Addendum 
before move-in.  The owner/agent must sign a revised 50059 before the live-in aide is allowed to move-in.   
 
If a live-in aide moves in prior to screening and prior to signing required forms, the owner/agent will issue a 
notice of lease violation and may pursue other action including, but not limited to eviction of the live-in aide, 
termination of assistance and/or termination of tenancy.   
 
Children/Minors:  At move-in, all non-exempt household members, including children, must have a Social 
Security Number and adequate documentation to verify the Social Security Number. 
 
When children are later added to the household, the following will be required. 
For children who are born, adopted or in foster care or in another legal custodial relationship with an existing 
household member, the owner/agent requires the following: 
 
• Social Security Number and proof that the number is valid  

o For children under the age of 6 years old - must be provided within ninety (90) days or owner/agent 
is required to terminate tenancy.   

o An additional ninety (90) may be provided if extenuating circumstances exist 
• Proof of age/legal custodial arrangement 

o Birth certificate indicating that a household member is a parent; or 
o Adoption paperwork indicating that a household member is a parent as appropriate; or 
o Verification from the foster agency indicating the unit as the primary residence of the foster child as 

appropriate; or 



(Property Name) Tenant Selection Plan for PBRA / LIHTC Elderly/Disabled Housing 

 Page 57  of 60 Pending Approval 5/12/2016 

o Other documents proving legal custody arrangement as appropriate 
 
For children who are not part of a legal custody arrangement who will be living in the unit, the owner/agent 
requires: 
 
• Social Security Number and proof that the number is valid  

o For children under the age of 6 years old - must be provided within ninety (90) days or owner/agent 
is required to termination of tenancy.  An additional ninety (90) may be provided if extenuating 
circumstances exist 

• Two forms of proof that the child resides with a member of the household 
o Verification from a government organization indicating that the unit will be the primary residence 

for the minor (examples include but are not limited to school records, children services agencies, 
foster programs, etc.) 

o Verification from a medical professional in the know indicating that the unit will be the primary 
residence for the minor 

o Verification from a social service organization indicating that the unit will be the primary residence 
of the minor (examples include but are not limited to homeless shelters, shelters for victims of 
domestic violence, etc.) 

o A signed, notarized statement from an adult household member claiming guardianship of the minor 
child  

 
The owner/agent does not and will not establish policies intended to exclude children.  If none of the household 
members can provide documentation for minors, as described above, the owner/agent will meet with the 
resident to discuss reasonable alternatives.  The owner/agent will be the final judge of what is considered 
adequate documentation proving household composition/residency. 
 



(Property Name) Tenant Selection Plan for PBRA / LIHTC Elderly/Disabled Housing 

 Page 58  of 60 Pending Approval 5/12/2016 

APPENDIX E – VAWA POLICY 
The Violence Against Women Act (VAWA) provides protections to women or men who are the victims of 
domestic violence, dating violence, sexual assault and/or stalking.  The owner/agent understands that, 
regardless of whether state or local laws protect victims of domestic violence, dating violence, sexual assault 
and/or stalking, people who have been victims of violence have certain rights under the Violence Against 
Women Act Reauthorization of 2013. 
 
This policy is intended to support or assist victims of domestic violence, dating violence, sexual assault and/or 
stalking and protect victims, as well as members of their family, from being denied housing or from losing their 
HUD assisted housing as a consequence of their status as a victim of domestic violence, sexual assault, dating 
violence and/or stalking. 
 
VAWA protections are not provided to guests, unauthorized residents or service providers (including live-in 
aides) hired by the resident.   
 
VAWA ensures that victims are not denied housing and housing assistance is not terminated solely because the 
person is a victim of an act covered under the VAWA (domestic violence, dating violence, stalking and/or sexual 
assault).   
 
However, being a victim of an act covered under the VAWA is not reason to change the eligibility or applicant 
screening requirements set forth in the tenant selection plan unless such requirements interfere with 
protections provided under the VAWA.  Being a victim of an act covered under the VAWA is not reason to waive 
requirements set forth in the HUD Model Lease or in any lease attachment or HUD approved lease addendum 
unless such requirements interfere with protections provided under the VAWA.   
 
The owner/agent will not assume that any act is a result of abuse covered under the Violence Against Women 
Act.  In order to receive the protections outlined in the VAWA, the applicant/resident must specify that he/she 
wishes to exercise these protections.  If any applicant or resident wishes to exercise the protections provided in 
the VAWA, he/she should contact the owner/agent immediately.  The owner/agent is committed to ensuring 
that the Privacy Act is enforced in this and all other situations.   

CONFIDENTIALITY  
The identity of the victim and all information provided to owner/agent relating to the incident(s) of abuse 
covered under the VAWA will be retained in confidence.  Information will not be entered into any shared 
database nor provided to a related entity, except to the extent that the disclosure is  
 

• Requested or consented to by the victim in writing;  
• Required for use in an eviction proceeding or termination of assistance; or  
• Otherwise required by applicable law.  

 
The certification form provides notice to the resident of the confidentiality of the form and the limits thereof.  
The owner/agent will retain all documentation relating to an individual’s domestic violence, dating violence, 
sexual assault and/or stalking in a separate file that is kept in a separate secure location from other applicant or 
resident files.  If the documentation is stored electronically, the owner/agent will keep this information in an 
electronic file that is separate from the applicant or resident file with secured access only to authorized 
individuals. 



(Property Name) Tenant Selection Plan for PBRA / LIHTC Elderly/Disabled Housing 

 Page 59  of 60 Pending Approval 5/12/2016 

REQUESTS & CERTIFICATION  
When the owner/agent responds to a request for protections provided under the VAWA the owner/agent will 
request that an individual complete, sign, and submit a certification form, within fourteen (14) calendar days of 
the request.  This certification may be submitted in an equally effective manner, as a reasonable 
accommodation, if there is the presence of a disability. 
 
If necessary, the victim may request additional time to submit the certification.   
 
The victim is not required to name his/her abuser if doing so would result in imminent threat or if the victim 
does not know the name of his/her abuser. 
 
The owner/agent understands that the delivery of the certification form to the applicant/resident via mail may 
place the victim at risk, (e.g., the abuser may monitor the mail).  The owner/agent will work with the 
applicant/resident in making acceptable delivery arrangements, such as inviting them into the office to pick up 
the certification form or making other discreet arrangements. 
 
If the applicant/resident has sought assistance in addressing domestic violence, dating violence, sexual assault 
and/or stalking from a federal, state, tribal, territorial jurisdiction, local police or court, the applicant/resident 
may submit written proof of this outreach in lieu of the certification form.  The owner/agent may accept the 
following: 
 

• A federal, state, tribal, territorial, or local police record or court record or  
• Documentation signed and attested to by a professional (employee, agent or volunteer of a victim 

service provider, an attorney, medical personnel, etc.) From whom the victim has sought assistance in 
addressing domestic violence, dating violence and/or stalking or the effects of the abuse.  The signatory 
attests under penalty of perjury (28 U.S.C. §1746) to his/her belief that the incident in question 
represents bona fide abuse, and the victim of domestic violence, dating violence and/or stalking has 
signed or attested to the documentation. 

 
If the applicant is currently living in a shelter established to protect victims of violence covered under the VAWA, 
the owner/agent will accept verification of such living arrangement in lieu of additional verification.   
 
To ensure that a person is not wrongly accused of committing an act covered under the VAWA, the owner/agent 
will carefully evaluate abuse claims as to avoid denial, termination of assistance, termination of tenancy or 
eviction based on false or unsubstantiated accusations. 
 
The applicant/resident is required to provide all necessary documentation to the owner/agent no more than ten 
(10) business days after submitting the certification to the owner/agent.  If the victim is unable to provide 
required documentation within the required timeframe, the owner/agent will deny the request. 
 
The owner/agent will review and respond to requests to exercise protections provided under the VAWA within 
ten (10) business days of receiving all required documentation.  The owner/agent may provide the response in 
any manner acceptable to the victim and the owner/agent.  Responses include: 
 

• Approval of the Request 
• Denial of the Request 
• Request for additional information 



(Property Name) Tenant Selection Plan for PBRA / LIHTC Elderly/Disabled Housing 

 Page 60  of 60 Pending Approval 5/12/2016 

LEASE BIFURCATION 
If the owner/agent determines that physical abuse caused by a resident is clear and present, the law provides 
the owner/agent with the authority to bifurcate a lease (i.e., remove, evict, or terminate housing assistance to 
any abuser, while allowing the victim, who lawfully occupies the home, to maintain tenancy.)  
 
The owner/agent may attempt to evict the abuser, but residents should know that state/local tenant/landlord 
laws prevail and the owner/agent must comply with such laws.  The owner/agent cannot guarantee that a court 
will award or enforce an eviction.   
 
Owner/agents must keep in mind that the eviction of or the termination action against the individual must be in 
accordance with the procedures prescribed by federal, state, and local law.  The owner/agent is committed to 
attempting to assist the victim, however, evictions are generally carried out through the court system and the 
owner/agent cannot override or circumvent a legal decision. 
 
In the event that one household member is removed from the unit because of engaging in acts of domestic 
violence, dating violence, sexual assault and/or stalking against another household member, an appropriate 
certification will be processed reflecting the change in household composition.  Special consideration will be 
given if the remaining household members are not qualified to remain in the unit as a “remaining household 
member”.    

CRIMINAL ACTS 
Victims are encouraged to seek police/legal protection from their abuser.  In some cases, the owner/agent may 
file a restraining order against the abuser to prevent the abuser from entering the property.  If there is a 
restraining order against the abuser and the resident willingly allows or invites the abuser onto the premises, 
the owner/agent may seek termination of assistance and/or tenancy.   
 
In accordance with the regulation at 24 CFR 5.861, the owner/agent may terminate tenancy and evict the tenant 
through judicial action for criminal activity by a covered person if the Landlord determines that the covered 
person has engaged in the criminal activity, regardless of whether the covered person has been arrested, or 
convicted for such activity and without satisfying a criminal standard of proof of the activity.   
 
The owner/agent will take into account individual circumstances when making a determination to terminate 
tenancy; such circumstances might include, among other things, the seriousness of the offending action, the 
extent of participation by the leaseholder in the offending action, and whether the leaseholder, if not the 
wrongdoer, took all feasible steps to prevent the offending action from occurring and has removed the 
offending person from the lease or otherwise banned the offending person from the premises in the future.         

LEASE ADDENDUM 
Any HUD approved lease addendum will be implemented and provided in accordance with HUD guidance.  
  
 
 



HOUSING AUTHORITY OF THE CITY OF AUSTIN 
BOARD OF COMMISSIONERS 
REGULAR BOARD MEETING 

 

May 19, 2016 
Regular Meeting 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 
AGENDA ITEM NO. 7 

 

Presentation and Discussion of the proposed Changes to the 
2016 PHA Annual Plan which will go out for public 
comment beginning on May 23, 2016 



1  

HOUSING AUTHORITY OF THE CITY OF AUSTIN  
BOARD OF COMMISSIONERS 

 
Presentation & Discussion 

 
MEETING DATE: May 19, 2016 
 
STAFF CONTACT: Judy Paciocco, Sr Director of Operations 
 

 Presentation and Discussion of Proposed Changes to the 
2016 PHA Annual Plan 

 
ACTION: Place out for Public Comment for 45 days beginning May 23, 

2016 through 5:00 pm on July 6, 2016 
 
SUMMARY:  
The HACA’s 2016 Public Housing Authority Plan was formally adopted on December 17, 
2015. Since that time, HUD has issued a new Streamlining Rule and several Public and 
Indian Housing (PIH) Notices for both the Admissions and Continued Occupancy Policy 
(ACOP) and the Housing Choice Voucher (Section 8) Administrative Plan. 
 
The proposed revisions to the 2016 PHA Annual Plan will be posted for a required 45-day 
public comment period,  May 23rd through July 6th, and will be brought back to the Board 
for approval at the July 22, 2016 Board meeting.  A required Public Hearing will be held in 
conjunction with the June HACA Citywide Advisory Board meeting.  
 
Revisions to the Plan include the following areas: 
 
Income Eligibility and Targeting 
The income limit for the Public Housing program is the Low income limit which is 80% of 
the median family income for our metropolitan statistical area.  HUD also has a Very Low-
income limit (50% of the median family income) which is used for the Housing Choice 
Voucher (HCV) program.  Finally, HUD also establishes an “Extremely Low- Income” limit.  
This limit is used for targeting the lowest income families for our programs.  HUD requires 
40% of new admissions to the Public Housing program and 75% of new admissions to the 
HCV program to be extremely low-income families. 
 
The streamlining rule formally changes the definition of extremely low-income families.  
Previously, the definition was a family whose income was below 30% of the median family 
income.  The new definition is “a very low-income family whose income is below either the 
Federal poverty level or 30% of the median family income, whichever is higher.”  This 
change will make it easier for families to meet HUD’s income targeting requirements. 
 
Disclosure and Verification of Social Security Numbers 
Currently, if a resident family adds a family member under the age of 6, the family was given 
90 days to provide proof of the Social Security number for that child.  This change is adding 
the same disclosure opportunities to families on the waiting list. 
 
The change allows a family that adds a child under age six (6) within the six (6) months 
before admission to Public Housing to have 90 days to provide proof of the Social Security 
number.   



2  

 
Online Application Process 
This change will allow HACA to begin accepting applications for Public Housing using an 
online application process similar to what was used for the Section 8 waiting list opening. 
 
Site-Based Waiting List 
This will change HACA’s Public Housing waiting lists from community-wide to site-based.  
Current and future applicants will be given the opportunity to choose where they want to 
live.  Families can be on waiting lists for multiple properties if they choose. 
 
Choice Mobility 
This change would allow the agency to establish a turnover cap be 1/3 of the turnover 
vouchers each year.  Setting this cap allows HACA to keep a balance between families on the 
HCV waiting list and families eligible for Choice Mobility. 
 
This change would not implement the project turnover cap.  However, in order to prevent a 
single property from several families all at once, HACA will conduct a random lottery prior to 
each waiting list draw.  When a family becomes eligible, they will be placed on the list.  Each 
month, before HACA draws from the list a random lottery will resort the list.  By doing this, 
each family on the list has an equal opportunity to be selected to receive a voucher.  
Eventually, every family that gets onto the list will be selected to receive a voucher, as long as 
they remain eligible to receive a voucher. 
 
Applicant Portal 
This change will allow applicants on the Public Housing waiting list to update their 
information via an online Applicant Portal.  This will reduce the need for applicants to travel 
to our office, allow them to update their information at any hour of the day, allow applicants 
to view their status in “real time”, and reduce staff time spent on data entry. 
 
Asset Verification 
In 2013, HUD granted temporary administrative relief in the verification of assets.  At that 
time, HUD allowed residents and applicants whose net value of assets was $5000 or less to 
self-certify the value of the assets and the income received from the assets.  The Streamlining 
Rule makes self-certification of assets worth less than $5000 permanent for most annual re-
certifications, but requires full third party verification of all assets at new admission and 
every third year after that.   
 
Income Determination for Fixed Income Sources 
HUD’s Streamlining Rule now allows PHAs to calculate the income from fixed income 
sources (Social Security, Pensions, Annuities, etc) by applying the documented cost of living 
adjustment (COLA) or percentage increase to the previous year’s income calculation.  PHAs 
are still required to third party verify the fixed income sources at new admission and every 
third year after that. 
 
Documentation and Verification of the Community Service & Self-sufficiency 
Requirement (CSSR) 
HUD’s Streamlining Rule allows PHAs to accept self-certification of the completion of the 
CSSR by any non-exempt resident.  The PHA must select a random sample of self-
certifications and complete full third party verification to protect against fraud. 
 
 



3  

ATTACHMENTS: 
• Summary of Changes to the PHA Plan 
• Affected Sections of the 2016 PHA Plan 

 
RECOMMENDATION:  
It is HACA’s recommendation to request public comment on the proposed changes to the 
2016 PHA Annual Plan. 
 
FINANCE REVIEW: 
X Proposed action does not require Finance Department review. 
 

 Fiscal Impact was approved by  _____________________________  
 

 

  Thomas Cherian, Vice-President of Finance 



Item No. 7, PHA Plan Revisions, page 1



Item No. 7, PHA Plan Revisions, page 2



Item No. 7, PHA Plan Revisions, page 3



Item No. 7, PHA Plan Revisions, page 4



Item No. 7, PHA Plan Revisions, page 5



Item No. 7, PHA Plan Revisions, page 6



Item No. 7, PHA Plan Revisions, page 7



Item No. 7, PHA Plan Revisions, page 8



Item No. 7, PHA Plan Revisions, page 9



Item No. 7, PHA Plan Revisions, page 10



Item No. 7, PHA Plan Revisions, page 11



Item No. 7, PHA Plan Revisions, page 12



Item No. 7, PHA Plan Revisions, page 13



Item No. 7, PHA Plan Revisions, page 14



Item No. 7, PHA Plan Revisions, page 15



Item No. 7, PHA Plan Revisions, page 16



Item No. 7, PHA Plan Revisions, page 17



Item No. 7, PHA Plan Revisions, page 18



Item No. 7, PHA Plan Revisions, page 19



Item No. 7, PHA Plan Revisions, page 20



Item No. 7, PHA Plan Revisions, page 21



Item No. 7, PHA Plan Revisions, page 22



Item No. 7, PHA Plan Revisions, page 23



Item No. 7, PHA Plan Revisions, page 24



Item No. 7, PHA Plan Revisions, page 25



Item No. 7, PHA Plan Revisions, page 26



Item No. 7, PHA Plan Revisions, page 27



Item No. 7, PHA Plan Revisions, page 28



Item No. 7, PHA Plan Revisions, page 29



Item No. 7, PHA Plan Revisions, page 30



Item No. 7, PHA Plan Revisions, page 31



Item No. 7, PHA Plan Revisions, page 32



Item No. 7, PHA Plan Revisions, page 33



Item No. 7, PHA Plan Revisions, page 34



Item No. 7, PHA Plan Revisions, page 35



Item No. 7, PHA Plan Revisions, page 36



Item No. 7, PHA Plan Revisions, page 37



HOUSING AUTHORITY OF THE CITY OF AUSTIN 
BOARD OF COMMISSIONERS 
REGULAR BOARD MEETING 

 

May 19, 2016 
Regular Meeting 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 
AGENDA ITEM NO. 8 

 

Presentation, Discussion and Possible Action regarding 
Resolution No. 2449: Approving the authorization of the 
Housing Authority of the City of Austin (HACA) to submit to 
the U.S. Department of Housing and Urban Development (HUD) 
applications for the potential conversion of Phase II of public 
housing to the Rental Assistance Demonstration (RAD) Program 



HOUSING AUTHORITY OF THE CITY OF AUSTIN 
BOARD OF COMMISSIONERS 

 
Resolution No. 2449 
 

 
MEETING DATE:            May 19, 2016 

 
STAFF CONTACT:          Ann Gass, Director of Strategic Housing Initiatives 

 
 
 

TITLE: Presentation, Discussion and Possible Action regarding Resolution No. 
2449: Approving the authorization of the Housing Authority of the City 
of Austin (HACA) to submit to the U.S. Department of Housing and 
Urban Development (HUD) applications for the potential conversion of 
Phase II of public housing to the Rental Assistance Demonstration 
(RAD) Program 

 
ACTION:  Approving the authorization of the Housing Authority of the City of 

Austin (HACA) to submit to the U.S. Department of Housing and 
Urban Development (HUD) applications for the potential conversion of 
Phase II of public housing to the Rental Assistance Demonstration 
(RAD) Program 

 

SUMMARY: 
The Rental Assistance Demonstration (RAD) Program is authorized by the Consolidated and 
Further Continuing Appropriations Act of 2012 which provided fiscal year 2012 appropriations for 
HUD to support this program. 

 
HACA previously submitted applications for nine public housing properties (Phase I) and was 
awarded Commitments to Enter into Housing Assistance Payments Contracts (CHAPs) for these 
nine properties in 2015. With that application, HACA requested that HUD approve a multi-phase 
award for the remainder of HACA’s portfolio, thus allowing HACA to submit applications for the 
remaining nine properties (Phase II) at a later date.  The multi-phase award was granted in 2015.  
Applications for Phase II properties are due to be submitted to HUD no later than July 15, 2016.   

 
 

Fiscal Impact: 
‰   None 

 
Budgeted                          Name of Fund(s)                                            Dollar Amount(s) 
Expenditure                     or Account(s) 

 
 
 

STAFF ANALYSIS SUMMARY 
EXECUTIVE DIRECTOR: 
DEPARTMENT HEAD: 
FINANCE REVIEW: 
 



RESOLUTION NO. 2449 
 

APPROVAL TO AUTHORIZE THE HOUSING AUTHORITY OF THE 
CITY OF AUSTIN TO SUBMIT TO THE U.S. DEPARTMENT OF 

HOUSING AND URBAN DEVELOPMENT (HUD) APPLICATIONS FOR 
THE POTENTIAL CONVERSION OF PHASE II OF HACA’S PUBLIC 

HOUSING TO THE RENTAL ASSISTANCE DEMONSTRATION  
PROGRAM (RAD) 

WHEREAS, the Housing Authority of the City of Austin continues to be a leader among 
housing authorities nationwide and as one of its goals strives to ensure quality, affordable 
housing opportunities exist for families and individuals of low and moderate incomes; 

WHEREAS, the Housing Authority of the City of Austin has completed its due diligence on 
HUD’s Rental Assistance Demonstration Program (RAD); 

WHEREAS, per the RAD program requirements, the Housing Authority of the City of Austin 
shall conduct resident meetings and any other necessary meetings regarding this potential 
conversion; 

WHEREAS, the Housing Authority of the City of Austin previously submitted applications and 
received Commitments to enter into a Housing Assistance Payments Contract (CHAP) for nine 
of its eighteen public housing properties and is in the process of submitting Financing Plans to 
HUD for those nine properties; 

WHEREAS, if selected for a  RAD award for Phase II, the Housing Authority of the City of 
Austin still has the option to withdraw its application at any time up to closing and funding of 
any RAD conversion; 

NOW THEREFORE BE IT RESOLVED that the Housing Authority of the City of Austin 
Board of Commissioners authorize the Housing Authority of the City of Austin to submit to the 
Department of Housing and Urban Development (HUD) applications for the potential conversion 
of the remaining nine public housing properties to the Rental Assistance Demonstration (RAD) 
program. 

PASSED, APPROVED, AND ADOPTED this 19th day of May, 2016 

 
 
             
       Carl S. Richie, Jr., Chairperson 
  
      
Michael G. Gerber, President 



HOUSING AUTHORITY OF THE CITY OF AUSTIN 
BOARD OF COMMISSIONERS 
REGULAR BOARD MEETING 

 

May 19, 2016 
Regular Meeting 

 
 
 
 
 

AGENDA ITEM NO. 9 
 

Presentation, Discussion, and Possible Action regarding 
Resolution No. 2450: Approving the submittal of the Section 8 
Management Assessment Program (SEMAP) Certification to 
the Department of Housing and Urban Development (HUD) for 
the period from April 1, 2015 to March 31, 2016 



HOUSING AUTHORITY OF THE CITY OF AUSTIN  
BOARD OF COMMISSIONERS 

 
Item No. 9 

Resolution No. 2450 
 
MEETING DATE:  May 19, 2016 
 
STAFF CONTACT:  Lisa Garcia, Vice President of Assisted Housing  
 
TITLE:  Presentation, Discussion, and Possible Action regarding Resolution No. : Approving 
the submittal of the Section 8 Management Assessment Program (SEMAP) Certification to the 
U.S. Department of Housing and Urban Development (HUD) 

   
ACTION: Motion to approve Resolution No.  to approve the submittal of the Section 8 
Management Assessment Program (SEMAP) Certification to the U.S. Department of Housing 
and Urban Development (HUD) for the period from April 1, 2015 through March 31, 2016  
 
SUMMARY:   
The Section 8 Management Assessment Program (SEMAP) became effective October 13, 1998 
(24 CFR Part 985).  This rule establishes SEMAP to objectively measure Public Housing 
Authorities' (PHAs') performance in fourteen (14) key performance areas and a Deconcentration 
Bonus indicator. 
 
The Board of Commissioners are required to approve the SEMAP certification, and PHAs are 
required to submit the certification electronically through PIC (Public and Indian Housing 
Information Center) within 60 calendar days after the fiscal year end.   
 
SEMAP Score and Overall Performance Rating 
 
HUD will independently assess HACA's performance under SEMAP using annual audit reports for 
indicators 1-7 and the deconcentration bonus indicator and information maintained in HUD’s Public and 
Indian Housing Information Center (PIC) for indicators 8-14.  The Lease-up rate is obtained from HUD's 
Financial Management Center.  
 
For this fiscal year’s Deconcentration Bonus point analysis, HACA used data from the 2010-2014 
American Community Survey, which reflects more updated information regarding population, 
demographic and housing unit estimates.  The American Community Survey is based on 1 million people 
surveyed in Travis County.  Last year, HACA used the 2000 Census data.   
 
This new data changed the poverty landscape with some areas that were previously considered low 
poverty census tracts now considered high poverty census tracts.  In addition, the poverty rate decreased 
from 18.5% to 17.5%.  The result of using this new data is that the total families with children that live in 
low poverty census tracts on the last day of the fiscal year decreased from 52.3% to 40.1%.  Thus, HACA 
is not eligible for the deconcentration bonus points for the 2015-2016 FY. 
 
The attached SEMAP Certification summarizes the results of this SEMAP assessment.  Based on the 
review, HACA scored a 96%, high performer.   



You will note that HACA lost 5 points for indicator #2, determination of reasonable rent.  The Quality 
Control division reviewed 51 files for this indicator.  The Quality Control (QC) department noted that the 
file sample reflected that HACA has a written method to determine and document that the rent to owner 
is reasonable based on current rents for comparable unassisted units.  However, based on the sample of 
tenant files, QC noted two staff errors.  In order to receive all 20 points for this indicator, 98% of the files 
reviewed needed to be correct, which would allow for only one error.  Staff has been informed of the 
importance of accurately documenting rent reasonableness determinations and to follow written 
procedures to ensure 100% accuracy in the future. 
  
ATTACHMENTS 
   
Attachment 1 - Section 8 Management Assessment Program (SEMAP) Certification  
Attachment 2 - SEMAP Certification Summary for Fiscal Year Ending March 31, 2016 
Attachment 3 – Deconcentration Map 2016 
Attachment 4 – Deconcentration Map 2015 
 

 
 
STAFF REVIEW: 
 
 
 
_________________________________________________________________________ 
Michael G. Gerber, President and CEO 
 
 
 
 
 
FINANCE REVIEW   
 
__X__ Proposed action does not require Finance Department review 
 
 
_____ Fiscal Impact was approved by Thomas Cherian, CPA 
 
 
___________________________________________________________________________ 
Thomas Cherian, Vice President of Finance and CFO



 
 

RESOLUTION NO. 2450 
 
RESOLUTION APPROVING the submittal of the Section 8 Management Assessment 
Program (SEMAP) Certification to the Department of Housing and Urban Development (HUD) 
for the period from April 1, 2015 through March 31, 2016 
 
WHEREAS, the Section 8 Management Assessment Program (SEMAP) Certification is 
designed to allow the Department of Housing and Urban Development (HUD) to identify Public 
Housing Authorities' (PHAs') management capabilities and deficiencies and help lead to better 
overall management of the Section 8 program;  
 
WHEREAS, HUD has proposed fourteen (14) specific indicators for SEMAP and requires 
certification of the PHA; and 
 
WHEREAS, the Housing Authority of the City of Austin has completed the SEMAP 
certification for each indicator listed on form HUD-52648 for the period from April 1, 2015 
through March 31, 2016. 
 
NOW, THEREFORE BE IT RESOLVED that the Housing Authority of the City of Austin’s 
Board of Commissioners approves the Housing Authority of the City of Austin’s SEMAP 
(Section 8 Management Assessment Program) Certification for the Fiscal Year 2015/2016.  
 
PASSED, APPROVED AND ADOPTED this 19th day of May 2016. 
 
 

 ____________________________ 
 Carl S. Richie Jr., Chairperson 

 
 
________________________________ 
 Michael G. Gerber, Secretary 
 























HOUSING AUTHORITY OF THE CITY OF AUSTIN 
BOARD OF COMMISSIONERS 
REGULAR BOARD MEETING 

 

May 19, 2016 
Regular Meeting 

 
 
 
 
 

                                      
 

EXECUTIVE SESSION 
 
 

The Board may go into Executive Session (close its meeting to the public) 
Pursuant to: 

a. § 551.071, Texas Gov’t Code, consultations with Attorney regarding 
legal advice, pending or contemplated litigation; or a settlement 
offer; 

b. §551.072, Texas Gov’t Code, discussion about the purchase, 
exchange, lease or value of real property; 

c. §551.074, Texas Gov’t Code, discuss the appointment, employment, 
evaluation, reassignment, duties, discipline, or dismissal of a public 
officer or employee; or to hear a complaint or charge against an 
officer or employee; 

d. §551.087, Texas Gov’t Code, discuss certain economic development 
negotiations. 

 
 
 

Return to Open Session for discussion, consideration and 
possible action of matters discussed in Executive Session 

 
 
 
 
 
 



HOUSING AUTHORITY OF THE CITY OF AUSTIN 
BOARD OF COMMISSIONERS 
REGULAR BOARD MEETING 

 

May 19, 2016 
Regular Meeting 

 
 
 
 
 

REPORTS 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 



Finance Report, page 1



Finance Report, page 2



Finance Report, page 3



Finance Report, page 4



Finance Report, page 5



Finance Report, page 6



Finance Report, page 7



Finance Report, page 8



Finance Report, page 9



Finance Report, page 10



Finance Report, page 11



Finance Report, page 12



Finance Report, page 13



Finance Report, page 14



Finance R
eport, page 15



Finance Report, page 16



Finance Report, page 17



Finance Report, page 18



Finance Report, page 19



Finance Report, page 20



Finance Report, page 21



Finance Report, page 22



Finance Report, page 23



Finance Report, page 24



Finance Report, page 25



Finance Report, page 26



Finance Report, page 27



Finance Report, page 28



Finance Report, page 29



Finance Report, page 30



Finance Report, page 31



Finance Report, page 32



Finance Report, page 33



Finance Report, page 34



Finance Report, page 35



Finance Report, page 36



Finance Report, page 37



Finance Report, page 38



Finance Report, page 39



Finance Report, page 40



Finance Report, page 41



Finance Report, page 42



Finance Report, page 43



Finance Report, page 44



Finance Report, page 45



Finance Report, page 46



Finance Report, page 47



Finance Report, page 48



Finance Report, page 49



Finance Report, page 50



HOUSING AUTHORITY OF THE CITY OF AUSTIN 
BOARD OF COMMISSIONERS 
REGULAR BOARD MEETING 

 

May 19, 2016 
Regular Meeting 

 
 
 
 
 

ADJOURNMENT 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 


	Cover 
	Agenda
	CALL TO ORDER AND ROLL CALL
	United States Pledge of Allegiance
	Citizens Communication
	Citywide Advisory
	CONSENT AGENDA
	AGENDA ITEM NO. 1: Presentation, Discussion, and Possible Action regarding the Approval of a Board Minutes Summary for the Board Meeting held on April 21, 2016
	SUMMARY OF MINUTES

	ACTION ITEMS
	AGENDA ITEM NO. 2: Presentation, Discussion, and Possible Action regarding Resolution No. 2448: Approval of the Project Based Rental Assistance House Rules and Adjacent Policies (Pet Policy, Assistance Animals Policy, VAWA Policy, Privacy Policy, Reasonable Accommodations Policy, Bed Bug Policy, Parking & Towing Policy, Grievance and Appeals Policy)
	SUMMARY
	Resolution No. 2448
	Comparison of Leases, Addendums & House Rules
	Model Lease for Subsidized Programs

	AGENDA ITEM NO. 3: Presentation and Discussion of the proposed Choice Mobility Policy which will go out for public comment beginning on May 23, 2016
	SUMMARY
	Choice Mobility Policy
	Appendix 1: 90 Day Recertification Notice
	Appendix 2: Choice Mobility Voucher Request Form
	Appendix 3: Acknowledgment of Voucher Request
	Appendix 4: Transfer Process from PBRA to HCV

	AGENDA ITEM NO. 4: Presentation and Discussion of the proposed Changes to the revised Housing Choice Voucher Administrative Plan which will go out for public comment beginning on May 23, 2016
	Summary
	Attachment 1 - Summary of Revisions to Housing Choice Voucher Administrative Plan 
	Attachment 2 - Affected Sections of the HACA Housing Choice Voucher Administrative Plan 

	AGENDA ITEM NO. 5: Presentation and Discussion of the proposed Changes to the Admissions and Continued Occupancy Policy which will go out for public comment beginning on May 23, 2016
	SUMMARY
	Summary of Proposed Changes to the Admissions & Continued Occupancy Policy (ACOP)

	AGENDA ITEM NO. 6: Presentation and Discussion of the proposed Tenant Selection Plans for PBRA Family properties, PBRA & LIHTC Family properties and PBRA & LIHTC Elderly /Disabled properties which will go out for public comment beginning on May 23, 2016
	SUMMARY
	Tenant Selection Plans - Comparison
	Project Based Rental Assistance for a Family Site
	Project Based Rental Assistance & Low Income Housing Tax Credit for a Family Site 
	Project Based Rental Assistance & Low Income Housing Tax Credit Housing for Elderly & People with Disabilities

	AGENDA ITEM NO. 7: Presentation and Discussion of the proposed Changes to the 2016 PHA Annual Plan which will go out for public comment beginning on May 23, 2016
	SUMMARY
	Revisions to the 2016 PHA Annual Plan

	AGENDA ITEM NO. 8: Presentation, Discussion and Possible Action regarding Resolution No. 2449: Approving the authorization of the Housing Authority of the City of Austin (HACA) to submit to the U.S. Department of Housing and Urban Development (HUD )applications for the potential conversion of Phase II of public housing to the Rental Assistance Demonstration (RAD) Program
	SUMMARY
	RESOLUTION NO. 2449

	AGENDA ITEM NO. 9 : Presentation, Discussion, and Possible Action regarding Resolution No. 2450: Approving the submittal of the Section 8 Management Assessment Program (SEMAP) Certification to the Department of Housing and Urban Development (HUD) for the period from April 1, 2015 to March 31, 2016
	SUMMARY
	RESOLUTION NO. 2450
	Attachment 1 - SEMAP Certification
	Attachment 2 - SEMAP Summary
	Attachment 3 - Deconcentration Results 2016
	Attachment 4 - Deconcentration Results 2015

	EXECUTIVE SESSION
	REPORTS
	Finance 

	ADJOURNMENT

	Landlord_and: 
	C: 
	The_Tenant_understands_that_this_monthly_rent_is_l: 
	Text1: 
	Text2: 
	Text3: 
	Text4: 
	Text5: 
	Text6: 
	Text7: 
	Text8: 
	Text9: 
	Text10: 
	Text11: 
	Text12: 
	Textfield: 
	Textfield0: 
	Textfield1: 
	Textfield2: 
	Textfield3: 
	Textfield4: 
	Textfield5: 
	Textfield6: 
	Textfield7: 
	Textfield8: 
	Textfield9: 
	Textfield10: 
	Textfield11: 
	Textfield12: 
	Text13: 
	Text14: 
	Text15: 
	Text16: 
	Text17: 
	Text18: 
	Text19: 
	Text20: 
	Text21: 
	Text22: 
	Textfield13: 
	Textfield14: 
	Textfield15: 
	2: 
	Textfield16: 
	Textfield17: 
	Textfield18: 
	3: 
	Textfield19: 
	Textfield20: 
	Textfield21: 
	Textfield22: 
	Textfield23: 
	Textfield24: 
	Text23: 
	Text24: 


